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See also Alphabetical Index, page 1. €%

LIST OF SESSIONAL PAPERS,

Arranged in Numerical Order, with their Titles at full length ; the Dates when

1a.

| UR

6*,

6a.

Ordered and when Presented to both Houses of Parliument ; the Name of
the Member who moved for each Sessional Paper, and whether it is Ordered
to be Printed or Not Printed.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 1.

Report, Returns and Statistics of the Inland Revenues of the Dominion of Canada, for the fiscal year
ended 30th June, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th January, 1890, by Hon. J.
Costigan..... ... ....cooev iiiiiiiiinen cainn. Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

Inspection of Weights, Measures and Gas, being a Supplement to the Report of the Department of
Inland Revenue, 1889......................... Printed for both Distribution and Sesstonal Papers.

Report on Adulteration of Food, being a Supplement to the Report of the Department of Inland
Revenue, 1889.... . .... .. ... ool . Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTEXNTS OF VOLUME No. 2.

Tables of the Trade and Navigation of the Dominion of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,
1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th January, 1890, by Hon. M. Bowell—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 3.

Public Accounts of Canada, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 188¢; presented to the House of Com-
mons, 17th January, 1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster. Estimates for the fiscal year ending 30th June,
1891 ; presented 30th January, 1890. Supplementary Estimates of Canada, for the fiscal year end-
ing 30th June, 1890 ; presented 27th March, 1890. Further Supplementary Estimates for the fiscal
year ending 30th June, 1890 ; presented 25th April, 1890. Supplementary Estjmates for the year
ending 30th June, 1891 ; presented 6th May, 1890—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

List of Shareholders in the Chartered Banks of the Dominion of Canada, as on the 31st December,
1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th April, 1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster —

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 4.

Report of the Auditor General on Appropriation Accounts, for the year ended 30th .June, 1889. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 27th January, 1890, by the Hon. G. E. Foster—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 5.

Report of the Minister of Agriculture for the Dominion of Canada, for the calendar year, 1889, Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 20th March, 1890, by Hon. J. Carling—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
Canadian Immigration and Emigration. Annex to the Report of the Minister of Agriculture—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
Criminal Statistics for the year 1888.............. Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

6a*. Criminal Statistics for the year 1889......... .. Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
5



53 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers. A. 1890

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 6.

65, Report on Canadian Archives, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th February, 1890, by
Hon. J. Carling..........................o... Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
@c. Reports of the Director and Officers of the Experimental Farms, for the year 1889, Presented to the
House of Commons, 9th April, 1890, by Hon. J. Carling—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
6d. Report of the High Commissioner for Canada, with Reports from Agents in the United Kingdom, for
the year 1889. Presented to the House of Commonus, 9th April, 1890, by Hon. J. Carling—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 7.

¥. Report of the Secretary of State of Canada, for the year ended 31st December, 1889. Presented to
the House of Commons, 29th January, 1890, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

Za. The Civil Service List of Canada, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd February, 1899,

by Hon. J. A. Chapleau..................... Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

?b. Report of the Board of Examiners for the Civil Service of Canada, for the year ended 31st December,

1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 30th January, 1890, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

7¢. Report of the Department of Public Printing and Stationery for the Dominion of Canada, for the

year ended 30th June, 1889.................... Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

8. Report of the Joint Librarians of Parliament on the state of the Library of Parliament. Presented
to the House of Commons, 16th January, 1890, by Hon. Mr. Speaker—

Printed for Sessional Papers only.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 8.

9. Report of the Superintendent of Insurance, for the year ended 31st December, 1889—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
9a. Preliminary Abstract of the business of Canadian Life Insurance Companies, for the year ended 31st
December, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 7th February, 1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster.
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers,
9b. Abstract of Statements of Insurance Companies in Canada for the year ending 31st Mecember, 1889,
Presented to the House of Commons, 9th April, 1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 9.

10. Report of the Minister of Justice as to Penitentiaries in Canada, for the year ended 30th June, 1889.
Presented to the House of Commons, 28th March; 1890, by Sir John Thompson—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

11. Annual Report of the Department of Militia and Defence of the Dominion of Canada, for the year

ended 31st December, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 6th February, 1890, by Sir

Adolphe Caron.......... ... ... . .. ... .. . Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers,

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 10.

12. Annual Report of the Department of Indian Affairs, for the year ended 31st December, 1889. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 22nd J anuary, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewdney—
Printed for both Distribution and Sesstonal Papers.
18. Report of the Commissioner of the North-West Mounted Police Force, 1889. Presented to the House
of Cominons, 17th March, 1890, by Sir John Macdonald—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 11.

14. Annual Report of the Department of the Interior, for the year 1889. Presented to the House of
Commons, 31st March, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewdney—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
15. Report of the Postmaster General, for the year ended 30th June, 1889. Presented to the House of
Commons, 23rd January, 1890, by Hon. J. Haggart— .
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers,



OMISSION.

The two following documents were not printed until the Index was issued, which accounts for their
omission :

6¢. Abstracts of the Returns of Mortuary Statistics for the year 1889. ( Printed for both Distribution
and Sesstonal Papers.)

[The above paper has been inserted as the first of Volume No. 7, immediately preceding the Report of
the Secretary of State.)

19b. Canal Statistics for Season of Navigation, 1889. (Printed for both Distribution and Sessional
Papers.)

{Inserted as last paper in Volume No. 13, immedi‘ately following Railway Statistics. ]
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CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 12.

16. Twenty-second Annual Report of the Department of Marine, for the fiscal year ended 30th June,
1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th February, 1890, by Hon. Mr. Colby—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

16¢. Report of the Chairman of the Board of Steamboat Inspection, for calendar year ended 31st Decem-

ber, 1889 . ...t e e Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

17. Annual Report of the Department of Fisheries, for the year 1889. Presented to the House of Com-

mons, 16th April, 1890, by Hon. Mr. Colby. ... Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

17a. Special Report of the delegates appointed in 1889, to enquire into the Herring Fishing Industry of

Great Britain and Holland. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th February, 1890, by Hon.

C.H. Tupper .....ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiann... Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
17b. Report on the Fisheries Protection Service of Canada, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons,
10th March, by Hon. Mr. Colby .............. Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 13.

18. Annual Report of the Minister of Public Works, for the fiscal year 1888-89, on the works under his
control. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd February, 1890, by Sir Hector Langevin—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

19. Annual Report of the Minister of Railways and Canals for the past fiscal year, from the 1st July,

1888, to 30th June, 1889, on the works under his control. Presented to the House of Commons,

3rd March, 1890, by Sir John A. Macdonald... . Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

19a. Railway Statistics of Canada, and Capital, Traffic and Working Expenditure of the Railways of the

Dominion, 1883. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th May, 1890, by Sir John A. Macdonald—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 14.

20. Report of the Social Economy Section of the Universal International Exhibition of 1889 at Paris,
prepared by Jules Helbronner, member of the Royal Labor Commission. Presented to the House
of Commons, 8th May, 1890, by Hon. M. Bowell. . Printed for both Distribution and Sesstonal Papers.

21. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 20th March, 1889, for copies of all correspon-
dence respecting the establishment of a bi-weekly, in place of a weekly, postal service between
Lourdes and Somerset, in the county of Megantic. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th
January, 1890.—Mr. TUFCOL. ... ..t e Not printed.

21¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 25th February, 1889, for copies of all correspon-
dence respecting the awarding of the contract for carrying the mail between Becancour Station and
Ste. Julie de Somerset, and between Inverness and Ste. Julie de Somerset, awarded in or about the
month of April, 1888 ; also of all tenders connected therewith. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 20th January, 1890.—M7. TUrcol. .. ... ...c. vttt Not printed.

21b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 2nd March, 1888, for a return of all correspon-
dence by letter or telegram, and all other papers, relative to the conveyance of extra provincial
mails in Prince Edward Island since the 1st of September last. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 20th January, 1890.—M7r. Davies. ...........ouuiineeiit e Not printed.
21c. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a return showing the
number of registered letters sent to the Dead Letter Office during the years 1887, 1888 and 1889,
up to the 31st December last. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th January, 1890.—M7r.
MEMUIICT . .. oo e e e e e e e Not printed.
21d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd February, 1890, for copies of all letters,
reports and other correspondence now in the possession of the Postmaster General respecting the
carriage of the mails between Campbellton, in the province of New Brunswick, and Gaspé Basin,
in the province of Quebec. Presented to the House of Commons, 7th February, 1890.—Mr.

........................................................................... Not printed.

2. Statement of Governor General’s Warrants issued and expenditure made under same since last session
of Parliament, in accordance with Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act, section 32, sub-section 2.
Presented to the House of Commons, 20th January, 1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster—

Printed for Distribution only.

23. Report of the Commissioner, Dominion Police, for the year 1889, under Revised Statutes of Canadas
chapter 184, section 5. Presented to the House of Commons, 21st January, 1890, by Sir John
Thompson. ..o i e e e e Not printed.
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24. Statement of expenditure on account of Miscellaneous Expenses from 12th July, 1889, to 4th January,
1890, authorized by Act 52 Victoria, chapter 1. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd
January, 1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster ........ .. ..ottt iiiiiinaine ceennn. Not printed.

25. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th February, 1889, for a return of the number
of lobster factories round the coast of Prince Edward Island, the number of fines imposed during
the season of 1888, the amount of each fine, the names of parties who have paid the fines, and the
names of parties who have not paid the same; also the nature of offence in each case. Presented
to the House of Commons, 22nd January, 1890.—M». Perry........ .. «.ccoooi..... Not printed.

26. Copies of the regulations affecting Dominion Lands which have been sanctioned by the Privy Council
since the close of last session of Parliament, in compliance with section 91 of the Dominion Lands
Act, chapter 54 of the Revised Statutes of Canada. Presented to the House of Comnons, 28th
January, 1890, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau.... ..... ......................... ...... Not printed.

27. Regulations for the control and management of the Rocky Mountains Park of Canada, sanctioned
by Order in Council of the 27th November, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 28th
January, 1890, by Hon. J. A. Chapleau............... ..., Printed for Distribution only.

CONTENTS OF VOLUME No. 15.

28. Statement of all superannuations and retiring allowances in the Civil Service, giving the name and
rank of each person superannuated or retired, his salary, age and length of service, his allowance
and cause of retirement, whether vacancy has been filled by promotion or new appointment, etc.,
for year ended 31st December, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th January, 1890,
by Hon. G. E. Foster...... e e e Printed for Sessional Papers only.

28a. Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor General, dated the
22nd January, 1890, for copies of all Orders in Council, correspondence and documents respecting
the superannuation of certain employees in the Cullers’ Office at Quebec. Presented to the House
of Commons, 30th January, 1890.—Mr. Langelicr (Quebeec Centre)................. ... Not printed.

280, Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 22nd
January, 1890, for copies of all Orders in Council, correspondence and documents respecting the
superannuation of certain employés in the Post Office at Quebec, and in the Post Office Inspector’s
Office at Quebec ; and the filling up of the vacancies caused by their superannuation. Presented
to the House of Commons, 5th March, 1890.—AMr. Langelier (Quebec Centre). . .. .. ... Not printed.

29. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a return giving a detailed
statement of receipts and expenditures to 1st January, 1890, together with statement of the same
for the half year ending 1st January, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th January,
1890.—Sir Richard Cartwright. ... ...... ... ........ .. ...... Printed for Distribution only.

80. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 20th January, 1890, for a return showing the
amounts of money deposited in the several savings banks in the Dominion; and in the several post
office savings banks, the location of each, and the gross amount of deposits in each on the 30th of
June and December last. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th January, 1890.—Mr. Me-
DIUIIEN . . ..o oo e e e e Not printed.

30a. Supplementary return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 20th January, 1890, for a return
showing the amounts of money deposited in the several savings banks in the Dominion, and in the
several post office savings banks, the location of each, and the gross amounts of deposits in each on
the 30th of June and December last. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th February, 1890.—
Mr. MEMullon . ... .o. oo et et e et e Not printed.

300. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th February, 1890, for copies of the original
charters of the Bank of British North America and of the Bank of British Columbia, and of all
amendments thereto. Presented to the House of Commons, 21st February, 1890.—Mr. Edgar—

Not printed,

80c¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a return giving the names
of all the chartered banks in Canada that have suspended payment, gone into liquidation, or become
insolvent since Confederation, showing the amount of capital stock authorized, the amount of stock
subscribed, the amount of stock paid up, the assets and liabilities of said banks at the time of such
suspension or failure, the nature of such assets and liabilities, the dates of said charters and the

dates of forfeiture or relinquishment of such charters, and dividend paid to bill holders and deposi-

tors. Presented to the House of Commons, 2nd April, 1890.—Mr. Hesson...... ..... Not printed.

" 81. Correspondence with the Canadian Pacific Railway Company covering a copy of list of all lands sold by
that company during the year ending 1st day of October last, in compliance with section 8 of 49
Victoria, chapter 9. Presented to the House of Commons, 30th January, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewd-

BBy L ittt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e Not printed.
8
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31a.

310,

31c.

32

33,

33a.

33b.

33c.

33d.

33c.

337

33y.

Return (¢n part) under resolution of the House of Commons, passed on the 20th February, 1882, on
all subjects affecting the Canadian Pacific Railway, respecting details as to : 1. Selection of the
route. 2. The progress of the work. 3. The selection or reservation of land. 4. The payment of
moneys. 5. The laying out of branches. 6. The progress thereon. 7. The rates of tolls for pas-
sengers and freight. 8. The particulars required by the Consolidated Railway Act and amend-
ments thereto, up to the end of the previous fiscal year. 9. Like particulars up to the latest prac-
ticable date before the presentation of the return. 10. Copies of all Orders in Council and all cor-
respondence between the Government and the railway company, or any member or officer of either,
relating to the affairs of the company. Presented to the House of Commons, 30th January, 1890,
by Hon. E. Dewdney. ... vt Printed for Sessional Papers only.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 24th
January, 1890, for copies of all correspondence between the Dominion Government and the Impe-
rial Government, and between the Dominion Government and the Canadian Pacific Railway Com-
pany in regard to the granting of a subsidy to the latter company for lines of steamships to run
between Vancouver, B.C., and Japan and Australia. Presented to the House of Commons, 25th
February, 1890.— M7, Prior. ... ....u.e ettt Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th January, 189() for copies of all petitions,

letters or other documents addressed to the Government, and complaining of the condition of the
bridges on the branch lines of railway worked by the Canadian Pacific Railway Company within
the county of Bagot and the neighboring counties. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th
February, 1890.—Mr. DUPONE. ... ove ettt e e eeaaaeae e aaaeans Not printed .
Detailed statement of all bonds or securities registered in the Department of the Secretary of State
of Canada, submitted to the Parliament of Canada under section 23, chapter 19, of the Revised
Statutes of Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 3rd February, 1890, by Hon. J. A.
ChaPleat. . o et e e e Not printed.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 27th
January, 1890, for copies of 2ll resolutions of the Legislative Assembly of the Nerth-West Terri-
tories, respecting the application of moneys voted by this House for the use of the said territories.
Presented to the House of Commons, 10th February, 1890.—Hon. Mr. Laurier....... Not printed.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 3rd
February, 1899, for copies of all memorials, petitions and resolutions of the Legislative Assembly
of the North-West Territories passed at its last session, whether addressed to His Excellency the
Governor General or to the Parliament of Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th
February, 1890.—Mr. Daly. ... ...oouu e ettt et e e eie e iaeannas Not printed.
Copies of the several petitions presented to Council against the abolition of separate schools and the
French language in the North-West Territories. Presented to the House of Commons, 11th
February, 1890, by Mr. Colby.....uiniiri ittt et r e eieaens Not printed.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 27th
January, 1890, for copies of all resolutions of the Legislative Assembly of the North-West Terri-
tories, respecting the settlement of the Half-breed claims. Presented to the House of Commons,
21st February, 1890—Hon, Mr. LaQurier. .. ... ...t i neanen Not printed.
Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 27th
January, 1890, for copies of all Orders in Council, despatches, correspondence and documents
relating to the resignation of the Advisory Council of the North-West Territories, and the
appointment of their successors. Presented to the House of Commons, 24th February, 1890.—
Mr. White (Renfrew). ... ..co.ooo it e e e e e e Not printed.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a return showing, by
years, the cost of printing the Ordinances and other official papers and publications in the French
language from the time of the passage of the North-West Territories Act of 1877. 2. The number
of copies of the Ordinances from time to time printed in said language. 3. The number distri-
buted and the number remaining in stock. Presented to the House of Commons, 25th February,
1890.—Mr. Denison. . ..........ooiiviiiia.... Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a copy of the memor-
ials sent by Joseph Holden and John Shera to the Hon. Edgar Dewdney, Minister of the Interior,
respecting second homesteads in the Territories. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th
March, 1890.—JM7. DATIT.. . .ottt it et i e e Not printed.
Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a return showing
receipts and expenses of each North-West Territories Registry Office from 1887 to 1889. Presented
to the House of Commons, 26th March, 18909——Mr‘ Davin........cccuvvueiiinnninens Not printed.
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88h. Correspondence in relation to certain assistance afforded to the Half-breeds at Fort la Corne and
other places. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st May, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewdney—

Not printed.

83¢. Statement respecting the purchase of seed grain (including a schedule of prices paid for wheat and

oats). Presented to the House of Commons, 1st May, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewdney.. .. Not printed.

83j. Statement respecting distribution of seed-grain and instructions as to the distribution thereof. Pre-

gented to the House of Commons, 1st May, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewdney.............. Not printed,

33k. Memorandum with reference to the appropriation accounts of 1889, for certain of the provinces and

the North-West Territories. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st May, 1890, by Hon. E.

DEWANEY . . . oottt et ettt ie et et e e e e e s Not printed.

33!. Statement regarding the claim of the Eau Clair and Bow River Lumber Company against the Gov-

ernment for lumber alleged to have been taken off their limits. Presented to the House of Com-

mons, 1st May, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewdney .................ocoiiiiiiiniie Not printed.
83m. Correspondence, etc., respecting the St. Albert Bridge. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st
May, 1890, by the Hon, E. Dewdney .........covoviniernineiiiiiniininreanannnns Not printed.

33n. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1890, for a return showing : 1. The
number of acres of pasture land now under lease in the North-West Territories. 2. The amount
paid the Government for rental of grazing leases during the past year. 3. The amount due the
Government for arrears on pasture leases, and the names of the lessees in arrears for pasture lease
rental. 4. The names of the lessees holding leases of territory upon which settlers are not allowed
to take up land without the consent of the lease-holder, with the total area of such leases, and the
location of each. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th May, 1890.—Mr, Charlton—

Not printed.
830. List of schools under different denominations in the North-West Territories, 1889. Presented to the
House of Commons, 12th May, 1890, by Hon. E. Dewdney..........c..cooovvuunnnn.. Not printed.

84. See Sessional Paper No. 17a.

85. Certified copy of a report of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His Excellency in Couns
cil on the 17th August, 1889, on the subject of the Copyright Act of last session, together with cor-
respondence and other papers referring to the same subject. Presented to the House of Commons,
10th February, 1890, by Sir John Thompson. . . Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

36. Copies of reports of a committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, with reference to the granting
a timber license to Mr. John Adams. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th February, 1890,
by Sir John Macdonald. ... .. o..iuiiiiiii it et s Not printed.

86a. Retufn to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th March, 1890, for a list of timber limits
granted by the Dominion Government since March 1st, 1885 ; the names of the parties to whom
granted, with date of grant ; the area of each limit granted ; whether granted to highest bidder at
public competition, and the amount of bonus, if any, in each case received. Presented to the
House of Commons, 15th April, 1890.—Mr. Charlton............ Printed for Sessional Papers only.

87. Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 27th
January, 1890, for copies of all Orders in Council or departmental orders prohibiting American
vessels from carrying bonded freight from American ports to Victoria, British Columbia, or any
other Canadian port; and copies of all Ordersin Council or departmental orders revoking the
same, and all correspondence connected therewith. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th
February, 1890. —Hon. Mr. Laurier ... ..........co oo iine i, Not printed.

38. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 6th February, 1889, for a return giving the total
cost of issuing the budget speech each year since 1867, together with a statement showing the
number of copies issued during said period. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th February,
1890, —M7, Landerkin. ... ..o uuun ittt et e e Not printed.

89. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a statement of all the
expenses generally incurred to this day for the making of the electoral lists for the Dominion of
Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 25th February, 1890.—M». Casgrain—

Not printed.

40. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for copies of all papers,
correspondence and agreements between the Government and the proprietors of the extension of
the Derby Branch Railway in relation to the said extension, the said extension having being built by
the aid of Government subsidy, but never yet operated. Presented to the House of Commons,
26th February, 1890, —M7r. Mitchell. ...... ... coirieiniiii ittt it Not printed.

41. Return to an order of the House of Commons, da.ted 12th February, 1890, for copies of all petitions
and correspondence respecting the request for the construction of a siding, on the line of the Inter-
colonial Railway, at the station of St. Jean Chrysostdme, in the county of Lévis. Presented to
the House of Commons, 26th February, 189(1).0——M7u GUAY.e. oo Not printed.
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41a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for a statement showing
the names of all persons who sold to the Dominion Government since the 1st January, 1886, pro-
perty located in St. Laurent and Lauzon Wards in the town of Lévis, with a view to widening the
roadway of the Intercolonial Railway, and an extension of the station at Lévis ; the amount paid
to each proprietor ; the amounts paid for commissions ; the rate of percentage, and the persons to
whom such amounts were paid. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th March, 1890.—Mr.
GUAY . . o e e e e e ah e Not printed.
415. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for copies of all petitions to the
Minister of Railways since 1st January, 1889, from employees of the Intercolonial Railway work-
shops at Moncton and the Prince Edward Island Railway, asking for an increase of wages ; and
also for copies of all answers to the same from the Department of Railways or any official thereof.
Presented to the House of Commons, 21st April, 1890.—M~». Davies.................. Not printed.
41c. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for copies of all petitions
forwarded to the Government by Messrs. Nazaire Ouellet, Geo. Voyer, Alfred Ouellet, F. Coté
and others, in relation to damages caused to their properties by the Intercolonial Railway. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 21st April, 1890.—Mr, Fiset...............c........ Not printed.
41d. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for a return showing the past
operation of the Intercolonial Railway employees insurance’ scheme, and especially (a) the annual
receipts and expenditure, including salaries of officials for each year the scheme has been in opera-
tion ; (b) the amounts paid each year out of the fund to the employees or their representatives,
and whether for death or injury ; (c) the surplus (if any) now on hand of such fund. Presented to
the House of Commons, 22nd April, 1890.— M7, Dattes. ... ....oeueneureanarnanenn.. Not printed.
41e. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a return of the casual-
ties to trains on the Intercolonial Railway, arising from collision, broken rails or otherwise, for the
calendar year 1889, the respective causes and dates, the amount of damage (if any) in each case to
property, the amount of compensation paid to owners of property destroyed or damaged, as well as.
amount of claims for loss or damnage to property (if any) unsettled. Presented to the House of
Commons, 22nd April, 1890.—Mr. Weldon (St. John).. .... ...o.oiiiiiiinienann.. Not printed.
41f. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for a return showing (a) the
names and number of officials’ cars on the Intercolonial Railway and its branches; (b) the original
cost, date and place of building of each car, or name of person or company from whom purchased ;
(c) the cost of repairs to, or expenditure in, each of such cars since acquired ; (d) the names, salaries
and expenses of each employee on such official cars; (¢) the annual expenses of providing the sup-
plies to each such car. Presented to the House of Commons, 9th May, 1890.—M~». Davies—
Not printed.
41g. Return to an address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 1st May, 1890,
for a return showing: 1. The rate per ton charged for carrying coal in car loads over the Inter-
colonial Railway from the mines of Nova Scotia to St. John, Moncton, Newcastle and Campbellton
in New Brunswick, and to Rimouski, Riviére du Loup and Quebec, and by the same, with ite
connections, to Montreal and Toronto. 2. The rate per ton for carrying flour, wheat and other
goods of the same class in car loads from Toronto, Montreal and Quebec to Campbeliton, New-
castle, Moncton and 8t. John in New Brunswick, and to Amherst, Truro, Pictou and Halifax in
Nova Scotia. 3. The number of freight trains which passed each way between Nova Scotia and
Quebec and Ontario, and between New Brunswick and the same provinces, in the year 1889.
4. How many trains carried goods from the west to be shipped at Halifax and-St. John, respec-
tively, during 1889, and up to the present date m 1890. Presented to the Senate, 16th May,
1890. —Hon. Mr. Wark. ... e e e Not printed.
4%. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a return showing the
amount of money expended by the Dominion in each province since Confederation to the 30th of
June, 1889, under the following heads : 1. Subsidies to railways in each province, excepting the
Canada Pacific main line and Sanlt Branch. 2. The several railways built by the Dominion in
each Province, including the Intercolonial branches and extensions, but not the main line as
originally constructed. 3. The buildings erected or purchased in each province, their location and
cost. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th February, 1890. —Mr. McMullen—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
4%q. Amended return (in part) to a return presented .to the House of Commons on the 26th February,
1890, showing the amount of money expended by the Dominion 1 each province since Confedera-
tion to the 30th June, 1889, under the following heads : 1. Subsidies to railways in each provinces
excepting the Canada Pacific main line and Sault Branch. 2. The several railways built by tl_le
Dominion in each province, including the Intercolonial branches and extensions, but not the main
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line as originally constructed. 3. The buildings erected or purchased in each province, their loca-
tion and cost. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd April, 1890.—M7r. McMullen
Printed for both Distribution and Sesstonal Papers.

420, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1890, for a statement of the amount
of subsidies voted to the Canada Atlantic Railway Company for the construction of their bridge
over the St. Lawrence River, between Coteau and Valleyfield, the amount paid by the Govern-
ment up to date, and the amount unearned or still to be paid. Presented to the House of Commons,
2nd May, 1890.—Mr. Bergeron . ... ...t e Not printed.

42¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1890, for a statement of the amount
of subsidies voted by Parliament to the Beauharnois Junction Railway Company, the amount paid
by the Government up to date, and the amount still due or unearned. Presented to the House of
Commons, 2nd May, 1890.—Mr, Bergeron. ........ccovuiuis cuiieiiuiiinninennans Not printed.

4:2d. Papers, correspondence, étc., respecting subsidies to certain railway companies, and towards the
construction of certain railways, as follows: Montreal and Ottawa Railway Company (late
Vaudreuil and Prescott Railway Company); Waterloo Junction Railway Company ; Northern
Pacific Junction Railway Company ; Ottawa, Morrisburg and New York Railway Company ;
Erie and Huron Railway Company ; Brockville, Westport and Sault Ste. Marie Railway Com-
pany ; Manitoulin and North Shore Railway Company ; Port Arthur, Duluth and Western Rail-
way Company ; Lake Erie and Detroit River Railway (formerly Amherstburg, Lake Shore and
Blenheim Railway Company); Lindsay, Bobcaygeon and Pontypool Railway Company ; King-
ston, Smith’s Falls and Ottawa Railway Company ; Ottawa and Parry Sound Railway Company ;
Bay of Quinté and Lake Nipissing Railway Company ; Cobourg, Northumberland and Pacific
Railway Company ; St. Stephen and Milltown Railway Company; Woodstock and Centreville
Railway Company ; St. John River Railway Company, N.B. ; Central Railway Company, N.B. ;
Shelburne and Liverpool to Annapolis Railway Company: Inverness and Richmond Railway
Company ; International Railway Company ; Montreal and Sorel Railway Company ; Pontiac
Pacific Junction Railway Company; Montreal and Lake Maskinongé Railway Company ; Great
Eastern Railway Company ; Drummond County Railway Company ; Oxford Mountain Railway
Company ; Maskinongé and Nipissing Railway Company; Jacques Cartier Union Railway
Company ; Quebec Central Railway Company ; Quebec and Lake St. John Railway Company ;
Stewiacke Valley and Lansdowne Railway Company ; Temiscouata Railway Company ; Tobique
Valley Railway Company. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May, 1890, by Sir John A.
Macdonald .. ..o e e Not printed.

43. Return to an order of the House of Cominons, dated 12th February, 1890, for a list of Indian reserves
within the Province-of Manitoba, giving location and area of each one, number of Indians belong-
ing to it at the time of location of such reserve, and number now actually living on same.
Presented to the House of Commons, 26th February, 1890.—Mr. LaRiviére—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

48a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 20th January, 1890, for a return giving the
names of all persons who were tried before a magistrate for selling intoxicating liquors to Indians
in the county of Grey or Bruce, in the year 1888-89; together with all papers, documents and
“letters on the subject ; also the name of the party who laid the information, the name of the
magistrate before whom it was tried, the name of the constable employed, and the name of the
lawyer retained in each case, together with the decisions of the magistrate, stating the fines
imposed, if any ; also if any appeals were made from the decisions of the magistrate, stating
before what judge the appeals were tried and what was the result : giving the cost of each trial
before the magistrate, and of each appeal before the judge, together with the name, occupation
and post office address of every person who received money for any service whatever, either at the
trial at the magistrate’s court or at the appeal before the judge ; the total cost of all the trials, the
total fines imposed and collected. If costs were refused at any trial, giving the reason for such
refusal ; also showing whether any of the Indians who received whiskey were electors of Bruce
under the Electoral Franchise Act of Canada. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March,
1B90.—Mr. Landerkin ..............uius. veenenanrnerane e ....Not printed.

438b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for a statement showing: 1.
All moneys in the hands of the Superintendent General of Indian Affairs, belonging to the Indians
of the Caughnawaga Reserve. 2. All the several sources from which the said moneys were
derived. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th March, 1890.—Mr. Doyon. . .... Not printed.

12
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48¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for copies of all correspond-
ence between the Indian Department and the agent or chiefs of the Caughnawaga Reserve, in
relation to any indemnity obtained by the Indians of the reserve, on the ground that the extent of

their reserve has been considerably diminished by encroachments. Presented to the House of
Commons, 9th May, 1890.—M7, Doyon. ......... . ceovriiniriiiiiiiniie i Not printed.

44. Statement of the affairs of the British Canadian Loan and Investment Company, on 31st December,
1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th May, 1890, by Hon. Mr. Speaker. .. Not printed.

45. Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 1st
April, 1889, for a return : 1. Giving the names and places of residence of the commissioners
appointed in 1883 for the purpose of examining and reporting upon the fitness and eligibility of

persons appearing before them for examination and qualification as inspectors of the hulls of

freight and passenger steamers plying in Canadian waters. 2. Copies of the circular sent out
inviting competitors to meet at Ottawa, and the date or dates so mentioned from time to time. 3.

The names and places of residence of all persons who were 80 examined at each and every meeting

of the said commissioners up to date. 4. Copies of the recommendation or recommendations of any of

the said commissioners, or any one of them, respecting the said examination or the qualifications,

or otherwise, of any or all who underwent such examination at the first or any subsequent meeting

of the said commissioners, or either of them. 5. The name and place of residence of each and

every inspector of freight and passenger steamer hulls appointed by the Government from 1882 to

date ; indicating who were appointed after undergoing and passing the necessary examination, as

well as giving the name and place of residence of each and every inspector of such hulls who was
appointed without having successfully passed the said examination, together with the name and

place of residence of any inspector so appointed, since 1882 to date, who had been dismissed or had
resigned within the time specified, and the cause assigned for such dismissal or resignation. 6.

The name and place of residence of any person appointed to fill any vacancy or addition as
inspector of said hulls. 7. Copies of all correspondence between the Minister of Marine and any

person respecting any of the questions enumerated herein. Presented to the House of Commons,

3rd March, 1890.—Mr. Wilson (Elgin)...........oiiuiiiiiiii it i, Not printed.

46. Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Govemor General dated 20th
February, 1890, for a copy of the report of Mr. A. F. Wood upon the investigation which he has

made into affairs connected with the Welland Canal. Presented to the House of Commons, 6th

March, 1890.— M7, Bdgar. .. ....o.o ettt it sttt i Not printd.

46a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th January, 1890, for a return showing the
date of the creation of the Trent Valley Canal Commission, the time and place of the first
sitting, the actval number of days it has actually been occupied in the work appertaining to the

said Commission, and the number of days and of sittings held in taking and receiving evidence,

and the places whereat thus far sittings of the commission have been held. Presented to the House

of Commons, 5th March, 1890.—M7. Barron...........ouuuiiiinnienunnninnnnnnn, Not printed.
b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 3rd March, 1890, for a statement showing, for
each year since 1878 : 1. The number of vessels which have passed through the Chambly Canal,

and their tonnage. 2. The amount of, and the description of freight carried by these vessels. 3.

The amount of tolls collected in the said several years on the said canal. Presented to the House

of Commons, 17th March, 1890.—Mr. Préfontaine. ..............ccooiieninrniinnn., Not printed.

46¢. Supplementary Report of A. F. Wood, Esq., of the Welland Canal Investigation with suggestions as
to changes in the present system of management. Presented to the Senate, 1st May, 1890, by

Hon. Mr. ABbott. ..ot e Not printed.

47. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a return of the number
of cases entered in the Vice-Admiralty Court of Quebec, during the years 1885, 1886, 1887, 1888

and 1889 ; the number of cases entered during the same yearsin the Vice-Admiralty Court of Nova

Scotia ; and the number of cases entered during the same year in the Vice-Admiralty Court of

New Brunswick. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th March, 1890.—M», Weldon (St.

JORM). o oot e e e e e e s s . Not printed.

48. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a statement in detail
showing the expenditure made in connection with the Marine and Emigrant Hospital at Quebec,

since the 30th June, 1886, the said statement giving : 1. The sum voted each year by the Domin-

ion Parliament. 2. The amount expended. 3. The number of sailors and emigrants taken in each

year, and the total number of days that each one of these passed in the hospital. 4. The number

of persons not being sailors or emigrants, taken into the said hospital, and the number of days that

each one of this class passed there. 5. The total cost day by day of each patient. 6. The amount
received by the Government for the patients who are neither emigrants nor sailors. 7. The amount
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received from the Sick Mariners’ Fund under the Act 49 Vic., chap. 76, section 16. Presented to
the House of Comnmons, 5th March, 1890.—Mr. Langelier (Quebec Centre )—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
48¢. Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 22nd
January, 1890, for copies of all Orders in Council, correspondence and documents respecting the
establishment of the Marine Hospital at Quebec and respecting the closing of the same. Presented
to the House of Commons, 17th March, 1890.—Mr. Langelier ( Quebec Centre). ... .. .. Not printed.
49. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th January, 1890, for a return showing whether
or not the island known as Sultana Island, in the Lake of the Woods, has been sold, and if sold,
showing by what right or title the Government of Canada claimed to have the power to sell the
same ; showing, also, all correspondence had between the Government of Canada and the pur-
chaser or purchasers of said island, or the solicitors or other persons acting on behalf of such pur-
chaser or purchasers (if any) ; showing, also, the area of land contained in said island, and the
value and extent of the pine timber thereupon, and the price or amount for which the said island
was sold, and the names and addresses of the purchaser or purchasers thereof. Also any map
showing locality of island. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th March, 1890.—Mr. Barron—
Not printed.
49¢. Supplementary return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th January, 1890, for a return
showing whether or not the island known as Sultana Island, in the Lake of the Woods, has been
sold, and if so, showing by what right or title the Government of Canada claimed to have the
power to sell the same ; showing, also, all correspondence had between the Government of Canada
and the purchaser or purchasers of said island, or the solicitors or other persons acting on behalf
of such purchaser or purchasers (if any); showing, also, the area of land contained in said island,
and the value and extent of the pine timber thereupon, and the price or amount for which the said
island was sold, and the names and addresses of the purchaser or purchasers thereof. Also any
map showing locality of island. Presented to the House of Commons, 2nd April, 1890.—2r.
2 Not printed.
50. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th April, 1889, for a return showing the number
of permanent clerks employed by the Department of the Interior, including inside and outside
service. And also the number of extra clerks at present in the employ of the said department in
the same service. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th March, 1890.—M7r. Weldon (St. John )—
Not printed.
B1. Official correspondence in the matter of Private C. J. Hurrell, applying for further compensation as
a wounded volunteer. Presented to the House of Commons, 7th March, 1890, by Sir Apolphe

1079 o A Not printed.
B51a. Official correspondence in the matter of Vahquette’s pension. Presented to the House of Commons,
7th March, 1890, by Sir Adolphe Caron............ovuieeirirenineananer crer wenns Not printed.

51b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th March, 1890, for a statement showing :

1. The date when Private C. T. Hurrell was notified by the Government of the passing of the

passing of the Order in Council of the 13th November, 1888, granting him a pension. 2. The

- amounts paid him by way of gratuity or pension, and the dates of such payments. Presented to

the House of Commons, 18th April, 1890.—Mr. Mulock. ..... e et e Not printed.

B51c. Copy of a declaration made by Antoine Valiquette, father of the late Primat Valiquette, sergeant in
the 65th Battalion. Presented to the House of Commons, 18th April, 1890, by Sir A. P. Caron.

Not printed.

52. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th January, 1890, for copies of all letters to

the Government asking that engineers be sent to examine Kettle Creek, between St. Thomas and

Port Stanley, with a view to ascertaining the feasibility of building a canal; and all reports,

maps and other documents sent in by such engineers. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th

March, 1890.—Mr. Wilson (ELgin).. ... ..c.iui ettt ieisre e anans. Not printed.

53. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for eoples of all correspon-

dence between the Government, or any of its departments, and the corporation known as the

¢ Président et syndics de la commune de la seigneurie d"Yamaska,” respecting damages occasioned

to their lands by the dam erected in the Yamaska River. Presented to the House of Commons,

10th March, 1890.—Hon. Mr. LOUTTer.. ... ... oottt iiii e Not printed.

53q. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for copies of all claims

made by Elphége Cardin, Jean Cardin, (George Tonnancourt and Bruno St. Germain, to be com-

pensated for damages occasioned to their lands by the dam erected in the Yamaska River; of all

correspondence arising out of such claims; together with a statement of all sums allowed to each

of them in settlement of their claims. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th March, 1890.—

Hom. Mr. LOUPICT. . . o\ o e e i et e e et et ettt e ee it e e e e Not printed.



58 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers. A. 1890

53b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for copies of the late
reports made by the Engineer of the Public Works Department respecting works to be carried
out at Riviére du Sud, in the county of Montimnagny. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th
March, 1890.—M7. CROGUELLE. . ... ..o ottt eee e i e eeaeeerennrnaean cansn Not printed.
54. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th January, 1890, for & return of all corres-
pondence, petitions, reports or other papers respecting the sale, ownership or condition of the
Dundas and Waterloo: Macadamized Road, since the close of the session of 1889. Presented to
the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890—M7r. Bain ( Wentworth) .............. "...Not printed.
B4a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 29th January, 1890, for copies of all petitions,
reports of engineers, and all correspondence in reference to the dredging of the bar at the mouth
of the river Thames, in the county of Kent, Ontario. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th
March, 1890.—Mr. Campbell. ... .......... e ieeeeeee e iiiieiar e iaeeeaniins Not printed.
83. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 22nd January, 1890, for copies of all correspon-
dence and documents respecting the appointment of Mr. Joseph Garneau as Superintendent of
Government works at Quebec ; and respecting his removal and the substitution of a person named
L. P. Lépine. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1830.—Mvwr. Langelier ( Quebec
(0% 2 P Not printed.
86. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th February, 1890, for a return of a copy of the
contract and specification for the erection of the Post Office and Custom House building at
Annapolis, Nova Scotia; the several tenders and amounts thereof; also any order or orders
altering the quality and nature of the stone used in the construction. Presented to the House of
Con mons, 10th March, 1890.—Mr. Weldon (St. John)..........cceviveeeinnnniinn. Not printed.
86a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 4th March, 1889, for copies of all petitions and
resolutions forwarded to the Government by the citizens or Corporation of the town of Lévis, in
relation to the building of a post office in the said town. Presented to the House of Commons,
10th March, 1890.—M7r. Guay... ... . ..ot i i e Not printed.
56b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for copies of all petitions,
letters, etc., to the Department at Ottawa, praying for a post office at Palmer Road, Prince Edward
Island ; also all correspondence to and from the Post Office Department at Ottawa and the Post
Office Inspector at Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island, on the same subject. Presented to the
House of Commons, 218t April, 1890.—M7r. Perry............ coooiiiiii i, Not printed.
56c. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for copies of two enquiries
made by Messrs. Bourgeois, King and Boldue, respecting the post office at Pierreville, P.Q.—Mr.
CROQUELEE. .« ..o vttt et i te et et et e i e e Not printed.
87. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 11th March, 1889, for copies of all correspondence,
reports, etc., respecting the wharf at St. Roch des Aulnets, in the county of L’Islet, between the
Department of Public Works and the late Charles Frs. Roy, surveyor, and the residents of the
said municipality interested therein. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890.—
Mr. COSGTUIN. . oo et ettt ettt et et ettt et et a e e Not printed.
37a. Return to an order of the House of\Commons, dated 27th January, 1890, for copies of the accounts
connected with the building of a wharf at Kamouraska, in the province of Quebec, made up in the
course of the year 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890.—Mr. Dessaint—
Not printed.
38. Return to an order gf the House of Commons, dated 27th January, 1890, for a statement, in detail,
showing the expenditure made in connection with repairs to Tignish Breakwater, Prince Edward
Island, during 1889 ; the date of commencement of work, and when completed ; the name of party
in charge of work. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890.—Mr, Perry—
Not printed.
58a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 26th February, 1890, for a statement showing the
number of Government wharves, piers and breakwaters repaired in Prince Edward Island during
the year 1889, the amount expended on each of said wharves, piers and breakwaters. Presented
to the House of Commons, 20th March, 1890.—M7. Perry.. ......  ...ceveeennon.. Not printed.
59. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for copies of the reports
made by the chief engineer relating to the survey of Cove Head Harbor, in Prince Edward Island,
four or five years ago. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890.—-Mr. Davies—
Not printed.
89a¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 20th January, 1890, for a copy of Government
engineer’s report of survey of Harbors of Pinette and Wood’s Island, and also copy of report of
survey of New London Harbor and Breakwater, in the province of Prince Edward Island. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 10th Marti}g 1890.—Mr. Welsh..............cooun. Not printed.



53 Victoria. List of Sessional Papers. . A. 1890

59b. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for copies of any reports
made by the chief engineer relating to survey of Tracadie Harbor, Prince Edward Island, some
years ago. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th March, 1890.—M7. Davies. ... Not printed.
59¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for a return showing the date:
of commencing the work of blasting the rock in Cascumpec Harbor, in Prince Edward Island, in
the summer of 1889, the date at which the work stopped, the names of workmen employed, the
amount of wages paid to each diver and to each laborer ; also the whole amount expended in blast-
ing said rock up to December, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st April 1890.—Mr.
B 2 P Not printed.
59d. Return to an order of the House of Commens, dated 10th March 1890, for a return showing the
number of tenders made or put in for the public work at the eastern gap of the Toronto Harbor
works ; the name or names of each person or company tendering for the work and the amount of
each tender and the terms thereof, with a statement of the approximate quantities upon which each
tender was calculated ; and of all letters and correspondence, statements, documents and papers
pertaining to the letting of the contract and to any and all of the tenders. Presented to the House
of Commons, 1st April, 1890.—Mr. Barron.........coove vt iiiii e Not printed.
59¢. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th March, 1890, for a return of all correspon-
dence, petitions, memorials, reports of the chief engineer of the Department relative to the neces-
sity and expediency of dredging and otherwise improving the harbor at Picton, Bay of Quinté,
since 1st January, 1883 ;: and also containing all correspondence, petitions, memorials and reports
concerning the desirability or expediency of construction of public buildings at the said town of
Picton for the accommodation of post office, customs and inland revenue offices in that town, since
1st January, 1886. Presented to the House of Commons, 2nd April, 1890.—Mr. Platt—
Not printed.
59 7. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th March, 1890, for copies of all reports of the
chief engineer on the pier at Hall’s Harbor, Nova Scotia, since the year 1882 ; and for copies of all
correspondence relating to said pier. Presented to the House of Commons, 2nd April, 1890.— M.
BOPAON . . v ettt s ettt e e e e e Not printed .
59¢. Statements and correspondence in reference to the Harbor Works at Quebec, Graving Dock at Esqui-
malt, etc. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th May, 189¢, by Sir Hector Langevin—
Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
69. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th January, 1890, for a statement showing
the amount of dredging done during the season of 1889 in Prince Edward Island by the dredge
“ Prince Edward ;” the names of harbors and other places dredged during said season, and the
amount of work done in each harbor. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890, —
D 2 P Not printed.
61. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for copies of all corres-
pondence which has passed between the Auditor General and the Minister of the Interior, or any
other person, in reference to the allowance for travelling expenses of William McGirr, private
secretary to the Superintendent General of Indian Affairs. Presented to the House of Commons,
10th March, 1890, 7. LiSter... . ..ouveeeunasnmerneneatntetiien mnensonns vunn.. Not printed.
62. Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 29th
January, 1890, for a copy of the quarantine regulations of Grosse Isle, together with all Orders in
Council and instructions given to the medical officers at said station. Presented to the House of
Commons, 10th March, 1890.—Mr. Landerkin. .....:c..ooov oo i, .. Not printed.
63. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for copies of corres-
pon'denee in conmection with a claim, made by the district of St. Peter’s, in the county of Rich-
mond, for medical attendance and board of Kenneth Chisholm, a sick mariner, belonging to the
schooner ‘‘Jeanie.” Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890.—Mr. Flynn—
Not printed.
4. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th January, 1890, for a return showing: 1.
The total number of Chinese immigrants who have arrived in the Dominion of Canada from the
31st March, 1887, to the 31st December, 1889, specifying the ports at which such immigrants have
arrived. 2. The amount of fees or duties collected from Chinese immigrants during the same
period. 3. The number of certificates of residence that have been issued to Chinese as provided
for under section 13 of the Act to restrict and regulate Chinese immigration into Canada, since
the passage of the Act. 4. The number of Chinese who have been detected in attempting to land
in Canada upon fraudulent certificates and who were prevented by the courts from doing so. 5.
Copies of all correspondence having reference to the removal from office of Mr. Vroman alias Mr.
Gardner, and also all correspondence havin% 6reference to the appointument of a Chinamam to the
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position of interpreter at the port of Vancouver, in the place of the said Mr. Gardner. 6. The
number of Chinese who have passed through Canada in bond for passage from Vancouver by
steamer to China, and the regulations that have been prescribed for placing them securely on board
said steamers to prevent their disembarkation into Canada. 7. The total number of Chinese other
than those in bond who have left Canada during the first mentioned period, and the number of
return certificates that have been issued. Presented to the House of Commons, 10th March, 1890.
—Mr. Gordon. . ...l i e e i e Printed for Sessional Papers only.
65. Return to an address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 21st January,
1890, for copies of all reports and other communications in reference to the deposit of sawdust,
slabs, or other offensive material, in the Ottawa and other rivers of the Dominion. Presented to

the Senate, 10th March, 1890.—Hon. Mr. Clemow—
Presented for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.
65a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a copy of the report
of Sandford Fleming, C.E., of the examination made by him as to sawdust, &c., put in the Ottawa
by the saw mills at the Chaudiére and other mills on the Ottawa River. Presented to the House
of Commons, 20th March, 1890.—M7r. Landerkin. ... ... coiiiviiiiininaes o0 Not printed.
66. Return to an address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 22nd January,
1890, for a detailed statement showing the settlement effected with the lessees of hydraulic lots at
the Chaudiére, city of Ottawa ; as likewise copies of new leases entered into with the several
lessees of the said hydraulic lots. Presented to the Senate, 10th March, 1890.—Hon. M. Clemow.
Not printed.
66:. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for return showing the
names of all parties in arrears for hydraulic and other rents up to the 1st instant, and the amounts
respectively due by such parties. Presented to the House of Commons, 22nd April, 1890.—Mr.
Somerville. ... . .. i e e e e e Not printed.
67. Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 29th
January, 1890, for copies of all petitions, correspondence and documents of every nature respect-
ing the Great Eastern Railway, or any other line of railway which it is proposed to lay between
Lévis and Montreal, following the course of the river St. Lawrence. Presented to the House of

Commons, 12th March, 1890.—M7. Rinfret. .. .. ... ooui it ininaieananas Not printed.
68. Report in relation to the appointment of non-commissioned officers in the Royal Military College.
Presented to the House of Commons, 13th March, 1890, by Sir A. P. Caron.......... Not printed.

69, Certified copy of a report of a Committee of the Honorable the Privy Council, approved by His
Excellency the Governor General in Council on the 11th January, 1885, in relation to matters
between the Government and the city of Ottawa. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th
March, 1890, by Sir Hector Langevin....... ......oin vt iiiiiiiiea e Not printed.

70. Return to anaddress of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 27th
January, 1890, for copies of the reports or opinions of the Law Officers of the Crown relating to
the Act passed by the Legislature of the province of Quebec intituled: ““An Act for the settle-
ment of the Jesuits’ Estates,” and also copies of the case or cases or other documents or reports
submitted to the said Law Officers, or to Her Majesty’s Secretary of State for the Colonies, in
relation to the said Act, and upon which the said opinions were obtained, and also all the
despatches and correspondence in reference thereto. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th
March, 1890.—Mr. O’Brien.................... Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

71. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a statement showing, in
detail, the population by origin, according to the census of 1885, of that part of the provisional
district of Saskatchewan lying to the south of the line between townships 47 and 48, and bounded
on the west by the line between ranges 11 and 12, west of the 3rd initial meridian, and on the east
by.the 3rd initial meridian, in the Dominion Lands system of survey, now the electoral district of
Batoche. Also of that part of the same provisional district lying to the east of the 3rd initial
meridian in the Dominion Land system of survey, and bounded on the north by the southern
boundary of the electoral district of Prince Albert, now the electoral district of Kinistino. Pre-
sented to the House of Commons, 17th March, 1890.—M». Laurer.. . ............. Not printed.

72. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for a return show-
ing the annual losses of ships since 1868 in the Gulf of St. Lawrence and on the Atlantic coast and
Bay of Fundy, owing to tides, currents and fogs, with the name and tonnage of each vessel, and
such particulars in each case as to the causes and extent of damage, as may be in the possession of
the Government. Presented to the House of Commons, 17th March, 1890.—Mr. Curran—

Printed for Sessional Papers only.
2 17
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78.

74.

7e.

ve.

78,

79.

80.

81.

82.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a return showing the
number of Reports of the Geological Survey published resp ectively for each year of the last ten
years, the number sold each year, the number distributed gratuitously, and the number still on hand.
Presented to the House of Commons, 17th March, 1890.—Mr. Ferguson ( Welland )—

Printed for Sessional Papers. only.

Correspondence of the Governments of Ontario and Quebec in reference to the ownership of the beds
of harbors, rivers, etc. Presented to the House of Commons, 19th March, 1890, by Sir John
Thompson. . ......vuiiiiini e, Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

Statement, in detail, of Receipts and Payments of Canada, for the eight months ending 28th Febru-
ary, for the years 1889 and 1890 respectively. Presented to the House of Commons, 20th March,
1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster. ... ... ... . . . i, Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor G eneral, dated 29th
January, 1890, for : 1. Copies of all petitions addressed to his Excellency the Governor General
by settlers in the districts of Cranberry, Cedar, Wellington, Nanoose and Nanaimo, British
Columbia, asking the privilege of obtaining the lands on which they had squatted on the Island
Railway reserve on ordinary terms allowed to settlers, viz., that their grant should include surface
and minerals. 2. For copies of all Orders in Council passed to authorise a commission to enquire
into the claims of said settlers. Presented to the House of Commons, 26th March, 1890.—Hon.
M  Laurier. .. ... e e e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th March, 1890, showing salary and remuner-
ation paid to Mr. Arthur Prieur, employee of the House, as translator or otherwise, and the total
amount received by him since his employment in any capacity. Presented to the House of
Commons, 31st March, 1890, by Hon. Mr. Speaker...............c.covivvninnnen... Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 19th March, 1890, for a return showing : 1. The
actual cost of first construction of the Montreal Court House, 1851-57. 2. The amount spent for
repairs since each year down to Confederation. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st April,
1890.—Mr. CUFTAT. . o ottt e Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for a return showing: 1.
The total amount of money expended in dredging McGregor’s Creek, in the town of Chatham,
Ontario. 2. The amount expended for piling and planking the same. The name of each con-
tractor, and amount of their several contracts. 3. The amount of money paid property owners for
damage done to their proverty in consequence of such dredging, with the name and amount paid
each property owner. 4. The name and amount of all claimants whose claims have been rejected,
or which are still under the consideration of the Government. Presented to the House of Com-
mons, 1st April, 1890.—M7. Campbell. . .......ooiiiii i Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for the report and plans of
the Chief Engineer of the Department of Public Works employed to make a survey and exami-
nation, with a view to the construction of an inter-provincial bridge across the Ottawa River,
between the village of La Passe, in the province of Ontario, and the village of Fort Coulonge, in
the province of Quebec. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st April, 1890.—Mr. Bryson—

Not printed.

Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th February, 1890, for a return showing the
number of self-binders, reapers and mowers exported from the Dominion during the past three
years; giving the names of the exporters, the countries to which exported, and the amount of
drawback allowed on each of the articles so exported. Presented to the House of Commons,
3rd April, 1890.—Mr. Paterson (Bramnt).........c.ooooueeeniein i i L. Not printed.

Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Govemor General, dated 22nd
January, 1890, for copies of all correspondence between the officers of the Temperance Colonization
Company, and the officers of the Saskatchewan Land and Homestead Company, and the Depart-
ment of the Interior, or any member of the Government; and all correspondence between Rev.
Alexander Sutherland and John T. Moore and the Department of the Interior, or any member of
the Government, in relation to the location of lands and claims for placing immigrants on lands,
and compensation for assisting immigration to the said lands, together with all Orders in Council
relating to such claims. Presented to the House of Commous, 14th April, 1890.—Mr. Somerville—

Not printed.

82a. Supplementary return to an address of the House of Commons, to His Excellency the Governor

General, dated 22nd January, 1890, for copies of all correspondence between the officers of the
Temperance Colonization Company and the officers of the Saskatchewan Land and Homestead
Company and the Department of the Interior, or any member of the Government ; and all corres-
pondence between the Rev. Alexander Suthisrsla,nd and John T. Moore and the Department of the
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Interior, or any member of the Government, in relation to the location of lands and claims for
placing immigrants on lands, and compensation for assisting immigration to the said lands,
together with all Orders in Council relating to such claims. Presented to the House of Commons,
18th April, 1890. —Mr. Somerville ... ... . ... . i it i e Not printed.
82, Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 17th March, 1890, for a return of all correspon-
dence, memorials and agreements between the Government and the Temperance Colonization
Company, together with correspondence of settlers, employees and members of the Company,
relative to the operations of the said company. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th May,
1890.—Mr. Wallace.. . ... ..o e e Not printed.
83. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for copies of all petitions and
correspondence respecting the placing of a floating light opposite Yamachiche, in Lake St. Peter,

River St. Lawrence. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th April, 1890—Mr, Rinfret.
Not printed.
83a. Return toan order of the House of Commons, dated 19th March, 1890, for copies of all petitions, corres-

pondence and documents whatsoever respecting the placing of a floating light on the St. Lawrence
opposite the church of Ste. Croix, in the county of Lotbiniére, in place of the buoy now located
there. Presented to the House of Commons, 25th April, 1890.—M7r. Rinfret .......Not printed.
84, Report of Collingwoad Schreiber, Esq., Chief Engineer and General Manager of Government
Railways, on the completion of the location survey of the proposed line of railway between
Harvey Station on the New Brunswick Railway, and a point on the Tntercolonial Railway near
Moncton vid Fredericton, known as the ‘“ Harvey-Moncton Section of the Short Line Railway.”
Presented to the House >f Commons, 24th April, 1890, by Sir John Macdonald ..... Not printed,
85. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for copies of forms of adver-
tisement and of tender, of tenders received of the contract entered into in connection with a steam
service between any ports in the Maritime Provinces and any West India ports ; also all corres-
pondence connetted therewith between any of the public departments and any persons interested
in the establishment of the said service. Presented to the House of Commons, 29th April, 1890—
HMr. Trow. ..o e e e e e e Not printed.
868. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th January, 1890, for a return of all papers
and correspondence between the Ontario Manufacturers’ Association and the Dominion Govern-
ment, during the years 1883, 1884 and 1885, on the subject of proposed legislation relating to
factories. Presented to the House of Commons, 1st May, 1890.—-Mr. Edgar......... Not printed.
87. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 30th January, 1890, for copy of report made and
evidence taken by the court of enquiry ordered by the Department of Marine to investigate the
loss of the steamer *‘ Quinté,” which was burned on Bay of Quinté in the autumn of 1889, Presented
to the House of Commons, 2nd May, 1890.—Mr. Platt.... ..... Printed for Sessional Papers only.
87a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1890, for a return of all claims made
by the Government since Confederation against individuals, companies or corporations for damages
done to Government property by steamers, vessels or other craft ; giving the names of vessels, etc.,
their owners, dates and items of each claim, distinguishing those paid and unpaid. Presented to
the House of Commons, 2nd May, 1890.—M7r. Cook. ....... .......cciviiininnnninn. Not printed.
87b. Report of Lieut. Gordon, R.N., into the conduct of the master and mate of the steamship ‘ Baltic,”
in connection with the outrage perpetrated on one Charles Hambly, a deck-hand of the said vessel,
on the 26th August, 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th May, 1890, by Hon. Mr.
Colby. ..o i Printed for Sessional Papers only.
87¢. Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 5th March, 1890, for a return of all
claims made by the Government since Confederation against individuals, companies or corporations
for damages done to Government property by steamers, vessels or other craft; giving the
names of vessels, etc., their owners, dates and items of each claim, distinguishing those paid and
unpaid. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th May, 1890.—Mr. Cook........... Not printed.
88. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1890, for copies of all agreements
made between the Government, or the Minister of Railways, and the Western Union Telegraph
Company; respecting the construction and operation of a telegraph line along the Cape Breton

Railway. Presented to the House of Commons, 2nd May, 1890.—Mr. Macdonald ( V’L%OTl(l )— @

ot prmte
89. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1890, for copies of the petitions,
letters, and the plans and engineers’ reports respecting the projected dam at Hungry Bay, in the

oounty of Beauharnois. Presented to the House of Commons, 2nd May, 18%0.—Mr. Bergeron—
Not printed.

90. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1890, for copies of all petitions and
other documnents relating to the building of the proposed branch railway to Matane. Presentgd to
the House of Commons, 2nd May, 1890.—Mr, Fisel......c.covovvvirarracraneanenens Not printed.
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91. Liquor License Act, 1883, memorandum of claims for fines, costs, &c., imposed on holders of Dominion
Licenses for violations of the Provincial License Act. Presented to the House of Commons, 5th

May, 1890, by Hon. J. Costigan............................... Printed for Sessional Papers only.

91a. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890 : 1. For a return, in detail, of
all expenses attending the passage and enforcement of the Liquor License Act of 1883 up to date.

2. The amount of all law costs re its constitutionality. 3. The names of all the legal firm or firms
employed by the Government, and the amount paid said firm or firms. Presented to the House of
Commons, 16th May, 1890.—Mr. T7ow. . ....... ..o iiiiiiin i Not printed.
92. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 14th April, 1890, for copies of all correspondence
between the Department of Militia and Defence and the officers of the staff of Military District

No. 1 regarding the pay and allowances of said officers. Presented to the House of Commons, 6th

May, 1890—Mr. Seriver....... ... i i e e Not printed.

92¢. Return to an address of the House of Commons to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 2lst
April, 1890, for copies of all Orders in Council making appointments, promotions and changes in
the Department of Militia and Defence, for the year ending 31st December, 1889. Presented to

the House of Commons, 6th May, 1890.—Mr, Lister........... c.ovoe ceviiione.... Not printed.

93. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 21st April, 1890, for a return of the quantity and
value of eggs imported into and exported from the provinces of Ontario and Quebec since 1st
January last; also the countries they have been imported from and exported to. Presented to

the House of Commons, 6th May, 1880—Mr. Guillet............. Printed for Sessional Papers only,

94. Correspondence respecting the surrender of the Anderson contract for the Atlantic Steamship Service.

Presented to the House of Commons, 13th May, 1890, by Hon. G. E. Foster—

Printed for Sessional Papers only.

- Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 24th January, 1890, for a return showing the
total amount of expenditure to date on the Government Printing Bureau building, the total expen-

diture to date un type, presses and all other printing and binding machinery and material placed

in the bureau ; also the total amount paid in salaries and wages to officers and employees in the

bureau from the 1st July, 1889, to 1st January, 1890. Presented to the House of Commons, 14th

May, 1890.—Mr, Inmes..........oooviiiin it i Printed for Sessional Papers only.

96. Return (in part) to an order of the House of Commons, dated 23rd January, 1890, for a return show-
ing the amount of money expended by the Dominion in each province since Confederation to the

30th of June, 1889, under the following heads : 1. Subsidies to railways in each province, excepting

the Canada Pacific main line and Sault branch ; 2. The several railways built by the Dominion in

each Province, including the Intercolonial branches and extensions, but not the main line as
originally constructed ; 8. The buildings erected or purchased in each province, their location and

cost. Presented to the House of Commons, 7th May, 1890.—Mr. McMullen—

Printed for both Distribution and Sessional Papers.

97. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 31st March, 1890, for a statement showing the
number of barrels of Canadian flour brought by sea or directly, or through the United States of
Anmerica, into the several provinces of Nova Scotia, New Brunswick and Prince Edward Island,

during the year 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th May, 1890.—Mr, Weldon (St.

JORM) . oo e e e Not printed.

98. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 12th February, 1890, for a return showing the
names of the six Pagans returned for the parish of Ste. Elizabeth, in the county of Joliette and
province of Quebec, in the census returns of 1881, as appears from the original schedule of the
enumerator for that parish. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th May, 1890.— Mr. Charlton.

Not printed.

99. Return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 10th March, 1890, for copies of all papers con-
nected with the seizure of the tug “Rooth” at Amherstburg, in July or August last, having a

raft in tow, and bound from French River to Fort Erie. Presented to the House of Commons,

16th Ma,y, I890.—Mr, Charlbon ...............oeeens cuee @ it e, Not printed.

100. General statements and returns of baptisms, marriages and burlals in the districts of Chicoutimi,
Gaspé, Joliette and Montmagny, for the year 1889. Presented to the House of Commons, 16th

May, 1890, by Hon. Mr. Speaker....... .......i.uiiuneiieeeeeeiniieeennnn, ... Not printed.

101. Return to an address of the Senate to His Excellency the Governor General, dated 22nd April, 1890,
for copies of all correspondence between the Minister or Deputy Minister of Justice, Inspector
Moylan, or any official in connection with the Department of Justice, and the Warden, Deputy
Warden, or any other official of the British Columbia Penitentiary, relating to the dismissal of

John Wiggins, lately a guard in the aforesaid penitentiary. Presented to the Senate, 16th May,
1890.—Hon. Mr. McInnes ( New Westmmst%rd ................................... Not printed,.
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To His Excellency the Right Honourable Sir Frederick Arthur Stanley, Baron Stanley
of Preston, in the County of Lancaster, in the Peerage of Great Britain ; Knight
Grand Cross of the Most Honourable Order of the Bath; Governor General of
Canada, and Vice Admiral of the same, &ec.

May 11 PreasE Your EXCELLENCY :

In compliance with the requirements of Chapter 36, Section 37, of the Revised
Statutes of Canada, I have the honour to submit the Annual Report of the Depart-
ment of Public Works for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1889.

The Report contains a statement of the general expenditure of the Depart-
ment, amounting to $3,5617,297.66, the details of which will be found in Appendix 1,
Pages 5 to 21, followed by Appendices giving the Annual Reports of the Chief
Architect, Chief Engineer, Chjef Mechanical Engineer, and other officers of the
Department, as well as statements containing information pertaining to the
Department.

The works under the control of this Department are :—

Pusric BurLpinags, their construction and maintenance,
HarBours AND PiERs, their improvement and construction.
Works oN NAVIGABLE RIVERS. '
DrepeIiNg AND DREDGE VESSELS.

Roaps AND BRIDGES.

SLipES AND Booms.

TELEGRAPHS.

DESCRIPTION OF WORK DONE.

The following is a description of the work dome during the fiscal year on
Public Buildings, Harbours, Rivers and Dredging, arranged by Provinces.

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

In this Province the sum of $25,435.07 was expended on construction, and
repairs, of Public Buildings.

At AMBERST, an asphalt sidewalk, with stone curb was laid in front of the
Public building, and alterations and repairs were made, and the building fitted
With incandescent electric lamps.

At Annarors, a site for Post Office, &c., was obtained on the corner of St

eorge and Railway streets, and on 7th June, 1889, a contract for the construction of
the building was entered into. The building will be two and a-half stories, of brick,
On a stone foundation, 58 feet by 35 feet, with a one-story brick annex for an
®Xamining warehouse, 13 feet by 31 feet. The ground floor is to be for the post
office and the first floor for the Customs and Inland Revenue Departments, each
18—}
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department being furnished with a brick vault; and the attic is to be occupied by
the caretaker.

At AnrticonisH, hot water heating apparatus was supplied to the public build-
ing, a portion of the basement fitted up for a bonded warehouse and other work
executed,

At NappaN, a contract has been entered into for the construction of the follow-
ing buildings in connnection with the experimental farm, and the work is in
progress. '

Superintendent's Residence.—A wooden two-story building, with a stone base-
ment; the main building 42 feet by 34 feet, and a kitchen wing 24 feet by 24 feet.

Workmen's Cottage.—A one and one-half story wooden cottage, 27 feet by 21
feet, on a stone basement, with a summer kitchen in the rear, 10 feet by 14 feet.

Barn and Stabling.—These are to be of wood, and to consist of a main build-
ing 111 feet by 50 feet, 40 feet in height, on a stone basement 12 feet in height,
and a wing 65 feet, by 32 feet, and 32 feet in height.

At Sypwey, a contract for the construction of a Post Office, &c., building, on
the corner of Charlotte and Dorchester streets, was entered into 12th December,
1888, and construction is now iun progres. It consists of a main three-story brick
building, on a stone foundation, 57 feet by 44 feet, with a clock tower on the street
corner, and a one-story annex, 45 feet by 23 feet, in the rear. The ground floor of
main building is to be occupied by the Post Office, the first floor by the Customs,
Inland Revenue and Marine offices, and the attic is for the apartments of the care-
taker. The Examining Warehouse and the Weights and Measures offices will be in
the annex.

General repairs, alterations and improvements have been made to the Public
Building and Examining Warehouse, HaLirax; the Public Building, New-
Gurasgow; Post Office, WiNDsor, and Public Building, YARMoUTH. (Appendix No,
2, pages 24-26.)

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

The sum of $95/793.81 has been expended on constr uction, and repairg
in this Province, during the fiscal year, as under.

At ARIsATG, a contract was entered into for extending the pier 100 feet, and for
protecting its seaward face by a deposit of heavy stone; but up to its close no work;
except in the way of procuring material, had been done.

BARRINGTON.—A wharf—carried across the flats—to reach fairly deep water,
has been commenced, and materials procured to construct about 600 feet of the

- proposed work.

At BarTy IsLAND, a small wharf, 60 feet in length and 12 feet in width, was
built.

At BAYFIELD.—In november, 1887, a contract was entered into for repairing,
raising and close-piling the two outer blocks of the wharf, cutting down the central
and shore bloeks, and for the construction of a new work between the outer blocks

" and the shore. The whole was completed in November, 1888.

The work of extending the bleakwater at Pomquet Point 300 feet was com-
‘pleted in October, 1888,

xvi [1889]
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At Bay St. LAwRrENcE—Near the head of the bay there is a small lake
enclosed by a beach of sand and gravel.

In 1887 a channel was opened through the beach to admit of the passage of
boats at high water. Shortly after its completion it was filled in from the outside,
over a distance of about 100 feet, and during 1888-89 the channel, which had been
alternately opened during freshets and closed during northerly gales, was re-opened
and protected by a pier extending 53 feet beyond high water, and by a work of
brush and stone, 30 feet in length, inside of it.

The channel remained opened for a while after the completion of the protec-
tion work, but is now closed by a short bar opposite the inner end of the pier.

BeaveErR RivEr.—The breakwater has been extended 100 feet and other
improvements made.

Bia Bras p'Or.—The wharf, mentioned in my report of last year as being
under construction, was completed with the unexpended balance of the appropria-
tion for 1887-88.

Bi¢ Ponp.—During the year the unexpended balance of the amount
“appropriated for the previous year was expended in completing a wharf 200 feet
in length and 20 feet wide, with a depth atl the outer end of 8 feet at lowest water
level. »

Brue Rook.—The contract entered into in November, 1886, for the construc-
tion of a breakwater 326% feet in length, to extend in a south-westerly direction
from Blue Cape, was completed in October, 1888,

Broap Cove.—This work, 400 feet in length, was completed in December, 1888,

At CHETICAMP, a contract was entered into 10th June, 1889, for the construc-
tion of a wharf on the eastern side of the harbour, to consist of an approach 125
feet in length and 30 feet wide over a distance of 60 feet from its outer end, with
end and side walls of stone and centre filling of earth or stone; and an extension,
80 feet in length, in two blocks, with openings of 17 feet 6 inches. The outer
block is to be 60 feet in length along the channel face, and is to have a depth of 4
feet at extreme low water,

Dzerapr’s Cove.—The western face of the pier protecting the opening into the
harbour was extended inwardly 100 feet. A large warping anchor to assist vessels
in getting out to sea was placed off the end of the pier, and a portion of the beach
was raised.

At DigBy, a contract was entered into for the removal of the outer block
which had been carried, bodily, into the dredged channel by the storm of December
1885, and, after much difficulty, the contractor tore the block to pieces and
removed it down to the surface of the mud. During the year the construction of
a new block, 45 feet by 45 feet, to replace that carried away, was completed by the
Department, and ‘other improvements were effected.

EaronviLLE—In August, 1888, instructions were given to extend the break-
water 80 feet, but after the work had been commenced a severe storm threatened the
total destruction of the inner end of the structure, and work on the extension was
therefore suspended, and every exertion made to save the damaged inner end,

which passed through several severe storms of last winter without further damage
[1889] xvii
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At Lower HortoN, a new wharf, 172 feet in length, has been built on the site
of the old.

McNair's Cove.—The re-construction of 160 feet of the breakwater was com-
pleted by the contractor in December, 1888,

NokL.—During the last fiscal year the Department constructed a landing
wharf on the west side of the bay. The wharf, including the approach, is 275
feet in length and 25 feet wide with an “L” at the outer end 35 feet long.

At Pretou Isnanp.—The balance of the amount appropriated for 1887-88 was
expended in completing the extension of the east and west wharves, The east
‘wharf has been extended 100 feet and the west wharf 92 feet 6 inches.

Porr Hoop.—During the year a new block 48 feet by 22 feet, was constructed
at the south end of the “L” of the pier.

SueET HarBoUR.—In January last a contract was entered into for the con-
struction of a ballast wharf on the north side of the East River, from the end of the
remains of Ball’s Wharf, running westerly a distance of 180 feet, and 20 feet wide,
with an “L” 20 feet long and 20 feet wide at the western end, and at the close of
the fiscal year the work was nearly completed.

At TaramacoucHE, a wharf 96 teet in length was built on the east side of the
river, nearly opposite the mouth of the French River, to accommodate the inhabi-
tants living on the eastern side of the river, who were obliged to haul their pro-
duce for shipment to the wharves at Tatamagouche, a distance of 3 miles, and
the coal which they use from the wharves to their homes.

WarLace.—The wharf at this place was extended during the past fiscal year
to prevent the inner end of the dredged channel from silting up, and at the same
time to afford additional shipping facilities.

WesrerNy HEeap.—Shortly after the completion of this breakwater, in 1888,
this coast was visited by an unusually heavy gale, which destroyed the outer end
of the structure, and an appropriation having been made at the session of 1889, the
damage done will be made good.

RePAIRS AND IMPROVEMENTS Were made to the structures at the following places,
viz.:— BruLE, CRANBERRY HEAD, Cow Bay, at which place extensive repairs were
made to the breakwater ; EAst Boy, GrREENCovE (or PorT MarTLAND), HAMPTON,
Joxes HarBour, Kinesport, LittLe NaRROWs, Lismore, MaBou, MAIN A Dnm
MARGARETVILLE, PARKER'S COVE, 'PARRSBORO’ PARTRIDGE IsLanD Pier, Port GRE~
vILLE, PorT Hoop, PorT LORNE, ROSEWAY BEAOH, Rounp Bay, SPENCER’S ISLAND,
TROUT Cove.

DrEDGING, either by one of the Department’s dredges, or by hand, was also
done for the improvement of navigation, or to enable fishing boats to make a
shelter, at the undermentioned localities : —

Arisate, BARRINGTON, BAYFIELD, GABARous and BrLrry LaAKEs, GRANTON,
GREEN HARBOUR, LITTLE GLACE Bay, MoNAIr's Cove, PARTRIDGE ISLAND RIVER,
Prcrou, YARMOUTH.

(For details, see Appendix No. 5, pages 55-119.)
xviii [1 889]



53 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.) A. 1890

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

. During the past year the sum of $1,812.17 was expended on construction and
repairs public buildings.
CHARLOTTETOWN.—Sundry repairs were executed and a new time lock placed
in the door of the safe in the Receiver General’s Department.
At MonTAGuE—Additional grading was done around the post office, and the
building occupied. (Appendix No. 2, page 24.)

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

There has been expended on harbours during the past year, the sum of
$15,172.76.

At CascumpEc, the work of excavating a channel through the inner bar, which
was commenced in 1885, was continued, and with the amount voted for expenditure
during the last fiscal year a cut 150 feet in length, 25 feet wide, and to a depth of
15 feet at low water, has been made, the material blasted and removed amounting
to 450 cubic yards.

Hickey's' Pier.—Thenarrow block built along the eastern face of the outer
end, which was in danger of tumbling into the dredged channel, was renewed and
replaced by a new block, its top extending over the old main blocks, and new floor-
stringers and planking were placed upon the spans and outer block.

At Souris, or CoLVILLE BAY, a strongly constructed timber block, 30 feet
square, was placed at the outer end of the seaward face of the breakwater, to prevent
the stone from moving around the end, and the base of the block was close piled.

GENERAL Ripatrs and IMPROVEMENTS wWere made on the following piers, viz. :—
ANNANDALE, BeLrasT, CAMPBELL'S CoVE, GEORGETOWN, LEWIS PoINT, MALPEQUE,
Norra CarpiGaN, Norre Rusrtico, PINETTE, Pownar Sours Rustico, STURGEON,
TiaNISH.

Dredging was performed in the undermentioned harbours.

CHARLOTTETOWN—at various wharves—and at REp PoInT, where 12 feet depth
ot water was obtained. (Appendix 5, pages 55 to 62, and page 114.)

NEW BRUNSWICK.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

The sum of $19,679.30 was expended on construction and repairs of Public
Buildings. )
At DarvousiE, the Post Office, ete., building, which was described in my
-report of last year, is still in progress.
At FrEDERICTON, the attic rooms of the post office were partitioned to provide
a residence for the caretaker.
[1889] xix
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At Sr. JomN, the roof covering of the Custom House was replaced with asphalt,
the zine faces of the eresting were removed and galvanized iron substituted, and
the hydraulic hoist provided w.th heavier shafting, valves, &c.

Woopsrock. Arrangements are being made to placc a clock in the turretof the
post office, etc., building. '

Repairs and improvements were made to the Public Building, Barmursr,
Post Offices, CARLETON, CHATHAM, FrEDERICTON, and Moncron, Public Building,
NewoasTLE, Custom Housp, Marine Hospital, Post Office and Savings Bank,
St. Jonn, Public Building St. Stephen, and some furniture was supplied to the
residence of the Deputy Warden of the Penitentiary, DorcuEsTeR. (Appendix
No. 2, pages 26, 27 and 28.)

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

Expenditure on construction and repairs $54,178.77,

BeLLIVEAU.—In March, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction
of & wharf 200 feet long and 24 feet in width (measured on top), after which it was
arranged with the contractor to extend the work 33 feet, all of which was satis-
factorily completed on the 9th November, 1888, :

At CAMPBELLTON, in order to provide a place of deposit for ballast, a contract
was entered into 23rd April, 1889, for the construction of a * ballast wharf,” the
proposed structure being an isolated block 140 feet in length by 35 feet in width,
and having at it adepth of 18 feet at extreme low water, spring tides. At the close
of the fiscal year this work was fairly in progress.

Capre TorMENTINE.—Active operations on the wharf were not commenced by
the contractor until August, 1888, between which time and the close of the last
fiscal year 729 feet of the stone approack have been built.

The work will be 2,500 feet in length, with an I, at the outer end, consist-
ing of two branches, each 400 feet in length. Of this length of 2,500 feet, the
inner or shore end, for a distance of 1,300 teet, will be built wholly ofstone, the
remainder and the L of close-faced crib work, completely filled with rock ballast.

At Eporrr’'s LanDING, the construction of a ballast wharf having hecome a
necessity, a contract was entered into for the same in J. anuary, 1889,

Work was commenced by the contractors in the beginning of June, 1889, and
abandoned by them at the end of the month, when, having provided the greater
portion of the materials required, they found themselves unable to proceed further,

At Forr DUFFERIN, the timber «break” was comp]ete& in August, 1888,

Granp ANSE~The reconstruction of the breakwater, which had been in
progress during the previous two years was completed. .

MizzoNerTE—To accommodate the residents of the locality, a contract was
entered into on the 19th February, 1889, for the contruction of a wharf, and the
naterials required having been got out during the winter, the work was com-
menced early in June, and had by the 30th or end of the fiscal year been 8o carried
oon that it was about a quarter done, the foundation of nine blocks being placed.

xx [1889]
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The work under construction consists in all of a length of 500 feet, 480 feet
of which will be 12 feet wide on top, the 1emaining 20 feet or outer block 20 feet
wide, the whole composed of “ blocks” and “ spans "and giving at the outer end a
depth of 2 feet at low water.

At PARTRIDGE IsLAND, the reconstruction of the eastern pier referred to in
my report of last year, has been completed.

At RicHIBucTO with the amount appropriated 225 feet of the breakwater was
re-filled with brush and stone, and extra walings were puton, 300 feet of new work
was built and fender piles replaced. :

At SarpPEGAN during the past season a breach made in the winter of 1887-88
has becn secured by the reconstruction of the length carrried away (60 feet), ger.-
eral repairs also being effected.

To provide wharfage accommodation at St. Lous, a contract was entered into
on 6th November, 1888, for the construction of a wharf 200 feet in length and 30
feet wide on top, to extend in a north-easterly direction from the outer end of the
south abutment of the bridge. This wharf will have at it a depth of 7 feet at low
water spring tides, which rise here 3} feet, neaps 2 feet. Materials were got out
during the winter, and the work commenced during the last week of the fiscal
Yeur.

REepARs AND IMPROVEMENTS, where required, were made to the breakwaters at
ANDpERsoN’s Horrow, HorEWELL CAPE,PoiNT DU CHENE and UpPER SaLMON RIVER.

DrepciNg was done on the “Traverse” near CAMPBELLTON, on the KENNE-
BECAsIS, from below Hampton to the bridge at PERrY’s Point, on the Oromoro
SHoALS, in the St. John River, at the Anchor Line wharf, St. Joun HarBoUR, while
fmprovements were made on the RIVER MADAWASKA and at various points on the
St. Jomn. (Appendix No. 5, pages 81 to 87, and 112 and 113.)

PROVINCE OF QUEBEC.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

During the year the sum of $290,133.91 was expended on construction and
repairs, of the undermentioned public buildings:—

AyLMER, Post Office.—This building, which was described in my report of last
year, was completed, and furnished with a hot water heating apparatus, and is now
being fitted up for occupation,

CoaTIc00K, Public Building, which was described in my report of last year,
is being carried on so as to warrant its execution and completion during the
autum of 1889; a heating apparatus has been put in, and fittings for Post Office.

FrasgrviLLE (Riviére du Loup).—On 26th March, 1889, Cadastral Lot 266,
having a frontage of 100 feet on Iberville street and 75 fee’c on Champlain street,
was purchased for a Post Office etc., ‘Building.

JorierTeE—The Post Office, etc., building will, it is expected, be completed

in the autumn,
[1889] xxi
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Lacring.—Cadastral lot No. 253, on St. Joseph street, the main street of the
town, was acquired for a site, and plans, &c., for a Post Office building thereon,
are being prepared by this Department.

MonTrEAL.—The fittings for the various armouriesand furnishings for offices
were supplied, and the places are now occupied.

Extensive alterations were made to beilers and heating apparatus in the
Custom House. The Record Office was enlarged and other work done.

Various alterations and improvements were made in the Examin.ng Ware-
house and Post Office.

St. HyacinteE.—On 19th March, 1889, a site, consisting of Lot 525, and a
portion of 524, on the corner of Girouard and St. Joseph streets, with frontages of
81 feet 6 inches, and 133 feet 3 inches, respectively, was acquired, and plans, &c.,
for the construction of a public building are in course of preparation.

St. JEroME.—Public Building. This building, which was described in my
report of last year, has since been in constant progress; plans for the hot water
apparatus are prepared, and the building is expected to be complete for occupa-
tion during December, 1889.

St. VinceENT DE Paur PeNiTENTIARY.—The walls of the western Dormitory
wing, which is 116 feet by 42 feet on plan, and is to contain 120 cells, were carried
up continuously, and are expected to be roofed in and enclosed by October, 1889.

Additions, alterations and repairs were made to the various buildings and the
water works, )

REePAIRS, ALTERATIONS and IMPROVEMENTS were effocted on the Marine Hos-
pital, Carcourmur ; Post Office, HuLL. The Citidal, Custom House, Immigration
Building, Marine Hospital, Observatory, Post Office and Queen’s Wharf Buildinga
Queskc; Public Buildings, SHERBROOKE and SoREL, and to the Custom House and
Post Office, TarEE Rivers. (Appendix No. 2, pages 28-30).

HARBOURS AND RIVERS,

The expenditure during the year for construction and repairs amounted to
$188,088.00.

Works of construction were carried on at

Bark St. Paur where the wharf at Cap aux Corbeaux was extended 60 feet on
a width of 50 feet, the work being done by contract.

At Cap pE CHATTE, the channel was widened and deepened, and otherwise
improved. :

At Cap SANTE, a number of the most dangerous boulders were blasted and
removed, ;

At Coreau pU Lac, a wharf has been built, consisting of a block 100 feet
long by 20 feet wide, with an approach of 110 feet, which has a width of 20 feet.
There is 6 feet of water at the -outer side of the block, the top of which is b feet
above water line. A passenger and freight shed, 20 feet by 24 feet, was built on
the lower side of the approach.

At the close of the fiscal year the Department was engaged in re-building—
over a length of 800 feet—the wharf at CoreAaU LaNDING, at which steamers make
regular calls.

xxii : [1889]
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At Etane pu Norp, that part of the breakwater which was sunk in 1887-88
was filled with stone.

ILE PERROT.—During the last fiscal year a length of 325 feet of pier work, 18
feet in width, was built from the shore outwards, leaving a length of 275 feet yet
to be built.

At TuE VERTE, an isolated block, 50 by 40 feet, was buxlt in 1887, and during
the last fiscal year an approach from the block to the shore has been commenced,
but there remains 800 feet to be constructed to complete the work.

At La Granpe Dfonarae of Lake St. John a pler and an ice-breaker have
been built.

At LAPRAIRIE, 335 feet in length of crib work wall was built to a height of 11
feet below low water, from the steamboat wharf westward. It is built of open
work, 20 feet in width, with a batter of 1 in 12 on the face.

Lxrs EBouLEMENTS.—A room for the accommodation of passengers waiting for
the boats was built on the outer end of present pier. It is constructed on posts.
Tts dimensions are 45 by 25 feet; the roof is covered with metal and the whole
building painted with waterproof paint.

LoNGUEUIL.—A contract has been entered into for the completion of this
wharf, but little work had been done at the close of the year.

At MurraY BAY a new waiting room 30 by 24 feet was built,
Newrort River.—Further pile-protection work was constructed.

At NIcoLET a further length of 553 feet of pile-protection work has been
built.

PercE.—The landing pier commenced in the winter of 1888 was completed
in May last. It was built by contract, and its dimensions are: length over all on
top, 320 feet; width on top, 20 feet; height at outer end, 364 feet—of which 26}
feet only are above the bed of the river, it having settled down some 10 feet
during construction; depth of water at outer end, 16 feet at low spring tides, with
a rise and fall of from 5 feet to 5 feet 6 inches in full spring tides, and 3 feet
ordinary neap tides.

River pu LikvRe—With the intention of fostering especially the phosphate
industry and facilitating its transport from the mines to the nearest railway, which
is at Buckingham, a contract for the construction of a lock and dam at the Little
Rapids was entered intoin December, 1886. The lock and dam will be of sufficient
height to flood the Long Rapids about 7% miles above the site of the lock, and
therefore will give an uninterrupted navigation of 22 miles—that is, from the
village of Buckingham to the foot of High Falls. The lock has a length of 160
feet between the gates and is 32 feet 7 inches in breadth, with 8 feet of water on
the mitre sills. Entrance piers are also under construction. Proper provision
will be made for the passage of timber over the dam, which is being constructed
11 feet above low water at the head of the Little Rapids, The work is well under
way.

River RicHELIEU. Another ice pier has been built to afford additional pro-

tection to the city of Sorel during the run of ice in the spring. :
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On the RiveEr YaMacHICHE a channel 2,500 feet in length was made through
the obstruction caused by a land slide. The flooded lands are now relieved and
the water brought to its normal stage. '

Suip CHANNEL—RIVER St. LawreNce—In January, 1889, the control and
management of the work was assumed by this Department. During the winter
-extensive repairs were made to the dredging plant, which, on the opening of
navigation, was placed to work at Cap ala Roche, Poulier Rayer and Cape Charles,
in deepening the channel at those points, which are adjacent to each other, to 27}
feet below low water, spring tides, and up to the close of the fiscal year a fair
commencement had been made.

The channel which has been opened is 300 feet wide on the straight portions,
and 320 feet wide at the bends, but it has been found difficult in many places to
navigate large vessels, by reason of these bends, or the position of the channel
‘where the “set of the current” has been crossed obliquely, and a further expen-
diture will have to be made to improve the channel at such points.

A full description of work done by the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal
on the channel from the 1st December, 1888, will be found in the Report of the
Commissioners, which is printed as Appendix No. 6, page 127.

At St. ALPHONSE a slip has been built on the north side of the wharf, for the
accommodation of small vessels.

At STE. ANNE DU SAGUENAY, timber required for the proposed wharf having
been obtained during 1887-88, the work of construction was commenced during
the past year, and a length of 77 feet built.

Ste. ANNE DE SOREL. Another ice pier, 30 by 24 feet dimensions, 21 feet 6
inches in height, was built at the entrance to the Chenal du Moine, about 1}
miles below the village of Ste. Anne.

A part of the wharf at TADoUSSAC was re-built and raised 3 feet, a slip con-
structed and the flooring renewed.

At Trors PisToLES an extension of the wharf was commenced, but was not
completed at the close of the fiscal year.

Repairs and IMPROVEMENTS were made to the wharves at BAIE St. PavL
(Tsolated Block), BERTHIER (EN BAS), CAp A I’ArqLE, CricouTini, MURRAY Bay,
Rrvikre OvELLE, ST. ALPHONSE, ST, LAURENT (Island of Orleans.)

Dredging and other improvements to navigation were carried on at PAPINEAU-
VILLE, PoINTE AUX ANGLAIS, PoRT AU PErsi, RapipE ManiGance (River St.
Maurice), RivIERE DU Lour (&N BAS), River I/ ASSOMPTION, River MERiNag,
River RICHELIED, vam St. FrANoIS, ST. PLACIDE, and STE. ANNE DE LA PERADE,
(Appendlx No. 5, pages 87-97 and 115-117.)

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

The expenditure on Public Buildings in this province for construction and
repairs amounted to $706,672.04.
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ALMONTE. A contract was entered into 11th June, 1889, for the erection of a
post office and building on a site obtained at the junction of Mill and Little Bridge
streets, Itis to have a main portion 24 stories and basement 51 feet by 31 feet and a
one story annex 27 feet by 18 feet. Walls to be brick, with stone dressings, on stone.
foundations.

BraMpTON. A contract for the construction of a Post Office, &c., building was.
entered 1nto on 23rd October, 1888, and the works are now in progress,

It will consist of a brick three-story main portion, 47 feet by 42 feet ona stone.
foundation, with a one story brick building, 40 feet by 18 feet in the rear, and
connected with the main building. The basement of the main building is to contain
fuet and furnace rooms, the ground floor the Post Office, the first floor the
Customs and Inland Revenue offices, and the attic the caretaker’s quarters. The-
annex is to be for Weights and Measures and Examining Warehouse.

Cavuca. The Post Office building which was described in my report of last.
year was completed, and supplied with a hot water heating apparatus, and is now-
being fitted up and furnished for occupation.

CoBoura. A contract for the erection of an addition to the Post Office, Custom, ,
House, &c., 18 ft. in width, by the depth and height of the present building, was.
entered into in December, 1888, and the work is in progress.

, GaxaNoQuUE.—The Post Office building described in my report of last year has
since been completed, supplied with a hot water apparatus and fitted up for-
oceupation,

GopericH. Lot 5, containing half an acre, en the south side of West street,
having been acquired as a site for Post Office, &c., building, on 12th November,
1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of a two and a-half story
and basement building, 46 feet 6 inches by 34 feet, on plan, with a one story and.
basement stone annex, 34 feet by 14 feet 3 inches. The building is to consist on.
the ground floor of the Post Office and Examining Warehouse, on the first floor the-
Customs and Inland Revenue Offices, and in the attic will be the caretaker’s appart-
ments.

Guenpe.—The Post Office has been supphed with a hot water heating:
apparatus. '

HaumiLron.—The Drill Shed has been comploted and the A1 mories fux nished.
with a hot water heating apparatus.

Linpsay.—The building for the Post Office, Custom House and Inland Revenue,
which was described in my report of last year, has since been carried on steadlly
Plans were prepared and a contract entered into for the construction of a hot water-
heating apparatus.

Napanee.—Post Office, Custom House and Inland Revenue. The works in
connection with this building, which was described in my report of last year, have.

" been in steady progress, Plans, &c., have been prepared for a hot water heatmg
apparatus.

Orrawa.—Central Experimental Farm.

The following works, referred to in my rsport of last year, have been completed =

Superintendent-General’s residence; four residences for the staff officials; barn
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and stabling ; museum and offices; heating appalatus for the rexldences museum
and offices.

Contracts have been entered into for the construction of a building for green-
house and seed stores. The latter will be a one and a-half story brick building on
a stone foundation, having a ground floor, containing a seed room, 24 feet by 17
feet ; a potting room, 37 feet by 16 feet, and two rooms above. Adjoining the pot-
ting room are two greenhouses of wood, ou a stone foundation, 80 feet 6 inches by
13 feet, and 80 feet 6 inches by 14 feet, respectively. A hot water heating appa-
ratus has been put in, and the building is now occupied.

In August last a contract was entered into for the construction of a one and
a-half story building, 100 feet by 30 feet, for a hennery, which was completed during.
the year.

On 23rd October a contract was entered into for the construction of a cottage,

" known as No. 1 cottage, near the barn, and a stable for the Superintendent, both of
wood on stone foundations. The cottage will contain an unfinished basement; the
ground floor to contain a parlor, a kitchen, a pantry, a storeroom and a shed; and
the attic three rooms. The stable will contain a carriage room, stalls, a loose
box, and a loft.

New Departmental Building, Wellington Street.—Specifications anddrawings
were prepared and tenders received for three passenger elevators and one freight
elevator, which are now being erected; the iron staircase and heating apparatus

.were completed, and the building is being fitted up for occupation, and was so far
advanced that the second floor was occupied by the Indian Department on the 1st
May. ,

Parliament Building.—The roof covering of the Library was renewed in copper.

Alterations were made in the quarters of the Speaker of the Senate, whereby two
additional rooms were obtained.

The Printing Bureau is nearly completed, and is being fitted up.

PemBroke.—Post Office.—This building, described in my report of last year, is
now in progress.

Prescorr.—The Post Office, Custom House and Inland Revenue Oﬂices are
in course of construction.

TrENToN.—The Post Office, &c., building described in my report of last year
has been carried on nearly to completion, and is being fitted up with a hot water
apparatus, and the fittings and furniture for the use of the officials of the various
departments.

Rerairs, ALTERATIONS and IMPROVEMENTS have been effected at the Pogt
Office, &c., AMHERSTBURGH ; Post Office, &c., BArrIE; Post Office, BELLEVILLE ; Post
Office, &c., CHATHAM and CoRNWALL ; KinasToN, Penitentiary ; Government House,
Otrawa; Departmental and Parliament Buildings, Orrawa; Victoria Hall, Orrawa;
while the Parliament Grounds and Major’s Hill Park were kept in good order.
Various strects, under the control of the Department, were graded and macada-
mized, and otherwise improved, and the roadways, sidewalks and footpaths were
kept clear of snow during the winter, Sr. Tromas, Post Office, &c., Toronro,
Custom House, Examining Warehouse, Inland Revenue Offices and Post Office.

(Appendix No. 2, pages 31-38),
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HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

Expenditure on Harbours and Rivers for construction and repairs, $346,716.66

BeLLEvVILLE.—The contract for dredging in this harbour, which was entered
into in 1886, was completed in July, 1889,

At Coroura the outer 150 feet of the superstructure of the western pier was
Te-built under contract.

At KincARDINE the work of re-building the wharfing around the inner basin
is being continued.

KinesToN.—During the past year 3,890 cubic yards of rock were blasted and
removed from the Point Frederick Shoal.

Lirrie Narion River.—Excavation through the rocky shoal at the mouth of
Moose Creek, which obstructs navigation, has been continued, and a large amount
.of material removed. '

OaxviLLE~-The western pier has been re-built from low water mark up.

PENENTANGUISHENE.—During 1888-89 a pile structure, 12 feet in width and
850 feet in length, was constructed in an average depth of 12 feet of water,
Behind this structure an embankment 30 feet wide was formed with brush, stone
and earth, giving to the wharf so completed-a total width of 42 feet. In addition
to this wharf, a similar structnre, 350 feet in length, was built at the foot of
‘Barrie street.

PorT ArTHUR.—In October, 1888, a contract was entered into for the con-
struction of a farther length of 1,500 feet of breakwater, with block piers at each
end, to the westward of the work already completed, an opening of 350 feét being
left between the old work and the new, to permit vessels to enter the port.

In May, 1889, operations on this new work were commenced, and up to the
close of the fiscal year 300 feet had been constructed. :

During the year a commencement was made to extend the talus of stone along
the front of the work built under the first contract, it having been found that the
bottom was eroding under the action of seas during heavy gales. It may here be
mentioned that this breakwater has successfully withstood the force of breaking
.seas driven by gales travelling at the rate of 54 miles an hour, and also ice shoves
from the outer bay, when the ice has been pushed completely over the structure
and left remaining thereon to a height of 19 feet.

PortsMovrE.—Work was continued during the past fiscal year in the renewal
.of the upper 7 feet of this pier, and at its close it was well in hand.

Rivikre Aux Puces.—In September, 1888, a contract was entered into for the
.construction of 350 feet of close sheet-piling at the mouth of this river, 200 feet to
be driven on the east side and 150 feet on the west side, to form a channel 40 feet
in width, and at the close of the fiscal year the work was well under way,

SavLT STE-MARIE—The extension of the Government wharf a length of 150

feet into the river to obtain increased shipping facilities was completed in June,
1889, ’

SourHaMPTON.—That portion of the landing pier which had been destroyed
by fire was re-built from the water level.
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At SuMMERSTOWN a warehouse 24 feet by 30 feet was bnilt on the wharf for
the accommodation of the public.

ToroNTo.—In May, 1889, a contract was entered into for improving the eastern
entrance, the works required consisting of the dredging a channel 300 feet in width
to a depth of 12 feet below low water, the construction of protection works on
either side of the new channel, and the continuation and completion of the harbour
protection works on the eastern side of the proposed entrance—extending from
Fisherman’s Island westwardly to a junction with the channel works; and at the
close of the year dredging was well under way.

The work of making good the stone slope in front of the Island works by a
deposit of heavy stone was continued by day’s labour.

Rerarrs and IMprOVEMENTS were effected to the works at CoBoura, PorT
AreErT, PorT HOPE, RONDEAU.

Dredging was carried on at BRIGHTON, GopERICH, KINCARDINE, KiNgsvILLE,
"Mearorp, Porr Ercin, Porr Hork, RipEAU Rivir (North Branch), River
KaminisTiquia, RIivER Orrawa (channel between Pembroke and Petewaws), and
SourrameroN. (Appendix No. 5, pages 98-106 and pages 115-117).

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

During the year the sum of $78,490.13 was expended on counstruction and
repairs Public Buildings in this Province.

BranDoN.—A site for a Post Office, with a frontage of 96 feet on Rosser avenue,
by a depth of 100 feet was obtained, and on the 18th day of June last a contract was
entered into for the construction ofa building thereon. The building will comprise
a main portion, 82 feet by 41 feet, to consist of a stone basement surmounted by
three stories and an attic, in brick; and a one-story brick annex, 35 feet by 30

feet. On the ground floor will be the Post Office, the Examining Warehouse, the
Gas Inspector’s Office, and the Weights and Measures Office; on the first floor the
Customs Office, Land Offices and vault; and on the second floor the Inland Revenue
Offices and caretaker’s apar tments—the attic to be unfinished.

St. PauL’s.—On the 13th May, 1889, a contract was entered into for the con-
struction of a school building, a laundry, a cow house, a stable, closets, &c.

School Building.—A “T” shaped 23-story brick building, on a stone found-
ation, with wooden roof, floors and partitions, the front portion to be 80 feet by 33
feet 6 inches and the rear portion 33 teet 6 inches by 33 feet 6 inches. On the
ground floor are to be two class rooms, two offices, a dining room, a kitchen, a
scullery and a pantry; on the first floor two dormitories, nine bedrooms, and two.
wash and bath rooms, and in the attic eleven rooms.

Laundry—A two-story wooden building, on a stone foundation, 24 feet by 20
foet. '

Cow House.—A. one-story wooden building, 28 feet by 24 feet.
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Stable and Carriage House.—A one-story and loft wooden building, on a pile
foundation, 33 feet by 21 feet.

Stony MoUNTAIN—PENITENTIARY.—In January, 1889, a contract was entered
into for the erection of a residence for the surgeon, one for the Roman Catholic
chaplain, and one for the Episcopal ch.plain. In each case the building is to be
aoneand one-halfstory of brick, resting on stone foundation, with wooden partitions
and roof. The basement will contai a dining room, a kitchen, a servant’s room,
a store and furnace room ; the grou ' floor a parlor, a reception room, a library, a
breakfast room, a bedroom, a bath :. ym and a hat room; and the attic four bed-
rooms. Special drains, with cess 7 )1, are being put in, as the distance to connect
with the general system of drainag Is too great. Wells are being sunk, one for
each residence, by convict labour.

The Warden's stables have been completed, a8 has been the hospital building,
while stables for the Deputy Ward ' have been constructed by convict labour,

REPAIRS, ALTERATIONS AND IM: OVEMENTS were carried out at SToNy MOUNTAIN
PENITENTIARY, and to the Custom I suse, Land’s Office and temporary Post Office, -
‘WINNIPEG.

(Appendix No. 2, pages 38 and 39.)
HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

The Rep River.—The work of improving the navigation of the Red River,
from Selkirk into Lake Winn'peg, by dredging, wes continued, and much good
work done. .

The WaITE Mup.—During the first part of the fiscal year the channel was
improved between Totogan and McArthur’s Landing, and the bars which obstracted
the navigation of the river were removed to such a width and depth as to permit
boats to pass freely, after which work was resumed on the bar at the mouth of the
Tiver.

During the winter necessary repairs were made to the plant, which, on the
opening of navigation, was placed to widen the channel between Totogan and McAr-
thur's, after the completion of which work in the channel through the bar at the
mouth was resumed, and was being proceeded with at the close of the fiscal year.

Had not dredging been done at the mouth and in the river itself, navigation
would have ceased, owing to the extreme lowness of the water which has prevailed
during the past two years. (Appendix No. 5, pages 106, 107, 117 and 118)

NORTH-WEST TERRITORIES.

—

PUBLIC BUILDINGS,

Expenditure for construction and repairs on Public Buildings $147,998.26.

Careary.—The barracks building referred toin my report of last yearis nearly
complete, the mess-room being now occupied as a dormitory, and the hospital is
complete ready for occupation.

On the 8th November 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction ofa,
two-story stone Court House, having brick partitions and wooden floors and roof, and
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measuring 91 feet by 51 feet on plan. On the ground floor are to be rooms for
sheriff, grand jury, barristers, witnesses, jailers and prisoners; a vault, water closets,
a furnace room, and a fuel room—the two last mentioned going from the ground
floor ceiling to below the level of the ground. On the first floor are the court room,
rooms for judges, barristers and jury, and water closets.

InpiaN HEADp.—On 5th November, 1888, a contract was entered into for the
construction of buildings in connection with the Experimental Farm, viz.:— '
Superintendent's Residence.—A wooden two-story building, with a stone base-
ment, the main building 42 feet by 34 feet, and a kitchen wing 24 feet by 21 feet.
Horticulturist's Residence.—A wooden two-story building, 32 feet by 35 feet, on
a stone basement, with a lean-to summer kitchen, 25 feet by 10 feet in the rear.
Workmen's Cottage—A wooden one and a-half story cottage, 27 feet by 21 feet,
on a stone basement, with a lean-to summer kitchen, 14 feet by 10 feet, in the rear.
Barn and Stabling—These are to be of wood, and consist of a main building
111 feet by 50 feet, 40 feet in height, on a 12 feet stone basement, and a wing 65
~ feet by 32 feet, and 32 feet in height. The basement is arranged to accommodate
horned cattle and horses, the ground floor as a driving floor, and for hay storage.

MacrLeop.—The stable for the use of the Police, for the construction of which
a contract was entered into in N ovember, 1888, has been completed. It consists of
a main portion, 131 feet 6 inches by 29 feet 6 inches, containing fifty one stalls,
and a harness or saddle room, 40 feet by 14 feet, adjoining. Over the main portion
is a low loft.

Qu’'ArpeLLE.—Industrial School.—The girls’ school, bake-house and carpenter’s
shop are completed. .

Reciva.—A hot air farnace—with connections,—was placed in the basement
ot the Court House.

On 14th May, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of an
Industrial School at White Farm, near Regina, which is now in course of erection.
The building is to be “T” shaped, and consist of a front portion, 180 feet by 37
feet, with a rear wing 75 feet by 37 feet. v

On 19th March, 1889, a contract was entered into for the erection of a new
residence for the Lieutenant Governor. The building will be of brick on a stone
foundation, with partitions, floors and roofs of wood, to consist of a main portion
64 feet 6 inches by 55 feet, and that for servants, offices and bedrooms 56 feet by
42 feet.

On 3rd November, 1888, a contract was entered into for the erection of a rviding
hall, to replace that destroyed by fire, and the work is in progress. The bui lding
will be of wood, 125 feet by 210 feet, exclusive of the porches. (Appendix No, 2
pages 39 to 42.) )
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PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $17,099.08.

Kamroors.—On the 4th June, 1889, a contract was entered into for the con-
struction of three wooden buildings, on stone foundations, for the Indian Industrial
School, viz.:

Central Building.—To consist of a main building, 31 feet by 34 feet, and an
annex 25 feet by 18 feet; to contain on the ground floor a large dining room, a
Superintendent’s sitling room, a Superintendent’s office, a kitchen and a hall; and
on the first floor two school rooms, a sick room, a Superintendent’s bedroom and
closets.

Boy'’s Building.—A building, 40 feet 9 inches by 33 feet 6 inches, to contain on
the ground floor a boys’ play-room, a dormitory, a tailor’sroom, a teacher 8 room, a
lavatory, two bath-rooms and a hall ; and on the first floor two boys’ dormitories,
a teacher’s bedroom, a spare room, a passage and closets.

Girls' House—A building 30 feet 6 inches by 22 feet, to contain on the ground
floor a laundry, an ironing room and a drying room; and on the first floor two girls’
dormitories, a servants’ bedroom and closets.

KupEr IsLAND.—A contract for the erection of buildings for the Indian Indus-
trial School, similar to those described above for Kamloops, was entered into on
27th May, 1889.

NEw WESTMINSTER—Penitentiary.—On the 23rd April, 1889, a contract was
entered into for the construction of & two-story wooden building, on a stone fourd-
ation, to be used as a residence for the Warden of the Penitentiary. This will
have a main building 55 feet by 48 feet, and a wing 30 feet 6 inches by 20 feet,
containing on the ground floor drawing-room, dining-room, library, bedroom, hall,
kitchen, scullery, pantry and conservatory, and on the first floor seven bedrooms
bath-room and hall.

The dwelling for single officers, referred to in my report ot last year, has been
completed, grates and stoves. &c., supphed A cow-house was built by counviet
labor. Gas was laid thr oughout the o‘rounds cast-iron lamp posts placed im

* position and several extra lights placed in the main building. Various alterations
and improvements were made in other parts of the buildings.

VANCOUVER.—A site for a Post Office, &c., Building—on the corner of Penden
and Granville streets—with frontages of 130 and 75 feet respectively, has been
offered, and plans and specifications are being prepared.

Rerairs, ALTERATIGNS and IMPROVEMENTS were effected at the Post oﬁice
Nanamvo, Public Building, New WESTMINSTER, and at the Custpm House and
Post Ofﬁce, Vicroria. (Appendix No. 2, pages 42 and 43).

HARBOURS AND RIVERS.

Expenditure during the fiscal year, $60,849.60.
Biea’s PoRTAGE. ———The channel opened in 1887, through the neck of land,
known as Bigg’s Portage, was widened and deepened, and its usefulness mcreased

thereby.
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Tre CorumsiA River.—To improve the navigation of this river a channel
has been scraped through the salmon beds, just below the lower lake, stone and
brush-dams have been built where required, and wing-dams constraucted at the
widest and shallowest points, and at bends, to confine the water and cause a scour,
Many snags and other obstructions were removed.

TaE CoquirtLAM —Jams and accumulations of trees and driftwood caused the
river to overflow, and adjacent lands were thereby damaged ' These were removed
with satisfactory results,

Esqummart Dry Dock.—The electric light apparatus has been completed, a
lathe and drill supplied for repairs, a small centrifugal pump substituted for the
- auxiliary and drainage pump. Additional latrines and proper houses for the fire-hose
carts have been built, and other necessary work done,
The dock was fully occupied. Two of Her Majesty’s ships—the Cormorant”
and the “Icarus,” the U. S. lighthouse tender “Margarita,” one ship, three
barques, one schooner and ten steamers having been docked and repaired.

TrE Fraser.—The work of improving the navigation of this important river
by the construction of dams to deflect the cirrent into the main channel has been
continued and has proved successful. The north channel has been both straight-
ened and deepened thereby, and it is anticipated that there will soon be a con-
tinuous depth of 19 feet, at low water springs, through the banks. The snag boat
“Samson” removed a number of snags and jams from the river. '

HarrisoN RivER.—A number of guide piles were driven, to assist vessels in
passing through the draw of the railway bridge.

Nicor. Rook—Nanaimo Harbour.—The removal of this rock, which was a
source of danger to shipping, was commenced in 1887, since which time work has
been actively carried on. Up to 30th June last more than two-thirds of the area
of the rock within the 16 feet contour line has been broken up, and 1,800 tons of
material removed and landed.

Tae NicoMEKEL.—A small amount has been expended in the removal of
snags and other work to the eastward of the Clover Valley Road, thus permitting
small boats and scows to get nearly up to Langley Prairie.

Tur SERPENTINE.—The ditch, which was cut in 1887-88, and to which refer-
ence was made in my report of last year, has been enlarged to double its former
capacity, and has proved of much benefit.

THE SoMAs,—During the past year 47 snags were removed from the channel
of the river, and many overhanging trees were cut away between the mouth and
the la.nding, which have increased the facilities for navigation; and the remains
of an old mill dam near Sproat's Lake, which caused the adjoining lands to be
overflowed, were removed.

Vicroria HarBoUR.—The entrance to this harbour is very narrow, with a sharp
turn after passing the lighthouse, due to a shoal extending from Shoal Point. Dux-
ing the year the compact mass of boulders forming this shoal was operated on
first by dynamite, and then by aheavy rake, after which the dredge “ Pacific ” was
able to work freely through the shoal,
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The work done has resulted in deepening and straightening the channel, and
soon the “red” buoy marking the right side of the channel coming in will be shifted,
when there will be a channel 300 feet in width, with an easy turn, and an almost
straight course from the lighthouse to the wharves in front of the city, having a
depth of not less than 14 feet at low water, spring tides, which have a range of 10
feet, there being at the entrance to the harbour a depth of 21feet at high water, neap
tides, 23 feet at ordinary spring tides, and 24 feet at the extraordinary tides which
occur in December. (Appendix No. 5, pages 107, 111 and 118),

DREDGES.

A report on the operations of the various dredges, together with a list of the
dredging plant belonging to the Department, will be found in Appendix No. 5,
pages 112 and 123.

ENGINEERS, ENGINEMEN, FIREMEN AND CARETAKERS,

A list of the various engineers, &e., employed in the Public Buildings through-
out the Dominion, with salaries paid them &c., will be found in Appendix No. 3,
pages 46, 47, 48,

——

DOMINION BUILDINGS.

The amounts expended in connection with heating, lighting and water of the
various Public Buildings throughout the Dominion will be found in Appendix No.
1, pages 10 and 13.

s

PUBLIC BUILDINGS, OTTAWA.

The heatxng, electric lighting, gas, water and bell services of the various Public
Buildings in Ottawa were efficiently maintained, ordinary maintenance—only—
as a rule, being required. (Appendix No. 4, pages 51 and 52).

SURVEYS AND EXAMINATIONS.

Surveys and examinations were made at 99 places, a list of which will be
found in Appendix No. 5, pago 111.

SLIDES AND BOOMS.

s

SAGUENAY DISTRICT.

The slide and booms to facilitate the descent of timber from Lake St. John to
the River Saguenay are situated on La Petite Décharge, the smaller of the two
outlets from the lake to the river. The slide is 5,840 feet long, and the booms
1,344 feet.

Dam No. 3 was rebuilt, and the anchor pier at the head of the slide lengthened
91 feet. The main boom and slide-master’s house were repaired. (Appendix No.

8, page 137). ;
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ST. MAURICE DISTRICT.

The works on the St. Maurice are situated at seven stations, from the mouth
of the river to La Tuque Falls, a distance of 100 miles; and there are also two
stations on the Vermillion River, a tributary of the St. Maurice.

Although the river xemamed at a high level for a longer period than usual, ‘the
works were not seriously damaged, owing to a large force of men being kept con-
stantly employed. The quantity of logs brought down the river was about the
same as last year. “The usual necessary repairs were effected to the works at the
different stations. (Appendix No. 9, pages 141 and 142).

OTTAWA DISTRICT.

This district embraces the River Ottawa and its tributaries, the Gatineau,
Madawaska, Coulonge, Black, Petewawa and Dumoinc Rivers. There are on it
eighty three stations, and the works for facilitating the descent of timber aggregate
about one mile of canal, over three miles of slides, nearly thirteen miles of booms
and over seventeen thousand lineal feet of dams with bulkheads, piers, glance
piers, &ec., in proportion.

During the summer months of 1888 the waters of the main river and the streams
falling into it, although low, were at a fair pitch for driving ; but later in the season,
portions of the timber and sawlogs were stuck, and had to be abandoned until the
water rose. In all 127,923 pieces of timber and 3,725,386 sawlogs were brought
down, the revenue derived from the same being $84,709.39.

A description of work done at the various stations will be found ir Appendix
No. 10, pages 145-149, :

~ NEWCASTLE DISTRICT.

The works in this district are of two classes : those connected with navigation,
which are under the control of the Department of Railways and Canalg, and those
constructed to facilitate the descent of timber down the River Trent and its tribu-
taries, which are under the control of this Department.

During the season of 1888 the water stood at its average height. This spring
it was low, but through the care taken of the water in the reservoirs, and the
heavy rains of May and June, the lumbermen experienced little difficulty with
their drives.

A description of the works executed at the different stations wxll be found in
Appendix No. 11, pages 153 and 154.

STAFF EMPLOYED ON SLIDES AND BOOMS.

A list of the staff employed on the different slides and booms, with date of
appointment, salary, &c., will be found in Appendix No. 12, pages 156-158.

BRIDGES.

BarrLeEToRD BRrIDGE—No progress was made by the contractors, beyond
arranging for materials.
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CrAUDIERE BripGE. The suspension bridge at the Chaudiére Falls having
become inadequate for the large amount of traffic passing over it, in November
1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of an iron and steel truss
bridge, 236 feet in length and 45 feet in width, from outside to outside, giving
a clear roadway of 30 feet and two foot paths, one on each side, of 5 feet.

At the close of the fiscal year the contractors were engaged in erecting the
false works, and in the delivery of materials for the new structure,

Porraee pu Forr Bripge.—The superstructure of the bridge crossing a branch
of the Ottawa, at the village of Portage du Fort, has been entirely rebuilt.

TELEGRAPHS.

The various lines owned and operated by the Government, or on behalf of the
Government were maintained in a state of efficiency during the year,

The Meat Cove Line was further renewed, and a loop of 5 miles constructed
from the Mabou-Cheticamp line to North East Margaree. The line on the north
ghore of the St. Lawrence was extended from Birch River to Sheldrake, and the cables
of the Grosse Ile Quarantine system were taken up and replaced by cables of a
heavier type. In August, 1888. Point Pelée was connected with Pelée Island, Lake
Erie, by a cable 8% miles in length, and connection was made with Leamington,
the line being equipped with telephones. Two short sections of cable were laid to
connect Wolfe and Howe Islands with Kingston by telephone. The re-poling of
the Qu’Appelle-Humbolt line has been competed, as was that of the Prince Albert
line, and a loop line was built to Batoche.  The line between Clark’s Crosring and
Saskatoon, 14 miles in length, has been assumed by the Goverment, and now forms
part of the system in the North-West Territories. A telephone system was
established between the Mounted Police Barracks and the Government offices at
Banff. A line from Victoria to Cape Beale, a distance of about 115 miles, is now
in course of construction along the south shore of Vancouver Island. Fyll details,
with tables giving distances, names of operators and salaries paid on the
different lines, will be found in the report of the Superintendent of Government
Telegraph Lines. (Appendix 13, pages 161-180). ‘

SHIP CHANNEL BETWEEN MONTREAL AND QUEBEC.

The work of deepening to 27} feet the channel in the St. Lawrence between
Montreal and Quebec was continued by the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal
to the 31st December, 1888, after which date it was assumed and has been carriod
on by the Department. A description of the work domne from 1st July to 31st
December, 1888, will be found in Appendix No. 6, pages 127-130.

QUEBEC HARBOUR IMPROVEMENTS,

The report of the Harbour Commissioners of Quebec on the works under their
charge will be found in Appendix No. 7, page 133.
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OPENING AND CLOSING OF NAVIGATION.

Appendix No. 14, pages 183-184, fives a statement of the dates of the closing

of navigation in the winter of 1888, and of the opening in 1889, at the principal
ports of Canada. A list of the ports which are alway open is also given,

NATIONAL ART GALLERY.

Some additions have been made to the pictures during the year, and the curator
reports a steady increase in the number of visitors. (Appendix 17, page 203.)

CONTRACTS, PROPERTY PURCHASED, &c.
Appendix No. 15, pages 187-192, contains statements of the contracts entered
into by the Department, of property purchased by the Department, and of property
leased by or to the Department, during the fiscal year.

ACTS RELATING TO PUBLIC WORKS

Appendix No. 16, page 199, contains a list of some of the Public Acts of the
Parliament of Canada, passed at the Session of 1889, and having reference to the
Public Works Department, or works under its charge. - -

DEPARTMENTAL STAFF.

In appendix No. 18, pages 206 and 207, will be found a list of the Members,
Commissioners, and Assistant Commisgioners of the Board of Works of the
Province of Canada from 1841 to 1867; and of the Ministers, Deputy Ministers,
Secretaries, Chief Engineers and Chief Architects of the Department of Public

Works, from Confederation to 30th June, 1889.

OFFICIAL CORRESPONDENCE.

Appendix No. 20, page 247, contains a statement of the official correspondence
of the Department from 1867 to 30th June, 1889, as well as that of the principal
officers of the Department.

——

GRAVING DOCKS.

There are at present three graving, or dry docks, opened for the reception
and repairs of ocean-going steamers and vessels, viz. at Halifax, Nova Scotia;
Levis, Quebec ; and Esquimalt, British Columbia, while a fourth, to accommodate
vessels egaged in the lake trade, is under construction at Kingston, Ontario. Their
dimensions are as follows :—

HALIFAX :
Feet,
Lengthu e 585
Width at coping level........cocuviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e eeeeenes 102
do Bottom.....eiciiiiiiiiiei e e eenens 72
do  eDIranCe.....ciiviieiiiiiiiiiiiiii e eeee e ceen 95%
Depth of water on sill at ordinary spring tides................... 30

(Spring tides rise 6 feet, neaps 3 feet.)
xxXVi [1889]
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LEvis:
Feet.
Length....coiiiiiiiriiiniii i, T 495
Width at coping level...........cooviiiiiiniiiiniiiniiiiien e 100
A0 DOLEOTMar e eernsineerenieanereenneeerneerenseerneesnesnnnseennns 73
O BNETANECE....veriertrieeiieere ettt et eenaanraeas 62
Depth of water on sill at H.W. ordinary spring tides............ 25%
do do neap tides.............. 20}
EsquiMaLt Dock :
Feet.
Len@th..ceeuieiiiiiiiiinin e e, 430
Width at bottom......veveeninennns D 41
do coping level....ccooiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 90
GO EMEIAINCE. v ererenirereraeaeeeaeeeseerennernenaensentencannsnsnns 65
Depth of high water on sill at high water ordinary springs..... 26%

(Spring tides rise 7 to 10 feet, neaps 5 to 8 feet.)

Kingston Dock .
When completed, this dock will be of the following dimensions:—

Feet,
Length on the floor........cceeieeiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiii . 280
Width do T R 40
Width at coping level.......oovueee coieeiiiiiiiiiinn i, 72
Depth from coping t0 floOr......cceeeeriiiieii i, 26
Depth of water on sill at low water.....................oll 16%
Width Of CHEPANCE. . ceureenenirrnerererrreentereren s e et e rnenininnns 48

ENGINEERS AND ASSISTANTS.

Appendix No. 19, pages 209, 247, contains a revised record of engineers and
their assistants employed on Public ' Works of Canada from 1779 to 1890.

COLLECTION OF SLIDE AND BOOM DUES.

Appendix No. 21, pages 250, 251, contains a statement of amounts owing
for slide and boom dues in the Ottawa District on 1st December, 1889 ; also, amounts
due by insolvent parties which cannot be recovered.

HECTOR L. LANGEVIN.,
Minister of Public Works.

OrTAWA JANUARY, 1890,

[1889] xxxvu
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APPENDIX No. 1.

{

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURE,

DURING FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30th JUNE, 1889.

O. DIONNE, ACCOUNTANT.

18—1%






53 Victorija. Sessional Papers (No. 18.)

/

A. 1890

(Refercnce No. 104,040.)

APPENDIX No. 1.

StareMENT showing the Amount expended by the Department of Public Works,
Domninion of Canada, during the Fiscal Year ended 30th June, 1889,

Con- . Staff
Name of Work. struction, | Kepairs. | and Main- Total.
\ tenance,
PUBLIC BUILDINGS. $ cts $ cts $ cts. $ cts.
L 831053 : 7' 4 4 IO IS 11,331 33 | 11,331 33 -
Nova Scotia.
Amherst Post Ofce, &C.......evvrer werneenennes 176 05 18772 | 343 77
Annapolis do . e o 4 418469 ... 4,134 69
Antigonish do e 641 85 208328 |..... ..... 845 13
Arichat Ao e e e 48 55 |........ ... 48 55
Baddeck dO e e oo 21853 |............ 278 53
Halifax Dominion Building. ...........ccoveniennnes 788 78 10000 |......... ... 888 78
do Examining Warehouse...................... 691 66 100000 |............ 1,691 66
do Immigration Office....... ...o.ocovvneveeenfoenaeraenns, 257 29 |... ........ 257 29
do Penitentiary.................ceiiieiiiiiiidiiiiiaai 024 )............ 0 24
do %uarantine SEAEIOM. o e or eenreieeie e 1,268 31 |..... .... 1,268 31
Nappan Experimental Farm........ ............ .. 1L218 44 | ... el L 11,218 44
New Glasgow Post Office, &e..........o..coonnts e 150 00 401000 {........... 561 00
North Sydney do e 576 97 130 27 {............ 707 24
Pictou Marine Hospital. ......... e 750 ..., e, 187 50
do Post Office, &C. . .....ooiiiiiiiiiineniiifinraneean.. 258 80 {............ 258 g0
Sydne¥(South) Post Office, &C. « - vovnrernnnennnn 1589792 ... ... 1,589 92
Truro Post Office, &c............ .coiviirieeeni]iiienanian 34581..... ..... 34 58
Windsor do ... .ol i e e 2000 |............ 20 00
Yarmouth do ... ... ... ool il 607 00 48364 |............ 1,090 64
Prince Edward Island. .
Charlottetown Dominion Building (new)........ g 1,267 32 11900 ............ 1,386 32
Montague Post Office, &c.....cvoeevininn. conieens 21 10 18531 |............ 156 4
Summerside s 1 TP 233 25 3619 |............ 269 44
" New Brunswick.
Bathurst Post Office, &c...........ooovinieiinenns. 1,998 44 |...... PR TR] PO 1,998 44
Carleton (St. John) Post Office............c.ocveiiilovanianenee 3334............ 73 33
Chatham Post Office.............cooivviiiiniiifieiieees. 11898 |............ 118 98
Dalhousie Post Office, &c............cooevicevinen 6,061 55 |...........0............ 6,051 56
Dorchester Penitentiary....... ........... «.cc.oonn 42 74 250000 :..... ..., 542 74
Fredericton Post Office, &c..........ccovveiieiee cloiiniennnns L1217 {............ 1,132 17
Kingston Marine Hospital 180 ...... ..... 1 80
Moncton Post Office, &c....... ..... 47703 |............ 477 03
Newcastle  do ... iiiie i 8790 |............ 145 40
Portland (St. John) Post Office. . 1339 |............ 133 96
St. Andrew’s Savings Bank.............. .... ... 2250 f............ 22 50
St. John Custom House.,.......... .....ccoovnnns 1L107 44 |........ ... 3,374 48
do  Marine Hospital...... 45490 |............ 1,136 22
do  Penitentiary.. ............... T T LT T 1721 ............ 1720
do PostOffice.............coov veneinennns . 329 56 480 14 |............ 809 70
do SavingsBank...... ....... ...l 9918 |.......... 361 29
St. Stephen’s Post Office, &c 1180 |............ 11 80
Sussex do 21300 4............ 213 00
‘Woodstock do 570 |............ 3,057 70
Carried forward 9,899 75 | 11,331 33 | 58,257 87
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
N Con- ) Staff
ame of Work. struction. Repairs. | and Main- Total.
. tenance.
\
$ cts, $ cts. $ cts.| $ cts.
Brought forward................... 37,026 79 9,899 75 11,331 33 58,257 87

PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continucd.
Quebec.

glmer Post Office, &C.........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiinns
coutimi Marine Hospltal ...........

Coaticook Post Office, &c ..... ........... ....... ol

Grosse Isle Quara.ntme Sta.tlon
Hull Post Office, &c., (new) ...........

Joliette Post Office, &c...............cccovvivnennn.
Lachine do L e e
Mo(tlztreal Armouries ........... oiiieiiiioin

do Custom House ........ . .................
do DrillHall........... .i.coveiin cuiinn
do  Examining Warehouse........ ...........
do  Inland Revenue Building.................
do  Post Office.... ....... .............. ..
do do —electmc lighting .............
Quebee Citadel Buﬂdmgs .........................
Citadel CUff ..., ..... ........o..ou. ...

do Clerk of Works’Office......................

18,365 48
521 55
696 00

5,953 49

do Cullers’Office............ .. . ............ ..

do Custogx House (old)...................... .

o
“do DrillHall................ ...l
do Examining Warehouse........... e
do Immigrant Building
do. Marine Hospital............
do Observatory ................oooiii ...
do Old Parliament Building.... ....
do do site ...l
do Post Office......................... .
do Queen’s Wharf Buildings......... -~
Riviére du Loup (Fraserville) Post Office
Sherbrooke Post Office, &c............ e
Sorel Post Office, &c..................... ... ...,
St. Hyaclnthe Post Ofﬁce, &c .
St. Jerome  do ...l
St. John’s do
St. Régis Custom House. . e
St. Vincent de Paul Pembentmry ..............
Three Rivers Custom House.................... ... .
do PostOffice ................... ... .. ..

Almonte Post Office, &¢ .............. ...... ..
Amherstburg Post O{ﬁce, &e

Be]levxlle do
Berlin do
Brampton do
Brantford do
grockvﬂle go

ayuga o
Cha.tl%a.m do
Clifton do
Cobor do
Cornwall do

1)
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APPENDIX No. 1.—Continued.

Con- : Stafl.
Name of Work. | struction. Repairs. | and Main- Total
tenance.
$ cts. 8 cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward............. ......... 332,810 12 | 40,363 14 | 12,051 25 | 385,224 51
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued.
Ontario—Continued.
Dundas, Post Office, &c......... ..coviieiiiifiieenanans, 50000 \............ 500 00
Galt dO e 204 90 .. ... .. 204 90 -
Ga,na,noque do 7,095 95 Lo 7,195 95
Goanod © 6,509 88 |........... 1.l 6,599 88
Guelph do 1,932 46 | 2122 (....... ..., 1,953 68
Hamilton Custom House......... ..... ........ R P 7200 ... ....... 72 00
do Drill Hall ........ ... ....ccoieennns 23633 44 | ... e 23,633 44
do PostOffice ........c..coiciimninanininn. \ Bb7 34 5256 81 |............ 1,083 15
Kingston Civil Service Examination Office. .........0............ 1845 |............ 18 45
do CustomHouse .................... 1,493 91 T24 57 |............ 2,218 48
do  Military College ................ N T 3800 |............ 38 00
do Penitentiary .................... coel 22,244 87 | L 22,244 87
do PostOffice ............. ....... S P 3B1784.. ......... 331 78
Lindsay Post Office, &c................. ol 1459919 | 14,599 19
London Custom House ........ . ........ o] 11,796 09 1640 ... ... 11,812 49
do Infantry School......................... .. 11,560 63 7000 {............ 11,630 63
do Post Office, &e.................c.ooiit . 330 19 416 31 |......... 746 50
Napanee do e e 2431556 ... ... |l 24,315 56
Orangeville do - ............. e 30 76 2506 |............ b5 82
Ottawa Examining Warehouse. ............ .. .. B Y 85000 |............ 859 00
do Hxperimental Farm....... 64,650 33
do Geological Museum. .. 390 75
do do do Gas 699 40
do National Art Gallery ...... 1,000 97
do Post Office, &c ............ 997 90
do do Gas........ooounn 1,770 40
do Printing Bureau............. .. 122,534 86
do do Gas....... 1,318 10
do do Heating .. ... . 981 36
do do (temporary) . . 587 50
do Public Buildings ..... ............ e 118,372 10
do do Gas ..o e . 15,777 88
do do Grounds ........coeviuen-. 8,293 53
do do Heating.. .....oooovn ooenn ,1 61,177 83
do do Major’s Hill Park .........i..o.ooovndniio.L, 7,550 61 7,550 61
do do Recovering lean-to Roofs ...| 5,920 00
do do Ventilating Shafts. ........ 800 00 7.640 25
do do Skylights ................. TIL 25| v e ’
do do Pump House ... ......... 149 00
do do Removal of Snow.........veeennnennn i, 991 73 991 73
do do Telephonic Service .........|.oeeeeneendiin .. 2,844 02 2,844 02
do do Water.....oovveeenneceenelonenn. IEROTT) RPN . 13,728 60 | 13,728 60
do do Wellington Street Block ...| 132,151 27 |......... I 132,151 27
do Supreme Court.................. .....oonnn 50 50 50 50
do Victoria Hall.......... ... 3,848 19 4,848 19
Pembroke Post Office, &c......... 9,094 31
Peterborough do  ......... 2,226 91
Port Arthur Custom House 194 00
do Inland Revenue Office............cooovafeenee oont 19982 ............ 199 82
Port Colborne Post Office, &c e s 180 26
Port Hope do 177 76
Prescott do 8,027 00
Rideau Hall............ . ........ cccoiieeiinannns 31,518 31
do Gas—New Kdinburgh Street Lamps. ... 300 00 300 00
do Allowance for fuel and light.. ......... 8,000 00 8,000 00
do  Removalof Smow. ................... 617 00 617 00
Carried forward............. ... ons 807,256 96 | 199,863 06 | 137,102 70 |1,144,222 72
[1889] 7
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Name of Work Con- Repai & Vo Total
ame of Work. : epairs. | and Main- ota
struction. tenance.
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward .................. 807,256 96 | 199,863 06 | 137,102 70 |1,144,222 72
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued.
Ontario—Concluded.

St. Catharmes Post Office, &e.......... ...covvvnnn 526 39 527 39

St. Thomas doO e . 904 16 904 16

Stratford do e 153 00

Strathroy L 1o 2,611 93 2,611 93

Toronto Civil Service Examination Office. ..........\............ 105 47
do Custom House.................cooenieenns 1,561 41 1,578 59
do  Examining Warehouse..................... 4,115 84 4,805 92
do Immigrant Station.................... ... 14 66 308 12
do  Inland Revenue Office............o.ovoviiifiiiii i, 24 25
do PostOffice. .........ccovveiveveinnninnan.. 4,307 72 4,817 33

Trenton do &t e s e 18,640 45 18,640 45

‘Windsor do e e e ,508 29 1,515 94

Manitoba,

Brandon Experimental Farm......... ............. 4202 78 | ... 4,202 78
do Immlgra,nt Building..................... 153 40 116 00 |. ..... ... 269 40
do Post Office.............. ............ . 6,722 00 | et 6,722 00

Stony Mountain Penitentiary...................... 53,435 84 |......... .} iaeann 53,435 84

St. Paul Industrial School...................... ..., 922210 |...... . ... feeeeiinn 9,222 10

Winnipeg Architect’s Office..................... ... ... ..., 1,592 56 |..... .. .. 1,592 56

do Custom House.............. B 22385 f...... ..., 122 35

do  Dominion LandsOffice..................1..... ... ... 1,141 42 |. ... 1,141 42

. do Examining Warehouse. .................| .......... 80949 [..... ...... 809 49
do Immi a.nt Building..................... 47 16 59000 |........ ... 637 16

do PostOffice......c.ooovveenen vu con oo, 33503 [..cooannnnnn 335 03

) North-West Territories.

Banff Mounted Police Barracks......... ........ .. 380 35
Battleford Land and Registry Office......... ... . 1,999 64
do  Mounted Police Barracks......... ... ... 8,509 32

Big Bend do do ... ... . 411 12

Calgary Clerk of Work’s Office........ ... .. . . 98 85
do Court House, Jail, Registry Office, &e. .. ... 10,258 90
do Custom House......... ......... .. ... (... . ... ... 81 50
do MinesOffice. .......... ............ 0L 393 03
do  Mounted Police Barracks...... . 25,856 02

Fort McLeod Custom House. .................. .. |... 7 . .. .. 380 80

do do and Store house.. 2,013 11 2,013 11
do Mounted Police Barmcks .............. 8906 03 1.... . . ... 8,906 03

Fort Saskatchewan ~  do .. ... .. . . .. 200 00 200 00

Indian Head Experimental Farm ................... 14,337 50 14,337 50

Kipp Mounted Police Barracks............... ... ... 979 93 979 93

Lethbridge do L 4,543 31 4,543 31

Maple Creek do 917 34 917 34

Medecine Hat do e e 127 59 127 b9

Milk River do . 121 66 121 66

Pendant dOreille do ................ .. ... 291 90 291 90

Prince Albert Court House.......... ........... ... 3,541 33 3,769 22

do Mounted Police Barracks........ ... ... 5,658 43 5,668 43

Public Buildings generally..................... B 1,443 48

Qu’Appelle Immigrant Shed............o 10 60

do Industrial School............... ... .. ... 11,562 49 11,562 49
Regina Clerk of Works’ Office. . ....................[... ........ 886 86
Carried forward.... ........ ... ..... 1,015,847 06 | 209,894 62 | 137,102 70 {1,362,844 38
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.

Con- Staff

Name of Work. struction. { Repairs. a'?gman‘:" Total.
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts- $ cts.
Brought forward. ..........ccooiiiins 1,015,847 06 | 209,894 62 | 137,102 70 (1,362,844 38

PUBLIC BUILDINGS-—Continued. -
North-West Territories—Concluded.

Regma Council Chamber ................ cooeeireifoieenean .. 57800 |.... ....... 578 00
urt House............... ..o 333 50 18981 |............ 523 31
do Industrial School................... ... 487254 ... ... 4,872 54
do Jail and Lunatic Asylum.................... 1,887 53 169 88 |............ 2,057 41
do Lieut.-Governor’s Residence, (old)............ 2,549 89 259403 1............ 5,143 92
o 0 (new)oe......... 2,651 54 |.......... L 2,651 54
do Mounted Police Barracks.................... 9,269 52 |.......... 0. Ll 9,269 52
do PostOffice...........coooiiiniiiininie]ernns PN 21585 {............ 215 85
do Riding Hall................ ... ..ot 15,301 14 ... 15,301 14

8t. Albert Mounted Police Barracks................ 642 42 L. 642
St. Mary’ do ... e L1583 | 1,165 83
‘Wood ountam do e e LI5590 [.......... .. oL 1,155 90
Writing-on-Stone do . 201 90 {........... |l 291 90

British Colambia.
Agassiz Experimental Farm............ ........... 7205 .o 72 05
Kamloops Industrial School...... A, 65666 |.... ... .. ... oL 65 66
Xuper Island do .l e e 3,055 59 |...... ... o 3,055 59
Nanaimo Post Office, &C..............c civiviieiiiliuneenien.. 7212 |............ 72 12
New Westminister Penitentiary......... ..... .... 8,041 55 [...... ... 8,041 55
do Post OfFCe. ... o ooveeee e eerne e, 20574 {....... . .. 295 74
Vancouver Post Office, &c.......................... 4,154 36 |......... 4,154 36
Victoria Custom House........... .. ...coviiiiend] vievninnn 121056 (............ 121 65
do PostOffice.........oviienvioniearienniifona 1,22046 |............ 1,220 46
England.

London, High Commissioner’s House................ 964 57 | 964 57
Carried forward..................... 11,072,312 55 | 215,352 06 | 137,102 70 {1,424,767 81
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.

[1889]

N £ Work Con- Revai Stﬁﬁ and T
Name o ork. s epairs. ain- otal.
struction. tenance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. $ cts] $ cts.] $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward....................... 1,072,312 55| 215,352 06| 137,102 70| 1,424,767 31
Salaries [Supplies
Engrroers | o0 Heating, | Lighting. | Water. | Total.
EXPENDITURE ON Accoun| "§HEerS, gigoers,
SERVICES MENTIONED. . C.
Nova Scotia. $ cts| § ots
Ambherst Post Office. ..... 433 33| 926 61
Antigonish do  ...... 4500, ......
Arichat do ...... 1500f........
Baddeck do  ...... 200 00]........
Halifax DominionBuilding| 2,196 96| 32 32
do Exam. Warehouse 500 00{........
do  Penitentiary ..... 112 50{........
New Glasgow Post Office. 399 99| 45 00
North Sydney do .. 433 31)........
Pictou Custom House . ... 400 00 0 70
do Marine Hospital ..{..... .. .| . .. ..
Truro Post Office......... 399 99 7 26
Windsor do  ......... 400 00}........
Yarmouth Post Office, &e. 400 00 2 49
Prince Edward Island.
Charlottetown Dominion

Building............... 1,579 96| 110 19 551 78 1,623 18 27 00f 3,892 11
Montague Post Office..... 120 00)........ 74 87 167 206 54
Summerside do A 400 00; 12 94 297 91 5230/.......... ! 763 15

New Brunswick. ’
Bathurst Post Office, &..| 400 00{ 4 80] 401 01 2496 .......... 830 77
Carleton, St. John, Post,

Office, &e.............. oo 150 00 20 00 170 00
Chatham Post Office, &e..|..........[........ 149 03 64 90.......... 213 93|
Fredericton do 400 00, 8 35 393 57 456 12 33 00| 1,291 04
Moncton Post Office..... 400 00] 18 09 265 93 706 31 134 00] 1,524 33
"Newecastle do ..... © 400 00| 59 48 424 49 214 20,.......... 1,098 17
Portland do ... 30 1521 ... ... 45 65
St. John Custom House..| 1,715 80| 45 78/ 1,905 19 165 97 457 871 4,290 61

do  Marine Hospital]....... .. |...... .. 507 33 312 60, 30 58 850 51
do  Penitentiary .... 412 50}, ... .. 49 60 625)........ 468 35
do  Post Office...... 1,195 85 826 606 93 1,973 79 351 13) 4,130 96
do Sa.vmgs Bank...|..........0........ 231 25 94 45 70 00 395 70,
St.Stephen’, sPostOfﬁce,&c 400 00| 15 32 81 00 501 90| 51 75| 1,049 97,
Sussex do 400 00 2 01 221 57 2020.......... 643 78
‘Woodstock do .. 400 00 8 40 255 17 42 00 34 00 739 57
Quebece.
Hull Post Office, &c......| 200 00 ..., .. 284 21 368| 8900 61001
Montreal Armouries.... .. 225000, . ... 0. e R PR 225 00!
do  Custom House .. 930 00|........ 1,233 43 A72 65 375 35! 3,111 43
do Drill Hall...... 25 B £ I O B S 323 75
do  ExaminingWare-
OUSE. . ....... 1,257 421, ... ... 1,903 20 462 04 450 00| 4,072 66
do Inland Revenue
Office........ 730 00|........ 335 51 151 85 96 90, 1,314 26
Carried forward. ... .. 17,826 36/ 403 00| 12,769 69 10,912 44| 3,425 76| 45,337 26'..........
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con- . Staff
Name of Work. struction. Repairs. aéld Main-| Total.
enance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward.............ooeienn 1,072,312 55| 215,352 06|137,102 70{ 1,424 767 31
N
Ss.la,}'ies Supplies
0 n- . . . A
EXPENDITURE Engineers, | gineers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
ON ACCOUNT SERVICES &e. &e.
MENTIONED—Con,
Quel,ec—Concluded. $ cts.] $ cts $ cts. $ cts. 3 cts. $ cts.
Brought forward...| 17,826 36| 403 00| 12,769 69 10,912 44| 3,425 76| 45,337 25
Montreal Post Office, St. 9
Jacques St...... ...... 1,195 00 0 60, 1,231 27 3,451 07| 1,639 45| 7,517 39 1
Montreal Post Office,
Notre Dame St.... ....0.......o oo, 0450.......... 0 45
Montreal Post Office, St.
Catherine St........... 10 85
Montreal Post Office, St.
Lawrence St........... 2 05
Quebec Citadel Bmldmgs 453 53
do Culler’s Office.. 540 00
do Custom House.. 1,305 18
do Examining Ware-
house.......... 2,445 86
do Marine Hospital. . 1,375 00
do Observatory...... 46 00
do  Post Office. .... 988 72
Sherbrooke Post Oﬂice, &c 400 00 1,359 25
Sorel 400 00 85 01 338 50 205 50 250 00| 1,279 01
St. Johns 350 00! 323 188 00 22 24 80 00 643 47
St. Vincent de Paul Peni- 46 00... .... 2,013 22 28 20(.......... 2,087 42
tentiary................
Tlﬁee Rivers Custom 816 66/........ 39710 ..... ...... 72 76| 1,986 52
OUSE. .....vovee vvnnns
Three Rivers Post Office. . 400 00! 15 49 223 62 218 50! 60 00 917 61
Ontario.
Ambherstburg Post Oﬁiee
&eooovviii il 366 67| 32 60 279 25 44 40!.......... 722 92
Barrie Post Office, &c 400 00 38 30 316 38 208 20; 50 00, 1,012 88
Belleville do .. 600 00 26 35 391 75 518 36 21 75, 1,558 21
Berlin do 400 00 9 14 226 62 163 75 5 00 804 51
Brantford do 600 00 779 290 14 31940;.......... 1,217 33
Brockville do 400 00| 29 56 276 00 597 50 170 00 1,473 06
Chatham do 850 00 8 50 247 65 257 99i.......... 1,364 14
Clifton do 400 001 16 95 292 00 38 23 76 771 19
Cobourg Inland Revenue 15000, ..o e 15 00
Post Office.......
Cornwa.ll do ...
Dundas do  ......
Galt Post Office..........

Gananoque Custom House
do Post Office .
Guelph do .
Hamilton Custom House. .

do Drill Shed. .

do  Post Offise ..

Kingston Canal Tolls Office
o Custom House .

Carried forward....
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Work Con- . Staff _b
Name of Work. struction. Repairs. a.gec; ;Mn:él‘r Total.
\
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Continued. $ cts. $ cts. $ octs. $ cts.
Brought forward....................... 1,072,312 55/215,352 06,137,102 70| 1,424,767 31
\
Sala.fries Sup%hes .
FXPENDITURE Eng;]neers gineers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
ON ACCOUNT SERVICES &c. &e.
MENTIONED— Con.
Ontario—Concluded. $ cts.| $ ots $ cts. 8 cts.] $ cts.|] $ cts.
Brought forward...| 30,219 0| 792 60| 25,985 74| 21,351 11| 9,797 08| 88,145 83

Kingston Exa. Warehouse
gs Inland Revenue
Office..........
do Military College.
do Penitentiary ..
do Post Office......
London Custom House. ..
do Post Office........
Orangeville Post Oﬂice
Ottawa Experimental F'm
do National Art Gal’
do Prmt.mg Buvea.u
Peterboro’ Post Office. . ..
Port Colbome Post Office.
Port H “fe do
Stratford Post Office, &e..
St. Catharines do ..
St. Thomas do ..
Toronto Custom House. . .
do Examining Ware-
house..........

O
do Post Office.......
‘Windsor Post Office, &e..
Manitoba.

‘Winnipeg Custom House.
do Dominion Lands

do Examining
Warehouse. .
do  Immigrant Shed
do  Post ce.....
North-West Territories.
Calgary Cler}‘xi of Works’

do

McLeod Custom House, .. . ...

Prince Albert Court House

&ec
Regina Court House.

Carried forward....

1,107 20
674 40
412 20

571 60| 6,667 14

40 00
96 00
151 75

601 93
580 92|

127,537 32|
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53 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.)
APPENDIX No. .—Continued.
R — e—————————
Con- . Staff Aan
Name of Work. struction. Repairs.| Main- Total.
tenance.
PUBLIC BUILDINGS—Conoluded. $ cts. 8 cts.] 8§ cts $ cts.
Brought forward....................... 1,072,312 55( 215,352 06| 137,102 70| 1,424,767 31
Sa.lifries Sfup%ies '
. of or En- : b
EXPENDITURE Engineers | gineers, Heating. | Lighting. | Water. Total.
ON ACCOUNT SERVICES &e. &ec.
MxENTIONED—Con.
N.-W. Territories—Con. $ cts.! $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward. . ... 47,180 331,173 66| 38,242 58] 28,294 65| 12,145 80| 127,537 32
Regina Jail and Lunatic
8840]......cccouu el 88 40
do 355 46| ..o cvieeneneina, 355 45|
_ British Columbia.
Nanaimo Post Office.. .. .. 600 00]........0..c..cvunnn 149 65 33 00 782 65!
New Westminster Post
Office.................. 600 00i........ 155 82 122 15(.......... 877 97
Victoria Custom House...|..........|........ 137 50] oo v e 137 50,
do Post Office......[..........[........ 230 25 887 30| 42 00{ 1,159 55
DouiNiON BuiLDINGS
ENERALLY. . ......leieueeuenonennans 1,840 61 ........... ...l 1,840 61
Totals......... 48,880 33(1,173 66| 41,050 91) 29,453 75| 12,220 80/132,779 45| 132,779 45
| 1,072,312 55|215,352 06269,882 15! 1,557,546 76
HARBOURS AND RIVERS. .
Nova Scotia.
T MI37L. ..., - 149 87
Barrington Passage Pier.. ...t 2,090 80|..........0.......... 2,990 80
Bayfield Wharf............ ... ..o 2,441 82 .........0.......... 2,441 82
Bayfield........ooooviiiii i et e 2,978 50,...., .... 2,973 50
Bay St. Lawrence.................: e eeteieiieaeeaee 1,997 09)..........|.......... 1,997 09
Beaver RIVEr...............coviiien vn ciiiiiniaeennns 1,499 56 el 1,499 56
Betty Island. ...........cooooiiiiiiveninin crneneeenarenees ouns 49981, .. ..... 499 81
Big Bras d’0Or Wharf..... .... ..........cooiiiiienenns 2,06 63|..........0.......... 2,076 53
BigPond.......oooiiiiiiis s e 1,998 331 ..........|.......... 1,998. 33
Blue ROCK........coiiiit ittt o ieeiiaaae aenaenns 3816 50(..........0.......... 3,816. 508
Birchtown Brook.............c.coiviiiiiiiiiiiiriiinaferene e 200 00.......... 200° 00
Broad Coven. .. ...oviiriiiiiii e e 6320000.... .....|.......... 6,320- 00
L T P T LEE 549 44|.......... 540. 44
Cheticamp.........coviiiiis e 204379 ... ... .. 2,043 79
Comeauville..............ooiiiiiiiiiiiis i 400..........0.......... 4 00
CoW Bay. ... oottt e e 9,906 38..........0......... 9,906 38
DelapsCove.......cooooiiiiiiiiiis vr v i 9MWIIT... 999 97
DAGDY 1o 4,498 14|, LI 4,498 14
East Riverof Pictou..............cooiuinerinnanns cnn T0000..... ....0.........~ 700 00
Bast Bay.......coovviiiiii i fr e, 399 58/... ...... 399. 58
Eatonville. ..... ...t e 4877020, .........0.......... 4,877 02
Economy Breakwater... ............ccoivieenies voes 0L 79].......cii 301 79
Gabarus—Belfry Lakes Channel........................ L1, R P 800. 00
Green Cove........covviiiniuanneneinen cannen Y N 497 33i.......... 497 38
Carried forward.................... [1889] 1,119,733 64 | 220,471 72| 269,882 15| 1,610,087 51
~ 1
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.

Name of Work Con- Repai St | ogal
ame of Work. p epairs. ain- 'otal,
struction. tenance.
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts
Brought forward.... «....... ........ 1,119,933 64 | 220,471 72 | 269,882 15 |1,610,087 51

HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Con.

Nova Scotia—Concluded.

Green Harbour. ...
Hampton........
Harbourville ..

Lower Horton. ..
Mabou Harbour.
Main-4-Dieu. ...
Margaretville ..
Meteghan .....
McNair’s Cove......o.ovn.e
Nosl

08
Parker’s Cove .....c... .......
Parrsboro’. . ....o.oiuiien.n..
Partridge Island River.......
Pictou Island...... ...........

Port Greville...... .............

Sheet Harbour..... ......... ... .. ............
Spencer’s Island Wharf...... ... .................
Tgetamagouche, Wharf on East Side... .............
Trout Cove. .....vvviieiiii ciiiiiiii i

Westert Head . . ...............ocviiinnn o .n.
“White Poinb. ..o

‘Annandale ......... ..o Lo,
‘Belfast Pier...... ..o, e
Campbell’s Cove.........ooiiiiiniiiina e
OCASCUMPOC. . .o ovenet it iieiant cieiinneiaanns
GeOTgOtOWN . ...ttt it
Hickeys Pler.......c..oovvivn tiiiiiniiniina..
'hea;viris Point........ooovviiveniii.., Yereanaans
LT
:Mnrgse\; Harbour ... .....cooveiiiiinl Ll
North Cardigan. ....... oo viieiiiinniiinn.
North Rustico. ......ocvovenvenies viniiiinniun....
PIDEbe .. e e
Pownal...... e e e e
Souris, Knight's Point................o. L.
;g(tmth Rus]ggco ......................................
urgeon Pier. ... ........ooiiii
T )
Vernon River Pier................ooocoiiiiiia...

..........

0O e b

S PERE

@
3
BB I R E B33 S8SRuRERZITSTIBS838I83

oo

e

tgugioBsssskynisaiis

Carried forward..... e eaeee eeeeaa.

14 {1889

............ 1,
.......... 1,
311160 |cevvvvenn... 3,
59894 |...... .....
.......... 399 79
99938 1. . ........

4,481 95 {............ 4,
249946 |............ 2,499
........... 36500 |............ 365 00
............ 1,863 79 |...oev.vo...| 1,858 79
........... 294 204 24
3,830 T4 |oevvr verifoninne oein 3,330 74
............ 19811 ... . ...... 198 11
............ 53999 |............> 53909
........................ 500 00
............ 87123 |....ooon.. 871 23
........... 5130 {.ovununnnn.. 51 80
............ 350 00 [............ 350 00
............ 248 22 |............ 248 22
............ 9956 |.... ....... 99 56
............ 43998 [............ 43998
4,998 87 |...... U PP 4,998 87
........... 150 00 {...nnunnn.. 150 00
........... 250 00| ........... 250 00
............ 534 22 ..o, 534 22

G7 BL [eieiinnneeneiaeneenenn, 97 51
1,361,87890 236,633 78 | 270,000 65 |1,668,513 33
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con- . Staff
Name of Work. struction. Repairs. | and Main- Total.
tenance,

$ cts. 8 cta. $ cts. $ cts,

Brought forward ........ PP 1,161,878 90 | 236,633 78 | 270,000 65 |1,668,513 33
HARBOURS AND RIVERS.—Con.
New Brunswick.
Belliveau Village.... ..... s . 255470 ... .. L 2,554 70
Campbellton Ballast Wharf........................ 13260 (... ... 0ol 132 50
Cape Tormentine................... P 24,042 07 {..... ......{...... . ..., 24,042 07
Edgett’s Landing................. e 18837 |...... ...l 188 37
Grande ANSe... . .....ciiiiiiiih i ennes 3,090 37 j........... 3,090 37
Hopewell Cape............ooceiiiviiiniiniiiiafneeeceeinss 49986 |.......... 499 86
Maisonette. . . ... ..ot e 528 29 |........o 528 29
ggintﬁ duChéne............coviiiiiiiiiiiaieeanns 999 46 {...... Boo 999 46
F: e J U FE R R RS e AR 7 3 .1 R, 15 00
Richibucto............ .00 ORI 2,999 54 |............|..00000 2,999 b4
River Kennebecagis. .. ........ ... tiiiiiin 1,896 98 |.... ... 1,896 98
Rocher Bay, Anderson’s Hollow .... .............. 1,683 60 f. ..., 1,583 50
Salmon River..........oiivt viiieimiiiiineiieiesferennaenns 19830 {............ 198 30
Shippegan..... ... .. ... ... S e 70000 |01l 700 00
St.gohn Harbour (Fort Dufferin, retaining wall at
ST T P S TLTTL 3,006000|............ 3,005 00
St. John Harbour (Partridge Island)................ 1,492 00 {............|............ 1,492 00
St. John River..... ... .c.iiiiiiiei s 5,355 60 {............[............ 5,355 60
: do between Fredericton and Woodstock. . 999 68 |l Ll 999 58
do Dredging OromoctoShoal ............ 2,000 00 §.......... 0L L. 2,000 00
St.Louis. . ..ot it Ty 1,897 65 t........ ... ... 1,807 65
Harbours Generally, Maritime Provinees. ...........f-cooveaiiidoi i 12,098 26 | 12,098 26
Quebec.

Anse 3 I'Eau or Tadoussac Pier......... e 1,282 06 |............ ... 1,282 06
ANse St. JeaM. .. vorits v e i 23950 |............ 239 50
BaieSt. Paul................coiiiiier ciir cenes 4,867 92 |........ ..o, 4,867 92
Barachois de Malbaie...................0 coooioins 82700 |l i 327 00
Beleil Piers and BoOmS. .. .. .ovvo cvveevreneeeeiessfoaeeesseeaatoie  ciiul, 161 00 151 00
BeatPOrt. . ..ot e 67732 |, ... 677 32
Berthier (en bag) ... i 1,450 97 (... ........ 1,450 97
Capd LPAigle. ....... ... ..o o 548 8 548 §1
CapSanté.... .....ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiies 252 43
Carleton Pier ........ J A 28 98
Cedars Piler .. ... ...iiiiiiiiine v 48 00
Chenal du Moine—Ice Piers at Ste Anne de Sorel .. 2,708 28
Chicoutimi...............c.ccoentnn. e, 1,631 65
Coteaudulac ............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiaies . 3,893 41
Coteau Landing Pier .. ............ ..oociiinans 1,413 00
Etang du Nord, Magdalen Islands.. ........... ... 3753 24
eville...... P 661 43
Grand Pabos ......covveeniiiiiiiiiiiiaee e 750 00
Harbours and Rivers Generally........ oraaaeeeens 6,113 08
Isle Perrob.........ccovviniieinnn e 3,640 31
Isle Verte,.....ocvuuineoeenronneansnnmnnanesncens 3999 39
Kamouraska ...........cooiiiiin iiiiiiiaien 220 00
Lake Megantic ........... ...cocoiei corieinninn 873 02

Lake8t. John, Grande Décharge. ....-.. fee eeeeas 2112 11
Laprairie, Works in connection with Ice Piers . .... 5,027 67
Les Eboulements .............coooviiireeonnennannn 1,557 06
Yévis Graving Dock...........ccoiviiennenniins 1,965 67
Longueuil Wharf..... ... 2.280 66
Long Sault Pier.........cocvuevn coviiannnenianens 2,504 88
Murray Bay do  .......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 2,451 15
Carried forward............ ...... 1,248,786 43 | 258,105 27 | 298,328 66 1,795,220 36

(1888 15
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
N f Work Con- Repai dStl\a!iﬁ Total
ame of Work. H pairs. | and Main- o
struction. tenance.
~
$ ots. $ cts. $ octs. $ cts.
Brought forward....................... 1,248,786 43 | 253,105 27 | 293,328 66 |1,795,220 36
HARBOURS AND RIVERS—Continued.
Quebec—Concluded.
New Carlisle . ... «vuutrereremiiiiiiiisennennnns 1,966 69
Newport River, Mouth of ......................... 1,672 06
Papineauville or Pentecost Bay Channel 3,274 56
Percd Pier ... vvvtieriiiiiiia it 7,787 12
Piers below Quebec ... 11,683 65
Pointeau Persil. . .... cooeiveiiiiiiiiiiiaaa, 498 40
Port Daniel . .. .. ociiiiniiiiiiiiiiii i P20 1 o R I 2,715 71
ebec HAarbour . ... vovve vienent e innnnered e 1995 |............ 119 96
ebec Immlgra.tlon Building, Crib Work on Break-
......................................... 246700 |.......... .l....... ... 2,467 00
leére Ca.p deChatte .....................oiuinsn 2500 43 |............ 0.0 ool 2,600 43
IVEC . i e 64,506 74 | ... oo 64,506 74
do du Loup (en bas) Wharf ........ .........0..... ...\, 39246 ;............ 392 46.
do Madawaska ..........c.iiiiniiiiinnann., 40000 |............ 0ol 400 00
Ao Mechin®C ... ovvvinieiaiens vrennnnnns 49965 ... o, 499 656
do  Nicolet, Harbour of Refuge ................ 10,999 93 |........oa|. oLl 10,999 93
do OuellePier.............0 ciiiiiivieniiideaunnain.s 34282 ............ 342 82
do Ste Annedela Pérade......... e e 237500 |........... o0 2,376 00
vaer St. Franci8......covtviiieiiiiiiinis ciaenn. 405944 [..............ooll 4,059 4.
do St. Lawrence, Breaking Ice between Sorel
and Three Rivers.. .....................1.coooei e, 2,944 42 2,944 42
do St.Lawrence ..................ccoevve wiiiliiininiii 3000 |............ 30 00-
do do Water Levels.................|.ccooeiina. 1,943 56 {............ 1,943 56.
do Yamachiche............. .................. 82540 |.......... doool, 825 40-
do Yamaska, Stone Protection to Dam, &c...... 2,493 20 199 87 801 75 8,494 821
St. Alphonse, Bagotville.................0.... ..., 1,024 54 {. ... el 1,024 54
Ste Annede Beaupré ........ .................. .|l 2500 |............ 25 00
Ste Anne du ENAY. . . oot .. R 210969 |............ ..l 2,109 69
St.Irénée Wharf ............. .................... 2,890 47 |, e, 2,890 47
St. Laurent (Isle d’Orléans) Pier ............. P P 369 28 {............ 369 28
St. Thomas de Montmagny do ............. ......|............ 1400 [............ 14 00
Sorel Ice Piers. . ................ ... .. ... ... 2571882 ... e 2,573 32
Three Rivers Harbour.......................ooo ..., 740 |............ 7 40
do 6T, .. e e 3,909 83 |............ il 3,999 83
Trois Pistoles Pier............................ .een 212058 |, 2,120 58
Ontario.
Belleville Harbour. ................................ 251678 ... | 2,676 78
Burlington Channel ........... ...... ... 115 22 702 04 817 26.
Cobourg ......oooviit tiiiiiiis e 987153 | ... ... ieeeiiiiinnn 9,871 53.
Collingwood:.............coooiiii il T28L 55 (... 7.281 55
@FICH . v\ i e 3511 46 {...... ... ... ..o ol.l.. 3,611 46
Hn.rbours and Riversgenerally.... .................|............0..0 ... 0 8,725 73 8,725 73
Hilton, or Marksdale ............. .. ... .. ..., 16200 |........... |... ... 162 00-
Kammlstxqum River..............o. ... . ... ... 32,4083 65 |. . ..........0. ....o.... 32,408 65.
. et e e e e 5,040 50 ...... .....0.......... . 5,049 50
ton Harbour......... ... L 6,851 84 (............|....... 6,851 84
Graving Dock ... . ........ . L.l 33,763 87 | ......... et 33,763 87
Kin v1lle, Lake Erie ... ............ ..... ... .. 518872 |.. ... ... 5,188 72
tfs Current, Lake Huron........................ 22280 ... 222 80
Little Nation fhver 460906 | ... .......0............ 4,509 06
Meaford Har 77500 ... . ... . 7,775 00
McGregor’s Cteek B9 76 ... 7,809 76 .
do  Harbour ,000 00 | LTl 2,000 00
Narrows between Lakes Simcoe and Couchiching. . 50000 |.... .......0. ... 500 00
Oakville Harbour..............cooiiiiiiiiniiin, 2,783 81 ... ... 2,783 81
' Carried forward............oooien. ... 1,504,309 12 ,846. 88 | 306,502 60 |2,079,658 60
16 [1889]



53 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.) A. 1890
APPENDIX No. 1—Continued. ‘
- Staft
Name of Work. oo™ | Repalrs. | and Main- | Total.
tenance.
HARBOURS AND RIVERSConcluded. $ cos] 8 cts.|] $- cts| 3 ots

Brought forward. . .‘ ................
Ontario—Concluded.

Ottawa River Revetment Wall................. ....
Owen Sound. ..o iiiiniiiiiee e
Penetanguishene ...... ... ... ......... ... ..
Port Albert..... ...t v

Portsmouth ............... ... ool e
Rideau River, Dredging North Branch. ............
Riviére aux Péches............ ...............
do Puces................ch ciiiiiiiiiiinns
River Ottawa, Narrows above Pembroke............
Rondeau..............
Sault Ste. Marie
Sheguiandah, Grand Manitoulin Islands .
Southampton . ... e
Summerstown.........
Thornbury, Dredging...........
Tolsma Bay, Cockburn Island....... .
Toronto Harbour ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiniins

Manitoba.

Harbours and Rivers generally .....................

British Columbia.
Chemanus. . ..c.o.oviiirnnii e .
Columbia River
Coquitlam do
Cowichan do .

2833888
z
Y

Mo g goon
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306,502 60 |2,079,658 60
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Esquimalt Graving Dock.......... .c.ooooiiiinenns
Fraser River
Harrison...... .....
Kokasaliah. .... e e et eeeeaeiaaee s
Nanaimo Harbour, Removal of Nicol rock..........
o Bigg’s Portage. .................
Nicomeckel River... ... ................c..ooats
River Somass.. ..... ... ....cih ci i
Serpentine River.......... ....... .. ...
Victoria Harbour........... PR
HARBOURS AND RIVERS GENERALLY................ 10,750 38
DREDGEB. . ... ittt e i iieae e aeannans 38791 75 | 46,214 33 .. ......... 85.006 08
’
DREDGING.
Nova Scotia.
Arisaig.. ..ot il $1,378 79
Barrington................... 3,889 60
Bayfield........... . 2,619 69
Granton...... .. .. 1,143 90
Little Glace Bay. Y 4,735 27 i
McNair’s Cove. 2,642 67 J ,
Pictou..... . 1,198 38 i
Yarmouth............ . 6,653 87 !
Generally............. . 767 22 |
- — $25,029 39 i
Carried forward............ $25,029 39 11,818,092 58 | 315,259 21 332,429 88 |2, 465,781 67
[1889] HBTEL T
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4

APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.

Staff

Name of Work. toh | Repairs. | and Main- | Total,
. tenance.

$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward....... $25,029 39 11,818,092 58 | 315,259 21 | 332,429 88 2,465,781 67

DREDGING—Continued.
Prince Edward Island.

Connolly’s Wharf. ........... $1 122 17
' Peake Bros. & Co.’s Wharf. . 1 124 69
P.E.L Railway do ... 59
Red Point do ... 991 12
Steam Navigation Co. do ... 1,610 50
Generally........ «oooonenns 423
$5,095 30

New Brunswick.

Dalhousie..... ..covvveneannn $1,941 66
Kennebecasis River.. ........ 1,126 74 >
Oromocto Shoal.............. 2,944 77
St. John Harbour, Anchor
Line Wharf. .............. 456 14
TLAVEIBe . ..o\ conraraenrnes 3,439 47 ‘
Generally.... ....c.cooiinne
$9,913 02
Total Maritime Provinces...... $40,037 71
Quebec.
Chicoutimi..... - .......oe $ 170 50
Gmnde Riviére............... 586 12
....................... 1,790 18

L’g.s tion—Charlemagne. . 748 10
Ottawa Riv.—Pointe auxAng 1,311 51
257 00

Ps,pmesuwlle ...............
Riviére du Loup (en bas)...... 999 90
do Richelieu..... ...... , 264
do - Ste. Anne de la Pérade 80 00
River St. Francis............ 146 50
do St.Louis.............. 657 92
St. Placide............... .. 1,175 88
Generally.... .. ... ...... 2,421 78
_‘ $13,609 53
Ontarie.
%m .................... $ 595 43
gton Channel..... .... 4,842 40
l‘%l ......... e eeen e 1,207 41
Godenc .................... 261 05
Kemptville............c..... 51 81
incardine..............ooo 928 51
Kingston Harbour......... .. 580 00
Newcastle..........oooevennn 195 97
Port Hope........coveneeenns 3,469 53
Riv. St. Clau‘, Point Edward.. 5 214 10
Saugeen...............coennn "650 48
Generally ................ .. 2,836 70
——— 20,833 39
Carried forward............ $74,480 63 [1,818,092 58 | 315,250 21 | 332,429 88 [2,465,781 67
18 : [1889]
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APPENDIX No. 1—Continued.
Con- . Staff
Name of Work. struction. | Repairs. | and Main- Total.
tenance.
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward. .... $74,480 63 (1,818,092 58 | 315,259 21 | 332,429 88 |2,465,781 67
DREDGING—Concluded.
Manitoba.
Red River................... $12,067 05
‘White Mud River............ 3,495 38
Generally .... .............. 2,218 96
O 17,181 39

British Columbia.
Fraser River................. $4,253 14
Esquimalt Graving,Dock. . 622 06
New Westminster............ 902 99
Victoria Harbour............ 8,369 4

—_—— 14,147 62
— 106,409 64 |.......... ..., 106,409 64

DREDGING—GENERAL SERVICE. .......... TN PO P 5,463 47 5,463 47

Saguenay District Slides.................... 4,042 20
St. Maurice do .............. 30,244 69
Ottawa  do  .......... ... 28,644 89
Ottawa River Shdes ................ 9,584 77
do Rapide des Quinze.......... 2,000 00
Gatineau do  ......... 843 18
Madawaska do  ......... 5,858 95
Coulonge do ........ 1,871 78
Black do ..... 3,116 78
Petewawa do  ....... 3,837 04
Newcastle District Works.............. 7,233 89
St. Maurice, Grand’Mére Sorting Boom: 900000 |............|...ooa.L.LL. 9,000 00
Dumoine River WorkB.........ueeueeernrersinenn soforvaaaanenns 1,12298%............ 1,122 98
Generally.......oouiineinieane e e 977 92 977 92
ROADS AND BRIDGES.
Des Joachims Bridge. . .......coovoveneiieannnionnns 12500 |0 . 125-00
Portage du Fort Bndge R 5,394 13 [...... ... 0L 5,394 12
Ottawa, Cartier Sqémre ........ N T oL |............ 232 0L
do  Chaudiére Slide Bridge. ....cooveoeerinnnare] srnraneneen 4219569 ... ....... 4,219 59
do Maria Street Bridge. ... . ...... ccocceoiifiiiiiaanens 176 87 |............ 176 87
do McLaren’s Bridge, Ridean River............ 2,000 00 |............ e 2,000 00
do New Iron Truss Bridge. ..........cocvnevnnnn 13,0037 ...l Ll 13,090 37
do Sapger’a Bridge........cocveiiinnnn Y 14664 1............ 146 54
go & &t-élck Street . Brideas 1 1%% N S L 1%% g
o nion Suspension Bridge D P 161 87 |aeeo . ,

Wellington Street. . ... g .............. 4,951 58 , 289 68 |............ 12,241 13
Ba.ttleford Briffge, NNW.T.. . ... vieeaeens L4877 [ 1,485 77
Belly River Bm ge, Lethbridge, NW.T............ 23987 | 239 37
Bow NW. T . eiiiiiiaeiienns 1840 1. 18 40
Calgary Bndge, N W P 3010 (... 39 10
Carried forward........... e, 1,971,517 74 | 362,549 31 | 392,609 48 |2,726,626 48
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APPENDIX No. l—Contznued
Name of Work. Con- Repairs an(?tla\.gim Total
. struction. tenance.
8 cts. $ cts $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward................... 1,971,517 74 | 367,549 31 | 392,559 43 (2,726,626 48
TELEGRAPH LINES,
Nova Secotia.
Cape Sable 368 16
Cheticamp 778 22
Digby.....
Meat Cove 1,951 98
6,912 73
Prince Edward Island.
Between Island and Mainland (subsidy).............fe covireinnifineeneennnns 1,946 66 1,946 66
New Brunswick.
Bayof Fundy................ $1,073 47
Escumina€ . ..ocooveneineennn. 242 59
—-—38 1,316 06
Newfoundland.
Anglo Amencan Co., subsidy Cape Ray i
............................... 250 00
Quebec. l
North Shore St. Lawrence !
Quebec to Grosse Ile. .. ... $7 178 33 !
North Shore St. Lawrence, :
towa.rds Point aux Esqui- '
.................. 7,940 53 THI8 BT |oeeevennni| oo 7,518 57
Magdalen Island............. 4,912 81 349 89 | ... e 349 89
Anticosti . ...l 4,166 86
——— 24,198 53
Lower ST. LAWRENCE AND MARITIME
PROVINCES GENERALLY............. 9,686 77
— 35,451 36 | 35,451 36
Ontario.
v
Bathand Amherst Island. ... ... .. ... ... ... .. .0 e e 50 66 50 66
Pelée Island .................... .8 6,908 17 .. L 61 55 61 55
Wolfe do ......oovviiiiiiiiiiia.. 2,051 70
— 8959 87 |.......iiii e 8,959 87
North-West Territories.
Battleford to Edmonton via Saddle La.ke
Station.e. v vvrreniinnnnann., .8 691 64
Clarke’s Crossing to Prince Albert...... 6,005 57
Humbolt to Qu’'Appelle........... ... 5,759 09
Banff telephone lme .................. 668 10
—_— 13124 40 | ... 13,124 40
Wood Mountain. ... 84 00 84 00
Generally................ S DN PR PN 25,053 41 | 25,053 41
British Columbia.
Bonilla Point Hine...................oo L 4,360 16 |...........feliaiial 4,360 16
Cariboo HNe . ot o e e et e e e e 6,441 23 6,441 23
TELEGRAPH SERVICE GENERALLY . ........oiiiuieifoninvnnneeoninenannnns 8,914 26 8,914 26
Carried forward.. ..................... 2,012,743 36 | 362,549 31 | 473,660 92 2,848,953 59
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APPENDIX No. 1—Concluded.

J W Con- Repai dSt‘I&ﬁ
Name of Work. struction. epairs. a{n ain- Total.
enance,
$ cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
Brought forward................... 2,012,743 36 | 362,549 31 | 473,660 92 2,848,953 59

MISCELLANEOUS.

Surveys and Inspections and Plans of Government

Propertios. ... .o...iiiiiiin ciiiii s 30,279 31 | 30,279 31
Arbitrations and Awards. . ... ..o .. 4,000 00 4,000 00
Miss Margaret Smellie, Gratuity equal to 1 month’s

pay of her late father . 55 00 55 00
Agent and Contingencies, British Columbia 5,599 33 5,599 33
Unforeseen EXpenses ........occoevenanoneenanes g 76 15 76 15

Totals. . ..ovvvereneiiieiiranenns 2,012,743 36 | 362,549 31 | 513,670 71 ;2,888,963 38

WORKS AUTHORIZED BY. SPECIAL ACTS
OF PARLIAMENT.

8t. Lawrence River—Deepening between Quebec and

Montreal................ 243334 28 |........... .|l 243,334 28
Quebec Harbor Improvements 385,000 00 |....... ..... C e 385,000 00
Totals. . .o.ovveeeaeenriennannnns 628,334 28 |.........ifiiiii.., 628,334 28

Grand Totals. .. .....coooeeeeenns 2,641,077 64 | 362,548 31 | 513,670 71 |3,517,297 66

O. DIONNE,
Accountant.

PusLic Works DEPARTMENT,
OrTAWA, 4th December, 1889.
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APPENDIX No. 2.

REPORT

ON

PUBLIC BUILDINGS

THROUGHOUT THE DOMINION,

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30tH JUNE, 1889.

BY

THOMAS FULLER. CHIEF ARCHITECT.
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APPENDIX No. 2.

—

REPORT OF THE CHIEF ARCHITECT.

Ref, No. 103,351.

CrIEF ARcHITECT'S OFFICE,
OrTAWA, 9th November, 1889,

Sir,—1I have the honour to transmit herewith the annual report on public build-

ings and works under my charge, for the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1889,
I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
THOMAS FULLER,
( Chief Architect.

A GosEerL, Esq,, o

Secretary Department Public Works,

O/ttawa.

PROVINCE OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

CHARLOTTETOWN.

DOMINION BUILDING.

A new time lock was placed on the door of the safe of the Receiver General's
Department and sundry minor repairs executed, under the supervision of Mr, W, E,.
Harris, architect.

~ MONTAGUE.
- POST OFFICE

Additional grading was done and the building occupied.
Plans, &c., prepared by this Department.
Superintending architects, Messrs. Stirling & Harris.
Contractor, Mr, L. A, Wilmot.

PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA.

AMHERST.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

An asphalt sidewalk, with stone curb, was laid the entire length of both street-
fronts, excepting opposite the gateways, where block pavement was put down.
Owing to alteration of street grade necessary additional granite entrance steps were
Eut in, and the original steps taken down and rebuilt; a cement floor was laid in the

oiler room, the outside walls pointed, and outside woodwork and galvanized iron
painted, and repairs were made to drains, roof, gates, gateways. All the windows
were furnished with storm sashes. The building has been fitted with incandescent
electric lamps,

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.
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ANNAPOLIS.
: POST OFFICE, &c., BUILDING. T
On 20th March, 1889, a site was obtained on the corner of St. George and Rail-
way streets, and on 7th June, 1889, a contract for the construction of the building
was entered into. The building will be two and a-half stories, of brick, on a stone
foundation, 58 feet by 35 feet, with a one-story brick anrex for an Examining
Warehouse, 13 feet by 31 feet. The ground floor is to be for the Post Office and the
first floor for the Customs and Inland Revenue Departments, each department being
furnished with a brick vault; and the attic is to be occupied by the caretaker.
Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr. Charles Jacques. '
. Contractors, Messrs. Rhodes, Curry & Co., of Amherst, N.S."

ANTIGONISH.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The hot water heating apparatus has been put in, a portion of the basement has .
been finished and fitted up as a bonded warehouse, the floor of the public lobby of
the post office renewed, a new stairway . to the cellar constructed and sundry minor
works executed.

Clerk of Works, John E. Campbell.

HALIFAX,

DOMINION BUILDING.

The roof has been repaired, and.a new flag-staff, iron ladder and iron railing
erected, and parcel chute from the post office to the basement constructed. :

s

. EXAMINING WAREHOUSE,

The parcel office was enlarged and the counters and shelving therein extended ;
several of the offices were cleaned and painted.
Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

NAPPAN.
EXPERIMENTAL FARM BUILDINGS,

On 15th August, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of the
following buildings, which are now in progress:—

Superintendent’s Residence.—~A wooden two story building, with a stone base-
- ment; the main building 42 feet by 34 feet, and a kitchen wing 24 feet by 24 feet; to
have on.the ground floor a hall and staircase, a parlor, a library, a dining room, an
office, a kitchen, two pantries, a wash-room, back stairs, &c., and on the first floor
nine bedrooms, a bath room, a closet, &c.

Workmen's Cottage.~A one and one-halfstory, wooden cottage, 27 feet by 21 feet,on
astone basement, with a summer kitchen in the rear 10 feet by 14 feet. The ground
floor will consist of a parlor, kitchen and store room, and the first floor of three bed-
rooms and a store room. « '

Barn and Stabling.—These are to be of wood, and to consist of a main building
111 feet by 50 feet, 40 feet in height, on a stone basement 12 feet in height, and a
wing 65 feet by 32 feet and 32 feet in height.

The basement is arranged to accommodate horned cattle and horses; the ground
floor is a driving floor, and for hay and grain storage. ‘

Plans prepared and work carried on under the supervision of this Department.

Clerk of Works, Lt.:Col.. W. Blair. : :

Contractors, Messrs. Rhodes, Curry & Co.

NEW -GLASGOW,
PUBLIC BUILDING.

- The .water service of the building has been connected with that‘ of the Water-
works Company ; a new urinal and wash basin have been put in, and the ground and
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first floor windows have been furnished with storm sash, and some general /repairs
have been made.
Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

SYDNEY.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

A contract for the construction of this building, on the corner of Charlotte and
Dorchester streets, was entered into 12th December, 1888, and construction is now
in progress. It consists of a main three story brick building, on a stone foundation,
57 feet by 44 feet, with a clock tower on the street corner, and a one story annex,
45 feet by 23 feet in the rear. The ground floor of main building is to be occupied
by the Post Office, the first floor by the Customs, Inland Revenue and Marine offices,
and the attic isfor the apartments of the caretaker; the Examining Warehouse and
the Weights and Measures offices will be in the annex.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

. Clerk of Works, Mr, T. E. Burchell, Sydney.

Contractors, Messrs. Cowan & Donald, Moncton.

WINDSOR.

POST OFFICE BUILDING.

Storm sashes and storm doors were supplied throughout and repairs made to
furnace, plumbing and fittings.
Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

YARMOUTH.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Additions were made to the heating surface, additional furniture supplied, and
alterations made in Money Order Office.

PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK.

BATHURST.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

The exterior faces of walls were repointed and the heating apparatus was
extended, the Custom House floor taken up and re-laid, and repairs were made to
roofing, and some painting, &c.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

CARLETON.
POST OFFICE,

Repairs were made to the slating and flashing of the roof| the clock turret
windows, the water pipes and the door springs.
Works carried out under the supervision of Mr. W, J. McCordock.

CHATHAM.
POST OFFICE.

This building is in a dilapidated state, and requires extensive repairs. In the
meantime, the outer walls have been supported and cracks filled, and cement cover-
ing. re})aired, and Post Office floor was strengthened and fireplaces made safe.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

DALHOUSIE.
POST OFFICE.
This building, which was described in my report of last year, is still in

gmgress, :
6 [1889)]



53 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.) A. 1890

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this
Department. '
"~ Clerk .of Works, Mr. J. C. Barberie.

DORCHESTER.

‘ MARITIME PENITENTIARY. ,
Some articles of furniture, &c., were furnished to the Deputy Warden’s residence.

FREDERICTON.

The attic rooms were partitioned and plastered to provide a residence for the
caretaker, additions made to plumbing and gas fitting, and a small hoisting appa-
ratus and elevator supplied.

Clerk of Works, Mr. F. S. Hilyard.

MONCTON.

POST OFFICE.

Owing to the action of the water on the iron pipes they were found to be nearly
filled; it was deemed advisable to replace them with lead. Some requisite changes of
the drains were made and the entrance gates to the yard were repaired and re-hung,
and walls were pointed where necessary.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull,

NEWCASTLE.

PUBLIC BUILDING.

- It was necessary to make some slight changes and to extend the heating appa-

ratus, and sundry repairs, &c., were made.
Clerk of Works, Mr. John E. Turnbull.

ST. JOHN.

CUSTOM HOUSE,

The covering of the north-east and north-west roofs was removed and replaced
with asphalt, and while doing this all the old zinc bases of the cresting were removed
and new galvanized iron substituted. The fire brick lining of the boiler setting
was renewed. s

The hydraulic hoist has been provided with new and heavier shafting, valves, &ec.

In the centre of the building, those portions not previousy cleaned were cleaned
and coloured, also the ceilings and cornices of the south wing, and the walls
repaired, sized and painted three coats, the hardwood shellacked and varnished, and
remaining wood work re-painted grained, &c., and varnished.

The walls of six offices in the north wing, occupied by the Inland Revenue, were
cleaned and painted. Repairs were made to bells, locks, flagstaffs, &c.

Works executed under the supervision of Mr. W, J. McCordock.

MARINE HOSPITAL.

Sundry repairs were made to the basement, ground and first floor rooms, wards
and corridors, and wood work shellacked and varnished, and the walls painted three
coats and the roof of the western porch covered and reflashed.

POST OFFICE.

e ceilings on the ground floor were cleaned and whitened and walls washed and
the iron columns painted. .
Repairs were done to ventilating shaft, closets, urinals, bells, locks, clocks, iron -
roof, cresting and flashing; the cresting and cornices were re-painted,
Work executed under the supervision of Mr. W. J. McCordock.
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- SAVINGS BANK,

The asphalt side walks were repaired, and the boiler casing was repaired and
re-lined ; coal vaults and iron girders under alley way cleaned, new floors laid, the iron
work pamted two coats, red lea.d and the walls limewashed. The old roof Loveung
was removed and replaced by asphalt

‘Work executed under the supervmxon of Mr. W.J. McCordock.

ST. STEPHEN.
PUBLIC BUILDING.
_Some door sprmgs and other minor fittings were supplied. .

"WOODSTOCK.
POST OFFICE, CUSTOM HOUSE, &c.

Arrangements are being made to prov 1de a clock to be placed in the turret
oviginally designed for that purpose.

PROVINCE OF QUEBEO

AYLMER
POST OFFICE. .,

This building, which was described in my report of last yeal was completed
and furnished with a hot water heating apparatus, and is now bemg fitted up tor
occupation.

}E’lans gpecifications, &e. plepaxed and works carried out under the supervision
of this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr, Thomas Symmes, Ayhnex

Contractor for the building and fittings, Mr, D. B. McDonald Aylmer.

Contractors for heating appawtus Messrs. Butterworth, Ottawa.

CHICO UTIMI

MARINE HOSPITAL
' Pamtmg and genexal repairs were, made in the hospxtal pOItLon of the building. .

COATICOOK.
PUBLI¢ BUILDING.

~This bmldmg, wh1ch wasg described in my report of last yeal is bemg carried
on so0 as to warrant the execution and completion during the.autumn of.1889; a
heating apparatus has been.pat in, and fittings for Post Office,

Plans and specifications pr epared and works supermtended by this Depaltmen t

» Clerk of Works, Mr. Wright Sleeper.

Contractor for bmldmgs and fittings, Mr. F. F. Shur tleﬁ
Contractor for heating, Mr, W." Clendenaing.
FRASERVILLE (RiviERE DU LOUP).
: POST OFFICE, &¢., BUILDINGS. ,
"On 26th March, 1889, Cadastral' Lot 266, having a frontage of 100 feet on -
Iberville street and 75 feet on Champlain street, was purchaged. -
HULL. -
' 'POST OFFICE.’

A stone boundary wall, with an iron railing, was constructed, and ‘the grounds
graded.

Contractor, Mr. Wm Stuart, Ottawa.
28 [1889]



53 Victoria. Sessional Papers.(No. 18.) - A, 1890

. JOLIETTE,

POST OFFICE; &C.
This building, which was described in my report of last year, has been ‘carried
onso as to warrant its execution and completion during the autumn of 1889,
Plans, &e., prepared and work carried . out under the supervision of this
Department. ‘ '
Clerk of Works, Mr A. Durand, Joliette.
Contractor, Mr. George Beaucage, Quebec.

LACHINE.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDINGS.

Cadastral lot No. 253 on St. Joseph street, the main street of the town, was
acquired for a site, and plans, &ec., for a Post Office building thereon, are being pre-
pared by this Department. ' :

MONTREAL.

ARMORIES,

The fittings for the various armories and furnishings for offices were supplied
and the places are now occupied. ‘ ’

Plans prepared and works supervised by Mr. A. Raza.

Clerk of Works, Mr. John Bowie.

Contractors, J, B. St. Louis & Brothers, Montreal.

CUSTOM HOUSE,

Extensive alterations to boilers and steam heating apparatus were made, the
Record Office was enlarged, the entrance and staircase halls were re-laid ‘with tiles
the special agent’s office was renovated, and sundry minor repairs were made. ’

Superintending Architect, Mr. James Nelson.

' EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

“Alterations in the ‘Assistant Hardware Appraiser’s office were made, and the
necessary cleaning and painting done. ’»
Superintending Architect, Mr. James Nelson, Montreal.

POST OFFICE.

A portion of the external surface of stone work was cleaned and pointed, a new
letter slide in front of building constructed, new dials were supplied to the clock,
new wire doors to the hoist, new sky-light with wire guards in roof, a new flag-staff,
brass railing in Accountant’s office, new sorting frame for letter-carriers, desks
for Civil Service examinations, safe for Customs Post Office, and furniture for
various offices, the public lobby and Money Order Offices were renovated, new water-
closets and other plumbing put in, and repairs made to furniture, stamp vendor’s
office, roof, &ec. N '

Superintending Architect, Mr. James Nelson.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Geo. Bowie.

QUEBEC.
CITADEL,

The usual repairs and cleaning were made of the quarters of His Excellency the
Governor General, under the supervision of this Department,

CUSTOM HOUSE,

The brick setting-of the hot-water furnace, being dilapidated, was taken down
and re-built, the walls, ceilings, cornices and woodwork on first attic floor, with the
exception of the attic passage, were cleaned and re-painted, under the supervision of

this Department.
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IMMIGRATION BUILDING,

A range was supplied, as also baths, outside settees on verandas and an
enclosed hangard.
Superintending Architect, Mr. J. F. Peachy, Quebec.

MARINE HOSPITAL.

The plaster of the walls and ceilings, with exception of a few rooms on the
ground floor, has been repaired, and in some cases renewed. ‘
Superintending Architect, Mr. J. F. Peachy.

OBSERVATORY,

The residence of the Commandant has been generally repaired and renovated,
varnishing of woodwork, papered and painted.

POST OFFICE. :

The offices of the Post Office on the first floor were cleaned, painted, carpeted,
fitted up, furnished and provided with electric bells; new electric clocks were supplied
and fitted up in Post Office ; a room on first floor was fitted up and furnished for
Custom House ; panels and fittings and furnishings of Post Office were repaired.

Superintending Architect, M%' J. F. Peachy.

QUEEN’S WHARF BUILDING.

General repairs fo woodwork, roofs, painting, &c., were made in connection with
the Marine and Immigration Offices.
Superintending Architect, Mr. J. F. Peachy.

ST. HYACINTHE.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

On 19th March, 1889, a site, consisting of Lot 525, and a portion of 524, on the
corner of Girouard and St. Joseph streets, with frontages of 81 ft. 6 in., and 133 ft.
3 in., respectively, was acquired, and plans, &ec., for the construction of a public
building are in course of preparation.

ST. JEROME.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

This building, which was described in my report of last year, has since been in
constant progress; plans for the hot water apparatus are prepared and the build-
ing is expected to be complete for occupation during December, 1889.

Plans and specifications prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. J. Matte. - -

Contractor, Mr. Joseph Fitzpatrick, Joliette,

Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. B. Chanteloup, Montreal.

ST. VINCENT DE PAUL.
PENITENTIARY,

The following works were carried out under the supervision of this Department,
by convict labor :—

Western Dormitory Wing.—The walls of this portion, which is 116 ft. by 42 ft.
on plan, and is to contain 120 cells, were carried up continuously, and is expected
to be roofed in and enclosed by October, 1889.

Keeper’'s Hall.—The register for the convicts, indicating the name and pumber
of cell he occupies, was erected and enclosed with brass railing, to prevent being
tampered with.

Warden's Quarters—A. lead tank and a fountain have been placed in the War-
den’s grounds,
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Deputy Warden's Quarters.—A system of electric bells connected with those ot
the prison was put in.

Episcopal Chaplain’s Residence.—A water supply connection was made with
main tank, & 6-inch main pipe was laid, a sink and hopper closet fitted up.

Baker's Shop.—Steam radiators were put in and connected with the boiler and
main boiler house.

Muain Building.—The entrance lobby floor was laid with encaustic tiles and the
office connected with the Warden and Deputy Warden’s quarters by electric bells,
and three wash basins fitted up. !

Piggery—The old piggery being dilapidated, a new wooden building, covered
with Canada plate, the main portion being 190 ft. by 30 ft.; and an annex for feed
boilers, &c., was erected about a half mile from the Ponitentiary, and enclosed with a
strong wooden fence. .

Work Shops.—The engine in the carpenter and joiner shop being old and unsuit-
able, was replaced by a new 45 horse-power engine, with the necessary belting,
shafting, &c.

Water Works.—The rose of the iron suction pipe in the river was distrurbed by
ice, and had to be repaired and replaced. To prevent a re-occurrence of this, a pier
30 by 20 feet is being built over the pipe. In addition to the works mentioned,
various minor repairs, alterations, &c., were made to the buildings, &c., in connection
with this institution.

Plans prepared and work supervised by Mr. John Bowes, Architect.

SHERBROOKE.
PUBLIC BUILDING.

Repairs were made to the plastering, plumbing and water closet; a hardwood
floor was laid in the Customs Office, whitewashing and tinting were done to the walls
and ceilings, the outside woodwork was painted and an asphalt ‘pavement laid along
the street line.

SOREL.
PUBLIC BUILDING,
Repairs to roof, tower, doors, &c., were made.
THREE RIVERS.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

- Additional heating surface was put in two of the ground floor offices; an out-
building for blinds, storm sash, &c., was constructed, and some painting and papering
were done to several of tho offices, .

Superintending Architect, Mr. O. Z. Hamel, Three Rivers,

POST OFFICE.

An extension of the outbuilding was made, a new drain put in, some articles of
furniture supplied the Post Office Inspector’s office, and some minor repairs executed,
Superintending Architect, Mr. O. Z. Hamel. ‘

PROVINCE OF ONTARIO.
ALMONTE.

POST OFFICE, &0., BUILDINGS.

A site having been obtained at the junction of Mill and Little Bridge streets, s
contract for the construction of the building was entered into, 11th June, 1889,

The building is to have 8 main portion 2} stories and basement 51 feet by 31
feet, and a one story annex, 2¥ feet by 18 feet. The walls are to be briek with stone
dressings and on stone foundations; the floors, partitions and roof of wood; the roof
Cavering of galvanized iron.
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Plans, &c., prepared and work superviséd by this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr. Andrew Bell, Almonte.
Contractor, Mr. Robert Cameron, Almonte.

AMHIERSTBURG.

The storm sashes were painted.
BARRIE.

POST OFFICE, &c.
A newspaper sorting frame and several minor fittings were provided for the
Post Office, and the building was furnished with incandescent electric light.
Superintending Architects, Messrs. Kennedy, Gaviller & Holland, Barrie.

BELLEVILLE.

POST OFFICE.

The walls and ceilings of the offices were distempered, the woodwork painted,

an electric arc light for the front of the building was placed in position, and a postal
bag rack and some articles of furniture supplied.

BRAMPTON.

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

A contract for the construction of this building was entered into on 23rd October,
1888, and the works are now in progress.

It will consist of a brick three story main portion, 47 ft. by 42 ft., on a stone founda-
tion, with a one story brick building, 40 ft. by 18 ft. in the rear, and connected with
the main building. The basement of the main building is to contain fuel and furnace
rooms, the ground floor the Post Office, the first floor the Customs and Inland
Revenue Offices, and the attic the caretaker’s quarters. The annexis to be for Weights
and Measures and Examining Warehouse.

Plans, &e., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. J. A. Trimble. N

Contractors, Messrs. Perry, Masson & MacCullough, Brampton.

CAYUGA.
POST OFFICE.

This building, which was described in my report of last year was completed, and
supplied with a hot water heating apparatus, and is now being fitted up and furnished
for occupation.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Contractors for building and fittings, Messrs. Draper Bros., Caledonia.

Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. Adam Black, Hamilton,

CHATHAM.
POST OFFICE, &¢., BUILDING.
Post Office lobby flooring was re-laid and sundry doors refitted.

COBOURG.
POST OFFICE, CUSTOM HOUSE, &cC.

A contract for the erection of an addition on the western side, 18 feet in width |,
by the depth and height of the building, was entered into on the 15th December,
1888, and the work is now in progress. The side and rear walls are of brick, and
the front of Ohio sandstone, tho work being similar to the original. The ground
floor of the addition will consist of a stairway and an Examining Warehouse with
offices over.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Wm. Battell.

Contractors, Messrs. R. & J. Henderson, Cobourg.
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CORNWALL.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING,
Petty general repairs were executed.

GANANOQUE.
POST OFFICE.

This building, which was described in my report of last year, has since been
completed, supplied with a hot water apparatus and fitted up for occupation.

Plans, &c., prepared and work su ervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. R. Brough, Garanoque.

Contractor, Mr. Geo. Wilson, Gananoque.

GODERICH.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDINGS,

Lot 5, on the south side of West street, containing half an acre, was acquired
from T, N. Dancey for a site, and on 12th November, 1888, a contract was entered
into for the construction of a two and a half-story and basement building 46 fest 6
inches by 384 feet on plan, with a one story and basement stone annex, 34 feet by 14 teet
3 inches. The bnilding is to consist on the ground floor of the Post Office and
Examining Warehouse, on the first floor the Customs and Inland Revenue Offices
and in the attic the caretakers appartments. ’

Plans, &c., prepared, and work supervised by this Department.

Supervising Architect, Mr. G. F. Durand, London, Ont.

Clerk of Works, Mr, Edward Sharman.

Contractors, Messrs. Tambling & Jones, London.

GUELPH.
POST OFFICE.

A hot water heating apparatus has been put in from plans prepared b
under the supervision of this Department. prep y and
Contractor, Mr. John Sims, Toronto.

HAMILTON.
DRILL SHED,

Building completed, the armories supplied with a hot water heating apparatus

and %ccupied. bl © ’
Plans and specifications for construction of bui ding prepared by Mr

Axrchitect, Department of Militia and Defence. P y Mr. H. James,
Plans and specifications for heating apparatus prepared by this Depart
Superintending Architect, Mr. C. W. Mulligan, Hzaunilt,on.y partment.
Clerk of Works, Mr. Wm. Casey. ‘
Contractor for building, Mr. M. A. Pigott, Hamilton,
Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. Adam Clark, Hamilton,

POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING. ,
Some additions to the gas piping and heating were made, inside bli
supplied to the windows of several offices, and various ordinary ;epair: ;)xg;(tllieg? e
| KINGSTON.
\ PENITENTIARY,
ghe fol};wing works were executed by this Department :—
outh Workshops—The stone floor flagging was renewed and wal . .
an underground pipe duct, 76 feet long, carried under dome, to tl?else;:tg‘:ilnt:gd

western wings; doors leading to the dome and offices were put in;
ceilings plastexted; door and window frames repaired, and all vgmdl%ﬁ';agimﬁg

three coats. 889]
1
18—3 [ ' 83



53 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.) A. 1890

Block «“ B” Dormitory.—New 2-inch pine floors were laid in the cells, and walls
of the cells painted 2 coats in oil; the iron work japanned; the walls of the rooms
and vaults of dining hall and inside offices of the western and southern boundary
walls were re-pointed in cement,

Engine House—In order to obtain room for an airing yard the old fire engine
house of the eastern building was demolished and a two story building west
of the same building converted into an engine and hose-reel house by raising the
upper floor 1 foot 6 inches, enlarging the doorway and repairing wood work.

Protestant Chapel.—The walls were re-plastered and walls and ceilings re-painted.

Ventilating Flues—Brick ventilating flues were built in southern walls of dining
hall, one for ventilation and the other to carry off steam from the kitchen.

Water Supply—The system was changed, so that all water is now pumped into
and gravitates from main tank,

Workshops, Water Closets, Htc.—These having become out of repair were taken
out and replaced by eighteen automatic flushing hoppers, having automatic flushing
attachments, six urinals and three sinks.

Heating.—The heating coils of the Warden’s office and female prison, which
were previously connected with principal steam main and return pipes, were discon-
nected therefrom and furnished with a separate main from boilers, and several
minor works and repairs and alterations, &c., were done to the various buildings.

Building under supervision of Mr. John Bowes, Architect.

LINDSAY.

POST OFFICE, CUSTOMS AND INLAND REVENUE OFFICES.

This building, which was described in my report of last year, has since been
carried on steadily, and is expected to be completed for occupation during this
autumn. Plans were prepared and a contract entered into for the construction of a
hot water heating apparatus.

Plans and specifications and works supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr, H. Walters, Lindsay.

Contractor for construction of the building, Mr. P. Navin, Lindsay.

Contractor for heating apparatus, Mr. E. Woods, Lindsay.

NAPANEE.

POST OFFICE AND CUSTOM HOUSE AND INLAND REVENUE,

The works in'connection with this building, which was described in my report
of last year, have been in steady progress since, and the building is expected to be
completed this autumn. Plans, &c., have been prepared for a hot water heating
apparatus.

Plans, &c., prepared and works supervised by this Department.

Supervising Architect, Mr. F, Bartlett, Napanee.

Clerk of Works, Mr. J. E. Herring.

Coniractor, Mr, George Newlands, Kingston.

OTTAWA.
CENTRAL EXPERIMENTAL FARM (NEAR OTTAWA).

The following works, referred to in my report of last year, have been completed,
viz..— :

Residence of the Superintendent-General.

Four residences for the staff officials,

Barn and stabling.

- Museum and offices.

Heating apparatus for the residences, museum and offices.

On 30th July, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of a
building for greenhouses and seed stores. The latter will be a ove and a-half story
brick building on a stone foundation, having]a ground floor, containing a seed room,
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24 feet by 17 feet; a potting room, 37 feet by 16 feet. and two rooms above. Adjoin-
ing the potting room are two greenhouses of wood, on a stone foundation, 80 feet 6
inches by 13 feet, and 80 feet 6 inches by 14 feet, respectively.

A (linot water heating apparatus has been put in, and the building is now
occupied.

In August last a contract was entered into for the construction of a one-and-a
half story building, 100 feet by 30 feet, for a hennery, which building was completed
during the year. .

On 23rd October a contract was entered into for the construction of a cottage,
known as No. 1 Cottage, near the barn, and also for a stable for the Superintendent,
both of wood on stone foundations., The cottage will contain an unfinished base-
ment; a ground floor to contain a parlor, a kitchen, a pantry, a store room and a
shed; and an attic with three rooms. The stable will contain a carriage room, stalls,
and a loose box, and a loft over. ‘ :

_ Plans and specifications prepared and work carried out under the superin-
tendence of this Department. -

Clerk of Works for Superintendent’s residence, barn and stabling, museum and
offices, No. 1 Cottage, seed stores and conservatories, hennery, Superintendent’s
stables, alterations of farm cottages, the various healing and gas apparatus and
minor works and fittings, Mr. W. J. Beckett.

Clerk of Works for four staff residences, Mr, James Gibson,

Contractor for Superintendent-General’s residence, Mr. F. Toms,

Contractors for four staff residences, Cottage No. 1 and Superintendent-General’s

stables, Messrs. Tobin & O'Keefe, Ottawa.

Contractor for barn and stabling, museum and offices, and the hennery, Mr.
William Stuart.

Contractor for seed stores and conservatories, Messrs. Beaudet & Desjardins.

Contractor for heating apparatus, Superintendent-General’s residence, and four
staff residences, Messrs. F. G. Johnson & Co., Ottawa.

Contractor for heating apparatus for museum and offices, conservatories and
seed stores, Messrs. Garth & Co., Montreal.

GOVERNMENT HOUSE.

The decayed shingles of the hall roof were removed and replaced with galvan-
ized iron.

All the counections with the drains were opened and tested by a sanitary
engineer employed by the Governor General, all decayed flooring in basement was
renewed and a portion of one of the basement rooms partitioned off and shelved for
use as a wine cellar. Furnaces, stoves and pipes were repaired and cleaned, blan-
kets, window curtains, blinds, carpets, chair-covers, crockery, china and glassware
were supplied; a considerable number of the rooms were distempered, tinted,
painted, papered and the necessary repairs to window glazing made.

The drain in court-yard was opened and cleaned; 650 feet of trench was
opened and a 6-in tile drain laid therein to connect gottage with drainages; stem ; 465
feet of trench was opened and a 2-inch gas pipe laid to laundry; 2,200 lin. feet of
boundary i fence and 3,300 lin. feet of 3-rail fence were rebuilt; 660 lin, feet of
boundary fence and 1,000 feet of picket fence were repaired and 400 feet of side-
walk, 3 feet 4 inches wide, were laid. . , ,

Carpets were taken up, beaten and relaid; the usual general cleaning was done
and the conservatories, gardens, lawns and grounds were attended to and kept in
good order .

Under surperintendence of this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Wm. Hutcheson.

'

EASTERN AND WESTERN BLOCK, DEPARTMENTAL BUILDINGS.

Essential repairs, cleaning, distempering, painting, pointing outside walls, fur-
nishing and fitling were done, under the supervision of the Department.
' ' 85
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NEW DEPARTMENTAL BUILDINGS, WELLINGTON STREET.

Specifications and drawings were prepared and tenders received for three pas-
senger elevators and one freight elevator, which are now being erected; the iron
staircase and heating apparatus were completed, and the building is being fitted up
for occupation, and was so far advanced that the second floor was occupied by the
Indian Department on the 1st May. :

Plans, &e., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Samuel Adams,

Contractor for construction of building, Mr. A. Charlebois, Quebec.

Contractor for heating apparatus, Messrs. Garth & Co., Montreal.

Contractor for elevators, Mr. Jno. Fenson, Toronto.

PARLIAMENT BUILDING,

The roof covering of Library was renewed in copper; the apartments of the
Speaker of the Senate were altered, two additional rooms fitted up, painted, papered
and furnished, and a quantity of furniture supplied and renewals effected to the -
rooms throughout.

Usual and ordinary alterations, repairs and renewals were made, cleaning and
painting done, and furniture and fittings supplied to the offices, &c., throughout the
building.

Wgrks executed under the supervision of this branch of the Department.

PRINTING BUREATU.

This building, which was described in a previous report, is nearly completed,
and is being fitted up for occupation. ’

Plans and specifications prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Superintending Architect, Mr. J. P. M. Lecourt.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. L. Pinard.

Contractor, Mr, John E. Askwith, Ottawa.

PARLIAMENT GROUNDS.
These were satisfactorily maintained.
MAJOR’S HILL PARK.

The grounds have been kept in good order, and sundry improvements made in
walks, grass plots, &e. |

PUBLIC BUILDINGS, REPAIRING STREETS, &c.

Little Sussex street, from Sussex street to the canal basin, as well as Canal
street east, and Canal street west, throughout their entire length, were graded and
macadamised.

Repairs were made to St. Patrick’s street Hill roadway, steps and sidewalk ; to
Wellington street roadway and sidewalk, and to the fence and sidewalk at Cartier
Square. ’

4 The various roadways, sidewalks and footpaths were kept clear of snow during
the winter,

VICTORIA HADL.

The basement floor was laid in cement and ceiled in wood. On street fronts
arched brick areas, with plate glass lights, flush with sidewalk, were built at base-
ment windows; a stone boundary wall was built on O’Connor and Queen streets
and on the western boundmg7 of the lot, and the yard graded.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr, Samuel Adams. _
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PEMBROKE.

POST OFFICE.

This building, which was described in my report of last year, is now in progress,
and is expected to be complete and ready for occupation by the close of the fiscal
year 1889-90.

Plans, &c., prepared and. works superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. T. L. Morris, P.L.S., Pembroke.

Contractors, Messrs. Munro, Beatty & Grieve, Pembroke.

PETERBOROUGH.

POST OFFICE.
Arrangements are being made to provide and fit up in the tower a clock, with
illuminated-dials.
PORT ARTHUR.

POST OFFICE.
Negotiations with a view to obtain a site are in progress.

PRESCOTT.
POST OFFICE, CUSTOM HOUSE AND INLAND REVENUE OFFICES.

These buildings which were desc ribed in my report of last year are being pro-
ceeded with. :

Plans, &e., prepared and works superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works Mr. D. Barr, Prescott.

Contractors, Messrs, Crain & Mix, Prescott. .

ST. THOMAS.
POST OFFICE, &C., BUILDING.

o977 The Post Office lobby floor was re-laid, and partial repairs, &c., have been made
to plumbing, &e.
Superintending Architect, Mr. Charles Horton, St. Thomas.
TORONTO.
OUSTOM HOUSE.
Sundry alterations and repairs were made in the offices; the basement walls
and ceilings were whitewashed, and the boilers re-covered with patent boiler

covering.
Supervising Architect, Mr. D. B. Dick, Toronto.

EXAMINING WAREHOUSE.

The flooring of the ground floor and part of the first floor was renewed, some
minor alterations made in the machinery, and also some painting, whitewashing

and general repairs. .
Specifications, &c., prepared and work supervised by Mr. D. B. Dick, Architect.

INLAND REVENUE OFFICES,

Sundry minor repairs were done to heating apparatus and plumbing, and
smokestacks, with revolving cowls, were put up. -
Under supervision of this Department.

POBT OFFICE.

General repairs and sundry minor alterations were made to heating, plumbing,
woodwork, &c., some furniture was supplied, and an office was fitted up and
furnished for Customs parcels in bond.

Supervising Architect, Mr..D. B. Dick, Toronto,
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TRENTON,

POST OFFICE, &c.

This building, which was described in my report of last year, has been carried
on nearly to completion, and is being fitted up with a hot water apparatus, and the
fittings and furniture for the use of the officials of the various departments.

Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. Geo. Crowe.

Contractor, Mr. Walter Alford. Belleville.

PROVINCE OF MANITOBA

BRANDON.

POST OFFICE.

A site, with a frontage of 96 feet on Rosser avenue, by a depth of 100 feet, was
obtained, and on 18th day of June last a contract was entered into for the construc-
tion of a building thereon. The building will comprise a main portion, 82 feet by 41
feet, to consist of a stone basement surmounted by three stories and an attic, in brick;
and a one-story brick annex, 35 feet by 30 feet. On the ground floor will be the Post

- Office, the Examining Warehouse, the Gas Inspector’s Office, and the Weights and
Measures Office ; on the first floor the Customs Office, Land Offices and vault; and on
the second floor the Inland Revenue Offices and caretaker’s apartments—the attic to
be unfinished.

Plans and specifications prepared by this Department.

Superintending Architect, Mr. W. B. Marshall, Brandon.

Clerk of Works, Mr. F. J. Chubb. :

Contractor, Mr. James Hanbury, Brandon.

ST. PAUL'S.
TNDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.

On 13th May, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of a school
building, a laundry, a cow house, a stable, closets, &e.

School Building—A “T” shaped 2% story brick buildin%), on a stone foundation,
with wooden roof, floors and partitions. the front portion to be 80 feet by 33 feet 6
inches and the rear portion 33 feet 6 inches by 33 feet 6 inches. On the ground
floor are to be two class rooms, two offices, a dining room, a kitchen, a scullery and
a pantry; on the first floor two dormitories, nine bedrooms, and two wash and
bath rooms, and in the attic eleven rooms.

. Laundry—A two-story wooden building, on a stone foundation, 24 feet by 20
eet.

Cow House.—A one-story wooden building, 28 feet by 24 feet.

Stable and Carriage House.—A onestory and loft wooden building, on a pile

- foundation, 33 feet by 21 feet.

Plans prepared by this Department. Supervised by Mr. D. Smith, Clerk of
‘Works, Winnipeg.

Contractors, Madden & Bruce, Winnipeg.

STONY MOUNTAIN.
MANITOBA PENITENTIARY.

Prison Building—General repairs were made, electric bells and water tanks
were put in, and a partition inclosing engine room. )

Warden's Residence—General repairs, painting, kalsomining and papering
walls and alterations of heating pipes were made.

Surgeon's and Chaplain’s Residences—On the 24th’ January, 1889, a contract
was entered into for the construction of thvee similar buildings to accommodate the
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surgeon and the Roman Catholic and Episcopal chaplains. In each case the build-
ing is to be a one and ome-half story of brick, resting on stone foundation, with
wooden partitions and roof. The basement will contain a dining room, a kitchen, a
servant’s room, a store and furnace room; the ground floor a parlor, a reception
room, a library, a breakfast room, a bedroom, a bath room and a hat room, and the
attic four bedrooms. Special drains, with cess pool, are being put in, as the distance
to connect with the general system ofdrainage is too great. Wells are being sunk,
one for each residence, by convict labor.

Warden's Stables.—This building, described in my report of last year, has since
been completed. ' '

Hospital Building.—A passage from prison was constructed and the building
supplied with additional urinals, attic window gratings, stone porch, lamps, furni-
ture, &c., and the works referred to in my report of last year were completed.

Deputy Warden’s Stables.—This stable, coach and outbuildings over, 46 feet by 27
feet, was constructed by convict labor, ~
. Laundry Building.—Fittings referred to in last year’s report completed and a
well sunk. ' :

Guards Cottages—A quantity of necessary painting, plastering and kalsomining
was made.

Plans, &c-, prepared by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr. D. Smith.

o Contractor for surgeon’s and chaplain’s residences, Messrs. Tobin & O'Keefe,
ttawa. .

WINNIPEG.
CUSTOM HOUSE.

Some minor repairs were made, some additional furniture supplied and electric
bells put in.
Resident Clerk of Works, Mr. D. Smith.

LANDS OFFICE.

General repairs, plastering, painting, the supply of new farniture, linoleum, &e.,
were made, under the supervision of the resident Clerk of Works, Mr. D. Smith.

TEMPORARY POST OFFICE.

Sundry repairs and alterations necessary to render the building suitable for use
as an Examining Warehouse have been carried out, under the supervision of the
resident Clerk of Works, Mr. D. Smith.

—

NORTH-WEST TERRITORIES.

P

CALGARY.

BARRACKS.

Minor repairs at the Commandant’s quarters and Assistant Commissioner’s quar-
ters were made, , )

The barracks building referred to in my report of last year is nearly complete,
and the mess-room being now occupied as a dormitory, and the hospital is complete
ready for occupation. .

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried out under the supervision of this
Department. ‘

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. D. Johnson.

Contractors, Messrs. Kennedy & Heney, Ottawa.

COURT HOUSE,

On 8th November, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of a
two story stone Court House, having br[ii:kspgajmtzons and wooden floors and roof, and
‘ 8 89
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measuring 91 feet by 51 feet on plan. On the ground floor are to be rooms for sheriff,
grand jury, barristers, witnesses, jailers and prisoners; a vault, water closets, a
furnace room, and a fuel room—the two last mentioned going from the ground floor
ceiling to below the level of the ground. On the firstfloor are the court room, rooms
for judges, barristers and jury, and water closets,

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department,

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. D. Johnson

Contractor, Mr. John Gillies McCallum, Calgary.

INDIAN HEAD.

EXPERIMENTAL FARM BUILDINGS,

On 5th November, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of the
following buildings, which are now in progress :—

Superintendent’'s Residence.—A wooden two-story building, with a stone base-
ment, the main building 42 feet by 34 feet, and a- kitchen wing 24 feet by 21 feet ;
to have on the ground floor a hall and staircase, a parlor, a library, a dining room,
an office, a kitchen, two pantries, a wash-room, back stairs, &c., and on the first
floor, nine bedrooms, a bath-room, a closet, &e.

Horticulturist's Residence—A wooden two-story building, 32 feet by 35 feet,
on a stone basement, with a lean-to summer kitchen, 25 feet by 10 feet, in the rear,
and to contain a parlor, an office, a dining room and a pantry on the ground floor,
with five bedrooms and a bath-room over.

Workmen’s Cottage.—A wooden one and a half story cottage, 27 feet by 21 feet,
on a stone basement, with a lean-to summer kitchen, 14 feet by 10 feet in the rear,
and to contain a parlor, kitchen and store room on the ground floor, with threebed-
rooms and pantry over.

Barn and Stabling.—These are to be of wood, and consist of a main building
111 feet by 50 feet, 40 feet in height, on a 12 feet stone basement, and a wing 65 feet
by 32 feet, and 32 feet in height. The basementis arranged to accommodate horned
cattle and -horses, the ground flooras a driving floor, and for hay storage.

Plans, &c., prepared and work carried on under the supervision of this Depart-
ment.-

Clerk of Works, Mr. Angus Mackay.

Contractor, Mr. Isaac R. Reilly, Regina.

MACLEOD.
BARRACKS.

On 2nd November, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of a
stable for the North-West Mounted Police, which is now completed.

The building consists of a main portion, 131 feet 6 inches by 29 feet 6 inches,
containing fifty-one stables, and a harness or saddle room, 40 feet by 14 feet, adjoin-
ing. Over the main portion is a low loft,

Plans, &c., prepared and work superintended by this Department.

Clerk of Works, Mr., H. J. Peters, Regina.

Contractors, Messrs, Williams & Willoughby, Regina.

PRINCE ALBERT.

. COURT HOUSE AND GAOL.
A kitchen for the use of the gaol was formed in basement under Court House.
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters. ,
QU’APPELLE.
INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.

The girls’ school, bake-house and carpenter’s shop were completed.
Plans, &c.. prepared by this Department.
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. J. Peters.
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REGINA,

BARRACKS.

New lead-lined wash troughs, with necessary connec?ions, were provided and
placed in the north and south men’d barracks.
Clerk of Works, Mr. H. T. Peters, Regina.

COURT HOUSE.

A hot air furnace with connections was placed in the basement,
Resident Clerk of Works, Mr. H. T. Peters:

INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.

On 14th May, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of an Indus-
trial School at White Farm, near Regina, which is now in course of erection. The
building is to be “ T ” shaped, and consist of a front portion, 180 feet by 37 feet, with a
rear wing 75 feet by 37 feet. There is to be a stone basement and two full stories of
brick. On the ground floor are to be a general assembly room, a dining room, a
class room, a sewing room, a teacher’s dining room, a reception room, two rooms for
Principal, a kitchen, a laundry, a scullery, a larder 4nd a coal shed ; and on the first
floor a girls’ dormitory, a boys’ dormitory, a drying room, eleven bedrooms and a
bath-room. '

Resident Clerk of Works, Mr. H. T. Peters.

Contractors, Messrs. Williams & Willoughby, Regina.

JAIL AND LUNATIC ASYLUM,

Minor alterations of the ground floor portion of Jailor’s apartments and office®
were made, an iron staircase built between grouud and first floor of jail, and iron
doors, one in wall between prison and Jailor’s apartments, and the other in wall
between basement and yard. -

Resident Clerk of Works, Mr. H. T. Reters.

NEW RESIDENCE FOR THE LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR.

On the 19th March, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of this
building on the Government reserve, and the works are now in progress.

The building will be of brick on a stone foundation, with partitions, floors and
roofs of wood, to consist of a main portion 64 feet 6 inches by 55 feet, and that for
servants, offices and bedrooms 56 feet by 42 feet.

The basement will accommodate the furnace, fuel and stores and contain brick
tanks for rain and well water. On the ground floor there will be a lobby, vestibule
and main hall and staircase, two drawing rooms, dining room, Iibx‘s}ry, billiard room,
kitchen, housekeeper’s room, servants’ hall, scullery, dairy, cooling room, sewing
room, storeroom, china pantry, wine vault, lgrick safe and !avatory; and on the first
floor are to be fifteen bedrooms, two dressing rooms, with bath, also a bath-room
and a watercloset.

Plans, &c., prepared and work executed under the supervision of this Depart-
ment.

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. T. Peters.

Contractor, Mr. Wm. Henderson, Regina.

OLD GOVERNMENT HOUSE.

A coal shed and an ice house were buill, and minor general repairs to buildings
and outhouses made.

RIDING HALL.

On 3rd November, 1888, a contract for the erection of a riding hall, to replace
that destroyed by fire, was entered into and the works are now in progress. With
the exception of a porch, 20 feet by 20 feet, at the main entrance, the building will be
similar to that destroyed. The building w[;viélslé(i of wood, 125 feet by 210 feet, exclusive

1 41
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of the porches, and consists of a riding hall 73 feet by 199 feet, four sheds 73 feet by
26 feet, two sheds 55 feet by 26 feet, and gymnasium 74 feet by 25 feet, with an
assembly room over of the same size.

Plans, &c., prepared and work supervised by this Department,

Clerk of Works, Mr. H. T. Peters.

Contractor, Mr. J. Stewart, Ottawa.

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUM]'SIA.

KAMLOOPS.
INDIAN INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL. -

On 4th June, 1889, a contract was entered into for the comstruction of three
wooden buildings on stone foundations, as follows :— »

Central Building.—To counsist of a main building, 31 feet by 34 feet, and an annex
25 feet by 18 feet; to contain on the ground floor a large diningroom, a Superintend-
ent’s sitting room, a Superintendent’s office, a kitchen and a hall ; and on the first
floor two school rooms, a sick room, a Superintendent’s bedroom and closets.

Boys' Building—A building 40 feet 9 inches by 33 feet 6 inches, to contain on
the ground floor a boys’ play-room, a dormitory, a tailor’s room, a teacher’s room, a
lavatory, two bath-rooms and a hall; and on the first floor two boys’ dormitories, a
teacher’s bedroom, a spare room, a passage and closets. -

Glirls Home—A building 30 feet 6 inchies by 22 feet, to contain on the ground
floor a laundry, an ironing room and a drying room ; and on the first floor two girls’
dormitories, a servants’ bedroom and closets, ‘

Plans, &c., prepared by this Department, and work being carried out under the
supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

* Clerk of Works, J. T. Burnyeat.

Contractor, Mr. John D. Ross, Kamloops.

KUPER.

INDIAN INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL.

A contract for the construction of these buildings, which are similar to those
at Kamloops, was entered into on the 27th May, 1889, and they are being carried
out under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E. :

Clerk of Works, Mr. Walter Ford.

Contractor, Mr, William Rockett,

NANAIMO.

POST OFFICE, &c.
Some minor repairs to the roof were executed.

NEW WESTMINSTER.
PENITENTIARY. ’ :

On the 23rd April, 1889, a contraet was entered into for the construction of a
two-story wooden buiding, on a stone foundation, to be used as a residence for the
Warden of the Penitentiary. This will have a main building 55 feet by 48 feet, and a
wing 30 feet 6 inches by 20 feet, containing on the ground floor drawing room, dining
room, library, bedroom, hall, kitchen, scullery, pantry and conservatory, and on the
first floor seven bedrooms, bathroom and hall. »

The dwelling for single officers referred to in my last report has been completed,
a verandah along the front added, the sitting and dining rooms furnished with
grates, and the building heated with stoves throughout.

A cow-house was built by convict labor with material supplied by this Départ-
ment, :
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Gas was laid throughout the grounds, cast-iron lamp-posts erected, and several
extra gas lights placed in the main building.
Some alterations and repairs to the water service were made,
Several improvements to the bakery were made.
An alarm bell was set up in a suitable tower on the roof of the prison.
‘Works carried out under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, (gE
_ Contractors for warden’s residence and cottage, Messrs. Ackerman Bros, New
Westminster. ’

PUBLIC BUILDING.

Minor general repairs were made and several articles of furniture supplied to
the Post Office portion of the building, and latrines were substituted for the earth
closets. '

Works executed under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

VANCOUVER.

POST OFFICE, &cC., BUILDING.

A site on the corner of Pender and Granville streets, with frontages of 130 feet
and 75 feet, respectively, was offered, and plans and specifications for the building
are now being prepared by this Department.

VICTORIA.

CUSTOM HOUSE.

Repairs to gas and water pipes, water tank, wash-basin, &c., &c., under the .
supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

POST OFFICE.

Repairs were made to the fire walls. New fittings for the Postmaster and letter
carriers were supplied, a stamp vendor’s stall was erected, stoves were supplied, and
gas fittings re-arranged for the Money Order Branch.

Works executed under the supervision of Mr. F. C. Gamble, C.E.

GENERALLY.

Usual and ordinary repairs were made, furniture supplied, cleaning and coloring
. done and minor alterations made to a large number of buildings not herein referred to,

WATER FOR DOMINION BUILDINGS.

The water supply of the various Dominion buildings, exce%ting penitentiaries
and military buildings, isunder the control of this branch gf the Department, Fifty-
four buildings at thirty-three localities have water services connected with the
water -supply of the {(')eal waterworks companies, the remainder being in general
supplied with wells, pumps and tanks.

LIGHTING DOMINION BUILDINGS.

The lighting of the various Dominion buildings, excepting the penitentiaries and
military buildings, is under the control of this_branch of the Department. Sixty
guildings, exclusive of those at Ottawa, were lighted by gas supplied by local com-

anies, two buildings by incandescent electric light, one by gasoline and the
remainder by coal oil. At four of the last mentioned an arc light was used for out-

side illumination. ‘ ’
[1889] 43
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HEATING DOMINION BUILDINGS (FUEL).

Tenders for the supply of coal for Public Buildings, generally, were invited by
Eublie advertisement, and coal and wood were supplied to eighty-eight of the public
uildings.

ENGINEERS, ENGINEMEN, FIREMEN, &c., PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

The various engineers, enginemen, firemen and caretakers, and the heating
apparatus of Dominion Public Buildings, with the exception of those at the various
%e;nitentiaries and the military buildings, are under the control of this branch of the

partment, :
THOMAS FULLER,

Chief Architect,
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APPENDIX No. 3.

LIS™T

INGINEERS, ENGINENEN, FIRENEN AND CARETARERS

PUBLIC BUILDINGS THROUGHOUT THE DOMINION,

GGGGG

DATE OF APPOINTMENT, SALARY PAID, &C.
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APPENDIX No. 4.

REPORT

ON THE

HEATING APPARATUS, GAS, WATER AND BELL SERVICES, &.

IN THE

PUBLIC BUILDINGS, OTTAWA,

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 30ra JUNE, 1889,

JOHN R. ARNOLDI, CHIEF MECHANICAL ENGINEER.
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APPENDIX No. 4.

s

REPORT OF THE CHIEF MECHANICAL ENGINEER.

Ref. No. 101,754.
‘ Cuier MEecRANICAL ENGINEER'S OFFICE,
Orrawa, 28th August, 1889.

Str,—I have the honour to report as follows, in reference to the Public Buildi
Qttawa, during the fiscal year ended the 30th Jt’me, 1889, viz, :— 1¢ Dulidings,

PARLIAMENT BUILDING.

Nothing was required to be done during the past year to electrical a
boilers, water, gas or bell service of this building b%yon&7 ordinary maintenaplll)(?:atus’

Owing to the alterations of the Speaker’s apartments of the Senate it was found
necessary to change and extend the ventilation and heating apparatus in the vicinity
of these premises.

The ventilation of the Railway Committee room was also much improved b
increasing the capacity of foul air-discharge ducts. ‘ y

EAST ANP WEST BLOCKS.

Nothing was required to be done in these buildings, beyond ordinary mai -
ance to heating apparatus, boilers, water, gas and bell seTvices. y mainten

SUPREME COURT.

Ordinary maintenance to the heating apparatus, gas, water and bell services
was all that was required.

OTTAWA POST OFFICE AND CUSTOM HOUSE.

Ordinary maintenance only was required to the heating apparatus, boilers, gas
water and bell services. ’ » 848,

GEOLOGICAL MUSEUM,
Ordinary maintenance only to water, gas and bell services was required,
PARLIAMENT GROUNDS—FLOWER PROPOGATING HOUSE.
Ordinary maintenance only required.
INDIAN AFFAIRS (LEASED). '
Ordinary maintenance only to water, gas and bell services was required.k
POST OFFICE DEPARTMENT (LEASED). SAVINGS BANK BRANOCH. |

Three new waterclosets were placed in this building during the k ast .
otherwise, ordinary maintenance to gas, water and bell services On]yg was l.gquirzg?r ’

MAJOR'S HILL PARK.
Ordinary repairs only were required to the water main, hose, &c., used for

sprinkling. A
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FISH HATCHERY AND ART GALLERY.
An extension of gas fixtures and one new water closet were found necessary.
RIDEAU HALL.

Eleven old-pattern pan waterclosets were removed and replaced by an improved
sanitary pattern, which were urgently required. The hot water service was
thoroughly overhauled and a new coil furnace put in for heating the water for
baths, &e.

In the Secretary’s cottage two new water closets were supplied.

Beyond ordinary maintenance and repairs to the general services of heating,
water, gas and bells, nothing further was required.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

JNO. R. ARNOLDI,
Chief Mechanical Engineer.

A. GopBEeIL, Es%, )
Secrotary, Public Works Department.
Ottawa.
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APPENDIX No. 5.

REPORT OF THE CHIEF ENGINEER.

e

Ref. No. 103,848.

Crier ENGINEER'S OFFICE,
Orrawa, 27th November, 1889,

Sir,—I have the honour to submit herewith my annual report on the harbour

works under my charge during the last fiscal year. .

I bave the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servaut, -
HENRY F. PERLEY,

Chief Engineer.
A, GopEm, Esq.,
Secretary(}?ublic Works Department,

Ottawa. .

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND.

: ANNANDALE,

This Pier is in King’s County, and is situated on the north side of Grand River,
near its entrance into ngoughten Bay. Itis distant 14 miles by road, south from
Souris, the eastern terminus of the P. E. I. Railway, and is the shipping place for a
large agricultural district. The exports are :tigrieultural produce and fish, and the
imports consist principally of general merchandise and coal.

The pier is one of those constructed by the Local Government and taken over
by the Dominion Government, and consists of an approach 300 feet in length and 23
feet wide, with a pier head 140 feet long, averaging 36 feet in width., Theapproach,
excepting a short olpen span which is planked over, is constructed of squared
timber crib-work, filled in with brush, stone and clay. The pier head consists of
four blocks of different shapes and dimensions, constructed of squared timber erib-
work, and of pile work, the whole being covered over with plank. ‘

During 1884-85 such repairs as were absolutely necessary to make it serviceable
for the seasons traffic were effected by the Department, the principal work done
consisting in the close-piling of the western end of the face for a distance of 85 feet.
During the last fiscal year the face, for a distance of 55 feet, and the ends, were close-
piled; 22 piles were driven in the inside of the work to replace worm-eaten ones,
and where necessary the planking on the top was renewed. ‘

At low water springs, which rise here 5 feet, there is a depth of 7 feet of water
?t the channel face of the pier head, and the beach dries out to within 15 feet of the

aco.

BELFAST PIER.

Belfast Pier, Queen’s County, is situated on the south side of Orwell Bay, about
one mile distant from the village of Eldon. It was constructed many years ago by
the Local Government to accommodate the shipment of produce from the neighbor-
hood. Besides being an important shipping place, it is also a port of call for the
steamers of the P.E.I. Navigation Co., %ymg during the season three times each
week between Charlottetown and Orwell Bay. .
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The pier is 600 feet in length and from 24 to 35 feet in width, with an “L” at the
outer end 105 feet in length and 20 feet wide, giving a channel face of 140 feet. The
work along the channel face is from 16 to 18 feet in height, and the depth of water
varies from 5 to 7 feet at low water springs, which rise here 8 feet. At 10 feet from
the face the depth increases to 9 feet, and the beach dries out at low water springs to
within 200 feet of the outer end. Excepting two small openings, the work is con-
structed with squared timber faces, the inner end, for a distance of 390 feet, being
filled in with brush and clay, while the outer end and the “L" are floored over.

During 1884-85, when the pier was taken over by the Dominion Government, it
was strengthened by placing fenders along the channel face, and some slight repairs
were made to the top by placing new planking where required.

During 1887-88 repairs were executed on the western end of the L, and along
the channel face and end of this portion piles were placed, 5 feet apart, to replace
those which had been placed in 1584—85, as they, weakened by the teredo, had been
carried away by the ice. : ' :

The amount set apart for repairs to the pier last year was expended in the
removal of a portion of the easternend of the “L,” and in its reconstruction, and the
ballasting of and renewal of planking on the western end of the “L,” and in levelling
up and repairing the worst portion of the approach.

CAMPBELL’S COVE BREAKWATER.

Campbell’s Cove, King’s County, is situated on the north coast of the island,
about 9 miles west from East Point and 14 miles distant from Souris, the eastern
terminus of the P.E.I. Railway.

In 1872 the Provincial Government constructed a detached breoakwater, 300 feet
in length and 30 feet wide, on the reef which extends out from the west point of the
cove, for the protegtion of small fishing vessels and boats.

. During 1882-83 the Department repaired the old structure, raised it 2 feet in
height, connected it with the shore, extended it 250 feet, making its total length
620 feet. - The whole work is substantially constructed of squared timber, the faces
of the old portion and the connection with the shore being built plumb, while the
extension has a timber slope of 1 to 1 on the seaward side. The depth of water at
the outer end at low water springs is 4 feet, and spring tides rise 4 feet.

The breakwater protects t%e eastern part of the cove from north and north-
easterly winds, but during easterly and south-easterly ones it is entirely exposed to
the force of the sea. .

During the last fiscal year two fenders, a few planks and some ballast were
replaced in the sloping face, as well as some ballast in the outer end of the work.

CASCUMPEC.

Cascumpec Harbour, Prince County, is situated on the north coast of the Island,
about 17 miles to the southward of North Cape, and about 20 miles to the north-
westward of the entrance into Richmond Bay. The town of Alberton, the second
one in importance in the county, is located at the head of the harbour, and is a
station on the Prince Edward Island Railway which has a branch to the Railway

wharf, where vessels can load and discharge. .
' A large amount of produce is shipped yearly from the wharves at Alberton,
and the harbour being commodious and perfectly safe, with a depth of water sufficient
to accommodate sea-going vessels, it is sought as a harbour of refuge during
easterly gales, and as many as 100 fishing vessels, principally American, have been
counted at one time, ’ ' ' '

The entrance into the harbour is obstructed by two bars; the outer one, com-
posed of sand, lies about a mile from the entrance, and the inner “bar,” which is
composed of very soft sandstone, is between the beaches which form the entrance.
The barg are about 1,000 feet in width, and carry a depth of 10 feet of water at low
‘water springs, which rise 3 feet. , '
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It is proposed to make a cut through the inner bar 100 feet in width, with a
gepth of 15 feet at low water, so as to admit of a larger class of vessels entering the
arbour. : ‘ '
The work was commenced by the Department in 1885, by sub-marine blasting,
and it has been continued every season since; but owing to the short time in which
operations can be carried on successfully (about 4 months in the year), the softness
of the material, which blasts badly and is reduced to very small fragments,
and the exposure of the work to easterly storms, the work has not progressed as
rapidly as was expected. :

* With the amount voted during the last fiscal year a cut 150 feet in
length, 25 feet wide, and to a depth of 15 fget at low water, has been made, the
material blasted and removed amounting to 450 cubie yards. :

The amount of material still to be removed to accomplish the cut as proposed is

10,800 cubic yards in place, or 15,100 cubic yards scow measurement.

CHARLOTTETOWN.

Charlottetown, the capital of the Province, is situated on a neck of land
between the North and Hillsboro’ Rivers, in Queen’s. County. .

Much dredging was done at the expense of the owners or lessees, with the view
of obtaining deeper water, and consequently greater loading facilities at the wharves
of the Steam Navigation Company, the wharf the property of the Connolly estate,
Messrs, Peake, Bros. & Co.’s wharf, and the wharf belonging to the Prince Edward
Island Railway, the whole being situated in the harbour of Charlottetown.

GEORGETOWN PIER.

Georgetown, the shire town of King’s County, is situated on the western side of
the Montague River, near the entrance into Cardigan Bay, and is one of the termini
of the P.E.I. Railway. Its harbour is well known as being one of the best and safest
in the island.

The public wharf. known as the Queen’s Pier, was constructed by the Local
Government between 1873 and 1882, and was handed over to the Dominion Govern-
ment in 1884. It is composed of a shore abutment 340 feet in length, and of
six blocks from 25 to 33 feet long, with intervening spaces. ‘Its total length is 642
feet and its width varies from 25 to 33 feet.

During 1884-85 the Department close-piled the outer faces of the blocks and
the end, and in the year 1886-87 the outer end of the eastern side of the shore abut-

* ment, for a distance of 60 feet, was partially re-built, and all the spans received new
lanking.
P Duging the last fiscal year some of the close-piling was re-fastened, three mooring
posts were putin, the cap timbers, where necessary, were rene'wed, and the filling in
the blocks and shore abutment, which had settled, was raised to' the level of the
planking on the spans, with brush, stone and gravel. ;

At the end of the pier there is a depth of 12 feet at low water springs, and low
water mark extend to within 350 feet of the outer end. Spring tides rise 5 feet,
and the class of vessels loading and discharging at the pier are large-size schooners
drawing up to 10 feet of water. A ’

HICKEY'S PIER.

Hickey's Pier, Queen’s County, is situated on the south-eastern side of the

- Hillsboro’ River, about 10 miles distant from the city of Charlottetown, and about 6
miles from Pisquid station of the P.E.I Railway. : : :

The Hillsboro’ River being navli:%able about 15 miles above Charlottetown, is the

most important on the island, and Hickey’s Pier, since the channel at its end and

berths on each side were dredged by the Department, is the first in importance on
the river. v : :
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A large amount of produce is annually shipped from the pier, and eonsiderable
lamber and coal are imported, the trade being ecarried on by the schooners.
During the season a steamer from Charlottetown calls at this pier three times a
weelk.

The structure is 428 feot in length, and of width ranging from 22 to 29 feet, the
Iatter width extending inwards from the outer end for 180 feet.

During 1884-85 the shore abutment was levelled up over a distance of 120 feet
with stone and clay, thence for a distance of 145 feet the top was stripped and new:
floor stringers, planking, cap and fenders were placed, thence for 60 feet the work
was newly planked, and on the outer block the defective planking was renewed.

During 1887-88 part of the covering on the outer block was renewed, fifteen piles
were driven around it and a new landing slip bailt in its outer face; the shore abut-
ment for a distance of 90 feet was re-built and re-filled with brush, stone and clay.

Daring the last fiscal year the narrow block built along the eastern face of the
outer end, which was in danger of tumbling into the dredged channel, was renewed
and replaced by a new block, its top extending over the old main blocks, and new
floor-stringers and planking were placed upon the spans and the outer block.

The depth of water at low water springs, at the end and for a distance of 113
feet on each side of it, is 4} feet, and as spring tides rise 9% feet, thatdepth increases
to 14 feet at that time of tide. ‘

LEWIS POINT PIER.

This pier is in King's County, and is situated on the northern side of Cardigan
River, a short distance %elow Cardigan Bridge, the head of navigation for vessels on
the river, and about eight miles from its entrance into Cardigan Bay. Cardigan
Station, on the P. E. I. Railway, is about half a mile from the pier. ;

The imports consist principally of lumber and coal, and the exports of potatoes
and oats, and the trade is carried on by middling-sized schooners. .

This pier is 575 feet in length, and is composed of a shore abutment 365 feet, of
two blocks each 35 feet, and of an outer block 79 feet in length, with intervening
spaces, each about 20 feet wide, out to the onter block, which is 33 feet wide. The
outer end stands in 7T feet of water at low water springs, which rise here 5 feet,
and the beach at low water dries out to within 140 feet of the end.

In 1884-85 a small amount was expended in making it fit for traffic.

During the last season the flooring and floor stringers were renewed, and new
caps were placed where necessary, and the roadway on the shore abutment and on
the blocks was levelled up with brush and stone.

MALPEQUE.

Malpeque Harbour, Prince County, lies within the eastern entrance of Richmond
Bay, on the north shore of the Island, about 90 miles from East Point and 40 miles
from North Cape. :

During 18?’?—78-79 a breakwater, 600 feet long, having 18 feet at its outer end at
low water springs, was built by the Department on the western end of the “Royalty
Sands,” on the eastern side of the harbour, to shelter the anchorage from north-east
winds, which throw a heavy sea through the eastern channel, and to afford a ship-
ping place for the produce of the surrounding country. '

The tides in Richmond Bay are very irregular, being controlled by the winds,
easterly winds causing higher tides and westerly. winds producing a contrary offect.
In perfectly calm weather spring tides rise 3 feet, neap tides 2 feet.

Owing to the construction of the breakwater, the sands inside of the breakwater
wasted away with the action of tides during easterly storms, and to prevent this
wasting a breast-work, 450 feet in length, was constructed from the inner end of the
breakwater running towards Royalty Point. '

During 1882-83, as the wasting away of the sands between the inner end of the
breast-work and the “ Point” continued, the breast-work was continued inwardly to
the “ Point,” a distance of 1,920 feet.
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On the 15th of December, 1889, the work was visited by a heavy north-east
gale, accompanied by an unusually high tide, and the breakwater, as well as the
breast-work, were seriously damaged, and daring the last fiscal year the damage done
was made good.

NORTH CARDIGAN.

North Cardigan Pier, King’s County, is situated on the north side of the Cardi-
gan River, near its entrance into the bay of the same name, and is distant about 6
III{l;leS from Cardigan Bridge, the head of navigation and a station onthe P, E. I,

ilway. '

The pier is used for the shipment of produce, and was constructed by the Local
Government many years ago for the benefit of a large agricultural district. Its total
length is 383 feet, and it consists of a shore abutment and. seven blocks, with inter-
vening openings, the latter being spanned over and (Planked. It is from 23 to 25 feet
wide out to the outer block, which has a width of 32 feet. 'The abutment ie 100 foet
in length, the blocks from 19 to 25 feet, and the spans from 14 to 26 feet long. The
abutment and all the blocks are constructed of squared timber faces, filled in with
brush, stone and clay, excepting the two outer blocks, which, as well as all the spans,
are planked over.

The depth of water at the outer end is 5 feet at low water springs, increasing to
T feet at a distance of 10 feet from the outer face. Spring tides rise 5 feet, neaps 3
feet, and the mud flats dry ont to within 170 feet of the outer end.

On its assumption by the Dominion Government during 1884-85 the two outer
blocks of the pier were close-piled, and during 1885-86 the flooring on the outer
biock was renewed and the top of the inner blocks and shore abutment were levelled
up with brush and stone.

During the last fiscal year all the span-beams, the flooring (excepting on the
outer block) and the cap were renewed, and the shore abutment, as well as the inside
blocks, were levelled up with brush, stone and clay.

NORTH RUSTICO.

Rustico, Queen’s County, is the most important fishing station on the northern
coast of the Island, and is nearly equi-distant from the North and East Points, and
about 9 miles from Hunter River Station, on the P. E. I. Railway.

The harbour is of good size and well sheltered, but the entrance is rendered
difficult by a bar of sand overlying clay, the channel through which shifts frequently,
and in which the depth was not more than 6 feet at low water, and sometimes after
- a long duration of north-east winds even less. The depth inside the entrance is 10
feet at low water springs, which rise here 3 feet.

Between 1881 and 1884 the Department constructed two breakwaters on each side
of the entrance, that on the northside being 1,240 feet in length and on the south side
450 feet, for the purpose of concentrating the ebb current upon the bar, in order to
scour away the sand and obtain a greater depth of water over it. Theresults have
been most satisfactory, and the depth on the bar has been increased from 3 to 4 feet,
which, added to the former depth, gives at low water springs from9 to 10 feet.

In 1886-87 repairs were made on the slopix:f face of the north breakwater, and
at the outer end 8 number of piles were replaced.

During the last fiscal year 17 feet of the outer end of the north breaskwater,
which was in a wrecked condition, was cut away, the new end was close-piled, the
top re-ballasted and other work executed.

PINETTE.

Pinette Harbour, Queen’s County, is on the north side of Northumberland Strait,
4 miles east of Point Prim and 12 miles north of Wood Island. It is situated at the
mouth of Pinette River, and extends about 2} miles inland to Pinette Bridge, the
navigable channel being from 200 at the upper end, to 600 feet wide at the
lower end, and carrying a depth of water of 3 fathoms at low water springs.
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A pier 120 feet in length and 28 feet wide was built on the south side of the
channeE below and at right angles to Pinette Bridge, by the Local Government, and
connected with the bridge by a span, planked over. ; '

The pier is built along the channel, and has a frontage of 148 feet. During
1881 the dredge “Prince Edward” operated here in deepening the lodding berths off
the face of the pier, to 8 feet below low water springs. :

During 1887-88 the Department ruised the channel tace of the pier about 12 inches,
and madeé other improvements on the structure. ‘

During the last fiscal year the approach was renewed by placing a new bent
underneath and placing additional span beams and new flooring. -

POWNAL PIER. o

Pownal Pier, Queen’s County, is situated on Pownal Bay, the north-eastern
. corner of Hillshoro’ Bay, and is distant about 9 miles south-east from the city of
Charlottetown, the nearest railway station to the pier. N

The pier, which is at the head of the bay, is 753 feet in length, extends out
to low water, and was constructed during the years from 1873 to 1882 by the Local
Government. E . ,

To admit of boats and small craft coming to and leaving the pier at all times of
the tide, the Departmeut during 1880-81 dredged a channel up to the pier, 1,275 feet
in length, 56 feet wide and from 5 to 6 feet in depth, carrying a depth of from 6 to 9
feet at low water springs, and a basin on the eastern side of the pier 90 feet wide and
250 feet in length,

During 1884-85 such repairs as were absolutely necessary to place the pier in a
fit condition for shipping purposes were effected by the Department, and during the
past season the span-beams were renewed, nine of the spans replanked and other
necessary repairs effected.

RED POINT.

Red Point Wharf, Lot 48, Quéen’s County, is situated on the southern shore of the
East River, about 5 miles above Charlottetown.

The water in front of the wharf was deepened to 12 feet at low water, to enable
vessels to approaeh and load at the wharf.

SOURIS.

Souris Harbour, Colville Bay, King's County, is about 16 miles to the westward
of East Point. It is the principal place of shipment at the eastern end of theIsland,
and is the terminus of the P. E. I. %ailway.

SOUTH RUSTICO.

South Rustico Pier, Queen’s County, is situated immediately below the Oyster
Bed Bridge, at the mouth of Whatley River, which enters Rustico Bay at its
southern end. It is distant about 6 miles from Hunter River station, on the Prince
Edward Island Railway, and about 13 miles to the northward of the city of Char-
lottetown. ’ ~

The gier was constructed by the Local Government between 1873 and 1876, to
accommodate the shipping of produce from and the imports of coal and lumber to
the locality. 1t is 593 feet in length, and consists of an approach 450 feet long and
17} feet in width, and of three detached blocks, about 25 feet apart. The inner block
is 17 feet wide and 23} feet long’; the twoouter blocks are respectively 29 and 30.feet
wide and 20 and 24 feet in length. :

'At the outer end there is a depth of 6 feet at low water springs, increasing to 10
fet:it at high water, and the flat dries out at low water to within 340 feet of the outer
end. < : :

In 1884-85 the top of the blocks and the anroach were levelled up with clay,
and portions of the flooring renewed and some fenders replaced. -

uring the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1889, the outer end was raised and othor
repairs executed. » : :
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During 1875~76-7'7 the Dominion Government constructed an extension of 896
feet, having a width of 46 feet, to the breakwater built some years previously by the
Local Government, on the eastern side. of the harbour and off Knight's Point, and
raised the old work about 2 feet over its entire length (280 feet) to the level of the
new, which was assumed to be 5 feet above high water springs. Spring tides rise 4%
feet, neaps 3 feet. .

During a heavy gale on the 5th of January, 1878, the outer end of the break-
water was carried away to a depth of 10 feet, and in 1878 the work of reconstruction
was proceeded with and completed in September, 1880,

] }))uring 1880-81 the seaward side of the top of the end of the old breakwater
was covered with 6-inch plank.

In 1881-82 a small amount was expended in necessary repairs to the inner end
of the original portion of the work. '

The sum of $939.55 was expended in 1883-84 on general repairs and securing a
breach in the outer face of the inner portion.

Close-piling the seaward face to protect weakened portions, re-ballasting and
renewing floor stringers and planking, where necessary, was carried on during 1885-86.

During 1886-87 the inner end of the work, for a distance of 800 feet, was fully
ballasted, and new floor stringers, ﬂooring and cap-timbe:s placed where necessary.
The centre section for a §istance of 290 feet, was raised 2 feet, fully ballasted
.and new floor stringers, flooring and cap placed; the whole of the seaward face

which had not been previously close-piled was attended to, and the inner face, for a
distance of 600 feet, was protected by additional fender piles.

During 1888-89 the sum of $5,000 was expended on the outer section of the
breakwater, which was constructed during 1878-79. The end stands in 24 feet of
water at low water springs, and being rather narrow for its height ng feet wide,on
top and 30 feet high) the top was moved some 3 feet inwards by the force of the sea.
The work also suffered terribly from the attacks of the teredo, and to. protect its
weakened seaward face and to prevent the top from further moving, a heavy stone
slope along its seaward face was commenced. A strongly constructed timber block,
30 feet square, was placed at the outer end of the seaward fate, to prevent the stone
from moving around the end, and the base of the block was close-piled.

STURGEON,

Sturgeon Bay, King’s County, is situated on the south side of Cardigan Bay,
about 6 miles south of Georgetown, the sh'ire town of the county and the terminus of
the Georgetown Branch of t%xe P. E. I. Railway. )

The pier was constructed by the Local Government during _the years from 1873
to 1881, to accommodate the shipping of produce from the locghtg'. ;

Its total length is 436 feet, and is from 20 to 25 feet in width, its height at the
guter end is 13 feet, with a depth of 4 feet of water at low water springs, which rise

feet. .

The pier was generally repaired and put in good order during the past fiscal

year.

TIGNISH,

Tignish Harbour, Prince County, is situated on the north coast of the Island,
;bout 6 miles southwardly from North Cape, and is really the mouth of the Big

ignish River. :

g As the coast in the vicinity of the mouth of the river is straight and has no pro-
tection from projecting head lands, gales from the northfeas_t to south-east cause an
unbroken sea to run in, and as the bottom is compoused of shifting sand, the entrance
was at times completely blocked up, until broken through again by the foree of the
water inside. '

The construction of a breakwater on either side of the mouth of the river to
contract the channel and increase the velocity of the current was begun by the
Provincial Government in 1868, and up t083]87 5, when the Island entered into Con-
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federation, the amount of $8,149.56 had been expended. The north breakwater was
built 830 feet in length and 21 feetin width, and that on the southern side 300 feet
in length and 20 feet in width, with an opening of 45 feet between them.

During 1875-76 the Department re-constructed the top of the north breakwater,
which was badly wrecked, to a height of 5 feet above high water springs, and built
a new block at the outer end 40 feet in length by 41 feet in width.

In 187778 the south breakwater was raised and repaired; and the end of the
north breakwater having been undermined by the action of the sea, was raised to
its original level during 1879-80.

In November, 1879, the north breakwater was again damaged, and during
1880-81 the block at its outer end was close-piled and the south breakwater repaired
and its outer end close-piled.

During 1881-82 portions of the north breakwater were rebuilt aud repaired, and
a brush, pile and sto ne breast-work was constricted on the beach to the northward
of the breakwater; a similar breast-work, 150 feet in length, was constructed on the
south beach, and the corner formed between the north breakwater and the block at
tts end, for a distance of 100 feet along the face, was filled with brush and stone.

As it appeared that the breastwork constructed on the north side of the harbour
did not extend sufficiently far to prevent the sea from cutting through the beach
it was extended during 1884-85-86,a distance of 1,875 feet to the high land; at the
same time the seaward face of the north breakwater, over a length of 540 feet, was
protected by a brush and stone slope.

During 1886-87 the dredge “ Prince Edward” operated in deepening between
the breakwaters and in the basininside.

During the last fiscal year some planks and close-piling on the outer block

of the northern breakwater were replaced, and a quantity of brush and stone placed
at points of the breast-work where required; and the piling at the inner end of
the south breakwater was protected by a brush and stone backing.
- Prior to the commencement of improvements at the mouth of the Tignish River,
there was only a depth of 1 foot at low water, and only such boats as could be
hauled upon the beach rould enter. Since the completion of the works the depth,
which depends to some extent on the prevelance of easterly winds, has never been
less than 5 feet during low water springs, and is generally more. Spring tides rise
3 feet, neaps 2 teet.

B )

\ NOVA SCOTIA.
ARISAIG, ~

Arisaig, Antigonish County, is on the south-east shore of Northumberland Strait,
15 miles east of Merigomish, the nearest harbour.

The pier at this place was commenced by the Government of Nova Scotia about
forty-six years ago, and came under the charge of the Federal Government in 1870.
It was put in thorough repair in 1873, and small amounts were expended in 1880 and
1881 in repairing damage caused by ice.

In 1886 a contract was entered into for repairs to the pier and for the construc-
tion of a breakwater on the eastern side of the harbour to arrest the travel of sand
from the south-west. The works under contract were completed in October, 1888,

The pier is 440 feet in length; the outer portiop, 195 feet in length, is from 40 to
44 feet wide, The depth at the outer end was originally 8 feet at extreme low water;
there is now at extreme low water a depth of 1 foot along the inner face, over a dis-
tance of 100 feet from the outer end, and over the sheltered area nowhere more
than 3 feet. '

The breakwater is 300 feet in loength and 20 feet in width on top, and has an L
at the outer end 40 feet in length, It is constructed of square timber, close-faced,
and is full ballasted and protected at the outer end by close fendering. The depth
at the outer end at extreme low water is 6 feet. Spring tides rise 5 feet.
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During the year (1888-89) a contract was entered into for extending the pier
- 160 feet, and for protecting its seaward face by a deposit of heavy stone; but up to
its close no work exeept in the way of procuring material had been done.

BARRINGTON.

Barrington is situated at the south-western end of Shelburne County, and is
about midway between the towns of Yarmouth and Shelburne, being 45 miles to the
south-west of the latter. The settlement is a straggling one, and counsists of Barring-
- ton Head and Barrington “Passage,” the two covering a distance of about 3 miles,
Considerable trade is done in supplying the fishermen of the neighbouring district,
and the “ Passage” being a place of call for the line of steamers running between
Yarmouth and Halifax, a good deal of freight is transhipped for the immediate
neighbourhood and Cape Sable Island. .

At present there is but one wharf at which steamers can land, and this is not
available at low water owing to a bar about 1,200 feet from the wharf, on which
there is only 4 feet of water, at low tide and 13 feet at high water springs. As the
dredging of a channel through the bar would be expensive, and as it was doubtful if
the channel would remain open, on account of its being at right angles to the current
and set of the tide round Cape Sable Island, an examination was made in 1888 of
the different sites in the neighbourhood, to ascertain which was most sunitable for the
gonstruction of a public wharf, and one was selected near the head of Sherrows

hannel.

This channel enters the main channel immediately to the eastward of the bar,
and lies between Sherrows Island and the mainland. The flats on either side are
just bare at low water, at which time there is 12 feet of water in the channel itself,
Spring tides at Barrington rise 9 feet. The site is on the western side of the channel,
at a point where it most nearly approaches the mainland, and the situation is land-
locked, and has long been used as a safe and convenient.place to winter fishing
vessels and coasters. . ’

To reach the deep water of the channel it is neces.sar{e’oo cross 960 feet of flats,
and it is proposed to carry the wharf across this on pile bents, the first 120 feet of
the work being built of crib-work, on account of the rocky bottom. - The wharf over
the flats will be 20 feet wide, and the pile bents, of five piles each, placed at 15 feet
centres. At the edge of the channel an “L” of crib wharfing, 30 feet wide and 60 feet
‘long, is to be built for steamers and vessels to lie at.

During the fiscal year the sum of $3,000 was expended towards the construction
of this work; the inshore section was built (fartly_ of stone, owing to the high price
of timber in the neighbourhood, the remainder bemg of crib-work, as was originally
intended, and sufficient piles, square timber, planking, &c., was purchased to con-
struct about 600 feet of the work. It is estimated that the structure, when com.-
pleted, will cost $6,800.

BATTY ISLAND,

Batty Island, Pictou County, is sitgated in Merigomish Harbour, near the
entrance. Its length is 1} miles and its greatest width half g mile, and its
southern shore is distant from the mainland about three-quarters of a mile, and is
sheltered from all outside winds, , ;

During the year a small wharf was constructed on the south side of the Island,
It extends 60 feet to flats covered with only a fow inches at extreme low water, is
12 feet in width, and consists of two blocks, each 15 feet by 12 feet, with openings of
15 feet. Spring tides rise b feet 3 inches; neaps rise 3 feet 3 inches.

BAYFIELD.

Buyfield, Antigonish County, is on the south coast of St, George’s Bay, 3 miles
east from Antigonish Harbour, and 15 miles west from the entrance of the Strait of
Canso. The harbour is formed by Pomquet Island and outlying reefs, -
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\

Bayfield wharf, on the western side of the harbour, a quarter of a mile south
from the breakwater, was commenced by a joint stock company about thirty-two
years ago, was handed over to the Government of Nova Scotia and completed about
sixteen years ago, and came under the charge of the Federal Government in 1887.
1t is 402 feet in length, 22 feet wide over a distance of 134 feet from the end, 30 feet
over & farther distance of 193} feet, and 50 feet over the remaining 24% feet. The
depth at the outer end at extreme low water is 9 feet. Spring tides rise 4 feet,
neaps rise 2 feet.

Tn November, 1887, a contract was entered into for repairing, raising and close-
piling the two outer blocks, cutting down the central and shore blocks, and for the
construction of a new work between the outer blocks and the shore. The work was
completed in November, 1888, : ) .

n 1879 a breakwater was built, extending 400 feet from Pomquet Point. A
contract entered into in 1886 for the construction of an additional length of 300 feet
was completed in October, 1888,

Dredging was done around the sides and end of the wharf to a depth of 12 feet
at low water, and in opening a basin inside of the “L” or return at the end of the
wharf, the whole for the greater and better accommodation of vessels and the ship-
ment of produce, &c.

BAY ST. LAWRENCE.

Bay St. Lawrence, Victoria County, is at the northern extremity of Cape
Breton Island, between Capes North and St. Lawrence.

Neoar the head of the bay there is a small lake enclosed by a beach of sand and

ravel. :

In 1887 a channel was opened through the beach to admit of the passage of
boats at high water. Shortly after its completion it was filled in from the outside,
over a distance of about 100 feet, and during 1888-89 the channel, which had been
alternately opened during freshets and closed during northerly gales, was re-opened
and protected by a pier extending 53 feet beyond high water and by a work of brush
and stone, 30 feet in length, inside ofit. \

The channel remained open for a while after the completion of the protection
work, but is now closed by a short bar opposite the inner end of the pier,

This shoaling is due to the travel of sand and gravel across the beach, inside
the protection work, during northerly gales. .

Spring tides rise 4 feet.

BEAVER RIVER,

Beaver River, Yarmouth County, flows into the Bay of Fundy, near the mouth
of St. Mary's Bay, and forms the dividing line between Yarmouth and Digby.

The river discharges through a gravelly beach, which frequently, when the
stream is low, obstructs the mouth, and of late years the river has been completely
closed, the water finding an exit through the gravel.

In the year 1886-87 operations were begun by the Department to improve the
. river mouth and remedy this defect. A passage was cut through the gravel bank
and sea wall, and a short breakwater was built on the southern side to catch the
gravel and prevent the bank Yeforming. :

This work proved very satisfactory, and during the last fiscal year an additional
sum of $1,500 was used for further improvements. These consist of extending the
. breakwater 100 feet, sheet-piling the northern face of the same, which was oxposed
to the action of the river and was in danger of being undermined, and extending the
_ short pier on the northern side of the mouth, it being found that storms from the

north made it difficult for fishing boats to enter and at times threw in considerable
ravel.

£ The breakwater, beside ]irotecting the river mouth, forms a good though short

loading pier for small vessels during the summer months, and the pond inside the

-sea wall a convenient boat harbour for fishermen.
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BIG BRAS D'OR.

Big Bras d’Or, Victoria County, is on the south side of the channel of the same
name, near its entrance to the Atlantic Ocean.

During the year (1888-89) the unexpended balance of the amount appropriated
for the year 1887-88 was expended in completin% a wharf 160 feet in length and 20
feet in width, with an “ L " 40 feet by 20 feet. It is strongly constructed of round
timber in blocks, with openings of 17 feet 6 inches, and is well ballasted and protected
at thefouter end by close-piling. The depth at the outer end, at extreme low water
is 11 feet.

Spring tides rise 2 feet.

’

BIG POND.

Big Pond, Cape Breton County, is on the south side of the East Bay of the Great
Bras d’Or Lake, 13 miles from the head of the bay.

During the year the unexpended balance of the amouut appropriated for the
previous year was expended in completing a wharf 260 feet in length and 20 feet
wide, with a depth at the outer end of 8 feet at lowest water level.

BLUE ROCK.

Blue Rock, Antigonish County, is on the south coast of St. George’s Bay, 2k
miles east from Tracadie Harbour.

A contract entered into in November, 1886, for the construction of a breakwater
326% fect in length, to extend in a south-westerly direction from Blue Cape, was com-
pleted in October, 1888,

'he breakwater is 16 feet wide on the top; on the seaward side it has a face
sloping 1 to 1, from the top to 1 foot below extreme high water, the outer end and
seaward side below the sloping face are built to a batter of 1 in 6, The inner side
has a batter of 1 in 12, It is strongly constructed, with faces of squared
timber, is full ballasted and is protected at the outer end and along the inner
face for a length of 30 feet by close-fendering. The work is dry at extreme low
water 60 feet from the shore end. The depth at the outer end at extreme low water
is 12 feet, and over the area sheltered from the north and east from 12 to 5 feet,

Spring tides rise 4 feet.

BROAD COVE.

Broad Cove Marsh, Inverness County, is on the Gulf of St. Lawrence, 12 miles
south from Margaree.

A contract entered into in November, 1886, for the construction of a wharf at
this Place, was completed in December, 1883,

The wharf is 400 feet in length and 25 feet in width on top. Itis strongly
constructed, with faces of squared timber, and is full ballasted and protected at the
outer end by close-fendering. The depth at extreme low water at the outer end is
12 feet 10 inches. |

Spring tides rise 4 feet 8 inches,

BRULE.

Brulé is situated on the south side of Brulé Harbour, Northumberland Strait, in
the extreme north-east corner of Colchester County, nearly midway between River
John and Tatamagouche, and distant about one mile from the railroad being built
between Oxford and New Glasgow.

The construction of the wharf was begun about 25 yeéars ago, and was com-
al:ted to its present dimensions by private subscriptions and grants from the Local

vernments of Nova Scotia and Prince Edward Irland, at a total cost of $2,500.
It is 404 feet in length, with an average width of 24 feet, and is built entirely of
round hemlock timber, For a distance of 300 feet from the inner end the top of the
whaif is gravelled ; the outer 104 feet are planked over. The work is 13 feet high at
: [1889] ‘ 65
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the outer end, and the depth of water at the same place at low water springs is 3
feet, and as spring tides rise 7 feet the depth at high water springs increases to 10
feet. 'The beach %l-ies out to about 100 feet from the end at low water. .

The trade from the wharf consists principally of hemlock bark, lumber, hay
and potatoes, and the vessels employed in the trade are small schooners, not over
300 tona burthen. ’ .

_ During 1886-87 an amount of $500 was expended by the Department in levelling
off the top and in ballasting.

During the last fiscal year a further sum of $5650 was expended in general
repairs to the structure.

The work is not much exposed, and although weakened by age is at present in
a fair state of repair.

CRANBERRY HEAD.

Cranberry Head, now Sanford, is 6 miles north of Yarmouth. Itis quite an
important fishing station, and thq breakwater is used entirely for the protection of
small vessels and fishing boats. Besides net and line fishing, two three, and some-
times as many as four large fishing traps are worked from this breakwater. These
traps represent considerable capital and employ a number of men, most of whom
own shares in the traps.

The breakwater was begun about the year 1858 by the local authorities, and
different expenditures were made by them until the year 1865. In 1876 the first
expenditure was made by the Department, and the sum of $2,000 was used in
extending the structure 150 feet. In 1878.79 a further sum of $1,000 was expended
in constructing an additional length of 50 feet'and in repairing the older portions.
_During August, 1879, the work was damaged by storm, and $500 was employed in
making necessary repairs, and in 1883-84 the outer end and part of the seaward face
was sheathed. In 1886-87 it was found that the gravel was working round the outer
end of the Eier and destroying the harbour, and a spur 28 feet long was built at right
angles to the seaward fuce near its outer end to arrest it. In 1887-88 some small
repairs were made to the sheathing, which had become worn through by the action
of the gravel, and during the past fiscal year the sum of $200 was expended in
removing the gravel from the dock where it had collected previous to the spur
being built.

The structure is comparatively short on the seaward side, owing to the large
amount of gravel collected there, only 300 feet of it being exposed above the beach,
while the inside or dock face is 470 feet long. The outer end of the pier for a
length of 232 feet is 23 feet wide, the remainder, or inshore end, baving a width of
19 feet. Tho wider gr\rtion of the work is fitted with a break 3 feet high and the
seaward face is sheathed with flatted spars from 6 to 8 inches thick.

Spring tides rise at this place 16 foet, and the breakwater extends to within «u
short distance of low wate' mark, there being from 13 to 15 feet of water at its
outer end according to the different stages or heights of the gravel. :

CHETICAMP.

Cheticamp Harbour, Inverness County, is on the west coast of Cape Breton
Island, 18 miles north from Margaree Harbour.,

A contract was entered into 10th June, 1889, for the construction of a wharf on
the eastern side of the harbour, to consist of an approach 125 feet in length and 30
feet in width over a distance of 60 feet from its outer end, with end and side walls of
stone and centre filling of earth or stone; and an extension, 80 feet in length, in two
blocks, with openings of 17 feet 6 inches. The outer block is to be 60 feet in length
a'lon‘g the channel face, and is to have a depth of 4 feet at extreme low water.

Spring tides rise 3} feet.
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COW BAY. -

Cow Bay, Cape Breton County, is on the eastern coast of Cape Breton Island,
about 18 miles south-east of Sydney Harbour. Owing to the extensive coal mines in
its vicinity it is a place of considerable importance.

The bay is two and a half miles wide at its mouth, and being completely open
to the Atlantic Ocean affords no safe anchorage during easterly winds.

A breakwater was built on the north side of the Bay by Messrs. Archibald & Co.,
roprietors of the Gowie mines, with some aid from the Government of Nova Scotia.
t is 1,386 feet in length, and was originally about 44 feet in width, with a depth at

outer end at low water of 20 feet. The area of the basin enclosed between it and
the loading pier of the Gowie mines is about 17 acres, 10 acres of which had a depth
of from 9 to 20 feet at low water. Spring tides rise b feet.

In 1873, while repairs were in progress by the Deﬁm'tment, the breakwater was
seriously dama%ed by the great gale of August 24tl(11. L fter 1the gale operations were
resumed, the balance of the amount appropriated being largely supplemented b
Messrs.-Archibald & Co. PPIoP 857 sipp y

In 1874 Messrs. Archibald & Co.’s interest in the breakwater was acquired by
the Federal Government, A contract entered into in May, 1875, for repairing and
strengthening the structure, was completed in July, 1877. Extensive repairs have
been made nearly every year since 1877, and the work has been strengthened by

. the addition of counter fortsand outer face works and by close-piling,

During the last fiscal year very extensive repairs were made to those parts of
the breakwater which had been damaged by storms and weakened by decay, and
owing to its exposed position the breakwater is always liable to be damaged by
easterly gales, :

4

DELAP'S COVE.

Delap’s Cove, Annapolis County, is situated on the south shore of the Bay of
Fundy, and is about 12 miles to the eastward of Digby Gut..

The breakwater is constructed immediately to the eastward of the mouth of a
small pond which affords safe shelter for fishing boats and a convenient place for
keeping small vessels during the stormy winter months. The breakwater itself
affords a good loading place for coasters and small schooners, the pier breaking off
all easterly storms, the formation of the coast on the opposite side of the stream
forming a natural western breakwater.

This breakwater was built by the Department in 1878-79 at a cost of $2,150. It
is 156 feet long and 25 feet 3 inches wide, and is constructed of round timber, with
square timber faces, its easterly side being sheathed with 8 inch timber. It is pro-
vided with a “break " 4 feet 6 inches high along its seaward (easterly) side, and its
covering is of 6-inch material.

In 1885 the sum of $50 was expended in repairing the foundation of the
seaward face and depositing large stone along it, to prevent the gravel from washing
away. The whole pier is in good order and is in need of no immediate repairs.

During the past year the sum of $1,000 was expended in protecting the entrance
to the pond and in placing an anchor and buoy off the outer end of the pier to enable
vessels to warp out and proceed to ses, and avoid the danger of going ashore on the
western headland to which they were formerly exposed. '

The opening into the pond was protected by extending the western face of the
pier inwards 100 feet, along the face of the stream, or to where this latter opens out
into the pond, and in raising the beach on the seaward side of the pier and prevent-
ing the stone and gravel from being thrown over the sea wall, The wharfing along
the stream is of an average height of about 16 feet and 12 feet wide, and the entrance
to the pond is now clear and unobstructed.

The warping anchor is a large rock, placed in position and fitted with proper
chains and shackles, and during the summer months has a spar buoy attached, Tgnis
latter is removed in winter, to avoid danger of drifting ice.
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DIGBRY. -

The town of Digby is situated at the western end of Annapolis Basin, and is the
eastern terminus of the Western Counties Railway. It is a port of call for
steamers running between Annapolis, St. John and Boston, and does a considerable
coasting trade, principally in the transhipment of fish. The harbour is open at all
seasons, and the pier which stands at the northernend of the town acts as a break-
water to the smaller wharves, and is the only wharf in the place accessible at low
water. The outer end of the pier was destroyed by storm in December, 1885, and
prior to this consisted of an inshore section of pile-work 560 feet long and 37 feet
wide; then a block of close-faced timber, 80 x 40 feet; next a cribwork inclined
landing, 170 feet long, over the top of which there was a deck wharfing carried on
pile bents; lastly, a close-faced timber block 50 feet by 45 feet, which formed
the outer end of the pier. A channel was also dredged along the southern
side of the pier, from the head of the inclined landing past the outer block and into
the deeper water beyond.

The storm referred to moved the outer block bodily into the dredged channel
and destroyed the outer end of the pier, as far back as the head of the inclined
landing.

A%‘ter the destruction of the outer end of the pier the passing steamers effected
a landing and loaded and discharged their freight by meauns of a scow and tug boat,
and as the detached block was very much in the way an attempt was made in 1887,
by the Department, to remove it by day’s labor. This was not successful, and in 1888 -
a contract was entered into for its removal, The contractor after much difficulty tore
the block to pieces and removed it down to the surface of the mud.

In January, 1888, operations were begun towards rebuilding the pier to its
original length, and work was continued until the 1st November last, at an expendi-
ture of $8,863.01, of which sum $2,470.62 has been expended since the begining of
the fiscal year.

The new work consists of a block 45 feet by 45 feet, to replace the former one.
This block is built of round timber, with double sets of face logs, and is full ballasted ;
it is 45 feet high, and is connected with the older portions of the pier by a eribwork
inclined landing, over the top of which a deck wgarf is carried on heavy framed
beuts. The inclined landing and its superstructure is 25 feet wide. Besides the
above, the inshore or pilework section was strengthened and repaired in places, and
parts of the worn and decayed plank covering were renewed.

The inshore end of the pier is very old and decayed, and though now in ser-
viceable condition, is liable to damage from storms, many of the piles being eaten off
by worms, and the block at the head of the inclined landing much twisted from its
original position by the storm of 1885.

Spring tides rise 27 feet 6 inches, and leave the beach bare to the head of the
landing. There is now 12 feet of water at low tide at the end of the pier,

EABT BAY.

East Bay, Cape Breton County, is an arm of the Great Bras d’Or Lake. . ‘

In 1881 a wharf was built at the head of the bay by the people, aided by a small
grant from the Provineial Government. It was originally 160 feet in length, and in
1882-83 a block 70 feet by 18 feet was built at the outer end. In 1883-84 the inshore
or original portion was placed in a thorough state of repair.

During the year 1888-89 the covering of the outer block was repaired, new
fenders replaced and two of the shore or central blocks were rebuilt and other
repairs executed. There is adegth at the outer end of 11 feet at lowest lake level.

One of the steamers of the Bras d'Or Steam Navigation Company make daily
trips between East Bay and Port Mulgrave during the summer.

EATONVILLE,

Batonville Harbour, formely known as “ The Three Sisters,” Cumberland County,
is about 10 miles north of Cape Chignecto, Bay of Fundy, and 4 miles south-west
from Apple River Harbour. . ’

68 [1889]



58 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.) - A 1890

The harbour is formed by a sand beach at its mouth, which extends from he
south side to within about 120 feet of the rocky cliff on the north side. Between
the end of the beach and the cliff flows the stream, and the tide which runs inland
about half a mile, covers, at high water, a large expanse of flats composed of marsh
mud.

Large vessels up to 1,200 tons can run into the harbour at high water, where
they load lumber for the English market, or where they undergo necessary repairs.

Spring tides rise 37 feet, neaps rise 30 feet. ‘

During 1887-88 a breakwater was constructed by the Department at a cost of
$2,000 off the northern end of the sand beach, to prevent the accumulation of gravel
in the mouth of the river and to protect the end of the beach, as during freshets
the end of the latter was often damaged, and during the season when there are no
freshets the mouth of the river wasfilling up with gravel thrown in by the sea,
making it difficult for vessels to enter or leave the harbour. The work constructed
was 123 feet in length and 20 feet wide on top, sloping 1 in 4 at the end and 1in'8
on the sides, it was built of round timber cribwork, thoroughly put together and
well ballasted. Its average height was 17 feet. 1

On the 11th August, 1880, instructions were given to extend the break- -
water a further length of 80 feet. Work was commenced upon it at once, and after
the bottom was placed and close-piled around, the work was visited by a very heavy
gale, which cut away the gravel bank at the inner end of the breakwater and under-
mined it. Work was stopped on the extension, and all the energies were bent upon
securing the inner end of the breakwater by the.construction of protection works.
The work was secured for the winter, and it has passed through very severe storms
since without further damage. The beach dries out about 100 feet beyond the end
of the unfinished work during low water springs.

GABARUS AND BELFRY LAKES,

Gabarus and Belfry Lakes, in Cape Breton County, a few miles south from
Gabarus Bay, are connected by a stillwater channel.  Belfry Lake is connected with
Fourchu Bay by a narrow and intricate channel, :

During the year 1888-89 the channel between the two lakes was deepened to
2 feet at the lowest lake level over a distance of about 800 feet. The new channel
is 20 feet in width.

GREEN COVE.

Green Cove, now called Port Maitland, Yarmouth County, is about 13 miles
north of the town of Yarmouth, and is a thriving fishing village, from which con-
siderable trap fishing is done and a large number of shore boats kept.

In 1878 the “ Pond Company " transferred a certain portion of their property
to the Crown, and the Department expended the sum of $4,500 in extending the
eastern breakwater 50 feet, and in raising and widening the inner end for a length
of 158 feet and also constructing a spur 75 feet long on the western breakwater. In
1885-86 the outer end of the eastern pier was raised and the sheathing . of the outer
face of the western breakwater repaired. -

During the early part of the winter of 1887-88 the western breakwater was
seriously damaged by a succession of storms, and a breach of 86 feet was made
directly through the work near the outer end.

In the first part of the past fiscal year the sum of $500 was expended in pro-
tecting the work from further damage. This sum was used in clearing away the
wreckage, closing up both sides of the breach, and in driving a number of fender
piles along the outer faces and exposed corners of the broken work.

The breakwater is entirely dry at low water springs, and there is about 16 feet
of water at the outer end at high tide, spring tides rising about 17 feet 6 inches at
this place. Including the gap through the work, the breakwater is 386 feet long,
and is from 20 to 22 feet wide. .
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GREEN HARBOUR.

Groen Harbour, Shelburne County, in situated between the mouth of Jordan
River and Ragged Island Harbour, and is about 2% miles to the north-west of Locke-
ort. :
P The harbour is only serviceable for small vessels, and being exposed to the south-
ward a heavy sea at times comes in from the Atlantic, but on its eastern side there
is & sheltered bay, in which some twenty fishermen keep their boats. This bay has
a channel in its centre, in which there i8 from 4 to 6 feet of water at low tide; the
rest of the bay is then dry, and consists of mud flats. On the western side of this
bay, and protecting it from the open water of Green Harbour, there is a bar of
gravel and stone.
~ During the fiseal year the sum of $100 was expended in cutting a boat chanuel
through the bar to enable the fishermen to veach their fishing grounds without the
pecessity of rowing their boats round the northern end. The channel was excavated
by hand, and is available to boats from three-quarters flood to one-quarter ebb; it is
125 feet long, and sufficiently wide to enahle the largest boats to pass through.

HAMPTON.

Hampton, or Chute’s Cove, Annapolis County, is 25 miles east of Dighy Gut, and
is 6 miles north of Bridgetown, its nearest railway station,
~ The original pier at this place was built by the Provincial Government, and was
about half a mile to the westward of the present structure. It was 165 feet in length
and in 1879 the Department expended $3,000 in extending the work 121 feet, in
strengthening the older parts and in preventing the work from being undermined
by the action of the sea.

In 1881 it was found that the original work had been so badly located that it
would be impossible to make it of any practicable service, as it was not only being
undermined on the seaward side but, owﬁlg to the direction of the pier the shingle
was fust shoaling the water on the inside. It was therefore decided to remove the
structure to its present site.

This was done at a cost of $2,300, and such of the materials of the old structure
as were sound and fit for the purpose were used in the new work. The present pier
is 264 feet long, and issituated immediately to the westward of the mouth of a small
stream. This latter washes away the sand.

In examining this work last year it was found that the stream had worked
under the foundation and endangered the whole structure. To guard against this,
during the past year the Department expended the sum of $675 in close-{)iling the
entire inner face, levelling u}) the top of the work, which had settled in places, put-
ting in some additional ballast and effecting some general repairs to the coverin
and “break.” The pier is now in good condition, and affords at high water a goog
safe loading berth for small schooners and coasters.

The trade is the same as that of other piers along this coast of the Bay of Fundy,
viz., principally cordwood, fish and the shipment of apples, potatoes and other pro-
ducts of the North Mountain.

. The range of tides is from 27 to 31 feet, and there is about 20 feet of water at
the end of the pier at ordinary high water spring tides.

JONES' HARBOUR.

Jones’ Harbour, Shelburne County, is a small harbour on the eastern side of
the mouth of Sable River, and is distant 12 miles east of Lockeport by water. The
havbour is small, but being land locked and having 12 feet of water in its channel, it
is much used by shore fishermen in the fall, when the larger vessels have returned
from the “ Banks.”

' Owing to its position on the coast, there is a heavy run of tide in the harbour,
and the fishermen have had difficulty in properly securing their boats.
70 [1889]



53 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.) A. 1890

During the fiscal year the Department expended the sum of $50 in placing
moorings in the harbour. These consist of two ring bolts in exposed racks, and a
heavy stone anchor, with chain swivel and buoy attached.

KINGSPORT.

Kingsport, formerly Oak Point, King’s County, is situated on the western shore
of the Basin of Minas, between the mouth of the Cornwallis River and Caps
Blomidon, and it is the eastern terminus of a branch of the Windsor and Annapolis
Railway now under construction. .

The original pier was 445 feet in length, and was owned and controlled by a
pier company, which transferred it to the Crown in 1873-74. A crib-work facing,
12 feet wide, was built along the eastern or exposed side, for the purpose of breaking
the force of the sea.

In March, 1875, a contract was made for the extension of the pier 270 feet, with
a width of 30 feet, in order to increase the area sheltered and afford earlier access to
the harbour which, owing to the great range of tides (from 40 to 43 feet), is dry
between half ebb and half flood, and was completed in November 1875.

In 1883-84 some slight repairs were made to the older work, and in 1885-86 the
covering which had become old and worn in places was renewed.

During 1887, 107 feet of the damaged face work of the breakwater was rebuilt.

In the autumn of 1888 it was found that the covering of the pile work section
was 8o decayed that it was impossible for the farmers to reach the outer part of the
pier with their loaded teams, and a plank driveway, 12 feet wide over the pile
‘section, was begun in November and completed during the early part of the winter.

LITTLE NARROWS.

Little Narrows, Vietoria County, is a contraction of the St. Patrick’s channel
of the Great Bras d’Or Lake, at a point 7 miles to the eastward of the village of
‘Whycocomagh.

A wharf was constructed on the south side of the Narrows in 1887-88. It con-
sists of a shore block, 47 feet 6 inches 1n length and 20 feet in width, and of a pile
extension 82 feet in length, with an “L” at the outer end 40 feet by 20 feet. The depth
at the outer end is 14 feet. The level of the Lake is constant.

During the year (1888-89) the unexpended balance of the amount appropriated
for the year 1887-88 was expended in the construction of astore houge and in repairs
to the slip.

The I\3vhm-f is used by one of the steamers of the Bras d’Or Steam Navigation
Company plying between Little Bras d’Or, Baddeck and Whycocomagh, and as a
place of shipment for cattle and farm produce.

LISMORE.

Lismore, in Pictou County, is on the Northumberland Strait, 10 miles east from
Merigomish, the nearest harbour, and the same distance east from French River, the
nearest station on the eastern extension of the Intercolonial Railway. The residents
are farmers and engage in fishing, '

A wharf was commenced in 1886-87 and completed the following year. It is 200
feet in length and 20 feet wide, strongly constructed of squared timber, close-faced, and
is full ballasted and protected at the outer end by close-fendering. The depth at the
outer end at extreme low water is 1 foot 9 inches. Spring tides rise 4 feet 6 inches.

During the last fiscal year a small amount of blasting was done on the ledge, to
give a greater depth of water.

LOWER HORTON.

Lower Horton, or Horton Landing is situated in the eastern ¢nd of King's
County, N.8., at the mouth of the Gasperaux River, about midway between Avonport
and Wolfville, It is a station on the Windsor and Annapolis Railway.
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During the fiscal year 1888-89 the sum of $2,252.28 was expended in rebuilding
the loading wharf at this place ; the former wharf which was built some sixty years
ago, having become so decayed and dilapidated that it was useless for shipping
purposes,

The new wharf is built upon the site of the old one, and is constructed of round
timber open cribwork, with three ballast floors, pile-fenders, plank covering, &c. The
work is 172 feet long, 65 feet wide at the outer end and 23 feet 6 inches wide at the
inner. o ‘

The site is a safe and sheltered one, being within the mouth of the river, and
though the work is dry at low water, owing to the great range of tide, vessels draw-
ing 18 feet can reach it at high water. ’

MABOU.

Mabou Harbour, Inverness County, is on the west coast of Cape Breton, 6 miles
north-east from Port Hood. Its entrance was formerly at the southern extremity
of a range of sand hills by an intricate channel, obstructed by a bar over which
there was a depth of only 4 feet at low water.

In 1870 a survey was made, and a report submitted on the project of opening a
new channel through the sand hills at their northern extremity, and closing the
existing channel.

" The work was commenced in 1872. A pier on the south side of the new channel,
753 feet in length, which was completed in 1876, and the same year the old channel
was closed. Expenditures have been made nearly every year since 1876 in construc-
ting a brush and stone dam on the south side near the outer end of the pier, con-
structing and repairing a breast-work. on the north side, repairing the pier and
protecting it by close-piling, and since 1885 in constructing a work of brush and stone
in shoal water on the north side of the channel, extending 1,112 feet beyond the
outer end of the pier.

The amount appropriated for the year 1888-89 was expended in increasing the
height of the brush and stonework.

The new channel is straight and is in every way a great improvement on the
former entrance, which is now closed by a sand bar from 900 to },000 feet in width.
The depth at low water, in the new channel opposite the outer end of the brush and
stonework, is 7 feet; beyond this there is a short bar covered with 6 feet at low
water. In the channel from the outer end of brush and stome work to the outer end
of the pier the depth varies from 8 to 12 feet, and opposite the pier, where it is about
100 feet wide, from 12 to 15 feet at low water. From the inner end of the pier there
is a channel 4,000 feet in length, expanding into a fine basin 2} miles long, and from
one quarter to one-half a mile wide, inside the 10 foot line, and having a depth of
from 2% to 4 fathoms over a large part of its area,

MAIN A DIEU.

Main & Dieu, Cape Breton County, is a small harbour on the eastern coast of
Cape Breton Island, 10 miles north-east from Louisburg. It is sheltered by Scat-
tarie Island and by reefs in the bay between it and the mainland, and affords a safe
anchorage for small coasting and tishing vessels, by whom it is much frequented, in
from 10 to 13 feet at low water. Spring tides rise 5% feet. :

A breakwater, 250 feet in length, was built from a point on the eastern side of
the harbour in 1881-82. 1t consists of a core of timber work, full ballasted and cov-
ered with stone, sloping on the seaward side and outer end 3 to 1 and on the inner
side 2 to 1, over which there is a covering of heavy stone carefully placed.

During the year (1888-89) $400 was expended in replacing some of the heavy
stones of the inner slope, near the outer end of the breakwater, which had first been
lifted out of place by ice and afteyward carried away by the sea.
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MARGARETVILLE.,

Margaretville, Annapolis County, is on the southern shore of the Bay of Fundy,
about 42 miles east of Digby Gut. , ‘

During the storm of 27th December, 1885, the pier at this place was seriously
damaged, and a breach of 150 feet was made completely through the work.

At the Session of 1885-86 the sum of $8,500 was voted to repair the pier, and
during the last half of the year 1886 the destroyed portion was reguilt, at a cost of
$4,419.92. In the spring of 1887 the repairs were continued, and the seaward face of
the old work, which was much decayed and worm-eaten, was cut down and rebuilt,
These repairs were in progress until the close of the season of 1887, when it was
found that the sum appropriated was not sufficient to finish the work undertaken.

During the past year the additional sum of $300 was used to complete the work
of the previous season, This consisted of finishing the sheating of outer face, adding
40 fect of new cap timber and three additional knees to the “break,” completing the
ballasting and covering, and removing some remaining old ballast from the dock or
loading berth. ‘

The structure is now in good order, and requires no further repairs or expendi-
ture. It is 470 feet long and from 35 to 39 feet wide, and extends to within a short
diktanice of low water mark. The tides range from 28 to 32 feet, and there is a
depth of 27 feet at the end of the pier at high water springs.

MCNAIR'S COVE.

MeNair's Cove, Antigonish County, is on the western shore of St. George's Bay,
5 miles south from Cape George.

In 187273 a breakwater was constructed, extending 400 feet from the northern
point of the cove. Repairs were made from time to time, and in 1878 a block, 20
feet in length, was placed at the outer end. In 1879 the work was carried away by
drift ice from the outer end to within 100 feet of theshore end down to from 6 to 3
feet below low water. During the summer ot 1883, 70 feet of the shoreend was
rebuilt, and during the winter of 1884 the work was extended 94 feet. In April 1884,
the 94 feet extension was badly damaged by drift ice and subsequently carried away.

In 1887 a contract was entered into for the reconstruction of 160 feet of the
breakwater, and the work was completed in December, 1888,

The new work is 34 feet wide on top and has a sloping face-on the seaward side
and outer end. It is strongly constructed, close-faced, full ballasted, and protected
on the seaward side and outer end by close-piling.

The depth at extreme low water at the outer end of the new work is 11 feet,
and at its inner end 5 feet. Spring tides rise 4 feet,

NOEL.

Noel Bay,Hants County,is situated on the southern side of Cobequid Bay,about
13 miles to the westward of the village of Maitland. It is the largest indentation on
the southern side of the bay, being about a mile and a-half wide at its mouth and
extending back from the general coast line about the same distance. The whole of
the bay, with the exception of some small ereek channels, is bare at low water. Spring
tides rise 50 feet, neaps 43 feet.

To accommodate the large and prosperous agricultural community of this neigh-
borhood, during the last fiscal year the Department constructed, at an expense of
$3,000, a landing wharf on the west side of the bay. The wharf, including the
approach, is 275 feet in length and 25 feet wide with an * L at the outer end 35 feet
long, The approach, which is 75 feet in length, is constructed of crib work, filled in
with brush, stone and gravel, and the main structure is built on pile bents and covered
with plank. A double row of close-piling was placed along the seaward face of the
wharf, and a single row at the outer end and L face. At the end there are 16 feet of
water at high water, ordinary tides, and 20 feet at spring tides.
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PARKER'S OOVE.

Parker’s Cove, Annapolis County, issituated on the sonthern shore of the Bay of
Fundy, about 15 miles to the eastward of Digby Gut, and is directly north of
Aunapolis, its nearest railway station, and distant therefrom 7 miles.

‘ During the year 1883-84 a small breakwater, 165 feet in length and 26 feet
wide, was built near the eastern end of the cove for the accommodation of small boats
and fishermen, The breakwater extends outwards at right angles to the head of the
cove 100 feet, and its outer end has a slight angle to the westward.

Spring tides rise at this Elaee about 30 feet, but as there is only 8 feet of water
at the end of this gier at high water it is of little use for shipping purposes, and is
therefore only used by fishermen.

During the past year the sum of $200 was expended in general repairs to the
structure, These consist of ten new fenders for the inner face, renewing 80 feet of
cap timber, raising the surface of the outer end 2 feet and protecting the foundation
from further settlement. The work is now in good order,

PARRSBORO' BREAKWATER.

Parrsboro’ Breakwater is situated on the crown of the beach, which extends out
from the western side of the mouth of Partridge Island River, and forms the
harbour of Parrsboro’, Cumberland County.

The beach is about a-third of a mile in length, and the lighthouse is situated
near the eastern end. Being only a few feet above high water mark, the sea would
break over it during southerly storms, and danger existing of a breach being made
through the beach, and so destroying the harbour inside, the Marine and Fisheries
Department constructed a breakwater for the protection of the beach.

The breakwater, or rather the beach protection, is 1,130 feet in length, with two
spurs at its eastern end 50 feet in length each, built stepping off. The work is 10
feet wide and from 4 to 6 feet in height, built of squared timber laid close, partly
filled with gravel to the top, and partly ballasted with gravel and planked over.

The western end of the work, for a distance of 200 feet, having been undermined,
the Department, during last season, expended the sum of $370 upon it. With that
amount the damaged portion was strengthened and secured, and the work was
exltended a length of 30 feet inshore, to prevent scour around it during southerly
gales.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND PIER.

Partridge Island Pier is situated on the north side of the Basin of Minas, about a
mile to the westward of the mouth of the Partridge Island River, and about 2 miles
distant from the town of Parrsboro’, the terminus of the Cumberland Railway and
Coal Co.’s railway.

The pier being directly on the sea shore, it has the benefit of the full extent of
the tides, and as vessels can approach it and leave it at half tide, it is the principal

int of communication between Cumberland County and the Counties of King's and
ants, on the south shore of the basin; and the steamers of the Basin of Minas, and
the St. John and Basin of Minas routes, call there regularly during the season,

The pier is about 500 feet in length, and its width on the top varies from 27 to
29 feet. 'The inner end, for a distance of 42 feet slopes 6 feet, thence to the outer
end it keeps its level, which is 4 feet below high water springs. On theinside it has
a narrow inclined landing to afford passengers and freight a chance to land at all
times of the tide. It is built of squared timber, with perpendicular faces, and is
floored over. At the outer end it is 30 feet high, and tﬁe beach dries out, at low
water, about 100 feet from the end of the pier.

This pier was built during 1864-65 by the Local Government of Nova Scotia,
and since Confederation it has received heavy repairs from the Department. It is
exposed to south-easterly gales, and when the ice is running up and down the bay
with the wind and tide, and the top being low, and the outer portion submerged dur-
ing high water springs, it is in constant danger of being damaged.

4
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During last year & small amount was exﬁended upon it, in renewing and
re-fastening some planks in the covering which had become loasened.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND RIVER.

This river enters the north side of the Basin of Minas, the south-eastern arm of
the Bay of Fundy, at the Village of Parrsboro’, Cumberland County, the terminus of
the Cumberland %ailway and Coal Company’s railway (formerly the Springhill and
Parrsboro’ Railway). The river from the village to its mouth forms the harbour,
and it is a very imFortant shipping point for coal and for lumber.

The channel of the river is very crooked, and in the spring of 1879 the work of
cutting off Robertson’s, Shannon's and Mullin's Points was commenced by the
Department, and continued from year to year until 1884, when the contemplated
work was brought to completion.

The spit making out from the end of the sand bar on the eastern side and near
the mouth of the river, and consisting of clay and gravel, has always been a serious
obstruction to navigation, necessitating a very sharp turn at this point, and par-
ticularly when large steamers and vessels come to and leave the new landing pier
of the company, coal laden.

The river runs dry at low water, excepting a small fresh water channel, but at
high water springs there is a depth of 25 feet at the loading pier.

During the last fiscal year the sum of $3,000 was expended by the Department
. in cutting away the point of the spit, the quantity of material removed being
nearly 6000 cubic yards of tough clay mixed with gravel.

PICTOU ISLAND.

Pictou Island, Pictou County, in the Strait of Northumberland, is 6 miles long
by 14 wide and about 10 miles north-east of Pictou light, the residents being engaged
in fishing and agriculture.

There are two small wharves on the south side of the Island—one near the
west end, built by the Provincial Government, and repaired and strengthened by the
Department in 1880 ; and one near the centre of the Island, known as the “Hast
‘Wharf,” built by the Department in 1882-83.

During the year the balance of the amount appropriated for 1887-88 -was
expended in completing extensions of the east and west wharves, The east wharf
has been extended 100 feet and the west wharf 92 feet 6 inches. The extensions are
20 feet wide on top, of round timber, ballasted and protected at the outer end by
close-fendering. .

‘ The depth at extreme low water at the outer end of the east wharf is 3 feet to
shifting sand, and 4 feet to hard botitom ; that at the outer end of the west wharfis 3
feet. Spring tides rise 4 feet 6 inches.

PORT GREVILLE,

Port Greville, Cumberland County, is situated in Greville Bay, on the northern
side of the Minas Channel, Bay of Fundy. and at the mouth of the Ratchford River.
Itis about 15 miles west of the town of Parrsboro’, the terminus of the C. R. & C.
Company’s Railway, and 15 miles east of Cape d’Or.

he harbour is formed by a high gravel bar, which lies parallel to the shore,
between which the river runs for half a mile before reaching low water mark. The
bar although high, was, previous to 1872, covered during high water springs ; but
during that yeara gale occurring at that stage of the tide the sea swept off the crown
of the bar for a length of 2,800 feet, and to a depth of about 2% feet. The protec-
tion thus afforded by the bar was in a great mesasure destroyed, and to restore its
usefulness and improve it a wall of round timber cribwork, 2,200 feet in length and
averaging 7 feet in depth, was constrneted by the Deparument in 1874.

During 1886-87 a breakwater was constructed off the eastern end of the orib-
work wall, for the duuble purpose of arresting the gravel which was being swept
into the harbor by westerly gales, and deviating the course of the river, so as to
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shorten its passage to the sea. It is 250 feet in length and 21 feet wide on' the top,
with sides sloping % to 1 on the seaward face. The work averaged a depth of 20
feet; it is built of round timber eribwork, the seaward face being sheathed with 6-inch
})lank, and the inner face and end being close-piled to a depth of 3 feet below the
line of assumed clay bottom, to prevent scouring of the foundation. Low water
mark extends out about 250 feet from the end of the breakwater. Spring tides rise
40 feet, neaps 33 feet.

PORT HOOD.

Port Hood the shire town of the County of Inverness, is on the west coast of Cape
Breton, 20 miles north of the northern entrance of the Strait of Canso. .

A pier 550 feet long and 24 feet wide with an L. 100 feet by 25 feet, was built on
the eastern shore of the harbour in 1885-86 by the Provincial Government. When
first taken in charge by the Department it was in want of repairs. In November,
1871, a portion 200 feet in length was destroyed; during the two following seasons
this was re-built, other necessary repairs made, and a new block, 125 feet by 25 feet,
built at the outer end. Slight repairs were made in 1877-78 and 1879, and extensive
repairs in 1879-82 to make good damages caused by gales in October, 1879, in August
1880 and again in November, 1881. pairs of a permanent character were made
in 1883-84, including the placing a protection work of large stones on both sides of
the pier, sloping from high water on the north side 3 to 1, and on the south side
2 to 1. In 1884-85 some of the large stones of the protection work which had been
disturbed were replaced. A smali amount was expended in repairs to the outer end
in 1887-88. While these were in progress the south end of the L was damaged below
low water, and subsequently 40 feet of it was carried away.

The amount appropriated (1888-89) was expended in the construction of a new
block 48 feet by 22 feet at the south end of the “L,” in connecting it with the new
block, and in other repairs.

The depth at extreme low water at the south or end face of the “L" is about 9
feet. Spring tides rise 4 feet.

The following is a statement of the number of trips made by steamers calling at
Port Hood, their tonnage, &c., during the year ended 30th June:— ‘

8.S. “Beaver,” 99 tous, from Picton ......coovveeenericiareacnns 58 trips
« 8.8 “Rimouski,” 84 tons, from Mulgrave........cc.co.curuvnn. 52
S.8. “M. A. Stair,” 166 tons, from Halifax...........ccceeeeeee 2«

PORT LORNE.

Port Lorne, formerly Port Williams or Marshall's Cove, is on the Bay of Fundy
shore of Annapolis County, 30 miles east of Digby Gut, and it is 8 miles north of
Bridgetown, its nearest railway station.

The pier at this place was begun in 1835, and was built at the joint expense of
the inhabitants and tEe Local Government, and it is said that up to the year 1867
$16,000 was expended upon it. Like all other similar piers on this coast of Nova
Scotia, its trade has been greatly injured by the construction of the Windsor and
Annapolis Railway, which has diverted much of it into other channels, but there is
still quite a business doue at the pier by small schooners and coasting vessels in car-
rying potatoes, apples, fish and cordwood to the St. John and Boston markets.

The first expenditure made at this place by the Department was in 1873-74,
when the sum of $3,500 was used in extending the work 67 feet. In 1879 some
necessary repairs were made, at a cost of $745.76, and in 1882-83 a contract was
entered 1nto for a further extension of the pier to give additional shelter to vessels.

This latter work was finished during the following year, and is 100 feet long and
36 feet wide: it is close-faced with square timber on both inside and outside, and is
provided with a break 4 feet high, :

During the past fiscal year the sum of $200 was expended in effecting general
repairs to the whole work. These repairs consist of some additional ballast, new
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floor stringers and covering in the centre portion of-the pier, five new fenders, one
mooring post and strengthening the break in two places. : -

The outer end of the structure is still about 100 feet from low water, but owing
to the range of tides, from 32 feet to 28 feet, there is 25 feet of water at the end of
the pier at high water springs.. The structure is 410 feet long and 36 feet wide,

ROSEWAY BEACH.

Roseway Beach, Shelburne County, is situated at the eastern end of Round
Bay, and is about 10 miles due south of Shelburne town.

The beach extends from the shore outwards towards Grey’s Island, and forms a
natural breakwater to a small harbour behind it from which considerable fishing is
done in shore boats. ) L

The beach or bar is composed of fine white sand, which, whep dry, drifts badly,
and the top of the bar has gradually been getting lower and lower, until this present
year, when some extra high tides came over into the harbour. The material com-
posing the bar is so light that the tide in a short time would cut it away and destroy
the harbour, and as it would be very difficult to stop an opening once made, it was
important that the beach should be protected at once. .

The sum of $100 was appropriated for this work, and the beach was protected in
the same manner as that of Round Bay, immediately to the westward, viz.—brush
and small trees were fastened together and-laid along the highest part of the beach.
These collected the drifting sand and built up the beach to its former level,

The small expenditure has proven of great benefit to the fishermen, and has
saved from destructiou a small but convenient boat harbour.

ROUND BAY.

Round Bay, Shelburne County, is on the Atlantic coast of Nova Scotia, about
3 miles east of Negro Harbour, and 13 miles to the sauthward of Shelburne.

The shores and beaches of Round Bay are composed of fine white sand which
during the summer months, is liable to become very dry and drift badly with the
winds off the Atlantic. The drifting takes place mostly near high water mark
where the sand is dryest, and as the beaches wear away the tide flows further and
farther inland, destroying the sea-walls and washing away the highway which follows
the line of shore round the head of the bay.

The beaches have for years been protected and the sea walls built up by placing
brush and trees, with their branches left on, a short distance above high water
mark., This brush, &ec., in a short time collects the sand, and is buried up in it,
forming an efficient sea wall at a small cost. After the lapse of some years the whole
brush, and especially the finer portions of it, dry, rot and break away, so that it will
no longer retain the sand. : ‘

The beach, besides forming the highway, is also a natural protection to a pond
inside the sea wall, in which the fishermen keep their boats; there is an opening
into this pond near the western end of the beach, known as Sand Creek.

During the first half of the present fiscal year the sum of $100 was expended by.
the Department in repairing the gaps in the seawall, and also in protecting in a more
substantial manner the mouth of Sand Creck. The sum appropriated was not suffi-
cient to complete thexe repairs, it being found that heavier material than brush was
required at the creek mouth, owing to the action of the tide against it, and a further
sum of $80 was used to complete the work. The beach and e¢ntrance to the pond is
in better condition now than it has been for years, and is not likely to require
further repairs for some years to come.

The range of tides is from 5% to 7 feet, and the beaches being very flat, they
dry for a long Jistance out.

SHEET HARBOUR.
Sheet Harbor is situated on the Atlantic coast of Nova Scotia, in the eastern

part of Halifax County, and is distant about 60 miles to the eastward of the
mouth of Halifax Harbour. ’
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The harbour is one of the finest in Nova Scotia, being of considerable extent
and having an abundant depth of water. It runs inland some 6} miles to a
point where it divides into the arms, called respectively the West and East Rivers.

There are saw and pulp mills at the head of each arm, at which a large amount
of lumber is cut and a considerable amount of pulp made. The lumber is exported
in large vessels, principally barques, to the United Kingdom, and the pulp is shipped
in schooners to the United States. Vessels coming to Sheet Harbour generally arrive
in ballast and as all the available ballast grounds have been filled in, and the further
depositing of it would injure the deep water channels, during the year 1887-88 a
ballast wharf was constructed by the Department at the head of the West River. It
is detached from the mainland, and is 60 feet in length and 15 feet wide.
The front face of the wharfand “I.” have a batter of 1 in 12: the western end, the
inner side and the end of the “I" are plumb, and the inner end of the wharf slopes

to 1.
¥ The work throughout is built of round timber, and the front face is sheathed
with 3 inch plank. The top is 3 feet above high water springs, and along the front
there is a depth of water at low water springs of 14 feet. Spring tides rise 6 feot 6
inches. : .

On the 9th January, ult., a contract was entered into for the construction of a
ballast wharf on the north side of the East River, starting from the end of the
remains of Ball's Wharf, running westerly a distance of 180 feet, and 20 feet wide,
with an “L"” 20 feet long and 20 feet wide at the western end, the work being
built of round timber and the top, which is 3 feet above high water springs, will be
covered with 3 inch plank. At 10 feet from the front of the wharf{there are from
14 to 16 feet of water at low water springs. At the end of the fiscal year this ballast
wharf was nearly completed.

SPENCER’S ISLAND.

The settlement of Spencer’s Island is situated at the western end of Greville
Bay, on the north side of the Minas Channel, Bay of Fundy, about 3 miles to the
eastward of Cape d’Or and 30 miles distant by road from Parrsboro’, Cumberland
County, the terminus of the C. R. & C. Co.’s Railway, and steamers 6f the St. John
and Basin of Minas route call there weekly on their way from Parrsboro’ to St.
John, and vice versa.

It derives its name from a small island lying opposite, and distant about half a
mile from the mainland. To the northward of the island there is good anchorage,
and safe from all winds, excepting those from east to south.

To afford shipping facilities, as well as for the shelter of small vessels and boats,
during 1887-88 a landing wharf was constructed by the Department at a cost of
$5,000. It is 307 feet in length and 20 feet wide on top, and consists of an approach
15 feet long, pile-work 150 feet, and of a round timber block at the end 142 feet in
length. The pile-work consists of pile bents, 15 feet apart, each having five piles
The block slopes 1 in 3 on the seaward face and 1 in 12 on the inside face.
and is thoroughly put together and well bullasted. The pile work, as well as the
block, are covered with 3-inch plank, and the top is 5 feet above assumed high
water springs. At the end of the block'there is a depth of 27 feet at high water
springs, and the beach at low water dries out about 600 feet from the end.  Spring
tides rise 39 feet, neaps 33 feet.

During last season an amount of $150 was expended in close piling and placing
brush and stone around the north-east corner of the end, to prevent scour,

TATAMAGOUCHE,

The village of Tatamagouche, Colchester County, is situated on the western side
of the Tatamagouche River, about 1} miles from its entrance into Tatamagouche
Bay, on the south side of the Strait of Northumberland. It is distant 16 miles from
Wentworth station on the I. C. R., and it is a station on the Short Line Railway now
under construction between Oxford and New Glasgow.
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The Tatamagouche River, between its banks at high water, is here from 1,000
- 10 1,500 feet in width, but the navigable channel is only from 150 to 200 feet wide.
Owing to the existence of shoals in the channel, which prevented vessels leaving or
entering during low water, the Department deepened and straightened the same by
dredging, and a depth of 7 feet can be obtained from the wharves at Tatamagouche
out to sea. Spring tides rise T feet, neaps 5} feet.
To accommodate the inhabitants living on the castern side of the river, who
were obliged to haul their produce for shipment to the wharves at Tatamagouche, a
distance of 3 miles, and haul the coal which they use from the wharves to their
- homes, the Department finished during the last fiscal year, at a cost of $600, a public
wharf on the east side of the river and nearly opposite the mouth of the FPrench
River, which flows into the Tatamagouche half a mile below the village. The wharf
is 96 feet in length, and consists of a short shore abutment and three round timber
blocks, with intervening spaces. The wharf, excepting the outer block, which is 30
feet wide, is 20 feet in width and is covered with ]flank. There is a depth of 7 feet
at low water 7 feet from the end of the outer block, and the mud flats dry out to
within 10 feet of the outer end.

TROUT COVE.

Trout Cove is situated on the Bay of Fundy coast of Digby Neck, nearly mid-
way between Digby Gut and Petit Passage.

In 1858, the inhabitants, assisted by a grant from the Local Government, built a
breakwater 200 feet long and 30 feet wide. In 1876 a block 175 feet long and 30
feet wide was added by the Department, and in 1880, and again in 1881, extensive
repairs were made 1o the old breakwater, 100 feet of which was completely
destroyed by a storm in 1879, the total expenditure by the Department up to 1882
amounting to $5,499.76. In 1882-83 it was found necessary to make further re;mirs,
and in 1885-86, 100 feet of new facing was built into the old work, the “ break ” was
raised and strerigthened, and the outer end of the breakwater ballasted. Again, in
1887-88, it was found necessary to repair this face by constructing 140 feet of new
work, and adding to the width of the « break;” some general repairs were also done
at this time and new covering put down,

During the past fiscal year the sum of $399.79 was used to repair the beach and

w:ill;‘e inner end of the work, the beach having washed away and exposed the foun-
tion. .

The present structure is 436 feet long and 30 feet wide. It is dry at low water,
and at high tide there is a depth of 21 feet 6 inches at the outer end. Being m:e only
breakwater between Digby Gut and Petit Passage, a distance of over 80 miles,
considerable coasting business is done at it, and it is also important as a refuge for
shore fishermen and a place to keep their boats and vessels.

WALLACE.

Wallace Harbour, Cumberland County, is situated at the mouth of the Wallace
River, which empties into the south side of the Northumberland Straits, about mid-
way between Pictou Harbour and Bay Verte, being about 45 miles to the
northward of the former, and 40 miles to the southward of the latter, and is well
protected from all winds, excepting those from the eastward.

The width of the river opposite Wallace is about 3,000 feet, but the navigable
channel is only about 500 feet wide, the remainder of the width being composed of
mud flats, which dry at low water springs. Spring tides rise 7 feet, neaps 5 feet.

Opposite the town of Wallace, which is situated on the south side of the river, &
wharf was constructed many years ago, but as the communication thereto was only
available at or near high water, the Department, in 1879, opened a channel, 45 feet
wide and about 1,600 feet in length, with a depth of 8 feet at low water, from the
main channel to the wharf.

This channel is almost at right angles to the shore line, and at high water the
tide and sea sweep across it, and oousiderable] silting up took place, particularly at
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the inner end of the cut, and in 1887 it was cleaned ont. The channel at present is

from 40 to 45 feet wide, with a depth of water in it from 6 to 7% feet at low water -

springs,

P 'lgowards preventing the inner end of the cut from silting up, and to afford at thé
same time increased shipping facilities, the wharf was extended during the last fiscal
year, at a cost of $1,000. It commenced at the end of the public road, and is 165
feet in length, 20 feet wide, and composed of a series of round timber blocks and
spans, covered with 3-inch plank, The work dries at low water springs, but
at b feet from the inner face at the outer end there is a depth of 6 feet in the cut.

WESTERN HEAD.

Western Head, Queen’s County, is situated on the southern side of the entrance
to Liverpool Bay, and is distant about 4 miles to the south of Liverpool. Itisa
bold, rocky point, exposed to the whole sweep of the Atlantic, behind which there is
a partial shelter that enabled fishermen to land in moderate weather and draw their
boats up on the beach.

A large number of boats are kept here, and as it is often impossible for the
fishermen to make a landing if they should happen to be caught by a sudden storm
on their fishing grounds, and as there is no other convenient shelter to run for, it
was considered advisable to construct a breakwater for their protection.

The work was begun in 1887, and during the fiscal year 1887-88 the sum of
$5,000 was expended towards the comstruction of a stone breakwater immediately
behind and partly in shelter of the * Head.”

During the present fiscal year the further sum of $2,000 was used to complete
the work. Late in the full of 1888 and soon after the breakwater was completed this
coast was visited by an unusually heavy gale, which lasted three days and destroyed
the outer end of the structure and scattered the heavy stone of which it was com-
posed over and in front of the boat landing.

The breakwater was constructed of large, flat-bedded rock, quarried on theshore
side of the “Head,” and picked up on the neighbouring beaches. The bottom
courses were firmly bolted to the ledge wherever it showed above high water, and
the facing stone of the other courses bolted each to each, and to the next course
below, with inch iron. The breakwater was 40 feet wide on top and 190 feet
long, and the site selected was immediately behind the highest part of the solid
ledge projecting out from the ““Head,” so that as little as possible of the outer fuce
of the work should be exposed to the sea.

WHITE POINT.

White Point, Victoria County, is on the Atlantic coast of Cape Breton Island, at
the southern extremity of Aspy Bay. The coast south along the Atlantic to Neil
Harbour distant 7 miles and west 3% miles to the head of Aspy Bay, 18 rugged and
destitute of harbours or of good landing places for boats.

The amount appropriated (1888-89) was expended in excavating a dock or
landing place for boats 100 feet in length, and extending 60 feet in from original
high water mark. The bottom rises 1in 5, and is at the back 12 feet above high
water. The excavation was in loose rock, with clay overlying, and against a rock
wall 8 feet in height. A fine beach 150 feet in lengt{ was formed between high and
low water, and affords a convenient and safe landing place. ,

{ YARMOUTH.

Yarmouth harbour and town are situated at the south-western end of the Pro-
vince of Nova Scotia. The town is of considerable extent, and annually exports
large quantities of fish. It possesses several manufactories and a “marine railway,”
and a small dry dock, where vessels not exceeding 800 tons burden can be repaired.

During the year the channel in the harbour and leading to the wharves was
both straightened and deepened, and a change made in the position of the “ beacons,”
which were moved into the line of-the improved channel.
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NEW BRUNSWICK.

ANDERSON’S HOLLOW. \

Anderson’s Hollow, Albert County, is situated on the northern shore of Chignecto
Channel, or north-eastern arm of the Bay of Fundy, and on the eastern side of Salis-
bury Bay, which lies between Cape Enragé and Matthew’s Head. _

The formation of a harbour at the place was first commenced by the Depart-
ment in 1879-80, when an isolated block, 100 feet in length and 25 feet in width on
top, was constructed at a distance of 550 feet from the shore and some 300 feet
from extreme low water mark. Spring tides rise 40 feet and neap tides 34 feet,

Additions to this were made in 1883-84, and 1885-86 of 90 and 100 feet
respectively. , ‘

During the fall of 1887 a contract was entered into for the construction of -the
remaining length (260 feet), to form a connection with the shore, and this was satis-
factorily completed in August, 1888, ‘

Repairs, consisting of re-fastening and replacing fenders and inserting blocks for
strengthening the inner face of the outer 100 feet, or original block, were made,
while several rocky ledges dangerous to vessels approaching or leaving the Break-
water were removed, : '

BELLIVEAU.

Belliveau, Westmorland County, is situated on the eastern side of the Petitcodiac
River, opposite Hillsboro’, Albert County, and distant about 16 miles south from
Moncton, or 8 miles north from Dorchester, both important stations on the Inter-
colonial Railway.

Belliveau and vicinity are thriving and prosperous settlements, the inhabitants. -
being now principally en%laged in agricultural pursuits, the destruction, in 1869,
of a wharf at the place, having seriously interfered with the shad fisheries, and

reventing the shipment of the surplus produce raised in the district, or the cheap
import of supplies required. To remedy this, in March, 1888, a contract was
entered into for the construction of a wharf 200 feet long and 24 feet in width
(measured on top), after which it was arranged with the contractor to extend the
work 33 feet, all of which was satisfactorily completed on the 9th November,
1888.

Spring tides rise 45 feet, neaps 38 feet. The end of the work is about 200 feet
from line of low water, and there is a depth at ordinary tides of 14 feet of water,
or 18 feet at high water spring tides. :

OAMPBELLTON.

Campbellton, Restigouche County, is. situated on the southern side of *the
Restigouche River, about 15 miles above Dalhousie, where the giver enters the Baie
des Chaleurs, and is an important station of the I C. Railway)being the first ship-
ping point reached after that line leaves the St. Lawrence.

It is practically the head of navigation, although the tide flows up the river
some 9 miles further, but the water being shoal, prevents the passage of vessels
of any size.

I{ixcep’c on the “Traverse” (which is being inéproved by dredging), the depth

_of 18 feet at low water springs can be carried to Campbellton, which, with the rise
of 10 feet at SYﬁngs, and 7 feet at neap tides, affords a good depth of water for
the class of vessels engaged, most of those, however, arrive in ballast,Mthe disposal
of which has been a matter of serious inconvenience.

To provide a place of deposit for ballast, a contract was entered into 23rd April,,
1889, for the construction of a “ballast wharf,” the progosed structure being an
isolated block 140 feet in length by 35 feet in width, and having at it a depth of 18
feet at extreme low water, spring tides. e o

At the close of the fiscal year this work was fairly in progress, the bottom
courses being commenced and much of the material delivered in the vicinity of the
site.

18—6
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CAPE TOBRMENTINE.

Cape Tormentine is on the New Bruuswick coast of the Strait of Northmu-
berland, and opposite Cape Traverse, Prince Edward Island. 4

Aus stated in my report of last year, fresh tenders had been called for the com-
pletion of the wharf at this place, and 1n April, 1888, a contract was entered into
with Mr. B, Murphy, of Toronto, for the same. -

Active operations were not commenced by the contractor until August of that
year, between which time and the close of the last fiscal year 729 feet of the stone
approach have been built.

The work will be 2,500 feet in length, with an T, at the outer end, consisting
of two branches, each 400 feet in length. Of this length of 2,500 feet, the inner or
shore end, for a distance of 1,300 feet, will be built wholly of stone, the remainder
and'the T, of close-faced crib work, completely filled with rock ballast,

 EDGETTS’ LANDING.

Edgetts’ Landing, Albert County, is situated on the west side of the Petitcodiac
River, about two miles south of the railway station and village of Hillsboro'.

Many years ago, and before the construction of the Albert County Railway,
when the only means of communication with this locality was by water, the
Government of New Brunswick constructed what was known as the steamboat
wharf, but this, during the “ Saxby Gale” in the fall of 1869 was destroyed, the
bottom of the structure only remaining. :

To facilitate the discharge of vessels calling at the port in ballast, a contract
was entered into 15th January, 1889, for the construction of a ballast wharf.

This wharf is to be 400 feet in length, reaching to within 1560 feet of low water
mark, and will have al its outer end 30 feet of water at high water springs, which
here rise 45 feet and neap tides 38 feet, the width at the outer end being 40 feet
reduced at each 100 feet inward 10 feet.

‘Work was commenced by the contractors in the beginning of June, 1889, and
abandoned by them at the end of the month, when, having provided the greater
portion of the materials required, they found themselves unable to proceed further.

FORT DUFFERIN.

Fort Dufferin is situated on Negro Point, at the western entrance to St. John
Harbour, and at the inner end of the breakwater. The point is 60 feet in height, and
is composed of clay and stone and the action of the sea at its base, during south-
easterly gales, causes undermining, and several slides of the bank have taken place,
which in some instances were 8o severe as to endanger the fort and threaten its
stability.

In}}\me, 1882, a'face wall, 430 feet in length, 7 feet wide on top, the outer face
battering % to 1, was built on the beach at the foot of the glacis, and extending east-
wayrdly from the inner end of the breakwater was continued ; the glaciswas re-sloped
and works necessary for the proper drainage of the fort enclosure were done.

During the winter of 188283 a further land slide took place to the eastward of
and immediately adjoining the fort property, and injured to some extent the slope
formed in 1882, as well as the eastern corner of the face wall, which had been under-
mined by the sea. To prevent further damage to the base of the slope a further
length of 303 feet of face wall was built, extending eastwardly from the work of 1882,

During the winter of 1886-87 the work, particularly the old portion, was much
disturbed by the sea, caused by a succession of easterly gales, and a portion of the
old wall, 205 feet in length was entirely destroyed and washed away.

In the spring of 1887 the sum of $600 was expended in cloge-piling around a
portion of the bank, back of the beach, to prevent farther undermining.

In November, 1887, the re-construction of that portion of the work destroyed,
the re-ballasting of all work, the re-sheatisnsggi)f damaged face-walls and the placing of
82 1
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a timber break along the whole of the outer face, was proceeded with, and completed
in a satisfactory manner on the 31st August, 1888,
GRAND ANSE.

Grand Anse, Gloucester County, is a small cove on the southern shore of the
Baie des Chaleurs, about midway between the harbors of Bathurst and Shippegan.
There is quite a thriving settlement at the place, which is also a railway and tele-
graph station on the line of the “ Caraquet Railway,” by which it is distant 30. miles
from Bathurst and 40 miles from Shippegan. At Gloucester Junction, 3 miles south
of Bathurst, connection is made with the Intercolonial system.

The place being near excellent fishing grounds, and this industry largely
followed as a means of livelihood (some 90 boats being owned in the district), to
afford protection for them, the construction of a breakwater was commenced by the
Department in 1875, and carried to completion in 1879. Being exposed to the force
of the sea, and the action of the ice in winter during northerly storms, almost yearly
expenditures were necessary for repairs, the most serious damage occurring in the
spring of 1886, when the entire top and down to 2 feet above low water was carried
away by the pressure of the ice during a northerly storm and high tide, and
deposited in a part of what had formerly been the boat harbour or sheltered area.

With the appropriation of 1886-87, 100 feet in length (or nearly one half) was
re-constructed, its width being increased 10 feet and its seaward or exposed face
formed with a slope above low water of 1 to 1, which is hoped may prevent serious’
injury from ice pressure. A further 60 feet of the original length was reconstructed
with the appropriation of 1887-88, and with that of 1888-89 wus entirely completed,
as well as an addition of 10 feet made at the eastern end. Much also of the ballast
and wreckage deposited in the sheltered area was removed.

. HOPEWELL CAPE.

Hopewell Ca{)e, Albert County, is situated on the western side of the Petitcodiac
River, 7 miles below the town of Hillsboro' and opposite Dorchester, Westmorland
Counly, from which it is distant 4 miles by ferry and road. , K

H}Z) ewell Cape is the shiretown of the county, and the centre of a thriving settle-
ment wlim’ere in former years ship-building was extensively carried on, Offthe * Cape”

vessels bound to Moncton, Hillsboro, Dorchester, &c., usually anchor, the depth of
water in the channel being 3 to 7 fathoms at low water, while further up the river
it decreases to about 1 fathom.

It had been the practice of captains of vessels while at anchor here to throw
over what ballast they had to dispose of, and this, in course of time, began to severely
injure the safety of the anchorage. To remedy this the Department, in 1883, com-
menced the construction of a ballast wharf, a contract for a length of 380 feet being
entered into 18th September, of that year, and the work was completed in "August
following, a_ further extension of the wharf 200 feet being contracted for on 5th
March, 1885, and finished 27th August of the same year. ‘ ‘

- To improve as much as possi%le the depth of water on the length of wharf
built, in the fall of 1886 a small stream passing near the northern side of the wharf
was diverted, so as to pass alongside its outer 200 feet, and being somewhat widened
and deepened, an increased depth of from 4 to 5 feet was obtained. The action of
the stream causing undermining at the outer end, the end, 10 feet of the return and 100
feet of the northern side, were close-piled during the last fiscal year, the piles being

" driven to a depth of from 10 to 11 feet.

The work in all has a length of 580 feet, is 20 feet wide on top, with a return
of the same width at the outer end.

(. Spring tides rise 45 feet, neaps 38 feet, at which stages of high water the depth
at the end of the work and along the side where the stream was diverted is 18 and
14 feet, its end being distant some 400 feet from low water mark. ’

1889 :
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THE KENNEBECASIS,

This river takes its rise near the sources of the Petitcodiac, and after a south-
vgesterly course of about 20 miles flows into the St. John, through Kennebecasis

ay.

During the season of 1888 an opening was made through the sand shoal below
the Village of Hampton, and the channel approach to the draw in the highway
bridge across the river at Perry’s Point was straightened and deepened, and the
work thus done was to enable the steamer plying between Indiantown (St.John) and
Hampton to make her trips with regularity at any stage of water in the river.

MIZZONETTE,

Mizzonette Point, Gloucester County, is the extreme eastern end of the small
peninsula that separates the upper part of Caraquet harbour from the Baie des
Chaleurs.

It is distant by land from Grand Anse 9 miles east, and about 3 miles by water
from the village of Caraquet, both of which stations are on the line of the Caraquet
Railway.

To):mcommodate the residents of the locality, a contract was entered into on the
19th February, 1889, for the construction ofa wharf, and the materials required having
been got out during the winter, the work was commenced early in June, and had by
the 30th or end of the fiscal year been so carried on that it was about a quarter
done, the foundation of nine blocks being placed.

The work under construction consists in all of a length of 500 feet, 480 feet of
which will be 12 feet wide on top, the remaining 20 feet or outer block 20 feet wide,
the whole composed of “ blocks” and “spans,” and giving at the outer end a depth of
2 feet at low water,

Spring tides rise 6 feet, neaps 4 feet.

MADAWASKA RIVER..

The Madawaska River takes its rise in Lake Temiscouta, and after flowing
southerly a distance of about 20 milos enters the River St. John at Edmunston, a
thriving town on its northern bank, and the northern terminus of the New Bruns-
swick Railway and its junction with the Temiscouata Railway.

During the last fiscal year, on its portion in New Brunswick, with the sum
appro%riated, the tow path along the river has been repaired, and boulders and sand
bars obstructing its navigation removed.

PARTRIDGE ISLAND.

Partridge Island lies directly off the entrance to St. John Harbour dividing its
approach into two channels, the principal of which is to tho eastward of the island.

On the island is the station of the Marine Department for its fog-alarm, light,
quarantine, &c., and to fucilitate the landing of supplies, many years ago two small piers
were built on the north-eastern side of the island by that Department. ' The piers
extended to within about 60 feet of low water, forming between them a slip or dock
30 feet in width, having at high water springs a depth of 20 feet of water at the outer
end, decreasing to 7 feet at the inLer. Springs rise 28 feet, neaps 22 feet.

During a severe storm from the south-east in the early part of February, 1887,
the outer portion of the eastern pier, owing to its having been insufficiently ballusted,
was badly damaged, 100 feet of it being entirely carried away, and the wreckage
swept into the dock, which was rendered unserviceable.

This was removed, and the western pier, which had also been damaged, rendered
available for vessels and boats. A contract was entered into 24th November, 1887,
for the reconstruction of the eastern pier, which was satisfactorily completed 10th
July, 1888, a length of 110 feet of new work being built, 20 feet wide on top, sloping
1 in 12 on the inner side and 1 in 4 on the outer= '
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POINT DU CHENE.

Point du Chéne (Shediac Harbour) Westmorland County, the eastern terminus
of the Intercolonial Railway and principal point of communication with ports on
the Gulf of St. Lawrence and Prince Edward Island, is situated on the western side
of Northumberland Straits about midway between the entrance to Richibucto Har-
bour on the north and Baie Verte on the south. ‘

With the appropriation of the past year general repairs, as far as possible, have
been effected to the ballast wharf' and northern breakwater. The work done con-
sisted of the raising, re-ballasting and re-planking the wholeé of the ballast wharf;
putting in new mooring posts, and adding horizontal fenders to its face. The break-
water was ballasted where most necessary, the bolting of the close-piling re-driven,
and what had been carried away replaced.

RICHIBUCTO.

Richibucto Harbour, Xent County, is situated on the south-west shore of the
Gulf of St. Lawrence, about 40 miles north from Shediac Harbour (Point du Chéne),
the eastern terminus of the Intercoldnial Railway.

The entrance, which lies between sand beaches, is obstructed by a shifting sand
bar, and in 1873 the Department began the construction of a breakwater towards its
improvement. This extended in a south-easterly direction from the point of the north
beach, it being proposed that one also should be built in a north-easterly direction
from the south beach, the object being to confine the waters to one permanent chan-
nel, and so carry them through the bar which it was supposed the increased current
would remove by scouring. ‘ '

With the amount appropriated for the past fiscal year the following work was
done: 1st, The portion built in 1885, 225 feet long, and damaged in the winter of
the same year, has been refilled with brush and stone, extra walings being put on,
making the outer face of the work nearly close, and should prevent the ballast and
brush being carried away. ‘ :

2nd. Entirely new work for a length of 300 feet has been constructed, similar to
the above as now reconstructed, making a length in all of 800 feet of piling, brush,
stone, etc., protection works inward of the breakwater proper and covering nearly
all of the beach exposed to damage from the action of gales from the eastward.

3rd. Several fender piles at and near the outer end of the breakwater proper,
that had either been carried away or damaged by the ice, were replaced.

High water springs rise 4 feet; neaps, 2 feet 6 inches. '

SHIPPEGAN.

Shippegan Harbour, Gloucester County, formed by Pokesudie Island and the
mainland on the west, and Shippegan Island on the east, is an arm of the Baie des
Chaleurs, to which approach is had by Shippegan chanvel and gully from the Strait
of Northumberland for small fishing craft of light draft.

In October, 1875, a contract was entered into for the construction of a break-
water 1,750 feet long to protect the entrance, and a dam 870 feet long to close the
opening known as the “ East Gully.” - Difficulty was had with the contractors, who
suspended operations at the close of the summer of 1876, On the work being re-let
in December, 1877, and operations resumed, April, 1878, the second contractors,
about the end of July, stated their inability to proceed further with the work,
and it was taken over by the Department. o

At this time the dam was completed, about 900 feet of the breakwater raised
to its proper height, and 500 feet of it partly built. : C

In October, 1879, a storm oceurred, during which the tide rose 4 feet higher than
before known, and the dam was seriously injured, while the outer 500 feet of the
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breakwater, which had been left unfinished, was completely destroyed and the
remaining part injured.
. ... In 1880-81 the dam was repaired, raised and strengthened by piles driven 10
feet apart.on each side, with walings and caps. O _
... During 1883 portions of it that had again settled were raised where. deemed
unsafe, and an extension of 120 feet was added to the remains of the breakwater; a
gap that had been made being closed ag well, and other portions of the structure
raised. . .
" " "General repairs were again made in 1884-85, when 50 feet of the outer end was
close-piled, the dam at the time being raised where settlement had taken place.
~ Further close-piling was done in 1886, and the work generally repaired. ;

" Daring the past season a breach made in the winter of 1887-88 has been secured
by the reconstruction of the length carried away (60 feet), general repairs also
being effected. B ‘

Spring tides rise 5% feet; neaps, 3 feet.

ST. JOHN RIVER.

‘During the fiscal year improvements to the navigable channel of the river have
been effected at the following places : o
" At Bear Island Bar, 't%e‘ former channel used having been almost filled in
with gravel boulders and sediment carried into it by the freshet of the former
spring, boulders, sandbars, &c., were removed from the available remaining one, so
a8 to make it more safe and passable. = ‘ o
At Meductic Falls a slide that had taken place, obstructing navigation, was
removed, a8 well as some rocky ledges lower down, general improvements bein
made between Nackawick and Eel River by removal of boulders that had been
carried into the channel by the ice.freshet.: , -
At Grand Falls several rocky ledges were removed by blasting. At Grand
Falls to Quisibus, Fish River to St. Francis, improvements were made to the tow-
aths and obstructions removed .from the channel, this also being done on the St.
g‘rancis, Little Madawaska and Tobigue Rivers, all tributary to the St. John,
During the summer of 1888.a channel 2,350 in length was opened to a depth of
14 feet at low water summer level, through the Oromocto Shoals, which lie between
Thatch and Oromocto Islands, about 10 miles below Fredericton, and extend from
near Belmont Wharf to the light at the mouth of the River Oromocto, opposite the
foot of Thatch Island. They are composed of sand, silt, sawdust, ete., brought down
the river during freshets, and dredging every few years is a necessity.

ST. JOHN HARBOUR.

The dred§e “New Dominion” operated during May and Juove, 1889, for the
Corporation of the City of St. John, in deepening the berth for vessels alongside the
Anchor Line wharf—so called. ' ‘ , '

8T. LOUIS.

_St. Louis, Kent County, is situated on the south bank of the Kouchibowguacis
River, about 4 miles from its mouth and 7 miles northward from Richibucto, the
ghire town of the county, St, Louis and Richibucto both being stations on the
Kent Northern Railway that connects with the Intercolonial system at Xent Junc-
tion, 46 miles north from Moncton. - :

To provide wharfage accommodation at St. Louis, a contract was entered
into on 6th Nov., 1888, for the construction of a whazf 200 feet in length and 30 feet
wide on top, to extend in a north-easterly direction from the outer end of the south
abutment of the bridge. This wharf will have at it a depth of 7 feet at low water
spring tides, which rise here 3% feet, neaps 2 feet. Materials were got out during the -
winter and the work commenced during the last week of the fiscal year. :
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TUPPER SALMON RIVER,

Upper Salmon River, Albert County, empties into Salisbury Bay at the head of
the Bay of Fundy, about 4 miles north-east from Matthews Heady,' and 10 miles north-
west from Cape Enragé. ‘ v

At its mouth is situated the thriving village of Alma, the proposed terminus of
the Albert Southern Railway, now about approaching completion, by which it will
be distant 16 miles from Harvey, the present terminus of the Albert County Railway.

For the protection of vessels visiting the harbour, a contract was entered into in
1883 for the comstruction of 180 feet of breakwater on the western side of the
entrance, and this work was finished in the full of the same year. ‘

During a severe storm that occured on the 2nd and 3rd November, 1888, a
length of about 50 feet of the sheathing, face timbers, &c., of the sloping face near the
outer end of the work were carried away, which were made good by the Department
during the latter part of the same month. : ,

The work, which is some 425 feet long and 20 feet high at the outer end, is used
entirely as a breakwater, no loading whatever being done at it, and has rendered
great service as a shelter to vessels visiting the port. o

Spring tides rise 40 feet; neaps 34 feet.

QUEBEC.
BAIE ST. PAUL,

Baie St, Paul is situated on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, about 60 miles
below Quebec. '

During the fiscal year the present wharf situated at Cap aux Corbesux was
extended a length of 60 feet by a width of 50 feet, the height of the outside being 30
feet, and reaching to from 12 to 14 feet depth at low water. The work was done
by contract. ‘ _ ‘

In 1874 and 1875 an isolated block, 200 feet by 30 feet wide, with a head 60 feet
long and 50 feet wide was built, about 3,000 feet from high water mark, spring tides.

During the past fiscal year some small general necessary repairs were executed,
but the block is still in a dilapidated condition. ‘

BERTHIER (EN‘ BAS),

Berthier, en bas, is in the County of Montmagny, and is situated on the south
shore of the St. Lawrence, 24 miles below Quebec. .

Thirty-six years ago -a pier, 586 feet in length and 30 feet in width, with the
exception of the last 100 feet of the head, which is 60 feet in width, was constructed.

uring the last fiscal year 450 feet of the flooring was renewed. Mooring posts

were renewed where necessary and other repairs made to the wharf.

Spring tides rise 20 feet, neaps 15. The depth of water atlow tide at head of the
wharf is from 14 to 15 feet,

CAP A L’AIGLE. -

Cap & L’Aigle is situated on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, three miles
from Murray Bay, County of Charlevoix. - During the seasons of 1881 and 1882 a
landing pier, 160 feet in length by 35 in width, with 12 feet depth at the southerly
end at low water, was built by the Department, N :

During the last fiscal year some slight repairs were made to the pier to
prevent its destruction.

Spring tides rise 19 and neaps 12 feet.

v _ CAP CHATTE. N S
Cap Chatte is situated on the St. Lawrence; atthe. extreme western :limit of

the County of Gaspé. . -
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With the amount appropriated for expenditure in 1888-89, the channel has been
deepened 2 feet, the course of the river at its entrance made wider by the removal of
battures of solid rock on each side, or by reducing them to the level of the bed of
the river. Schooners can now run aground at the mouth of the river waiting for
the tide without the risk of being thrown on the points of rocks which obstructed it
before—as they have been all removed. Smaller craft are now enabled to run into
the inner harbour at any stage of the tide.

The outside and inside reef, which rendered the outlet of vessels in stormy or
ealm weather very difficult and dangerous, have been partly removed—that is, their
projecting points cut off—so that a straight and wider channel now exists affording
greater facilities for vessels coming in or going out.

CAP SANTE.

'The parish of Cap Santé is situated in the County of Portneuf, on the northern
shore of the St. Lawrence, and is about-30 miles above Quebec.

At neap tides the boats can only approach the wharf when the water has risen
to the height of 7 feet 9 inches, and even then with danger, owing to the boulders
which obstruct the river. ‘

These boulders form part of a reef which extends to the main channel of the
8t. Lawrence, a distance of about 1,100 feet, and a number of the most dangerous
wete blasted and removed during the year.

CHICOUTIMI.

The town of Chicoutimi is situated on the southern side of the Saguenay River,
71} miles from Tadoussae, and is at the head of navigation.

The length of the wharf at this place is 282 feet, with a width of 127 feet, and
there is a depth, at its outer end, of 7 feet at extreme low water. During the last
fiscal year the flooring of the wharf was almost entirely renewed. On the north
side 125 feet in length by 40 feet in width was raised 5 feet. Six fenders, 30 feet in
length, 14 inches square, were placed at the end of the wharf.

COTRAU DU LAC,

Cotean du Lac, or St. Ignace de Soulanges, is situated on the north side of the
River St. Lawreruce, immediately below the%hute Verte, in the County of Soulanges,
34 miles above Montreal. ) .

At this place the water rises 3 feet during the heaviest freshets, but generally
the difference between high and low water is only 18 inches. o

A wharf has been built, consisting of a block 100 feet long })y 20 feet wide,
with an approach of 110 feet, which has a width of 20 feet. There is 6 feet of water
at the outer side of the block, the top of which is 6 feet above water line. .

A passenger and freight shed, 20 feet by 24 feet was built on the lower side of
the approach. ' :

COTEAU LANDING. '

Coteau Landing is situated on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, at the foot
of Lake St. Francis. It is the chiéf town of the County of Soulanges, 2 miles from
Coteau Station on-the Grand Trunk Railway, and 36 miles from Montreal,

*-_ At the close of the fiscal year the Department was engaged in rebuilding, for a
length of 800 feet, the ‘approach to the wharf at which the Richelien and Ontario
Company’s steamers make regular calls. .

ETANG DU NORD.

Etang du Nord is at the western end of Grindstone Island, one of the Magdalen
Group, in the Gulf of St. Lawrence.

ﬁl 1880-81 a breakwater was commenced on Etang du Nord Bay, the intention
bein% to construct it some 750 or 800 feet in length, 32 feet in width, with a mean
height of 20 feet. : '
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In 1883-84, when 225 feet of breakwater had been built, a storm took place
which -carried the structure away.

As it was found almost impossible to build a breakwater at this site, on account
of its being exposed to the violent storms of the Atlantic, a change was made in the
location to the south side of Isle Aux Goélands, about three-quarters of a mile to the
south-west of the original site. That part of the breakwater which was sunk in
1887-88 was filled with stone during the tiscal year ended the 30th June last,

This breakwater is 500 feet long, 32 feet wide, and from 12 to 28 feet in height,
with 21 feet depth of water at the end at low tides. ‘

ILE PERROT.

Ile Perrot is in the county of Vaudreuil at the mouth of the River Ottawa,
which it divides into two branches. Both the Grand Trunk and the Canadian Pacific
Railways cross the northern end of the island, but the nearest station to the island is
Vaudreuil and St. Anne de Bellevue. In 1887-88 a wharf was built on the south
side of the island, on Lake St. Louis, one and a half miles below the church.

It consists of a block of 130 feet in length by 30 feet in width, with a depth of 8
feet of water, and is 580 feet from the shore. It was built by contract.

During the last fiscal year a length of 325 feet of pier work, 18 feet in width,
was built from the shore outwards, leaving a length of 275 feet yet to be built.

ILE VERTE.

The parish of Isle Verte is in the County of Temiscouta, and is situated nine
miles below Riviére du Loup and 123 miles below Quebec.

In 1887 an isolated block, 50 by 40 feet, was built, and during the last fiscal
Year an approach from the block to the shore has been commenced, but there still
remains 800 feet to be constructed to complete the work.

LA GRANDE DECHARGE,

La Grande Décharge is the main outlet which passes the waters of Lake St.
John into the River Saguenay. _
During the past fiscal year a pier, 22 feet in length by 22 feet in width and 20
{eet{ in height, ang an ice-breaker 26 feet with 2 base of 16 feet in height, has been
uilt,

LAPRAIRIE,

. Laprairie is the chef lieu of the county of the same name, and is situated on the
South shore of the River St. Lawrence, 7 miles above Montreal.

During the winter of 1886-87 two ice piers were built, to prevent damage bei
done during the breaking up of the ice in the spring, and they have prove
thoroughly satisfactory.

In 1887-88, an embankment, 1,600 feet in length, was constructed, and during
the floods of the two last winters it has proved most successful. Along the shore
<ast of the ice pier a cribwork was built on a length of 480 feet. It is 10 feet in
height and filled principally with stone.

- During the last fiscal year another eribwork wall, 335 feet in length, was
built to a height of 11 feet below low water, from the steamboat wharf westward.
. It is built of open work, 20 feet. in width, with a batter of 1 in 12 on the face.

LES EBOULEMENTS.

The village of Les Eboulements, in the County of Charlevoix, is situated on the
- north shore of the St. Lawrence, 69 miles below Quebec. .
In 1853 a landing pier, 920 feet in length by 30% feet in width, with 12 feet
depth of water at its outer end at.extreme low tides, was constructed. ,
- In 1875 a wing 50 feet long hy 41} feet wide was added to the easterly side of

the original pier.
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During the past fiscal year the slip on the west side was repaired, as well as that
on the east, The superstructure was also repaired, and mooring posts were renewed
where necessary. : : : ,

A room for the accommodation of passengers waiting for the boat was built
on the outer end of preseut pier. It is constructed on posts. = Its dimensions
are 45 by 25 feet ; the roof is covered with metal ; the whole building painted with
waterproof paint.

LONGUEUIL.

The town of Longuenil, the chef lieu of the County of Chambly, is situated on
the south side of the River St. Lawrence nearly opposite the eastern end of the City of
Montreal. The Sorel and Montreal and the South-Eastern Railways have a station
at Longueuil ; the Richelied and Ontario Navigation Company runs a ferry which
makes hourly trips between Longueuil and Montreal. ’

The Richelieu and Ontario Navigation Company own a wharfat the upper end of
the town, but its long distance from the business or centre portion, besides the increas-
ing trade of the locality, demanded more wharfing accommodation, and at the request of
the Town Council the Department cominenced, in the siring 0f 1887, the construction
of a pier, for the completion of which a contract has been entered.into with Mr. A.
Chagnon. ' ‘

he pier when completed will be 1,105 feet in length, including a block at the
outer end 40 feet by 80 feet; 90 feet of the pier is 30 feet in width, and the
remaining 975 feet 20 feet. Six buttresses on the lower side will also be built.
At the block there are 7 feet of water at its lowest stage. The pier is built 9 feet
6 inches above low water line, and it is expected that the wharf will be completed
next summer. : .

MURRAY BAY.

Murray Bay is in the County of Charlevoix, on the north shore of the St.
Tawrence, 83} miles below Quebec. . The steamers of the Saguenay Navigation
Company call daily, excepting on Monday, on both upward and downward trips.

n 1855 a pier 475 feet in length by 303 feet wide, with the exception of the
block at the outer end, which was 180 feet in width, was built at Pointe au Pic,
about 3 'miles distant from the village of Murray Bay. ‘

In 1875 a further addition of 30*feet was made to the outer block, which gave a
depth of 18 feet at low water spring tides. .

Spring tides rise from 18 to 20 feet; neaps 12.

During the last fiscal year the old slip on the east side of the pier, which had
become useless, was built'up to the height of the wharf and planked over, thereby
giving an additional area of 2,310 square feet. Ninety feet of the middle roadway at
the inshore end was refilled with gravel, instead of building it with plank. A new
waiting-room, 30 by 24 feet, was constructed, and the old freight shed remodelled
and other general and necessary repairs were made to different parts of the wharf.

Some‘%leavy boulders and rocky shoals, which were a source of danger at the
entrance to the harbor, were either removed or partially so.

NICOLET.

The town of Nicolet, distant 13 miles from Three Rivers and 28 from Sorel, is
situated upon the eastern side of the river of that name, which takes its rise in Lake
Nicolet, in the centre of Wolfe County, and after a course of 80 miles flows through
the parishes of I’Esperance, St. Paul of Chester, St. Christophe, St. Albert, St.
Clothilde, St. Monique and St. Jean Baptiste de Nicolet, emptying into the St.
Lawrence on its southern side at the foot of Lake St. Peter.

The trade of Nicolet is chiefly in lumber. There are five saw mills on the
Nicolet River, which are kept supplied with timber from the limits above.

Thirty-nine million two hundred thousand feet (B.M.) of timber, valuéd ab
$274,400, were exported last year from these mills, Much of this was carried to the
United States. R
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In the year 1881 a contract was entered into for the execution of dredging and
pile-protection work at the outlet of the river, to form a harbour of refuge forschooners.

II)n the summer of 1882 the materials for this work were collected and prepared.
In 1883 the water of the St. Lawrence was too high to admit of the pile-driving
being-proceeded with, so that only dredging could be done.

n the summer of 1884 the work of dredging the channel was completed. This
channel is 5,000 feet in length by 75 feet in width, and was dredged to a depth of 8
feet at the lowest stage of water in Lake St. Peter, . = . '

The same year the Pile— rotection work was commenced at the western side of
the harbour, 250 feet being built. , S
In the summer of 1885 the pile-protection work was extended to a length of 850
?eet. In 1886 the work was increased to a length of 1,410 feet, and in 1887 to 2,038
eet, o : .
In 1888 the work was resumed on the 20th July and was discontinued on the
29th September—543 lineal feet having been built during the fiscal year.

PAPINEAUVILLE. -

A channel or opening 1,000 feet in length.and 50 feet in width, except at the
inner end, where it is 75 feet wide, has been opened to a depth of 7 feet below low
water in the river through the peninsula at Papineauville, separating the Ottawa
from Pentecost Bay, to give free access to the %a.y at all times, and dredging was
done to a depth of 7 feet in front of and around the wharf at Papineauville, to permit

the approach of steamers during the lower stages of water in the Ottawa.
PERCE.

Percé is situated in the County of Gaspé, and is for judicial and all other purposes
the chef lieu or chief town of the District of Gasf)é. By the public highway it is 156
miles from the Intercolonial Railway at Campbellton, N.B. By steamer “Admiral ”
it is only thirteen hours from Dalhousie, N.B., railway station. The Quebec and Gulf
Port steamers call there also, to land and take freight and passengersin boats. =

The landing pier commenced in the winter of 1888 was completed in May last.
It was built by contract, and its dimensions are: length over all on top 320 feet;
width on top, 20 feet ; height at outer end, 36} feet—of which 263 feet only are above
the bed of the river, it having settled down some 10 feet during construction ; depth
of water at outer end is 16 feet at low spring tides, with a rise and fall of from 5 feet
to 5 feet 6 inches in full spring tides and 3.feet ordinary neap tides. ‘

POINTE AUX ANGLAIS,

Through the boulder shoals in front of the wharf at Pointe anx Anglais a
channel 100 feet in width has been opened to a depth of 7 feet at low water, east-
wardly from the wharf to deep water in the Ottawa. o :

PORT AU PERSIL.:

Port au Persil is a small village some 15 miles below. Murray Bay, on the north
shore of the St. Lawrence. ' _ o T

During the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1889, the most dangerous boulders and
rocks were removed from the harbour. o ' .

RAPIDE MANIGANCE.

This rapid is on the St. Maurice River. . It is one of the largest between Grandes
Piles and La Tuque. It is 5} miles above the outlet of the River Mekinac, 18 miles
above Grandes Piles, and 56 miles north of Three Rivers. - ~ .

There is a good channel obstructed however at points by.boulders, running
through this rapid, varying in depth from 9 to 18 feet at low water (summer level).

In October, 1888, 123 large boulders, measuring 210 cubic yards, were removed,
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RIVER DU LIRVRE.

. The River du Lidvre flows into the Ottawa, 18 miles below the city of Ottawa.
Its general course is southerly, and its width for 20 miles above the mouth varies
from 300 to 600 feet. :

To illustrate the great trade and business done on this river, it is only necessary
#0 give the output of timber and phosphate during the last twelve months:—

Railway ties .....ccccoeunninenn, Nttt . 40,000
Cedar posts......ceviiiiiiiiieiniiii e 30,000
Square timber, (cubic feet)..........ccceeiiniiiiiininiiiiinni, . 154,395
Lumber, (M.B.M)......ccc.oiviiiiiiiia, 46,500,000
Phosphate’ (ton8) ........cccovviviecvinriiiireenniiiiiiiennn, 27,637
Mica, (ID8) .ceeririiiiiiiiiiiii i 10,000
Feltapar, (tons) .....ccoevvt ieevniiininieernnerenrinnnes eveneens 50

It was with the intention of fostering especially the phosphate industry and
‘facilitating its transport from the mines to the nearest railway, which is at Bucking-
ham, that a contract for the construction of a lock and dam at the Little Rapids
‘'was entered into in December, 1886, with Messrs. Poupore & Co. The lock and
-dam will be of sufficient height to flood the Long Rapids, about 74 miles above the
site of the lock, aud therefore will give an uninterrupted navigation of 22 miles—that
is, from the village of Buckingham to the foot of High Falls. The lock has g length
‘of 160 feet between the gates and 32 fget 7 inches in breadth, with 8 feet of water on
the mitre sills. Entrance piers are also under construction. Proper provision will
be made for the passage of timber over the dam, which is being constructed 11 feet
:above low water at the head of the Little Rapids.

RIVIERE DU LOUP (EN BAS.)

) Riviére du Loup in the County of Temiscouata, is on the south shore of the St.
Lawrence, and is distant from Quebec 114 miles. The work of deepening the river
‘of sand banks was continued during the past fiscal year, and boats and schooners of
from ten to one hundred tons burden can now load and discharge at Pelletier’s
‘wharf at the town.

RIVER L’ASSOMPTION,

At Charlemange, at the junction of the I’Assomption with the north branch of
‘the Ottawa, at the foot of the island of Montreal, a shoal was removed together with
obstructions which had gathered in the channel at that point.

RIVER MEKINAC, -

The River Mekinac takes its rise in Lake Mekinac, in the County of Chaplain, and
flows southward a distance of 18 miles, and empties into the St. Maurice 493 miles
from the city of Three Rivers. Its depth varies from 1 to 12 feet.

There are several rapids on this river. One, which is 6 miles from its outlet, is
about a mile long, and is called the “ Rapide Blanc.”

The communication between St. Roch and Les Grandes Piles in summer is by
boat and in winter by the ice; from Grandes Piles the train, twice a day, carrjes
passengers and freight to Three Rivers, ’

During the month of September, 1888, some boulders were removed from the
channel of the Rapide Blanc, and its navigation was improved thereby.

RIVIERE OUELLE,

Riviére Ouelle, in the County Kamouraska, is on the south shore of the St. Law-
rence, 75 miles below Quebec. The wharf, 1225 feet in length, with a width of 35
feet and a “T,” at the head, 50 feet in width, and 105 feet in length, was built many

years ago. :
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This wharf is situated at Pointe aux Orignaux, six miles from Riviére Ouelle
and six from St. Denis. The depth of water at the head of this wharf is 16
feet at the lowest tide which has & rise of 20 feet at springs. '

A smuall amount of repairs only were executed. '

-RIVER RICHELIEU AT SOREL.

The Richelieu flows into the St. Lawrence, on its southern shore, at Sorel, 45.
miles below the city of Montreal and 37 miles above Three Rivers.

In addition to the two ice piers spoken ofin the report of last year as having been
built to afford protection to the then town (now city) of Sorel, during the run ofice in
the spring, a third was built during the last fiscal year, for the same purpose as the
former two. It stands in 12 feet of water, about 200 feet from the shore, and is sita~
ated 2,400 feet further up the stream than the second pier built in' the previous year.

RIVER RICHELIEU,

A channel was opened through two shoals in the Richelieu, at St. Antoine, off
Gatiens and Gendron’s wharves, to a depth of 7 feet at low water in the river.

‘ At Lacolle a loading berth, 250 feet in length, 50 feet in width and 8 feet deep.

at the outer and 7 feet deep at the inner end, was opened alongside of the wharf.

RIVER ST. FRANCIS,

This river takes its rise in Lake St. Francis, in the County of Beauce. It flows.
south-west through the Counties of Beauce and Wolfe, crossing the north-west corner
of the County of Compton, and takes a sharp turn to the north-west, at Lennoxville.
Itthen flows through the counties of Sherbrooke, Richmond, Drummond and Yamaska,
and empties into Lake St. Peter on its southern shore, 11 miles below the Isles of
Sorel, and 3 miles from the mouth of the River Yamaska.

The bed of the river at its outlet is divided into several channels by a group of*
small islands. .

At the mouth of the river and other points between it and the saw mills, shoals.
existed, which interfered greatly with the navigation. To relieve this, dredging was.
begun on the 21st May, 1888, and discontinued on the 6th July.

On the 29th August, 1888, work was resumed and continued till the 8th Novem-
ber, at which date a channel 40 feet wide was opened from Hertel channel down to.
the first bend, 1,100 feet in length and 5 feet deep at low water.

Work was commenced opposite Tourville's Mills on the 24th June last and waa.
in progress on the 1st July.

RIVER YAMACHICHE.

This river takes its rise in the Laurentide Mountains, flows through the County
oRf' St. Maurice and empties into Lake St. Peter, about sixteen miles above Three.
ivers.
., The western bauk of this river is, for the most part high, and it as well as the.
low-lying eastern shore are composed of clay.

At the point where this river crosses the western limit of the Parish of St.
Boniface de Shawenigan a land slide occurred, by which the western bank for a dis-
tance of over 3,000 feet by a width averaging 5 acres slipped completely across the
river and lodged on the opposite side.

This had the effect of obstructing the river, and inundating the'land above.

In 1884 a channel was partially cut through the obstruction, so as to bring the
water to its normal level and free the flooded land. In the summer of 1885 this cut
was continued and opened to a width of from 6 to 8 feet, by about 10 feet in depth.-
This had the effect of reducing the level of the water sufficiently to permit of the
cultivation of many hundred acres of land which had been flooded.

In the summer of 1888 the work of deepening the channel was resumed over a.
distance of about 2,500 feet, which had the effect of reducing the water an additional
range of 8 feet, and brought it to its normal stage.
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RIVER YAMASKA.

'This tiver takes its rise in.the Township of Bolton, in the County of Brome. It
forms an outlet for several large lakes, and has a course of about 90 miles, It flows
through the counties of Brome, Missisquoi, Rouville, Bagot and St. Hyacinthe,
Richelieu and Yamaska, and empties into the head of Lake St. Peter on its southern
side, eight miles below Sorel. : ,

A contract for the construction of a lift. lock and dam at Ile & Cardin, one
mile and three-quarters below the village of St. Michel de Yamaska and about four
and a-half miles from the mouth of the river, was entered into in the year 1880.
This work was completed in 1886. It gives a rise of 5% feet.

By the construction of these works, and by dredging done subsequently on the
shoal below the lock, the river has been rendered navigable for vessels of moderate
drzught up to Belle Point, or Rapide de la Grosse-Roche a distance of twenty miles.

%n August last, 1888, the crib work at the lower end of the lock was undermined
for a distance of 185 feet, and a row of sheet piles were then driven along the upper
side of the crib, to. prevent the water from rushing into the river by the break, and
also relieve the pressure of water on the cribs at the breaks, so that the work of
filling up could be proceeded with. Bags of clay and sand were then used to stop
up the breaks.

In October of the same year further damage was done to the works, which were
made good in the same manner. '

The lock was opened 382 times during the season of 1888.

ot o THE SHIP CHANNEL—RIVER S8T. LAWRENCE.

The first movement in the matter of a deep-water channel for ships between
Montreal and Quebec was made in 1825. In February, 1826, a petition from certain
of the merchants of Montreal was presented to the Legislative Assembly of Lower
Canada, in which it was stated that the interest and prosperity of the Province, as
well as of Upper Canada, required that the removal of obstructions should be pro-
ceeded with, and the river, to as great an extent as possible, rendered navigable for
vessels from and to the sea; and further, that for the sum of £36,000 a channel 16
feet deep at low water could be made, which would permit the passage, at those
seasons of the year when the water was the lowest, of vessels of 250 tons burthen
with a full cargo.

Between 1826 and 1831 efforts were made to induce the Government to grant
aid to the enterprise, but without any results. From 1831 to 1836 the matter
remained in. abeyance, when the merchants of Montreal again approached the Legis-
lature for aid to make a survey of Lake St. Peter, and met with a refusal.

In 1838 the Montreal Committee of Trade petitioned the Legislative Assembly
for a grant of money to make a survey of Lake St. Peter, and stated that the
navigation of the lake during the greater part of each season was limited to vessels
drawing from 10 to 12 feet; that the draught of vessels in the trade between
Montreal and the United Kingdom averaged from 14 to 16 feet; and that a consider-
able portion of their cargoes had to be transferred, to enable them to pass through
the lake, thus entailing upon the trade at Montreal an immense annual expense, as
well as causing detention to the ships. In reply to this getition the sum of £500
was appropriated “as an aid towards causing a survey to be made of Lake St. Peter
in this provinee.”

Nothing more of an official character appears until 1841, when the Provincial
Secretary informed the chairman of the Select Committee of the House of Assembly
“that the improvement of the navigation of Lake St. Peter will be considered with
other public works.” ‘

From the report of this Select Committee it is gathered that a survey of the
lake was in progress; that during the year 1840, 97 vessels, aggregating 28,660 tons,
arrived from sea in the port of Montreal; and that the charges for towage and,
lighterage on 42 veasels of a burthen of 14, 179 tons, amounted to £6,141,
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Actual operations soon followed, and up to the close of 1845 an expenditure
amount‘gizng to £59,994 had been made, of which £37,937 went for dredges, steamers,
outfit, &ec.- . L R : ‘

In May, 1846, before a committee of the House of Assembly, it was elicited that
a straight cut had been made in Lake St. Peter to a depth about equal to the old
natural channel, and to a width varying from 100 to 150 feet, and that a vessel had
passed through it in October, 1845.

A difference of opinion having arisen as to whether it was advisable to abandon
the new cut and proceed to improve the old, or natural channel, operations were
suspended early in June, 1846, and Captain Baytield,R.N., was employed toinvestigate
and report relative thereto, which he did to the effect that the new channel should
be carried on to completion to a depth of 14 feet below ordinary summer lowv
water, and to a breadth of 300 feet. This suggestion having been accepted work
was resumed late in the fall of 1846, but opposition to the new, or straight channel,
had not ceased, and the matter again came before a Select Committee of the Legis-
lative Assembly, whicli reported that they had considered the voluminous documents
submitted to them, that they had evidence that the cut through the St. Francis
bank to make an artificial channel through Lake St. Peter had been undertaken
and proceeded with on erroneous data of the contemplated expenditure. In the.
spring of 1847 work in the new channel was resumed and carried on till September
of that year, when it was suspended.

In August, 1850, this work was transferred from the Commissioners of"
Public Works of ‘the Province to the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal, who, in
October, 1850, instructed a board of experts to report on Lake St. Peter with the
view of adopting the best means for obtaining a 16-foot channel at the lowest stage
of water, and in the instructions prepared by the Harbour Commissioners it is stated
that an outlay of $320,000 had been made in the new channel up to 1846, when the
‘work had been stopped by the Provincial Government.

The board otP experts advised that the old channel should be adopted, and
improved to a width of 450 feet and a depth of 16 feet, and that the new channel
should be abandoned.

In June, 1851, operations were commenced in the old—the present channel,—and
continued by the Harbor Commissioners until the close of the season of 1854, when
the channel was virtually completed to the depth ot 164 feet at low water, and to a
width varying from 250 to 300 feet, the expenditure by the commissioners amount-
ing to £74,000, including £10,000 paid to the Board of Works for two dredges.

In March, 1855, Mr. T. C. Keefer, C.E., reported to the Commissioners, review-
ing the past progress of the works and giving his views as to future operations.
From that report it is learned that the * attainment of a draught of 20 feet at
low water is as practicable as it is desirable,” and that the cost of a channel to that
depth, and a width of 300 feet through all the obstructions met with between
Montreal and Quebec, might be placed at £90,000.

In November, 1857, Messrs. Childe, McAlpine & Kirkwood, were appointed a-
board of engineers to consider the best means of providing additional harbour
accommodation at the port of Montreal and they were asked to state whether the
Commissioners had or had not acted wisely in deepening Lake St. Peter, and other-
wise improving the navigation between Montreal and Quebec, and they reported
“that the port of Montreal is the proper place for transferring cargoes from the
interior to sea-going vessels, and therefore the Harbour Commissioners are right in
their plans for deepening the channel below Montreal, so as to allow vessels drawing
20 feet to come to the latter port.”

In November, 1865, the 20-feet channel, 300 feet in width, had been accomplished.
Botween 1866 and 1869 operations were confined to cleaning up, widening where
necessary, and improving the channel; and as a natural sequence, facilities hav-
ing been given for the passage of vessels drawing up to 20 feet, the size and
dimensions of vesels were increased to such an extent that an agitation arose to obtain
a depth of 24 feet, and in May, 1873, an Act was assented to granting a loan of
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$1,500,000.00 for completing the ship channel in Lake St. Peter and the River St.
Lawrence to a depth of not less than 22 feet at low water, and a width of not less
than 300 feet; and in July, 1873, an Otder in Council was passed giving permission
to the Harbour Commissioners to purchase the necessary dredging plant.

The depth of 22 feet was completed in November, 1878, when an official test was
made. In Bctober, 1882, the channel was again tested, and a clear depth of 25 feet
at low water was found at all points above Cap ala Roche, where and at Cape Charles
adjoining, advantage had to be taken of a good average tide to pass with the full
dopth available elsewhere.

In June, 1883, further legislation having been obtained, work was commenced in
obtaining a depth of 274 feet at low water in the ship channel, except at Cap 4 1a Roche
and Cape Charles, where that depth could be obtained at nearly half tide.

With the exception of Cap & la Roche and Cape Charles, the depth of 27} feet
was completed in November, 1888, and tested by the passage of the S. § “Sardinian *
carrying a spar lashed to her side extending to that depth.

During the later years of work on this channel the merchants and others
interested in thetrade and traffic of the port of Montreal, advanced the statement that
that trade and traffic should not bear the burden of the cost of the ship channel,
which should be deemed to be a national and not a local work, and not for local purs
poses only, but for the purposes of the Dominion; and with this view an Act was
passed during the Session of 1888 relieving the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal of
their indebtedness with respect to the ship channel, and transferring the work, plant,
&c., to the Department of Public Works, and during the season of 1888 operations
for the completion of the channel were carried on by the Harbour Commissioners
for and on behalf of the Department. :

In January 1889, the control and management of the work was assumed by the
Department. During the winter extensive repairs were made to the dredging plant,
which, on the opening of navigation, was placed to work at Cap & la Roche, Poulier
Rayer and Cape Charles, in deepening the channel at those points, which are
adjacent to each other, to 27% feet below low water, spring tides, and up to the close
of the fiscal year a fair commencement had been made.

The channel which has been opened is 300 feet wide on the straight portions,
and 320 feet wide at the bends, but it has been found difficult in many places to
navigate large vessels by reason of these bends, or the position of the channel where
the “set of the current’ has been crossed obliquely, and a further expenditure will
have to be made to improve the channel at such points.

8T. ALPHONSE.

St. Alphonse is at the head of Ha! Ha! Bay, River Saguenay, about 66 miles
above its mouth.

This wharfis 445 feet long and 25 feet wide, the end block being 77 feet in length,
with a width of 55 feet, A slip has been built on the north side of the wharf in
order to make it easier for vessels of small tonnage to load and unload their cargoes.

The flooring of the wharf was also renewed over a length of 300 feet with spruce
timber 6 inches square.

STE. ANNE DU SAGUENAY.

Ste. Anne du Saguenay is in the County of Chicoutimi, on the River Saguenay,
opposite Chicoutimi. ud *o

Timber required for the proposed wharf having been obtained during the pre-
vious year, the work of construction was commenced during the past year, and a
length of 77 feet was built.

There is a depth of water at its outer end of 2 feet at low water. neaps.

ST, LAURENT,

The village of St. Laurent is situated on the Island of Orleans, 15 miles below
Quebec.
96 [1889]
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The pier at this place is 583 feet in length, the block at its outer end being 104
feet by 32 feet wide, the remainder 32 feet in width. Some general necessary
repairs were made to enable it to be used for traffic.

ST. PLACIDE.

Dredging was done in front of and also to the westward of the wharf at St.
Placide, to increase the area of the basin and afford more room for the turning and
accomodation of vesels. An old wharf crib, lying to the south-west on the shoal
fronting the wharf was removed, as it was in the high water channel, and formed a
serious obstruction to vessels entering from the eastward.

STE. ANNE DE LA PERADE.

The river of St. Anne takes its rise in the County of Quebec. It crosses the
counties of Portneuf and Champlain, and empties into the St. Lawrence on the
porth shore, at Ste. Anne de la Perade, 54 miles above Quebec and 23 miles below
Three Rivers.

This river is for the most part very shallow, and abounds in rapids. In the
vicinity of its ountlet the banks are low, but some miles further inland they are much
higher.

g The depth of water at the outlet varies from 2 to 5 feet.

To give easier access to the saw-mills and factories at the village, some dredging
was done in the mouth of the river. A cut was dredged to a depth of 6 feet at low
water, 30 feet wide by 1,028 in length. ,

Owing to the shallowness of the water this work could be done only at high
tide.

The tides here vary from 1 to 5 feet.

In the summer of 1888 the dredging was resumed on the 4th June, and was dis-
continued on the 7th July, during which time a channel 30 feet long was dredged
to a depth of 6 feet.

STE, ANNE DE SOREL,

Ste. Anne de Sorel, in the County of Richelieu, is three miles below Sorel, on
the southern shore of the St. Lawréence.

To afford additional protection to the farm houses and buildings of this rich
agricultural butlow-lying district, another ice pier was built during the last fiscal
year at the entrance 1o the Chenal du Moine, about 1} miles below the Village of
Ste. Anne,

The dimensions of this pier are 30 feet by 24 feet, and 21 feet 6 inches in height.

TADOUSSAC.

Tadoussac, or Anse & ’Eau, is at the mouth of the River Saguenay, on its southern
bank ‘

The wharf at this place is 366 feet in length, with a width of 26 feet, the end
block being 40 by 50 feet. The height of the wharf at the end is 29 feet, and there
is a depth of 7} feet at extreme low water. ) o

During the past year a part of this wharf was rebuilt and raised 3 feet, a slip
was constructed and the flooring renewed. A

TROIS PISTOLES. ,
Trois Pistoles, in the County of Temiscouata, is on the south shore of the St,

Lawrence, 148 miles below Quebec. )
During the last fiscal year an extension 60 feet in length by 30 feet in width was
commenced, but was not completed at the close of the fiscal year.

[1889] L,
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ONTARIO.

BELLEVILLE,

Belleville is the capital of the County of Hastings, and is situated at the mouth
of the River Moira, which flows into the Bay of Quinté, 43 miles west of Kingston
and 113 east of Toronto.

The harbour is well sheltered, but was obstructed by several shoals of sawdust
and mill refuse brought down by the river. In 1874 the Department continued-the
work of dredging which the municipality had commenced, and in 1875 and subse-
quent years, up to 1882, further dredging was done, towards which the municipality
contributed $3,000.

In 1884 a contract was entered into for deepening the harbour, and the work
continued for two years, the expenditure being $8,170.42.

In September, 1886, a further contract was entered into for dredging a channel
as an outlet for the waters of the River Moira during freshets, the municipality pay-
iug half the expense. This contract was completed in July, 1889.

BRIGHTON.

Brighton, Northumberland County, is on Presqu'lle Harbour, Lake Ontario,
22 miles from Belleville.

Dredging was executed to a depth of 14 feet below low water in Lake Ontario,
in front 0% and to the eastward of the wharf at Brighton, and several sunken cribs in
proximity to the wharf, which were the cause of difficulty and danger to vessels
approaching or leaving, were successfully removed.

COBOURG.

The harbour of Cobourg,in the County of Northumberland, is situated on the
north shore of Lake Ontario, some 96 miles west of Kingston and 72 miles from
Toronto, in the electoral district of West Northumberland.

The work of forming the harbour of Cobourg was commenced by a company
organized by an Act of Parliament in 1829. In 1842 the works were assumed by
the Government and held until the 27th May, 1850, when they were sold to the
Town Council of Cobourg.

At the time of Conferation, 1867, the work consisted of two piers, the united
length of which was 2,047 feet. They were 190 feet apart at the entrance of the
harbour, and enclosed an area of about 123 acres of water, the depth at the outer
end of the east pier being 14 feet, decreasing to 7 or 8 feet in the centre of the

" harbour,

In 1873 a contract was entered into for the construction of a pier 1,500 feet in
length, 30 feet wide, from the foot of Hibernia street, and the work was completed
in 1876, to ards the cost of which the Harbour Trust contributed.

In 1881-82 a further extension of this pier, in a south easterly direction, was
placed under contract and completed in 1883.

The works carried out during the fiscal year 1888-89 consisted in the recon-
struction of the superstructure of the outer 150 feet of the Langevin or western
pier, under a contract with Mr. J. W. Dinwoodie. The superstructure of the west
pier of the original harbour was found to be badly decayed, and repairs were made
to it during the months of April, May and June, and at the close of the fiscal year
were still in progress.

GODERICH,

Goderich, Huron County, is at the mouth of the River Maitland, which flows
into Lake Huron on the eastern coast, 60 miles above Sarnia.

A channel was opened to a depth of 18§ feet below lake level, through the shoal
off the mouth of the harbour. Dredging was also done inside the harbour at the Com-
mercial wharf, and along the south pier to a depth of 17 feet.
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KINCARDINE.

This harbour is situated on the eastern coast of Lake Huron, 31 miles north of
Goderich, at the mouth of the Penetangore River.

In 1856 two parallel piers were built 100 feet apart, the northern pier being 540
feet in length and the southern one 290 feet, the latter being extended and completed
in 1868,

In 1869 a survey of the harbour was made, when it was found that the depth
?etween the entrance piers was from 7 to 10 feet and in the inner basin from 6 to 10

eet,

In 1872 dredging was commenced, and was continued until 1877, when the whole
of the inner basin, about 4 acres in extent, had been dredged to 12 feet, and the
entrance to 13 feet.

Since then farther dredging has been done, giving 15 feet at the entrance along
the northern gier. The entrance piers have also been considerably extended, the
north pier being now 1,225 feet in length, the southern one 900 feet in length, with
?1 width of entrance of 200 feet, so as to afford greater facility for entering the

arbour.

In 1876 the northern pier was damaged by a storm, and this had to be repaired
and the superstructure re-built.

In November, 1881, a contract was let for the construction of 790 feet of pile
pgotection work on the south side of the southern pier, which was completed in
1883,

From the 1st of July, 1882, to the 30th of June, 1889, yearly improvements
have taken place, consisting of dredging and repairs to the northern and southern
piers. The work of rebuilding the wharfing around the inner basin was commenced
in 1885, and is being continued at the present time. When finished it will afford
splendid wharfing accommodation. The nature of the new work is sheet piling,
ﬁtrcl)ngly braced to anchor piles, and a platform 12 to 16 feet in width resting on
‘walings.

T%le work of dredging has also been systematically carried out, and the depth
of water is now 16 feet between the entrance piers and 12 feet on an average in the
inner basin.

During the summer of 1888, and again in June, 1889, dredging was prosecuted
in removing the sand which had accumulated between the piers at the entrance to
the harbour, and in deepening the basin or harbour proper, the whole to a depth of
15 feet below low water in Lake Huron,

KINGSTON.

Kingston is situated at the outlet of Lake Ontario, 172 miles west of Montreal.
At the close of the fiscal year ended 30th June, 1888, the work of removing
Point Frederick shoal, which was commenced in 1883, was in progress, and was
«carried on until the 20th November, when it was closed for the winter months. It
was resumed on the 7th May, 1889, and at the close of the fiscal year 3,890 cubic
Yyards of rock were removed,
KINGSTON—DRY DOCK.

In March, 1889, a contract was entered into for the construction of a dry dock
‘at Kingeton, on an admirable site in the centre of the harbour, which had been
-obtained on reasonable terms.
f The dock will be built entirely of stone, and its principal dimensions are as
ollows :— : '

Feet,,
Length on the floor........covivieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisie 280
Width B riiterrernerss e re res ssseverarnessiarissestans 40
Width at coping level ...t 72
Depth from coping to floor......ccocet iviiiiiiniiiiiin, 26
Depth of water on sill at low water............o..eiiniiiiiii 16%
Width Of @nbIrANCE...euveierrenrrenieercattieriosienrecsrnterstesaeansass 48
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The entrance will be closed by an iron caisson, as at Quebec and Esquimalt, and
centrifugal pumps will be employed to empty the dock. ’

Up to the close of the year merely a beginning had been made of the
actual work, as much plant had to be obtained and placed on the ground.

KINGSVILLE,

Kin%sville, Lake Erie, is in the electoral district of South Essex, is on the
Detroit, Essex and Lake Erie Railway, and is distant 25 miles from the mouth of the
Detroit River. , '

In July, 1883, a contract was entered into for the construction of a harbour of
refuge at Kingsville. The old pier, 860 feet in length, was thoroughly repaired
and a second pler, 1,400 feet in length, 15, 20 and 30 feet in width, was constructed
in such a position as to give the harbour a superficial area of 9 acres, the width
at the entrance being 150 feet., A large portion of this harbour was dredg’ed out to 12
feet depth at different times, and during the fiscal year 1888-89 a farther quantity of
dredging was done.

LITTLE NATION RIVER.

The Little or South Nation River flows through the counties of Grenville, Dun-
das, Stormont, Russell and Prescott, and empties into the Ottawa River at Wendover
Above the village of Casselman, in the County of Russell, the river is not navigable'
but from that point to the village of Plantagenet, a distance of 36 miles, it is navig:
able, with the exception of a short distance, at the mouth of Moose Creek. which
flows into the Nation River. There a rocky shoal is found, extending over a length
of 700 feet, there being from 2 feet to 2 feet 6 inches of water over it. For the last
three seasons work has been done towards the removal of this obstruction. The
channel made is 60 feet in width, with a depth of b feet 6 inches at low water .which
is sufficient for the small steamers using this river. Some 4,000 cubic yards of rock
have been removed, besides a certain quantity of clay and alluvial deposit.

The villages which will benefit by the improvements made ‘are Casselman
Lemieux, The Brook, Pendleton, Riceville, Fourniersville, Curran and Planta’genet’
which are all on either shores of the river. i’

MEAFORD.

Meaford, an incorporated town in the County of Grey, is situated o .
ian Bay, 18 miles west of Collingwood and 20 mi{’es to th}«;’ eastward of (I)Iv:g: g:lggg

Prior to Confederation a pier 500 feet long, having 14 feet of water at its outer
end, was built by the local authorities, aided by a grant from the Government. This
pier, which is on the west side of the Big Head River, was extended 160 feet durin
1874-75, and an arm 200 feet long was built in a north-easterly direction, in orde% '
to afford protection against north-east winds. A breakwater 410 feet, loné was also
built on the east side of the riverb :

In 1878, and in 1880-81, the Department engaged in dredgin inside
the western pier, deepening the channel to the ingnegr harbour, ghightﬁaldzb?:rﬁ u;j'lt(lie
dred%ed to 11 feoét b}fr' the fl.ociftl authorities. partly

In 1883-84, 850 feet of sheet piling were built on the west sid ;
and outer harbour and substantia rep%mirs made to the west pier, t?h?ageb (1)'311)3?;2 i,’;?e”
completed in 1885. In 1886 further dredging was done and in 1887-88 the tm:’ln
contributed $3,000 and the Government $5,000 to complete the dredging in the inner
harbour to 13 feet, and to dredge a 100-foot channel 14 feet deep to it from the out-
side, which work was satisfactorily completed.

OAKVILLE.

Oakville, in the County of Halton, is on Lake Ontario, 22 miles west
and 18 miles east of Hamilton, and the harbour is formed at the mou?;i 3? Ts(i);z::g
Mile Creek. ‘
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In November, 1886, a contract was entered into for rebuilding the onter 360 feet
of thé east pier which had been carried away by a storm. This eontract was com-
pleted in October, 1887. At the same time the channel between the two piers was
dredged to a depth of 12 feet at low water.

In 1888 the western pier was rebuilt from low water mark, these repairs being
satisfactorily completed during the fiscal year 1888-89,

PENETANGUISHENE HARBOUR.

The harbour of Penetanguishene is situated on the north of the eastern penin-
sula in Georgian Bay, formed between Nottawassaga Bay and the waters of the
Severn.

During the summer of 1880 dredging was done at the western point, south of
Reformatory wharf, and to the north of the wharves at the village, to give a
depth of 16 feet in the channel.

During 1888-89 a pile structure, 12 feet in width and 850 feet in length, was
constructed in an average depth of 12 feet of water. Behind this structure an
embankment 30 feet wide was formed with brush, stone and earth, giving to the
wharf so completed a total width of 42 feet. In addition to this wharf a similar
structure 350 feet in length was built up at the foot of Barrie street.

Penetanguishene is the terminus of one of the branches of the Grand Trunk
Railway on Georgian Bay. A large quantity of lumber is shipged to that place
gom the north and east shores of the Goorgian Bay for distribution throughout

ntario. '

PORTAGE DU FORT BRIDGE.

In 1885-86-87, the Interprovincial Bridge which crosses the Ottawa River at
Portage du Fort, about 60 miles above the City of Ottawa, was rebuilt. This bridge
is 1,000 feet long. Itconsists of six piers and two abutments with a stone approach of
335 feet. The spans, one of 42 feet, four of 60 feet, one of 27 feet and one of 47 feet,
and superstructure, are built of wood.

There is another bridge 315 feet in length crossing a branch of the Ottawa
from the above mentioned island to the Quebec shore at the village of Portage du
Fort, and during the fiscal year the superstructure was entirely rebunilt.

PORT ALBERT.

Port Albert, at the mouth of Nine Mile Creek, is situated on the eastern shore
of Lake Huron, about 9 miles north of Goderich.

A small pier was first constructed by the local authorities, and in 1875 the
Department built an addition thereto of 50 feet in length, and constructed a small
breakwater of crib-work, 75 feet long, on the south side of the creek. In 1881 and
1882 a row of close piling, 300 feet in length, was driven from the eastern corner of
the pier eastwardly, and the basin so formed dredged to a depth of 10 feet.

During the fiscal year 1882-83 the improvements were further continued, earth
and clay being deposited behind the works on the northern side of the harbour and
90 feet of close-piling driven at the eastern end in addition to the construction of
other work. N ,

In 1884-85-86 and 1888-89 further repairs were made, and 300 feet of close sheet
plixlhing bglilt on the eastern side of the north pier, to prevent earth from sliding into
the harbour. .

PORT ARTHUR.

Previous to 1870 Port Arthur was known as Prince Arthur’s Landing, and so
called by General Wolsely when the Imperial and Canadian troops were landed en
route to suppress the first uprising in the North-West; and for many years it was
the commencement of the combined land and water route over which emigrants and
others seeking homes in the North-West had to be taken to reach their several des-
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tinations ; but with the formation of the Province of Manitoba, the construction ot
lines of railway from the United States system to Winnipeg, and the completion of
the Canadian Pacific Railway, this route was abandoned, after having rendered good
and useful service.

Port Arthur, at the head of Thunder Bay, situated as it is at the head of Cana-
dian navigation on Lake Superior, has become a very important place, and the point
—for the River Kaministiquia and the facilities for shipment which it affords is now
incorporated as part of the harbour of Port Arthur under the customs regulations—
through which all the products of the North-West must pass, either by land or by
water; and for the purpose of protecting the wharves and the harbour proper, the
construction of a length of 2,000 feet of the proposed breakwater was commenced
in 1884 and carried successfully to completion in February, 1886,

In February, 1887, the construction of a further length of 1,600 feet, in addition
to the work completed in the previous year, was commenced, and in November, 1888,
it was finished; and a talus of stone was placed against the outside of the work,
which has added to the strength of the structure, as has been proved during the
many furious storms which have occurred since it was put in place.

In October, 1888, a contract was entered into for tge construction of a further
length of 1,500 feet of breakwater, with block piers at cach end, to the westward of
the work already completed, an opening of 350 feet in width being left between the
old work and the new, to permit vessels to enter the port.

In May, 1889, operations on this new work were commenced, and up to the
close of the fiscal year 300 feet had been constructed.

During the year a commencement was made to extend the talus of stone along
the front of the work built uuder the first contract, it having been found that the
bottom was eroding under the action of seas during heavy gales. It may here be
mentioned that this breakwater has successfully withstood the force of breaking seas
driven by gales travelling at the rate of 54 miles an hour, and also ice shoves from
the outer bay, when the ice has been pushed completely over the structure and left
remaining thereon to a height of 19 feet.

The depth at low water in the central opening is 18 feet; at the north-eass
opening, which is 250 feet wide between the end of the breakwater and the Canadian
Pacific elevator wharf, the depth is 17 feet; and, after the completion of the
length—1,500 feet—now under contract, there will be a depth of 17 feet at the
western end, with ample room for steamers and vessels to pass.

The portions already completed have stood extremely well, and their presence
has been the means of converting what was formerly an open, dangerous and
exposed roadstead into a safe and commodious harbour, and when the works, now in
course of construction, shall have been completed, the harbour of Port Arthur will
not be excelled by any harbour on Lake Superior.

PORT ELGIN,

Port Elgin is in the County of Bruce and on the east coast of Lake Huron, 4
miles from Southampton and 24 miles from Kincardine.

In 1857 the Government granted $4,000 to assist a private company in
constructing a pier 380 feet in length to reach 13 feet of water.

During the summer of 1882 the construction of a breakwater 600 feet in length
was commenced, and two groynes of close pile-work, with slopes of brush and stone,
were built, with a view of preventing the washing in of sand into the harbour.

In November, 1884, a contract was entered into for the construction of 950 feet
of crib-work to connect the northerly end of the breakwater with the shore, and
the work was completed in 1886. A Government dredge was also engaged in
removing a considerable quantity of sand.

In 1887-88 an addition of 300 feet in length and 20 feet in width was built
perpendicularly to the original landing pier, and a large amount of dredging done to
give better access thereto. In 1888-89 this dredging was continued on the bar at
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the entrance, to enable vessels with a draft of 12 feet to approach it. A channel 760
feet in length, an average width of 75 feet and depth of 13 feet, was opened in line
with the public wharf out to deep water.

PORT HOPE.

Port Hope lies on the north shore of Lake Ontario, 7 miles above Cobourg and
103 miles above Kingston.

The original harbour works consisted of two piers, the eastern extending 600
feet into the lake and the western 480 feet, the width at the entrance being 104
feet, the piers reaching to 13 feet at low water, with a depth of 9 feet only at the
entrance to the harbour, which had an area of about 3 acres.

In 1875-76 the westeru pier was extended 150 feet on a width of 30 feet, and the
easlern pier 120 feet, on a width of 40 feet, and the entrance dredged to 13 feet.
During the summer of 1882 the work of extending the eastern pier 100 feet was
commenced, and a considevable quantity of dredging was also done.

In 1882 a contract was entered into for the construction of a groyne 20 feet in
width and 300 feet in length, and the work was completed in 1884, the object of this
groyne being to prevent the sand from forming a bar at the mouth of the harbour,
and this work was extended a further distance of 200 feet in 1884 and 1885.

During 1888-89, 700 feet of the superstructure of the railway wharf, which was
decayed, was renewed, and the work is still in hand.

A large amount of dredging, 45,010 cubic yards, was done during the fiscal year
in the old and new harbours to a depth of 10, 12 and 14 feet, and at the entrance to
the harbour outside of the piers to a depth of 16 feet.

Al
PORTSMOUTH.

Portsmouth is situated on Lake Ontario; 2 miles west from Kiugston.

At the commencement of the fiscal year nearly 300 feet of new superstructure
had been connected with the old work and -about 200 feet was ready for
floor timbers. At the close of the last fiscal year about 500 feet of the superstructure
was finished, nearly 400 feet having been planked and 100 feet being ready for
planking. The outer corners and the end have been protected with elm sheethin,
and walings. FElm fenders have also been placed for a considerable distance on bot%
lake and harbour faces of the work. ’

THE RIDEAU—NORTH BRANCH,

Two dredges—the “ St. Louis” and the “ Queen”—with attendantstone lifter, were
engaged during the fiscal year in deepening the channel of the north branch of the
Rigeau, from the Rideau Canal up to the village of Kemptville. The lower part of
the channel was soft digging, and the “3t. Louis” removed 8,160 cubic yards of
sand, but as the river was ascended the character of the bottom changed to large-
sized boulders, and beds of small boulders firmly packed. The “St. Louis” not
proving strong enough for such heavy work, the “Queen” was placed in the channel,
and with the assistance of dynamite progress was made with the work of obtaining
a depth of 7 feet at low water in the channel.

RIVER AUX PUCES.

The River aux Puces flows through the County of Essex, and empties into Lake
St. Clair, about 20 miles to the east of Windsor.

In September, 1888, a contract was entered into for the construction of 350 feet
of close sheet-piling at the mouth of this river, 200 feet to be driven on the east side
and 150 feet on the west side, to form a channel 40 feet in width, and at the close of
the fiscal year the work was well under way.

RIVER KAMINISTIQUIA.
This river empties into Thunder Bay, Lake Superior, to the westward of Port

Arthur,
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In 1884 dredging was commenced on the shoal, off the mouth of the river,
which prevented the large craft on the Upper Lakes from entering, a channel 3,700
feet in {)ength being dredged on the line of the range lights.

In 1886 dredging was commenced in the river, and has been continued from

ear to year, so that the largest steamers can now reach the elevators at Fort
%Villiam without difficulty.

RIVER OTTAWA,

Improvement of Channel between Pembroke and Petewawa.

Between Pembroke and the mouth of the Petewawa there existed several shoals
which obstructed navigation.

In the fall of 1883 the work of removing the shoal at the Little Narrows, which
are situated 5% miles above Pembroke, was commenced, and completed in the summer
of 1885. There are now 8 feet of water in the channel, which is 150 feet in width,
In 1886 Crab Island, which greatly impeded navigation, was removed to 1 foot
below low water.

In 1887 dredging on the shoals below the mouth of the Petewawa was com-
menced on the 1st Auiust and continued till the 28th October, during which time
1,560 cubic yards of rock, boulders and gravel were removed, and 29 buoys placed in
the channel. .

The dredge was ordered to work in 1888 at a sand shoal which obstructed the
channel from Lake des Allumettes to the Culbute Lock. The work was commenced
on the 28th July and continued till 1st October 1888, during which time 2,044 cubic
yards of sand and gravel were removed. This channel has now 8 feet of water and
a width of 75 feet.

RONDEAU.

Rondeau is situated at Pointe aux Pins, on the north shore of Lake Erie, 104
miles above Port Colborne. ‘

Pointe aux Pins projects into the lake, and encloses a natural basin of about 6000
acres in extent. The communication between the basin and the lake is over a sand
bank 120 feet broad, some parts of which are above the level of the water. In 1844
a breakwater was built at Rondeau by the Government, and in 1851 the harbour was
sold to the Rondeau Harbour Company for $8,000, on condition that the works should
be kept in an efficient state of repair ; but this stiiulation being wholly neglected,
posse_sss(iion was resumed by the Government on 26th July, 1866, when the works were
repaired.

P In January, 1871, a contract was entered into for building the piers, enlarging
the channel, deepening the basin, and other works required for a harbour of refuge;
which works were carried to completion in four years. They consisted of two
parallel piers, 783 feet in length, 250 feet apart, placed north and south, having a
depth of 15 feet of water between them, a breakwater 225 feet in length, and dredg-
ing an area of 10 acres in the inner basin to a depth of 15 feet. '

In 1877 an examination was made of the openings caused by several storms in
the sand banks protecting the harbour, when it was found that although the depth
of water in the channel had not.decreased, the inner basin had been partially filled
by sand earried in through the breaches in the beach. :

In 1881 a contract was entered into for the conmstruction of 2,000 feet of pile
protection work on the beach to the westward of the entrance. This work was com-
pleted in 1883 and proved highly successful.

- In 1883-84 a further amount of dredging was done to enlarge and deepen the
basin immediately within the entrance from the lake, and extensive repaivs were
made to the eastern pier and breakwater in front of the lightkeeper’s dwelling, and
from time to time repairs to both the eastern and western piers have been made.

In 1888-89 the ends of both the pier entrances were rebuilt from water level,
and a portion of the west pier was replanked. :
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SAULT STE, MARIE.

Sault Ste. Marie, in Algoma County, is situated at the head of St. Mary's River
which connects Lake Huron with Lake Superior.

In 1871 some dredging was done at the wharf, to permit steamers drawing 10
feet to reach it. In 1884-85 the work of dredging a shoal of sandstone rock, off the
steamboat wharf, so as to give a depth of 16 feet was commenced, but it was decided
to obviate the necessity of dredging the solid rock by extending the wharf 150 feet
into the river, and a contract was entered into with that object in 1887. The work
was successfully carried out and completed in June, 1889, the depth of water along
the outside face of the wharf varying from 14 feet 6 inches to 18 feet.

SOUTHAMPTON.

Southampton, in the electoral distriet of North Bruce, is situated at the mouth
of Saugeen River, which empties into Lake Huron 143 miles above Sarnia,

The harbour is formed by the eastern breakwater of the Chantry Island harbour
of refuge, and by a landing pier 850 in length and 30 feet in width, with a depth of
water of 14 feet at the outer end. The last extension was built in 1884-85, but owing
to great damage done to it by fire it had to be rebuilt from the water level in 1888-89,
and this work was satisfactorily completed. Dredging was done in 1886-87 at
the end of the landing pier, und also along the face of it to give a depth of 15 feet,.

Dredging was done along the inner side of the wharf to a depth of 10 feet below
low water in Lake Huron.

SUMMERSTOWN.

Summerstown, County of Glengarry, is on the north side of Lake St. Francis, 10
miles below Cornwall.

A wharf having a length of 130 feet and a width of 20 feet, with a shore con-
nection of 85 feet in length, was built at Summerstown in 1886-87. _

This wharf has a height-of 11 feet at-the outer side, and since the channels from
the main channel of the St. Lawrence have been deepened vessels and steamers
drawing 7 feet of water can approach this wharf,

In the fall of 1888 a warehouse 24 feet by 30 feet was constructed, for the
accommodation of the publie.

TORONTO HARBOUR.

The harbour of Toronto is formed inside of the island, and has its principal
entrance from the westward.

In 1788 the harbour was described to be nearly two miles in length from the
entrance on the west, to the isthmus between it and a large morass to the eastward.
The breadth of the entrance was about half a mile, but the navigable channel for
vessels was only 1,500 feet, having a depth of from 18 to 21 feet of water.

In 1832 Bouchette stated that the peninsula, now Toronto Island, was an extra-
ordinarg formation, being a narrow slip of land, in several places not more than 180
feet in breadth, but widening towards its western extremity to nearly a mile.

In 1833 changes in the state of the harbour were apparent, and the necessity
for its preservation engaged the attention of those interested in its maintenance and
improvement, who viewed with alarm the changes which had taken place in the
peninsula, the encroachment of the shoal from Gibraltar Point northward and the
narrowing of the entrance to the harbour. No action was taken, and in 1847 it was
reported to the Department of Public Works that the entrance had narrowed to 250
feet, the bar having increased northwardly 280 feet in seven years.

In 1850 the harbour was put in commission, and early in 1852 it was reported
that from the observations made and soundings taken during twenty years it was ascer-
tained that the bar had advanced northwardly across the entranoce at the rate of 19
feet yearly, and that the available width of the channel was scarcely 200 feet.
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In 1853 an opening was made during a storm through the narrow beach at the
eastern end of the harbour, and though it closed again in a short time afterwards, and
attempts were made to give permanence to the beach, the whole was swept away,
and tEe eastern entrance was formed, and in that year it was suggested that its
improvement should be undertaken, for the purpose of saving time to vessels
arriving from or departing to the eastward ; and that there would be a tendency, by
reason of the current created, to keep the harbour open later in the fall, and ensure
an earlier opening in the spring,

In 1859 the harbour master reported that the harbour was bounded on the
south by an island, with a navigable channel east and west of it; that in the
eastern channel there was a depth of 8 feet at low water, and if properly buoyed
might be navigated at night. In 1860 the western channel was dredged to a width
of 400 feet, and an average depth of 12 feet. In 1862 the eastern entrance had
increased to half a mile in width, and a bar had formed which had shoaled the water.

Between 1874 and 1880 the sum of $49,120.90 had been expended, principally
in increasing the width and depth of the western entrance, and a certain amount of
blasting for the removal of solid rock was executed.

In 1881 an examination of the harbour was made by the late Mr. Jas. B. Eads,
C.E., who submitted a carefully prepared report, in which he advised the closing of
the eastern entrance, and the construction of works at the western entrance, to
obtain and maintain a depth of 18 feet at low water; but before any action could be
taken on these suggestions the marshes bounding the eastern side of the harbour,
and the whole of the southern shore of the island, were damaged to such an extent as
to necessitate a complete departure from the plans prepared by Mr. Eads, and
attention had to be paid to the protection of the eastern side of the harbour, and the
preservation of the eastern portion of the island, where it was the narrowest, and
through which several breaches had been made. In 1882 work for the protection
of the harbour, extending from the Don southwardly to Fisherman’s Island, and for
the protection of the island, over a length of 6,500 feet, were commenced, and were
brought to completion in 1885, '

%n May, 1889, a contract was entered into for improving the eastern entrance,
the works required consisting of the dredging a channel 300 feet in width to a depth
of 12 feet below low water, the construction of protection works on either side of
the new channel, and the continuation and completion of the harbour protection
works on the eastern side of the proposed entrance—extending from Fisherman's
Island westwardly to a junctipn witg the channel works ; and at the close of the
year dredging was well under way. '

MANITOBA.

THE RED RIVER.

The Red River emptiesinto Lake Winnipeg 45 miles below the city of Winnipeg,
and 21 miles below the town of West Selkirk, which is the place of transhipment in
connection with the trade to and from Lake Winnipeg, and is called the head of
navigation, though craft may ascend the river to the foot of St. Andrew’s Rapids,
which extend over a distance of 10 miles, are five in number, and have a total fall of
15 feet. In some of the rapids the water does not exceed 1 foot in depth, at
extreme low water, and thus navigation is effectually obstructed between Selkirk
and Winnipeg, except at high water, and even then the water must be higher than
ordinary high water, '

At a point 18 miles below Selkirk the river is divided into branches, known as
the East, Centre and West, the latter having, in tbe interests of navigation, been
adopted as the channel, and in it the dredging done by the Department during past
years has been carried on, a passage having been made through the bar at its mouth,
and also through the shoal at the *“ Forks,” or where the river spreads and divides into
the three channels referred to.
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During the past summer the water was very low in the lake aud river, and
though boats had free access to the lake, yet the want of width in the channel was
found to be a drawback in rough weather to the passage of steamers with barges in
tow, and a width of at least 300 feet is required.

At present the fish and lumber industries are those which are being developed,
and their growth during the past two years has been extensive, five saw mills being
in operation at different points on the lake, with an annual output of—say, ten
millions of feet of lumber—principally spruce; whilst three companies, with estab-
lishments fully equipped, with freezers, &c., are engaged in the fisheries at Selkirk
and on Lake Winnipeg, and it is stated that their business is quite as important as.
that of lumber, and is being carried on in a most vigorous manner.

There are engaged in the lake trade in the carrying of lumber, fish, supplies, &c.,
twelve steam vessels, with barges, the gross tonnage of which amounts to 1,47} tons.

The dredging done by the Department in the river below Selkirk, and at its-
mouth in the lake has been a great feature in the development of trade, for without.
it, navigation would have been closed.

THE WHITE MUD.

The White Mud empties into Lake Manitoba at its southern end, about &
miles north of Westbourne, in the County of Marquette, Manitoba. Westbourne is the
ggint of transhipment to and from Lake Manitoba, on the Manitoba and North

estern Railway which has a junction with the Canadian Pacific Railway at Portage:
la Prairie, 17 miles distant. From Westbourne to Winnipeg the distance is 73
miles.

During the fiscal year the channel was improved between Totogan and McAr-
thur’s Landing, and the bars which obstructed the navigation of the river were
removed to such a width and depth as to permit the boats to pass freely, after which
work was resumed on the bar at the mouth of the river.

During the winter necessary repairs were made to the plant, which on the
opening of navigation, was placed to widen the channel between Totogan and

cArthur’s, after the completion of which work in the channel through the bar at the-
mouth was resumed, and was being proceeded with at the close of the fiscal year.

The trade on Lake Manitoba is principally in the movement of lamber, railway-
sleepers and cordwood, and but one steamer is engaged in such traffic, connection
with the Hudson’s Bay Company's forts and others. being carried on by sail boats.

Had not dredging been done at the mouth and in the river itself, navigation:
would have ceased, owing to the extreme lowness of the water which has prevailed.
during the past two years.

BRITISH COLUMBIA.

BIGG'S PORTAGE,

A small neck of land, known' locally as Bigg's Portage, lying due west from
Nanaimo, separates the Nanaimo flats from Northumberland Channel. For the pur--
pose of facilitating the carrying of produce, etc., to Nanaimo, by the settlers livin
along the coast and on adjacent islands, a small channel was opened in 1887 throug
the Portage, During 1888-89 this channel was widened and deepened, thus increas--
ing its usefulness.

THE COLUMBIA,

The portion of the Upper Columbia affected by the works executed during the
ast year lies south of the Canadian Pacific Railway, between the little town of~
olden, near the mouth of the Kicking Horse, and the head of steamboat navigation

in the Lower Columbia Lake, a distance of about 100 miles following the sinuosities

of the river, which is navigable for stern-wheel steamers of light draught from the

middle of May to the middle of September, but this period of navigation is not how-
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ever continuous over the length of the river referred to, as much depends upon the
snow fall, which if light compels the steamers to make their landing farther down
the river as the season advances.

The river varies in width from 60 to 150 feet; in the narrowest parts the water
is deeper than where wider, where side channels and sloughs are formed.

At present there is but one steamer—owned by the Kootenay Mail Line plying
on the river, which' carries passengers, mails and supplies for the numerous mining
camps and settlements along the Columbia and Kootenay valleys, consuming three
days to reach the lake.

With the amount appropriated a channel has been scraped through the salmon
beds just below the lower lake; stone and brush dams have been built across the ends
of all side channels and sloughs working down stream; wing-dams have been con-
structed in the widest and shallowest parts and at bends, for the purpose of confining
the water and causing scour, the total length of brush dams secured with rocks and
piles amounting to 415 feet. Many snags and other obstructions were removed.

THE COQUITLAM,

The source of the Coquitlam is Coquitlam Lake, whence it flows southwardly
and empties into the Fraser on its northern side, about 5 miles above New West-
minster. The river is not navigable for any distance from its mouth, except for canoes
being very rapid. :

Owing to jams and accumulations of trees and drift-wood, the river overflowed,
its banks and damaged the adjacent lands, and with the amount appropriated these
_jams and accumulations were removed with satisfactory results,

THE DRY DOCK—ESQUIMALT.

During the year the dry dock at Esquimalt has been fully occupied. Two of Her
Majesty’s ships, the “ Cormorant ” ‘and the ¢ Icarus,” the U.S. lighthouse tender
“Margarita,” one ship, three barques, one schooner and ten steamers having been
-docked and repaired therein.

The electric lighting apparatus was completed, and proves to be a necessary and
aiseful adjunct to the dock.

A lathe and drill for repairs have been set up, and a small centrifagal pump
substituted for the auxiliary and drainage pump supplied with the pumping
machinery, which was found to be both uncertain and unsatisfactory in its working.

Additional latrines have been built for the accommodation of the officers and
-erews of ships in dock, and proper houses for the fire-hose carts have been erected on
-each side of the dock.

Owing to galvanic action caused by the sea water, the lower ends of the pum
rods were almost eaten or corroded away, and new rods, completely sheathed with.
Jbrass and supplied with brass nuts, have been substituted.

The dock and premises are in excellent order and repair.

THE FRASER,

The sand banks at the mouth of the Fraser extend about 5 miles into the
Btraits of Georgia. According to the old admiralty charts two channels formerly
-existed through these banks, the course of one ybeingnea.rly west, and the other
Jeaving the first about 2 miles from the mouth of the river, passing to the south
-and thence west to the straits. In time the north channel filled, leaving the
tortuous south channel the only entrance to the river. After a lapse of years it was
found that a deepening of the north channel was taking place, and in 1886 works
with the object of improving this channel were commenced, and have been steadily
«carried on.
~ The range of tide on the sand banks averages 124 feet, whilst the range in the
river at 2 mi%es from its mouth is about nine feet. The current across the banks
at strong ebb runs from 2% to 3 miles an hour, whilst during the periods of freshets
it is increased to 5 miles per hour,
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In the fall of 1886 a submerged dam, 2,000 feet in length, was commenced across
the northern end of the south channel, for the purpose of closing it entirely, and as
the work proceeded it was found that perceptiﬁle effects in deepening the north
channel were being experienced. During 1887 a further length of 1,900 feet of dam
was proceeded with, with the hope that the full course of the current would be
deflected and pass through the north channel, but this was only partially realized,
as the current showed an inclination to break away to the north of the middle

round.
& During 1887 it was decided to place a dam on the north side of the north
channel to meet the current going in that direction; to place four dams in echelon
on the south side to deflect the current into the main channel, and to extend the
south dam westwardly.

These works have been successful in obtaining the object desired, and the north
channel has been both straightened and deepened, and has become the only entrance
to the river, and it is anticipated that there will soon be a continuous depth of 19
feet at low water spring tides, through the banks.

This improvement in the direction and depth of the channel has been folt at
New Westminster, as proved by the returns from the Custom house for the fiscal
year ended 30th June, 1889, which show that 274 steamers and sailing vessels
engaged in the coasting trade, aggregating 128,458 tons, entered, and 371 steamers
and sailing vessels, aggregating 128,308 tons, departed during the year; whilst of
sea-going vessels, ten arrived, with a total of 5,798 tons, and twelve departed, with a
total of 6,974 tons, during the same period. In tho previous year only four vessels
entered seawards.

HARRISON RIVER.

Harrison River is the outlet of a large lake of the same name, which empties into
the north side of the Fraser about 50 miles above New Westminster. On the south
shore of the lake are hot sulphur springs, near which a large hotel has been erected
and a town laid out, and- a steamer plies to and fro between the springs and New
Westminster.

The Canadian Pacific Railway crosses the river with a wooden bridge, 971 feet -
in length, with draw openings to admit the passage of vessels and craft into and out
of the lake, but no provision was made for guiding such vessels through the draw,
and for that purpose a number of piles have been driven in groups of 3 which have
had the desired effect. '

NICOL ROCK.

The harbour of Nangimo is situated on the east coast of Vancouver Island,

distant 73 miles from Victoria, by which it is_connected by rail, and is importaat as
the centre of the coal mining industry of the Province. §
' Three companies are at present in full operation, shipping coal from the port—
the Vancouver Coal Company from their wharves in Nanaimo harbour proper, the
Messrs. Dunsmuir & Sons, of the Wellington Colliery, from Departure Bay, 5 miles
from Nanaimo, and the East Wellington Colliery, about midway between Nanaimo
and Departure Bay. ‘ :

' Nicol Rock, ]ying about 450 feet north-west from the wharves of the Vancouver
Coal Company, and about 120 feet east of their ballast wharf, was a source of danger
to shipping, and a great impediment in the harbour, when the number and size of
the vessels frequenting the harbour are taken into account, during the past year
419 steamers and 63 sailing vessels loading at the wharves of the Vancouver Coal
Company, the shipments amounting to 248,070 tons.

The rock is composed of the grey sandstone which overlies the coal, and is much
broken on top, and the strata have been found aternately hard and sott, thereby
adding much to the difficulty of drilling and of breaking the rock up small enough
for dredging. ’

Theg highest point was, originally, about 3 feet below low water mark, and 19
feet below high water, spring tides, which have a range of 16 feet. Operations
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for the removal of the crown of this rock were commenced in November, 1887, and
the first blast was exploded the 20th February following, since which time the work
has been actively carried on. Up to the 30th June last about 4,110 1bs. of 75 per cent.
dynamite have been used, and more than two-thirds of the area of the rock, with the
16 feet contour line, has been broken up, and 1,800 tons of material have been dredged
and landed.

This work cannot be completed until 1891,

THE NICOMEKEL.

The Nicomekel lies to the southward of the Serpentine, and has its source in
Township 11, and is a tidal stream, affording a convenient outlet for the produce
from farms along its whole length.

For several years past the several amounts which were authorized were expended
in the removal of snags and other obstructions to navigation up as far as the Clover
Valley Road, and in opening a canal or ¢ cut off ” across the big bend in Section 36,
Township 1. These improvements have proved to be of the greatest benefit.to the
settlers, by enabling #mall steamers amdp sloops to pass up the river to the ahove
mentioned road.

During the past fiscal year a small amount was expended in the removal of
snags and cutting brush along the banks, to the eastward of the Clover Valley Road,
thus opening the river for small boats and scows nearly up to Langley Prairie, and
for the completion of this work a further sum is required.

THE SERPENTINE.

The head waters of the Serpentine are situated in the north-west corner of Town-
ship 8, district of New Westninster, about three miles south of the Fraser; thence
flowing south and south-west it empties in Mud Bay, in Township 1,

It is affected by the tide for some distance east of the coast meridian road, where
it is not more than 20 feet in width. In consequence of its extremely tortuous
course, the storm water has not time to get away with the ebb tide before the flood
tide sets in, and the adjacent lands, especially in Townships 2 and 8, are for a great
part of each year under water, and therefure unfit for cultivation. For the purposes
of relief a ditch, 9 feet wide on the top, 3 feet wide on the bottom, and an average
depth of 3 feet, was opened daring 1887-88, from a point on the left bank of the river,
in the N.E. } of Section 13, Township 2, to the S.W. } of Section 12, in the same
township, a distance of about 1} miles, During 1888-89 this ditch was enlarged to
double its former capacity, and has proved of much benefit.

THE SOMAS.

This river riges in the northern part of what is khown as the Alberni Valley, -
on the western side of Vancouver Island, and flows southwardly for a distance of
about 20 miles through the valley, and empties into the Alberui Canal, an inlet of
Barclay Sound, which is an arm of the Pucific Ocean.

The settlement on the Somas can be reached by water from Victoria vi@ the
Straits and Cape Beale, and by waggon road from Nyz;,naimo, which leaves the east
coast of the island near the mouth of Englishman’s River, and strikes directly across
country, climbing over the height of land, 1.100 feet above the sea. The distance
from lgict,oria. to Alberni by sea is about 140 miles, and by land 130 miles, 78 of
which are covered by the Esquimalt and Nanaimo Ruilway.

During the past year 47 snags were removed from the channel of the river, and
many overhanging trees were cut away between the mouth and the landing, which
have increased the facilities for navigation; and the remains of an old mill dam
near Sproat’s Lake, which caused the adjoining lands to be overflowed, were removed.

VIOTORIA HARBOUR.

The entrance to the harbour of Victoria is very narrow, with a sharp turn
after passing the lighthouse. This turn was the cause of much difficulty to vessels,

. especially large steamers, entering the harbour during the prevalence of strong south-
west winds, and was due to the existence of a shoal extending from Shoal Point,

110 [1889]



53 Victoria. Sessional Papers (No. 18.) A. 1890

which for a long time was supposed to be composed of solid rock, but in fact of a
compact mass of bouldérs. It having been decided to operate on this shoal, iron
pipes fitted with cast iron shoes were driven through and between the boulders with
a small pile-driver to the required depth, and about 3 feet apart. These tubes
were loa&d with dynamite and exploded, after which a large harrow or rake,
weighing about two tons, was dragged over the bottom, and then the dredge
4 Pacific” was able to work freely through the shoal. .

The work done during the year has resulted in deepening and straightening the
channel, and soon the “red ” buoy marking the right side of the channel coming in
will be shifted, when there will be a channel 300 feet in width, with an easy turn,
and an almost straight course from the lighthouse to the wharves in front of the
city, having a depth of not less than 14 feet at low water, spring tides, which hive a
range of 10 feet, there being at the entrance to the harbour a depth of 21 feet at high
water neap tides, 23 feet at ordinary spring tides, and 24 feet at the extraordinary
tides which occur in December.

———

SURVEYS AND EXAMINATIONS,

During the year surveys and examinations were made at the undermentioned
localities; and—with some “exceptions—plans, reportd and estimates have been sub-
mitted :—

Na.ufra}.lge, King’s Co., P. E. L. | Opyster Ground, Gloucester Co. N.B.
TRiormis

, Prince Co. do. Nerepis River, King’s Co. do
Belle Creek, Queen’s Co. do. ‘Washademoak, een’s Co. - do
Dunn’s Lake, Antigonish Co., N. 8. Coles Point, estmorland Co. do
‘Georgeville do do Pointe du Chéne, do do
Monk’s Island do do Pré d’en haut, do do
Belfry River, Cape Breton Co., do Longueuil, Chambly Co. . P.Q.
Big Lorraine do do Cap a PAigle, Charlevoix Co. do
Cow Bay do do Murray Bay do do
East Bay do do St. Fidéle do do
Sydney, C. B. do . do Roberval & Métabetchouan, Chicoutimi Co. do
Fox Harbour, Cumberland Co. do Ambherst, Magdalen Islands, Gaspé Co. do
Joggin’s do do Cape Cove gg do
Minudie do do St. Maxime de Mont Louis do do
Port Greville do do Ste. Anne des Monts do do
.Sand River do do Riviére I’Assomption, I’ Assomption Co. do
Tignish do do St. Laurent, Ile d’Orieans, Montmorency Co.do
“Two Rivers do / do Riviére des heaudettes, Nicolet Co. do
Barton, Digby Co. do Gatineau, Ottawa Co. “do
Little River do do Hull do do
River Sissiboo do do Pond Creek do . do
Rosswa, do do Kippewa Lake, Pontiac Co. do
"Trout Cove do do Cap Santé, Portneuf Co. do
Musquodoboit, Halifax Co. do Rimouski '_l_’ler Rimouski Co. do ,
“Three Fathom Harbor do do Longue Pointe & Boucherville, River St. Law.do
:Summerville, Hants Co. ~do Coteau Landing, Soulanges Co. do
‘Canada Creek, King’s Co. do Pointe du Lac, St. Maurice Co. do
Hall’s Harbour o do Riviére Meckinac do do
Kingsport do’ do do  St. Maurice do do
‘Morden do do do  du Nord, Two Mountains Co. do
Ogilvie do do Pointe & Valois, Vaudreuil Co. do
Pickett’s Pier do y do Indian Point, Algoma Co. Ont.
Victoria do do Thessalon, do do
Lunenburg, Lunenburg Co. do Kingsville, Essex Co. do
Porf Medway, een’s Co. do Texas Landin, do do
Barrington, helburne Co. do Kingston Harbour, Frontenac Co. do
Ba.rrin%nn Passage do do Meaford, Grey Co. do
Jones’ Harbour do do Thornbury do do
Jordan Ba do do Picton, Prince Edward Co. do
Green Harbour do do Lake Scugogé Victoria Co. do
Little Harbour do do Des Chénes Bridge, Ottaws River.
Louis Head do do Ottawa River do
Negro Island do do West Selkirk, Lisgar, Man.
Port 1a Tour do do K‘S’iuB"d‘ﬁ- N.W.T.
Roseway Beach do do Old Man’s River Bridge do
Round Ba do . do Columbia River, Kootenay, B.C.
Big Bras n¥01-, north side, Victoria Cc do Burnaby Shoal, New Westminister do
Coverdale, Albert Co. N.B New Westminister do do
“T'wo Rivers do Courtney, &c., Rivers, Vancouver

do
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DREDGING.
THE ‘ 8T. LAWRENCE,”

This dredge commenced work for the year on the 3rd July, 1888, at Little Glace
Bay, C. B. This bay, situated between Table and McPherson’s Heads, was formerly
a cove, into which a small stream emptied, and owing to its location was utilized as
a shipping point for the products of the collieries of the Little Glace Bay and
Caledonia Coal Company. Sand iflats and shallow water extend for a distauce of $ of
a mile from the shore, and through them s narrow channel has been opened, to permit
steamers and sailing vessels to reach the loading piers. This channel fills with sand
and kelp, and to such an extent that the entry of vessels was to a certain extent
stopped. For the removal of these obstructions dredging was commenced in 18 feet.
at low tide, about 180 fathoms from the end of the pier, and continued seawards for a
‘length of 100 fathoms, with a width of 62 feet, and an average depth of 21 feet, and
for a further length of 75 fathoms, with a width of 85 feet and a depth of 21 feet at
low water; 15,213 cubic yards of sand, mud, clay, stone, boulders, kelp, logs and
wreckage having been removed up to the 28th September.

As this channel is merely a cut in the bottom, without any protection against
‘stones or scouring, it is only # question of time when it will again fill up and require
re-dredging. '

Neap tides rise 2} feet and springs 3% feet.

Oun the 13th October work was commenced in the River Restigouche, at the
“Traverse,” between Dalhousie and Campbellton, N.B., and continued until the 8th
November, up to which date a cut ‘75 fathoms in length, 60 feet in width, had been
made, to a depth of 15 feet at low water, and 4,900 cubic yards of hard, fine sand
removed. :

To open the channel required at this place to a depth of 15 feet at low water
will require the services of this dredge for several seasons.

Neap tides rise 6 feet; springs, 9 feet.

A small amount of work was done in deepening between the wharves at Dal-
housie for a winter berth for the Steamer “ Admiral.”

On the 18th November work was again taken up in deepening the approach to
the market wharf, Pictou harbour, and continued until the 6th December, when the
dredge was sent to winter quarters, having made a cut 180 fathoms in length, 60
feet in width, and 15 feet deep at low water, and removed 3,850 cubic yards of mud.

During the winter the dredge was overhauled and needed repairs made to the
hull and machinery, and on the 27th April, 1889, work was commenced in the
Middle River of Pictou, opposite Granton, in removing the point of a shoal that
‘interfered with navigation. A cut 50 fathoms in length and 60 feet in width was
made, to a depth of 22 feet at low water, and a second cut 60 fathoms long, and 40
feet wide, toa depth of 21 feet, thus widening, and straightening the channel very
materially. The materials removed were mud and hard pan, and up to the 11th
May, 3,675 cubic yards were removed.

On the 16th May, moorings were laid and work resumed on the berth for the
“Admiral” at Dalhousie, N.B. The object of this work is to enable a steamer to ly
later in the season, remain in safety at Dalbousie during the winter, and thus
commence its trips earlier in the spring than heretofore. '

This berth is 75 fathoms in length, running parallel with the shore, 60 feet in
width, and 11 feet deep at low water; and 6,150 cubic yards of mud, clay, boulders,
slabs, ete., were removed, and the work completed on the 8th June.
~ On the 12th June work was resumed on the Traverse, and up to the close ot the
year a cut 60 fathoms in length, 96 feet in width, had been completed to a depth of
13 feet, and a commencemeet made on a second cut also 60 fathoms in length,—6,150
cubic yards of sand having been removed.

The total<quantity of material removed during the year amounted to 40,026
cubic yards, at an average cost of 39,09 cents per cubic yard. ,
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The sum of $39,41 was received from the sale of condemned stores, and $375.00
from the Intercolonial Railway for dredging done at the railway wharf, Pictou
harbour, N.S., both of which amounts were placed to the credit of the Receiver-
General.

THE CANADA,

At the commencement of the fiscal year, the Canada was engaged at Yarmouth,
N. 8, in deepening the channel in the harbour near the Lobster rock, and in
removing several projecting poiuts from the tortuous and narrow channel, and new
beacons formed of clusters of piles were driven to mark the position of the banks.
The approach to the wharves in front of the town was much improved. Some
dredging was performed at private wharves, for which payment was made.

Neap tider rise 13 feet, spring tides, 16 feet.

The material removed was principally clay and sand, and amounted to 20,092
cubic yards.

Work at Yarmouth closed at the end of October, and on the 31st the dredge
arrived at Barrington and commenced the removal of two points in Shkerrow’s
Channel, and in opening a basin off the end of the wharf in course of construction by
the Department, 2,520 cubic yards of material having been removed up to 24th
November.

Neap tides rise 6} feet, springs 8% feet.

The “Canada” wintered at St. John, N.B,, and before the opening of navigation in
the spring extensive and much needed repairs were made to the vessel, engines and
machinery. On the 26th April, 1889, work was resumed in the channel at Barrington,
N.S., and a further quantity of 9,225 cubic yards of clay and sand were removed up
to the 30th June. '

The total quantity removed by this dredge during the year was 31,837 cubic
yards, at a cost of 37 cents per cubic yard.

The sum of $26.38 was received for private dredging, and deposited to the credit
of the Receiver-General. '

THE ‘“ NEW DOMINION.”

During the past fiscal year this dredge operated as follows :—On the 1st July,
1888, it was engaged in improving the channel of the Kennebecasis below the village
of Hampton, and a depth of 10 feet was obtained by the 2nd July, when the plant
was removed down the river, and the channel approach to the draw opening in the
highway bridge at Perry’s Point was straightened and deepened to a depth of 10 feet.

On 13th July dredging was commenced on the Oromocto Shoals, River St. John and
carried on until the 6th October, when a cut 2,350 feet in length, 50 feet wide, and
14 feet deep at low water, summer level, was finished,—30,310 cubic yards of sand
having been removed.

The dredge returned to the channel at Perry’s Point bridge on the 15th October
and remained until 9th November, when the channel, 480 feet in length, 45 feet in
width and 10 feet in depth, was completed, and a total of 11,340 cubic yards of sand
and mud removed.

After necessary repairs had been executed, the dredge was placed to work for
the corporation of the city of St. John in deepening and improving the berths for
vessels at the Anchor Line wharf (so-called), in the harbour of St. John. Dredging
commenced on the 8th May and was concluded on the 26th June, when a cut 200
feet in length and 80 feet in width was made alongside of the wharf. At 50 feet
from the inner end rock was struck in 16 feet at low water, and 80 feet from the
wharf at the outer edge of the cut, and 30 feet from the inner end of the wharf, the
rock was struck at 12 feet. The depth of cutting averaged about 6} feet, and 4,695
cubic yards of mud and silt were removed. :

The total quantity of materials removed by this dredge was 46,345 cubic yards,
at a cost of 213 cents per cubic yard.

The sum of $15 was received from the sale of condemned stores, and placed to
theer edit of the Receiver General, ' '
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-

THE “‘ PRINCE EDWARD.”

The whole of the summer of 1888 was spent in repairing this dredge and the
attendant scows. The hull was found to be in a bad state, the deck and side planking
being rotten, and after the removal of which that theside keels, several of the timbers,
beams, and anchor houses were broken, and so decayed that it was necessary to
remove them. Two new keels and keelsons, and several new timbers and beams
were put in and the hull new planked, the bottom with 34.-inch hardwood, the sides
with 6-inch southern hard pine, and the deck with 4-inch spruce. New deck
combing’s were inserted, and the deck house newly sheathed and the roof covered
with canvas, The hull was caulked, covered with yellow metal up to the water line,
and all wood work was painted. The engines, boiler, machinery and gearing were
overhauled and repaired. Three scows were caulked, sheathed and repaired, and
the dredge was launched on the Tth, and the scows on the 22nd and 27th November.

As winter had set in the plant was placed in winter quarters, and remained until
17th April, 1889, when it was taken to Red Point, on the Kast River, 7 miles
above Charlottetown, wheve it was employed for 14 days in deepening in front of the
wharf at that place to 12 feet at low water, and a satisfactory berth was completed
in which vessels could lie and load at the wharf, 4,719 cubic yards of mud having
been removed.

Between the 1st and 21st May the dredge was employed in deepening around
and in front of the wharves of the Steam Navigation Company, in the harbour of
Charlottetown, removing 7,668 cubic yards of mud. From around the Connolly’s
estate wharf, 5,343 cubic yards of mud were removed up to the 10th June; at Peake
Bros & Co.’s wharf, 5,355 cubic yards of mud were dredged up to 24th June; and
between the 24th and 30th June, the end of the fiscal year, 1,155 cubic yards of mud
had been taken away from around the P. E.I. Railway wharf, the work being pro-

"ceeded with during the present fiscal year.

The dredging at all the above-named wharves was with the view of obtaining a
depth of 20 feet, where possible, to permit a larger class of vessel than heretofore to
lie and load or discharge cargo.

The total quantity of materials removed by this dredge during the portion of
the year it was employed amounted to 24,240 cubic yards, at an average cost of
63{2‘,’3&' cents per cubic yard.

he sum of $1,525 was received for the dredging done at the wharves in
Charlottetown harbour, and placed to the credit of the Receiver-General.

THE ‘“ GEORGE MC KENZIE.”

On the 3rd July, 1888, the work of this dredge for the fiscal year, commenced
at McNair'’s Cove, Antigonish County, N.S,, in dredging a foundation for the recon-
struction of a portion of the wharf at that place. Up to the 12th, 1,725 cubic yards
of sand, gravel, stone and logs were removed, when, during a severe storm, the
place being exposed, and shelter not to be obtained, the dredge sank at her moorings.

After much trouble the dredge was raised and taken to Port Hawkesbury,
and placed on the Marine Railway, when it was found that extensive 1epairs were
required to make good the damage which had been done.

These repairs took until 15th October to complete, when the plant was towed
to Bayfield, Antigonishe County, and commenced dredging around the wharf at
that place, to enable the contractor to proceed with his work of close-piling. A
berth for vessels was dredged at the end aud sides of the wharf to 12 feet at low
water; also a basin inside of the “ L " or return at end of the wharf, the work being
completed on the 31st October, up to which date 1,710 cubic yards of sand and gravel
had been removed.

On the 1st November, 1888, the dredge arrived off Arisaig, Antigonishe County,
in a storm, for the purpose of deepening and preparing the foundation for the works
in progress for extending and repairing the wharf at that place. Owing to the
nature of the storm, the exposed and dangerous coast, and want of shelter, the

lant had to be taken to Port Hawkesbury, the nearest point of safety, where it was
placed in winter quarters. ‘
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Between the 10th and 30th June the work of preparing the foundations for the
wharf at Arisaig was proceeded with, 900 cubic yards of sand, rock and old timber
having been removed up to the latter date.

The total quantity removed during the year was 4,335 cubic yards, at a cost of
$2.57 per cubic yard. :

The sum of $4 was received from the sale of condemned stores, and placed to the
credit of the Receiver General.

THE ‘“CHALLENGE.”

At the commencement of the fiscal year the * Challenge” was engaged at
Kincardine, Ont., in removing the sand, which, brought in from Lake Huron during
westerly blows, had accumulated between the piers forming the entrance to the
harbour, and in deepening the basin, the whole to a depth of 15 feet below zero, or
mean low water level in the luke, removing 6,480 cubic yards of sand.

On the 21st July the plant was towed to Southampton, and remained there until
the 12th August in deepening alongside of the wharf at that place to a depth of 10
feet, removing 6,330 cubic yards of clay, hard-pan and boulders.

Dredging was commenced in the harbour of Port Elgin about the 14th- August,
and was continued until the 27th October, making a channel 760 feet in length and
75 feet in width, and an average depth of 13 feet, in liue with the public wharf out
to deep water, 19,260 cubic yards of sand and elay having been removed.

The plant was placed in winter quarters at Windsor, and during the spring
received a complete overhauling and repair, the scows being strengthened to fit them
for service until the completion of the new scows then under construction. '

On the 9th May, 1889, operations were commenced at Goderich in opening a
channel to a depth of 18% feet below low lake level, through the shoal off the mouth
of the harbour. Dredging wasalso done inside the harbour at the commercial wharf
and along the south pier to a depth of 17 feet, the total amount of work done being
12,000 cubic yards of sand and gravel.

On the 27th June work was recommenced at Kincardine, at the outer end of the
Piers, for the purpose of removing the materials which had accumulated since the

ast visit of the dredge in July, 1888, and up to the end of the year 360 cubic yards
of ordinary sand had been removed.

The total quantity removed during the year amounted to 44,430 cubic yards, at
a cost of 19% cents per cubic yard.

The dredge and machinery are in good condition. The hull of the tug is ver
much decayed, and provision will have to be made to provide a new one, into whici'
the present boiler and machinery can be transferred.

THE ‘‘ NIPISSING.”

On the 2nd July, 1888, this dredge was working on the Presqu’lle, opposite
Papineauville, in opening a cut through the peninsula from the main channel in the
Ottawa into Pentecost Bay. This cut is 1,000 foet in length, 50 feet in width, except
at the inner or bay end, where it was made 75 feet in width. A depth of 7 feet at
low water in the Ottawa has been carried into the bay. Dredging to 7 feet depth
was also done in front of and around the Papineauville wharf to permit the approach
of steamers at the lower stages of water in the Ottawa.

This work occupied up to the 8th October, when 42,880 cubic yards of clay,
mud, sand and boulders had been removed. :

"Operations commenced at Pointe aux Anglais on the 12th October, on the
boulder shoals in front of the steamboat whatf, and a channel, 100 feet in width and
a depth of 7 feet at low water, was opened eastwardly from the wharf to deep water,
2,695 cubic yards of boulders having been removed, the greater number of which
were raised by the stone lifter after the dredge had loosened them.

During the winter a new hull was constructed, into which the boiler and
machinery, which had been placed in thorough order, were transferred, and on the
24th June, 1889, the plant was towed to St. Placide, where operations were commenced
to the westward and in front of the wharf at that place. to increase the area of the
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basin and afford more room for the turning and accomodation of vessels. An old
wharf which stood in the high water channel, and a serious obstruction to vessels,
was removed; and, up to the close of the fiscal year, 270 cubic yards of clay were
removed.

The total quantity of materials removed by this dredge during the year amounted
1o 45,745 cubic yards, at a cost of 17} cents per cubic yard.

THE ‘“‘ QNTARIO.”

At the close of the fiscal year 1887-88 the “ Ontario” was operating at Brighton,
Ont,, in front of and to the eastward of the wharf at that place, and removed several
sunken cribs in proximity to the wharf, which were the cause of difficulty and danger.
to vessels approaching or leaving the wharf. This work was prosecuted until the
3rd August, when a depth of 14 feet was left, and 10,680 cubic yards of mud, gravel
and boulders were removed.

The plant was transferred to Port Hope, where operations commenced on the
6th August in the old harbour in cleaning through to the coal wharfto a depth of*
10 feet, after which one cut was made in the new harbour to a depth of 14 feet, 5,880
cubic yards of ordinary sand having been r1emoved. -

Between the 27th August and 13th September dredging was done between the
harbour piers at Newcastle, making a depth of 14 feet at low water in Lake Ontario
from the warehouse basin out to deep water in the lake, which necessitated the
removal of 4,230 cubic yards of sand and gravel.

On the 14th September the plant was taken to Port Hope, where it remained at
work until the 27th October in deepening the entrance to the harbour outside
of the piers to 16 feet, and inside the harbour to 14 feet, and 9,430 cubic yards of sand,
gravel and mud were removed. Owing to the I))Krevalence of heavy winds much
time was lost, as the loaded scows could not be taken to a place of deposit in deep.
water 1n the lake.

The plant wintered at Port Hope and the ordinary repairs were made. On the
6th May, work was again resumed at Port Hope, and continued until the 30th June,
1889, The work comprised the deepening over portions of the old or inside harbour
to a depth of 10 feet, one cut of 20 feet in width and 925 feet in length extending to.
the outer end of the Midland lumber wha1f, and several shorter ones to complete the
inner corner, where, owing to the presence of rock, the depth was limited to 10 feet.
The angular coruer opposite the harbor storehouse was dredged to a depth of 12
feet, the outer cut being 300 feet in length and 60 feet in width. A channel 450
feet in length and 14 feet in depth was made in the new harbour, extending inwards
from the mouth of the piers, the materials removed consisting of sand, mud and
gravel, amounting to 14,390 cubic yards, or a total of 29,700 cubic yards.

The total quantity of materials removed during the year amounted to 44,610
cubic yards, at a cost of 131% cents per cubic yard.

This dredge is in fair condition, but having been afloat for five years it is
possible that during the ensuing winter extensive repairs may be found to be
necessary. The tug and scows are in good condition and repair.

THE “ QUEEN.”

At the commencement of the fiscal year this dredge was working on the shoals
in the River Richelieu, off Gatien’s and Gendrons’s wharves, at St. Antoine, and up,
to the 12th September a channel 275 feet in length, 60 feet wide and7 feet in depth,
at low water, was made through the upper shoal; and a cut 300 feet in length, 22
feet in width, was made through the lower shoal to a depth of 9 feet. At Gatien’s
wharf a cut 545 feet long and 44 feet wide, and at Gendron’s wharf a cut 100 feet
long and 25 feet wide, were made, to a depth of 7 feet at low water, in the Richelieu,
and 9,920 cubic yards of clay, clay and stone, and boulders were removed.

On the 21st September this dredge commenced work in deepening the north
branch of the Rideau up to Kemptville, Ont., continuing until the setting in of winter,
having only removed 851 cubic yards of materials, principally boulders, the work
having proved to be exceedingly hard.
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Work was resumed at Kemptville on the 6th June, 1889, and was being prose-
cuted at the close of the ﬁscaf) year, up to which time only 184 cubic yards of
boulders were removed, and then only with the assistance of dynamite,

The total quantity of materials removed by this dredge during the year amounted
to 10,955 cubic yards, at a cost of 665 cents per cubic yard.

THE “ ST, LouIs.”

At the commencement of the year the “St. Louis” was working at Kemptville,

deepening the channel of the north branch of the Rideau to '7 feet, having removed
up to the 6th September, 8,160 cubic yards of sand.
. On the 17th September this dredge commenced work at Lacolle, on the River
Richelieu, in making a loading berth 250 feet long, 50 feet wide, and 8 feet deep at
the outer and 7 feet deep at the inner end, alongside of the wharf at that place,
removing 1,365 cubic yards of clay and stone, and 100 yards of hard-pan, which had
to be broken up with dynamite.

During the winter extensive repairs were made, it having been found that the
hard digging at Lacolle had strained the dredging machinery and loosened the
fastenings.

On 22nd May, 1889, this dredge was sent to Charlemagne to remove a shoal at
the junction of the River I'Assomption with the northern branch of the Ottawa, and
to clear the obstructions which had gathered in-the channel at that point. Dredging
was done to 7 feet at low water in the St. Lawrence, and was in progress at the close
of the fiscal year, up to which date 1,350 cubic yards of clay had been removed.

The total quantity of materials removed during the year amounted to 10,975
cubic yards, at a cost of 61§ cents per cubic yard.

THE “ 0CTOPUS.”

With a view of expeditiously and economically removing the deposits of sand
and silt, which the Department is called upon to deal with, an experimental dredge
Wwas constructed, the principal machinery of which is a centrifugal pump, whereby
the sand or other soft materials are pumped directly from the bottom and conveyed
away by tubing. At the close of the year it was not sufficiently completed to admit
of being put into actual service.

THE STONE LIFTERS.

Stone lifter No. 1 was literally rebuilt during the past winter, and was attached
to the dredge “ Queen,” for the operations of which it rendered great service.

Stone lifter No. 2 was built during the past winter and attached to the dredge
“Nipissing.” It is a substantial and powerful vessel, and has been found very useful
in handling boulders which the dredge could not raise.

THE “ WINNIPEG.”

This dredge commenced work on the 2nd July, 1888, in the channel at the
mouth of the Red River, Manitoba, and remained until the 21st September, during
which period it was widened in places and straightened on one side. Owing to the
prevalence of high winds, preventing continuous working, the plant was remoyed to
the “ Forks,” where another cut was made through the shoal, the better to facilitate
navigation and to allow a larger volume of water to flow into the west branch. This
work was completed at the end of October, when the dredge was placed in winter
quarters at West Selkirk.

During the winter extensive repairs were made to the plant, principally on the
steam tug and scows.

Early in May further dredging was commenced in front of the town of West
Selkirk, north of Morris street, being a continuation of the work of the previous
year, and the work was completed on the 10th June, when operations were again
commenced at the mouth of the river, and were being carried on at the close of the

fiscal year. ‘
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The total amount of materials moved by this dredge during the year was 67,720
cubic yards, at a cost of 1988 cents per cubic yard.

THE ‘‘ PRIESTMAN.”

This dredge differs from all the others owned by the Departraent, consisting as it
does of one of Priestman’s—hence the name—patent buckets, similar to the clam shell,
which issuspended from the end ofa movable crane by a chain, and thus is capable of
working either in deep or in shallow water, and it was selected for work on the
‘White Mud, a tributary of Lake Manitoba, which is a comparatively shallow stream.

During the fiscal year this dredge worked in the White Mud in removing the
bars between Totogan and McArthur’s Landing, after which it was removed to the
mouth of the river, where the channel was widened.

Repairs having been executed during the winter, work was commenced as soon
as the ice had left the river in making another cut, thus widening the channel
through the bars below Totogan, and that work was in progress at the close of the
fiscal year.

T}l;e total amount of materials removed during the year amounted to 19,798
cubic yards, at a cost of 25#4%; cents per yard.

THE “ PACIFIC.”

During the past fiscal year the dredge “ Pacific” was employed as follows :—
From the 1st to 11th July, 1888, in clearing the entrance to the Graving Dock
at BEsquimalt. On the 12th operations were commenced ir: deepening and widening
the channel off Shoal Point, at the entrance to Victoria harbour, and were continued
without intermission until the 28th February, 1889. Between the 1st March and 1st
April operations were carried on on the gou]der shoal in Victoria harbour, when
the plant was removed to New Westminster and placed to obtain a deep water berth
abreast of the wharf of the Royal City Planing Mills Company, remaining there
until the 7th May, when the plant returned to Victoria, and resumed work on the
boulder shoal, where it remained until the 15th June, when it was laid up for necessary

- repairs.

P The total amount of materials dredged during the year amounted to 28,759 cubie
yards, which is about double the amount done last year, and may be accepted as a

fair season’s work, when the hard and compact nature of the material dredged is
considered, .

THE ‘ SAMSON.”

The snag-boat ¢ Samson” was employed during the year in connection with the
works in progress for improving the channel through the sand banks off the mouth
of the Fraser; in attending to and placing buoys in the channel, under the charge
of the officers of the Department of Marine and Fisheries; and in removing 153 snags
and three large timber jams from the Fraser.

During the season effective repairs were made to the hull, boiler and machinery,

and the vessel placed in good working order.
DREDGING PLANT.
The dredging plant belonging to the Department is as follows :-—

In the Maritime Provinces.
The steam hopper dredge *St. Lawrence.”
do

do ¢ Canada.”
The dipper dredge “ New Dominion " and 6 scows.
30 do “ Prince Edward ” and 4 scows.
do do “ Geo. McKernzie ” 3 scows and one 1 water scow.

Algo 5 old scows belonging to the lost dredge ““Cape Breton.”
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In Quebec,

The dipper dredge *“Queen,” 2 scows, and tug “Sensation.”

do “Nipissing,” 2 scows and tug “ Ottawa.”

do “8t. Louis,” 2 scows, living scow, and tug “ Davis.”
The sand dredge * Octopus.”
Stone lifters Nos. 1 and 2.

Ship Channel, River St. Lawrence.
Six elevator dredges, tugs “John Pratt” “St. James,” “St. Francis,” “St.
Paul,” #C. J. Brydges,” “ Minnie Parsons,” “ Delisle,” three stone lifters, two coal

barges, one stone ship, twelve dump scows of 80 yards capacity, five scows of 150
yards capacity, one sounding scow and two flat scows.

In Ontario.

The dipper dredge “ Challenge,” 2 scows, and tug “ Trudeau.”
do “Ontario,” 2 scows, and tug “ Sir John.”

In Manitoba.

Dredge “ Winnipeg,” tug “Sir Hector,” and two scows and one coal barge.
Dredge “ Priestman,” tug “ Victoria,” and two scows,

In British Columbia.

The elevator dredge “ Pacific,” scows and tug “ Princess.”
The snag boat “Samson,”
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DeraiLs of Dredging in the Maritime Provinces

NEw BRUNSWICK.
Dredge. Locality., County.
Cost
Quantity.| of each | Total Cost.
‘Work.
C. yds. $ cts. $ cts,
¢ New Dominion ”.|Kennebecasis River........... King’s............ 11,340 | 2,407 63 |............
Oromocto Shoals . .. ........ Sunbury.......... 30,310 | 6,435 24 |............
Anchor Line Wharf........... St. John.......... 4,695 996 81 9,839 68
“Canada”........ Yarmouth.................... Yarmouth........|cceeeeei]oeeiii i,
Barrington.................... Shelburne . ......|-coeveve oo Lo
Cape Breton .. ... . il e e e Veeiaan
“Prince Edward ”.|Red Point... ........ e Queen’s ......ies Jeeernirienleeriineiidiii i
Steam Navigation Co.’s Wharf, .
Charlottetown .............. do ... deendencc e
Connolly’s Wharf, Charlotteton| do .... .....p. ... feeeenidin i,
Peake Bros, & Co. do [ 1 S U P I
P. E. I. Ry. Wharf do do ...l B
*“St. Lawrence ”. . |Little Glace Bay.......... ... Cape Breton...... F T B D
Traverse............cocovennen Restigouche ...... 11,050 | 431978 |............
Dalhousie .........ccovevenn.. go ...... 6,238 | 2,438 62 6,758 40
Pictou .....oovviienininan.n. Pictou .. ooe o evibene e diee e i
Granton ..........ci.cvvenin [+ 1 TN U PRI J
¢ Geo. McKenzie ”|McNair’s Cove................ Antigonish . ..... .0 coeeeii i iie i
Bayfield.... ...l go ......................................
ATBaIg. . iieii i el do ..ol S O P
63,633 |.......... 16,598 08
NEW BRUNSWICK. Nova Scoria.
Dredge. -
Quantity. Cost. Quantity. Cost.
C. yds. $  cts. $ cts
“New Dominion ”. ... e . 46,345 9,839 68 |......... e,
“Canada”..... AL o 11,877 54
“ O Breton ”. . 762 98
“Prince Bdward ”...... ...t e e e
¢St. Lawrence”... ...... . 6,758 40 8,888 95
“Geo. McKenzie”.... ... Y IR . 4,335 11,167 53
’ 16,598 08 58,910 32,697 00
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Nova Scorra. PrINCE EDWARD ISLAND.
Quantity
by Total
each Expenditure.
Quantity, eagl?s\%’gf‘k. Total Cost. | Quantity. e“g}?s‘%vgf,k. Total Cost. Dredge.

1116788 ...,

900 | 2,318 52 | 11,167 53 .. uvinid e 433 | 11,167 53
58910 |........ ... 32,697 00 24,240 |.......... 15,502 95 146,783 64,79& 03
PrINCE EDWARD ISLAND.
Total Expenditure | Superintend- Total Cost per
Quantity. Dredging. ence. Expenditure. | Cubic Yard.
Quantity. Cost.

C. yds. $ cts C. yds. 8 cts. $ cts. $ cts. $ cts.
....................... 46,345 9,283 98 555 70 9,839 68 0 21231
......................... 31,837 11,206 75 670 79 11,877 54 0 37305

...................... Nil. 719 91 43 07 T6298 |...oiueensnn...
24,240 15,502 95 24,240 14,627 32 875 63 15,542 95 0 63956
P 40,026 14,763 66 883 69 15,647 35 0 39°093
S 4,335 10,536 85 630 68 11,167 53 2 57613
24,240 15,502 95 146,783 - 61,138 47 3,659 56 64,798 03 0 44°14
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DrepGE STATEMENT, showing Material Removed at different localities, Total Annual.
Expenditure on each Dredge, and Average Cost per Cubic Yard.

QUEBEC AND ONTARIO.

